
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 
TUESDAY, 17TH MARCH 2009, AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 
MEMBERS: Councillors J. T. Duddy (Chairman), C. B. Taylor (Vice-Chairman), 

Mrs. M. Bunker, Miss D. H. Campbell JP, S. R. Colella, 
Mrs. A. E. Doyle and E. J. Murray 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance 
Management Board held on 17th February 2009 (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

4. Performance Reporting (January 2009) (Period 10) (Pages 5 - 24) 
 

5. Employee Survey 2008 (Pages 25 - 36) 
 

6. Housing Strategy 2006/2011 - Progress Report, Mid Term Review and New 
Action Plan (Pages 37 - 78) 
 

7. Audit Commission Re-Inspection of Strategic Housing Services - Action Plan 
Update on Progress (Pages 79 - 106) 
 

8. BDHT Annual Monitoring Report 2008 (Pages 107 - 142) 
 

9. Improvement Plan Exception Report (January 2009) (Pages 143 - 152) 
 

10. Council Plan 2009/2012 Part 2 (Pages 153 - 236) 
 

11. Work Programme 2009/2010 (Pages 237 - 242) 



- 2 - 

 
12. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 

Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  
 

 K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
6th March 2009 
 



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

TUESDAY, 17TH FEBRUARY 2009, AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors J. T. Duddy (Chairman), C. B. Taylor (Vice-Chairman), 
Miss D. H. Campbell JP, S. R. Colella, Mrs. A. E. Doyle and E. J. Murray 
 

 Invitees: Councillor G. N. Denaro  
 

 Officers: Mr. H. Bennett, Ms. J. Pickering and Ms. R. Cole  
 

91/08 APOLOGIES  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mrs. M. Bunker. 
 

92/08 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Miss D. H. Campbell declared a personal interest in agenda item 5 
(Improvement Plan Exception Report) as a member of the Operating Trust of 
Bromsgrove Arts Centre.  
 
Councillor S. R. Colella declared a personal interest in agenda item 4 
(Integrated Finance and Performance Report) in relation to Haybridge Sports 
Centre.   
 

93/08 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 
20th January 2009 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

94/08 INTEGRATED FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORT (QUARTER 3)  
 
The Board considered a report on the Authority’s performance and financial 
position at 31st December 2008. A number of issues were raised by Members 
and these were addressed by the Head of Financial Services and the Portfolio 
Holder for Finance.  
 
There was particular concern in relation to the net cost of services which 
indicated a projected overspend of £375,000.  It was noted that £315,000 of 
this projected overspend arose from Street Scene and Community.  
 
The Assistant Chief Executive undertook to request the Head of Street Scene 
and Community to provide Members with additional information regarding (a) 
the shortfall in the projected income from car parks; (b) the reduction of 
recycling crews from seven to six and why this had only recently been brought 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Performance Management Board 
17th February 2009 

 

into effect; and (c) the possibility of achieving a further discount on the 
purchase of replacement vehicles in the light of the current economic situation. 
There was also a discussion on the possibility of generating additional income 
by hiring out the Burcot Room which was currently vacant.   
 
The Head of Financial Services answered queries from Members on the 
Council’s investments including the probable level of interest to be generated 
over the next few years and on various aspects of sundry debts. In this regard 
the Head of Financial Services undertook to provide Members with additional 
information on the breakdown of the outstanding sundry debts in respect of 
rents and hire charges which amounted to £69,000. There was also 
discussion on reasons for the projected overspend in relation to Bromsgrove 
Museum and Haybridge Sports Centre. 
 
In relation to the section of the report relating to performance indicators, the 
Assistant Chief Executive reported that the previously agreed additional 
performance clinic on sickness had not yet taken place due to other pressures 
on workload in Human Resources and Organisational Development at 
present. It was however intended that the clinic would be arranged as soon as 
possible.  
 
The worsening position of the indicator relating to the number of domestic 
burglaries was discussed. It was suggested that Chief Inspector Amanda Bott 
who had recently been appointed to the Bromsgrove area be invited to attend 
a future meeting of the Board to discuss this issue further.   
 
The Assistant Chief Executive undertook to circulate to Members more 
detailed information on the complaints received particularly in relation to those 
relating to flooding. 
 
RESOLVED:  
(a) that it be noted that 62% of performance indicators for which data was 

available were improving or stable; 
(b) that it be noted that 79% of performance  indicators for which data was 

available were achieving their year to date target; 
(c) that it be noted that 87% of performance indicators for which data was 

available were predicted to meet their target at year end; 
(d) that the successes and areas for potential concern as set out in the 

Council Summary section of the report be noted; and 
(e) that the financial projected revenue underspend of £322,000 and 

capital underspend of £39,000 be noted    
 
RECOMMENDED: 
(a) that the Cabinet recommend to the Council the release of £150,00 from 

balances to meet the projected overspend in relation to Bromsgrove 
Museum and Haybridge Sports Centre; and  

(b) that officers be requested to investigate the possibility of hiring out the 
Burcot Room in order to generate additional income.    

 
       
 

Page 2



Performance Management Board 
17th February 2009 

 

95/08 IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT (DECEMBER 2008)  
 
The Board considered the Improvement Plan Exception report for December 
2008 together with the corrective action being taken.  
 
The Assistant Chief Executive updated the Board on the latest position 
regarding a number of issues relating to the redevelopment of the Town 
Centre. Discussion included the possible location of the proposed “Blue Light” 
centre and the redevelopment of the toilet block. The Board felt it was 
important that all Members be kept informed of progress on the Town Centre 
by way of regular bulletins or briefings. The Assistant Chief Executive 
undertook to invite the Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects to attend 
the next meeting of the Board to discuss these issues further.  
 
In relation to the Service Level Agreement for Bromsgrove Arts Centre there 
was some concern that following discussion at the meeting in December 2008, 
when it was understood the Agreement was to be signed very shortly, there 
now appeared to be the likelihood of a further delay. The Assistant Chief 
Executive undertook to raise this with the Deputy Head of Street Scene and 
Community and the Portfolio Holder and, if appropriate, to invite them to 
attend the next meeting of the Board.   
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the revisions to the Improvement Plan Exception report together 

with the corrective actions being taken be approved; 
(b) that it be noted that for the 131 actions highlighted for December within 

the plan 77.9% was on target (green), 3.1% was one month behind 
(amber) and 9.1% was over one month behind (red). 9.9% of actions 
had been reprogrammed with approval. 

 
96/08 UPDATE ON DATA QUALITY STRATEGY ACTION PLAN  

 
Consideration was given to a report on the progress made on the 
implementation of the Data Quality Strategy Action Plan. 
 
It was noted that the only action which was not either completed or on target 
was in relation to the inclusion of references to data quality within job 
descriptions and that this had been delayed in the light of the pending Job 
Evaluation implementation.   
 
The Assistant Chief Executive reported that following the recent external 
assessment of the data supporting the Authority’s performance indicators, two 
of the indicators had been “qualified” by the external auditors because of data 
quality issues. This had resulted in these two indicators being placed in the 
bottom quartile even though the recalculation had in fact resulted in an 
improved performance. This outcome had been disappointing for officers but 
illustrated the importance of stringent attention to detail in calculating 
performance indicators.  
 
In response to a request from Members the Assistant Chief Executive 
undertook to circulate a glossary of terms.    

Page 3



Performance Management Board 
17th February 2009 

 

 
RESOLVED that the progress made on the implementation of the Data Quality 
Strategy Action Plan be noted. 
 
RECOMMENDED that further procedures be introduced for the 2008/2009 
closedown, in particular the use of spot checks on high risk indicators, prior to 
external audit and during the year.   
     

97/08 WORK PROGRAMME 2008/2009  
 
Consideration was given to a report on the Board’s updated work programme 
for 2008/2009. It was noted that the meeting scheduled for 21st April 2009 
would be replaced by a training session. Following discussion it was  
 
RESOLVED that, subject to the External Audit Report and the Direction of 
Travel being included in the work programme for a later date, the deletion of 
the Annual PACT review and the combination of the items in relation to the 
Staff Survey and the Employee Stress Survey, the report be noted. 
 

The meeting closed at 7.30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 4



 
 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

17 MARCH 2009 
 

JANUARY  (PERIOD 10) PERFORMANCE REPORTING 
 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr Mike Webb, Portfolio Holder for 

Customer Care & Service 
Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett, Assistant Chief 

Executive 
Non Key Decision 

 
1.  SUMMARY 
  
1.1 To report to the Board on the Council’s performance at 31 January 2009 

(period 10). 
  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
2.1 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
2.5 
 

That the Board notes that 59% of PIs are stable or improving.   
 
That the Board notes that 80% of PI’s that have a target are meeting their 
target as at the month end and that 76% of PI’s that have a target are 
predicted to meet their target at the year end.   
 
That the Board notes the performance figures for January 2009  as set out in 
Appendix 2.  
 

That the Board notes the particular areas of improvement as summarised in 
section 3.4. 
 
That the Board notes the PI’s of particular concern as set out in section 3.5. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
  
3.1  The full list of performance indicators due to be reported monthly is set out in 

Appendix 2 where:-  
 
 On Target  I Performance is Improving 
 Less than 10% from target  S Performance is Stable 
 More than 10% from target  W Performance is Worsening 
 No target set  N/a No target set  

 
 

 
3.2 Comparisons of overall performance improvements this month to last month 

are shown on Appendix 1.    
 

3.3 Performance continues to be held at levels already achieved for the majority 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



of performance indicators, with only five indicators behind target at this point 
in the year.  Three indicators are projected to miss target by more than 10% 
at the year end.  Remedial actions are underway and/or planned for these 
three but any improvements arising are unlikely to make a significant 
difference to the cumulative result for this year given that there is only 1 
month of the year left.  The percentage of PI’s that are stable or improving is 
considerably lower than usual, at 59%.  As can be seen from the figures in 
Appendix 1 there are 11 out of 29 PI’s where performance has declined in 
January compared to December.  Some of those are PI’s subject to seasonal 
variation e.g. NI 192 percentage of waste recycled drops at this time of year 
following the cessation of the green waste collection for the winter period.  In 
addition 7 of the 11 PI’s with declining performance are still expected to meet 
their year end target.  So, although the percentage of PI’s improving or stable 
is lower than usual it is not considered to be a cause for concern. 
 

 
3.4  

 
Performance worthy of particular mention is as follows: 
 

� Previous strong performance considerably above target at the CSC 
has continued to be maintained, in spite of increased call volumes.    

 
3.5 Performance of potential concern is as follows: 

 
� As mentioned earlier in the report three PI’s are now expected to miss 

their targets by 10% at the year end – Sickness absence, time to 
process benefit claims and domestic burglaries.  The first two of these 
have been reported on in earlier reports and, at this time, there is 
nothing further to report on the remedial actions.  Domestic burglaries 
is primarily a Police responsibility, the Council continues to support this 
through the CDRP 

 
  
4. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
4.1 There are no financial implications 
  
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
5.1 There are no legal implications. 
  
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
  
6.1 Performance reporting & management links to the Improvement objective 
  
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
  
7.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

 
•  Data quality problems  
•  Poor performance 

 
7.2 These risks are being managed as follows:  

Page 6



 
•  Implementation of the Data Quality Strategy 
•   Robust follow up on performance issues, including performance clinics 

 
8 CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
  
8.1 Performance Improvement is a Council Objective 
  
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
  
9.1 There are no implications for the Council’s Equalities and Diversity Policies. 
  
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1 � There are no VFM implications   
  
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Procurement Issues None  

 
 Personnel Issues None  

 
 Governance/Performance Management –  Production of the performance 

report supports the aim of improving performance & performance 
management  
 

 Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & Disorder Act 1988 None  
 

 Policy  None  
 

 Environmental None  
 

  
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
  
  
  
 Portfolio Holder Yes(At  

Leader’s Group) 
 Chief Executive Yes (at CMT)  
 Executive Director (Partnerships & Projects) Yes (at CMT)  
 Executive Director (Services) Yes (at CMT)  
 Assistant Chief Executive Yes 
 Head of Service  Yes 
 Head of Financial Services Yes (at CMT)  
 Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services Yes (at CMT)  
 Head of Organisational Development & HR Yes (at CMT)  
 Corporate Procurement Team Yes (at CMT)  
  
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
  

All Wards’. 

Page 7



  
14. APPENDICES 
  
 Appendix 1  Performance Summary for January 2009  

Appendix 2    Detail Performance report for January 2009  
Appendix 3   Detailed figures to support the performance report 
Appendix 4    Departmental analysis of sickness absence 
 

15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
  
 None 
  
Contact officer 
Name: John Outhwaite, Senior Policy & Performance Officer 
email: j.outhwaite@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 881602 
 

Page 8



APPENDIX 1 

No. % No. % No. %
Improving or stable. 18 67% On target 19 70% On target 23 85%
Declining 9 33% Missing target by less than 10% 4 15% Missing target by less than 10% 1 4%
No data 0 0% Missing target by more than 10% 2 7% Missing target by more than 10% 1 4%

No data 2 7% No data 2 7%

Total Number of 
Indicators 27 100% Total Number of Indicators 27 100% total 27 100%

No. % No. % No. %
Improving or stable. 22 67% On target 24 83% On target 28 90%
Declining 9 27% Missing target by less than 10% 3 10% Missing target by less than 10% 1 3%
No data 2 6% Missing target by more than 10% 2 7% Missing target by more than 10% 2 6%

No data 0 0% No data 0 0%

Total Number of 
Indicators 33 100% Total Number of Indicators 29 100% total 31 100%

No. % No. % No. %
Improving or stable. 21 62% On target 22 79% On target 26 87%
Declining 13 38% Missing target by less than 10% 4 14% Missing target by less than 10% 0 0%
No data 0 0% Missing target by more than 10% 2 7% Missing target by more than 10% 4 13%

No data 0 0% No data 0 0%

Total Number of 
Indicators 34 100% Total Number of Indicators 28 100% total 30 100%

No. % No. % No. %
Improving or stable. 16 59% On target 20 80% On target 19 76%
Declining 11 41% Missing target by less than 10% 2 8% Missing target by less than 10% 2 8%
No data 0% Missing target by more than 10% 3 12% Missing target by more than 10% 3 12%

No data 0% No data 1 4%

Total Number of 
Indicators 27 100% Total Number of Indicators 25 100% total 25 100%

SUMMARY - Period 7 (October) 2008/09 
Monthly (October)  performance Estimated Outturn

SUMMARY - Period 9 (December) 2008/09 

SUMMARY - Period 8 (November) 2008/09 
Monthly (November)  performance Estimated Outturn

Monthly (December)  performance Estimated Outturn

Monthly (January)  performance Estimated Outturn
SUMMARY - Period 10 (January) 2008/09 

P
age 9



P
age 10

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Performance Indicators Period 10 (January) 2008/09 APPENDIX 2

Ref Description Report -
ed?

Cum or 
Snap?

Actuals Quartile Dec Target Dec Actual Target & 
trend

Jan Target Jan Actual Target & 
trend

Target Est. Outturn Est. 
Outturn 
Target 
&Trend

Comments 

Street Scene & Community

NI 191
Residual Household waste per 
household

M C n/a n/a 450.55 444.23 W 503.48 492.11 I 593.00 588.00 W
Previous months figs now updated.  Reuse & 
3rd party recycling figs not yet available.         
Jan figure is likely to fall 3.23kg when trade 
figures are in.           

NI 192
Percentage of household waste re-
used, recycled and composted

M C n/a n/a 45.89 46.37 W 44.63 45.09 W 45.00 42.00

Despite an increase for Jan recycling tonnages   
(due to increased bottles etc following the Xmas 
period)  recycling % will now fall as predicted as 
no green waste is collected from Dec - Feb

LPI depot
%age of reported abandoned 
vehicles investigated within 24 
hours 

M C 100.00 1 95.00 98.25 S 95.00 98.46 S 95.00 98.15
8 vehicles reported and 8 investigated within 
timescale

LPI depot
%age of abandoned vehicles 
removed within 24 hours of legal 
entitlement

M C 98.78 1 95.00 100.00 S 95.00 100.00 S 95.00 100.00
6 vehicles instructed to be removed and 6 
removed within timescale

LPI Depot
% animal/debris cleared within 
timescales

M C 100.00 n/a 95.00 100.00 S 95.00 100.00 S 95.00 100.00
24 animals this month all removed within 
timescale

LPI Depot
% of flytips dealt with in response 
time

M C 99.46 n/a 95.00 100.00 S 95.00 100.00 S 95.00 100.00
112 incidents of which all were removed within 
timescale

LPI Depot
Number of missed household waste 
collections

M C 1102 n/a 1,044 821 I 1,160 894 W 1,400 936 W
73 Missed refuse collections this month = 
0.048% of 156,000 collections ( 4 weeks x 
38,000)

LPI Depot
Number of missed recycle waste 
collections

M C 352 n/a 450 184 I 500 216 W 600 245 I
32 missed recycling collections this month = 
0.022% of 144,000 collections (4 weeks x 
36,000)

NWBCU 1

The number of domestic burglaries M C 355 n/a 270 313 I 301 355 W 360 411

2007/08 2008/09

1

P
age 11



Ref Description Report -
ed?

Cum or 
Snap?

Actuals Quartile Dec Target Dec Actual Target & 
trend

Jan Target Jan Actual Target & 
trend

Target Est. Outturn Est. 
Outturn 
Target 
&Trend

Comments 
2007/08 2008/09

NWBCU 2

The number of violent crimes M C 1093 n/a 793 764 W 882 843 I 1056 1030

NWBCU 3

The number of robberies M C 67 n/a 42 39 W 47 49 W 60 57 S

NWBCU 4

The number of vehicle crimes M C 710 n/a 572 540 I

636

599 I 768 735 S

LPI SC 1

Number of attendances at arts 
events

M C 25,056 n/a 17,290 20,257 W 17,440 20,382 W 25,253 25,253

LPI SC 4

Sports Centres Usage M C 592,133 n/a 485,784 469,274 W 546,542 526,393 I 672,420 655,331 W

Dolphin Centre dry side is below target, wet side 
above target.  New exercise classes and 
bookings in sports hall starting Jan, early Feb 
should increase usage. Marketing for new gym 
increased in Feb to get new members in before 
April opening.  Haybridge - quite a few 
membership cancellations due to centre closure 
end of March.

LPI SC 5

Sports development usages M C 18,213 n/a 14,958 15,315 W 16,537 16,857 I 20,505 20,505 I Year end target achievable if all sessions 
programmed are successfully delivered.

Planning & Environment

2

P
age 12



Ref Description Report -
ed?

Cum or 
Snap?

Actuals Quartile Dec Target Dec Actual Target & 
trend

Jan Target Jan Actual Target & 
trend

Target Est. Outturn Est. 
Outturn 
Target 
&Trend

Comments 
2007/08 2008/09

NI 157 
The percentage of major planning 
applications determined within 13 
weeks

M C 95.35 1 75.00 78.00 I 75.00 72.00 W 75.00 75.00

Major 0/2 = 0% (National indicator is 60 %) 
These applications (Moundsley Hall and 
Perryfields Road housing application) were both 
complex proposals. The Perryfields road scheme 
had the potential to require further design 
changes along with the submission of a Section 
106 agreement and both applications required 
referral to GOWM following Committees 
consideration and prior to the issuing of a 
decision.

NI 157 
The percentage of minor planning 
applications determined within 8 
weeks

M C 92.42 1 80.00 73.00 W 80.00 75.00 I 80.00 77.00

Minor 9/9 = 100% (National Indicator is 65%). 
Applications submitted in this category have 
DECREASED in relation to December (23) but 
have increased in relation to November when 
just 6 applications were considered. However all 
applications were determined in time.

NI 157 
The percentage of other planning 
applications determined within 8 
weeks

M C 93.11 1 90.00 89.00 I 90.00 89.00 I 90.00 90.00

Other 48/55 = 87% (National Indicator is 80%).  
Applications submitted in this category 
DECREASED in relation to December (64), but 
are in general an increase in relation to 
November (35), October (42) September (63) 
August (55). A total of 7 applications went over 
time; three of these related to Officer error, two 
due to difficulties accessing sites and two due to 
difficulties with Parish Councils and public 
access through UNIFORM. 

E-Government & Customer Services

CSC

Monthly Call Volumes Customer 
Contact Centre

M S n/a n/a n/a 5,544 n/a 8,638 n/a

Calls to the customer contact centre have 
increased by 56% compared to December, this 
matches previous yearly patterns and is 
expected following the holiday period.  It worth 
noting that  the overall volume of calls (for 
contact centre and switchboard) is the  second 
highest amount handled during this year with 
only April 2008 and  council tax main billing 
being higher 

CSC

Monthly Call Volume Council 
Switchboard

M S n/a n/a n/a 3,753 n/a 5,021 n/a

Calls to the Council Switchboard have increased 
by 34% compared to last month, his matches 
previous yearly patterns and is expected 
following the holiday period

CSCLPI3.1

Resolution at First Point of Contact 
all services (percentage)

M C 94.30 n/a 85.00 99.00 S 85.00 98.00 W 90.00 90.00
Resolution performance remains consistent with 
last month and is in excess of target 3

P
age 13



Ref Description Report -
ed?

Cum or 
Snap?

Actuals Quartile Dec Target Dec Actual Target & 
trend

Jan Target Jan Actual Target & 
trend

Target Est. Outturn Est. 
Outturn 
Target 
&Trend

Comments 
2007/08 2008/09

CSCLPI3.2

% of Calls Answered M C 84.00 n/a 85.00 94.00 I 85.00 92.00 W 85.00 85.00
Performance for January remains above target 
and  performance has been sustained despite 
pressure from high call volumes

CSCLPI3.3

Average Speed of Answer 
(seconds)

M C 36 n/a 30.00 9.00 I 30.00 16.00 W 30.00 30.00

Excellent performance has been sustained 
during January - despite call volumes increasing 
dramatically the answer rate has only fallen by 7 
seconds. 

Financial Services

NI181
Time taken to process HOB/CT 
benefit new claims or change 
events

M C n/a n/a 16.00 19.13 W 16.00 18.84 I 16.00 19.00

Details for accurate calculation of this indicator 
are still awaited from DWP, as reported 
previously.  Performance figures for the month 
show some improvement, this is due partly to 
correction of a couple of isolated errors in 
reporting but also because the backlog of work 
has been reduced and incoming post is being 
dealt with quickly

FP001
Percentage of invoices paid within 
30 days of receipt

M C 97.83 1 98.00 99.59 W 98.00 99.49 I 98.00 99.00 On Target

Chief Executive's Department

LPI 
CCPP01 
(SS)

Number of complaints received 
(Council wide) Monthly.  Source  
new complaints system. 

M C n/a n/a n/a 179 I n/a 217 W n/a n/a n/a

The number of complaints received in January 
increased to 38 compared to 18 in December, 
the increased number of complaints are mostly 
about  the closure of Haybridge and more on 
green waste charges

LPI 
CCPP03 
(SS)

Number of compliments received M C n/a n/a n/a 43 W n/a 50 I n/a n/a n/a
Compliments increased from 2 in December to 7 
in January

Legal, Equalities & Democratic services

4

P
age 14



Ref Description Report -
ed?

Cum or 
Snap?

Actuals Quartile Dec Target Dec Actual Target & 
trend

Jan Target Jan Actual Target & 
trend

Target Est. Outturn Est. 
Outturn 
Target 
&Trend

Comments 
2007/08 2008/09

LD LPI 1
The level of the Equality Standard 
for Local Government to which the 
Authority conforms

M C 2 n/a 2 2 S 2 2
2 

moving 
to 3

2

The target for end of year 2008/09 is Level 2 
under the Local Government Equality Standard. 
The target for 2009/10 is Level 2 under the Local 
Government Equality Framework - this is 
because we hope to achieve Level 3 of the 
Standard in April 2009 which automatically 
migrates to Level 2 of the Framework. After that, 
there is only Level 3 (Levels 4 & 5 disappear in 
the revised structure that the Framework 
established). We haven't discussed or planned 
anything yet when we might aim to reach the 
new Level 3 but suggest 2010/11 as there will be 
a period of transition when we have to manage 
and moderate the evidence from the Standard to 
the new structure of the Framework which is 
much broader and open to interpretation.

Human Resources and Organisational Development

LPI 
(formerly 
BV12)

The average number of working 
days lost due to sickness.

M C 9.35 2 6.39 8.31 I 7.18 9.25 I 8.75 11.12 W
Sickness levels were lower than last month, 
however the estimated outturn remains red.   A 
second performance clinic is due to be held on 
24 March

5

P
age 15



P
age 16

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Street Scene & Community

Target
50.80 105.00 52.50 50.10 46.79 49.57 49.78 50.18 50.67 51.91

Actual 50.80 52.75 48.87 55.71 49.03 49.87 54.89 45.08 54.97 47.88

2127470 1853198

38706 38706

Target
45.31 48.83 49.45 44.02 47.14 45.08 42.34 41.90 26.50 30.60 29.14 29.95

Actual
46.94 52.74 49.92 47.03 47.45 48.46 45.57 40.67 25.20 29.59

716.729 778.656

2844.199 2631.854

Target 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00

Actual 87.50 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Target 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00

Actual 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Target
95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00

Actual
100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Target 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00

Actual
100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Target
116 116 116 116 116 116 116 116 116 116 116 116

Actual
104 123 67 98 93 91 96 99 50 73

Target
50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50

Actual
35 28 18 18 17 21 15 17 14 32

NI 191

NI 192
Percentage of household waste re-
used, recycled and composted

Residual Household waste per 
household

M C

LPI Depot
% animal/debris cleared within 
timescales

M C

LPI Depot
% of flytips dealt with in response 
time

M C

LPI depot 
%age of reported abandoned vehicles 
investigated within 24 hours

M C

LPI depot 
%age of abandoned vehicles 
removed within 24 hours of legal 
entitlement

M

M

numerator

denominator

numerator

C

C

C

denominator

M C
Number of missed recycle waste 
collections

2008/09 Monthly Performance figures

Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Oct. Nov. Jun.Apr. May. Sep. Jul. Aug.

LPI Depot

Description Freq C  or  S

Number of missed household waste 
collections

Ref

M

LPI Depot

P
age 17



Target
30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30

Actual
21 20 24 30 44 39 47 51 40 43

Target
88 89 86 89 89 86 89 86 89 89

Actual
89 92 101 98 101 93 58 75 83 81

Target
5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

Actual
3 3 2 7 4 5 2 5 7 10

Target
64 65 62 65 65 62 65 62 65 65

Actual
49 53 64 65 56 61 69 63 62 59

Target
60 530 500 800 12,000 600 600 2,000 200 150

Actual
66 390 523 2,365 12,768 625 625 2,640 255 125

Target
53,601 53,899 53,993 62339 58184 57927 55217 58515 32109 60758

Actual
53,964 54,580 55,401 57391 45616 55694 57410 57602 31616 57119

Target
1,636 1654 1681 1763 1763 1620 1558 1579 1640 1722

Actual
1,854 1,901 1,663 1792 1334 1818 2102 1865 1206 1542

C

The number of domestic burglaries M C

LPI 
Community 
Safety

LPI  

LPI 
Community 
Safety

LPI 
Community 
Services

LPI

LPI

Sports development usages

C

C

C

M

The number of vehicle crimes M

Number of attendances at arts events

M

M

Sports Centres Usage

The number of violent crimes M C

LPI The number of robberies M C

P
age 18



Planning & Environment

Target 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00

Actual 100.00 80.00 50.00 66.00 100.00 66.00 100.00 50.00 100.00 0.00

2 4 1 2 1 2 1 1 4 0

2 5 2 3 1 3 1 2 4 2

Target 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00

Actual 67.00 88.00 85.00 58.00 100.00 46.00 72.00 100.00 78.00 100.00

10 15 11 11 6 7 13 6 18 9

15 17 13 19 6 15 18 6 23 9

Target 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00

Actual 95.00 96.00 90.00 88.00 93.00 88.00 78.00 71.00 83.00 87.00

75 81 73 64 51 56 33 25 53 48

79 84 81 72 55 63 42 35 64 55

E-government & Customer Services 

Target
n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Actual 9,685 7,576 6,341 7,215 6,275 7,497 6,931 6,653 5,544 8,638

Target
n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Actual 6,243 5,629 5,412 5,657 4,842 5,389 5,081 4,361 3,753 5,021

Target
85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00

Actual 98.00 98.60 98.90 99.00 98.70 98.40 99.00 99.00 99.00 98.00

Target
85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00

Actual 78.00 77.00 87.00 83.00 94.90 88.70 91.00 91.00 94.00 92.00

Target
30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00

Monthly Call Volumes Customer Contact 
Centre

M S

M C

M

Monthly Call Volume Council Switchboard M

NI157

NI157

NI157

The percentage of other planning 
applications determined within 8 
weeks

S

numerator

denominator

M

numerator

C

CSC LPI 3.2 % of Calls Answered M C

Resolution at First Point of Contact all 
services (percentage)

CSC LPI 3.3 Average Speed of Answer (seconds)

CSC

CSC LPI 3.1

CSC

The percentage of major planning 
applications determined within 13 
weeks

The percentage of minor planning 
applications determined within 8 
weeks

denominator

C

M C

M C

numerator

denominator

P
age 19



Actual 34.00 36.00 26.00 28.00 22.00 24.00 18.00 17.00 9.00 16.00

Financial Services

Target
16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00

Actual 15.51 16.27 16.42 16.91 17.53 18.52 16.58 15.12 17.30 16.48

33.17 34.61 32.96

2 2 2

Target 98.00 98.00 98.00 98.00 98.00 98.00 98.00 98.00 98.00 98.00

Actual
99.85 99.68 99.30 99.18 99.55 99.66 100.00 99.84 99.36 98.48

Chief Executive's Department

Target
n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Actual
23 17 18 39 22 10 16 16 18 38

Target
n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Actual
9 5 4 8.00 3 5 1 6 2 7

Legal, Equalities & Democratic services

Target
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Actual
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Human Resources and Organisational Development

Target
0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.79

Actual
0.72 0.50 0.62 1.13 1.01 0.99 1.15 1.12 1.04 0.94

FP001
Percentage of invoices paid within 30 
days of receipton time

M C

CM

M C

LPI 
CCPP01

Number of complaints received 
(Council wide) Monthly.  Source  
new complaints system. 

NI 181
Time taken to process HB/CT benefit 
new claims or change events

CSC LPI 3.3 Average Speed of Answer (seconds)

M C

numerator

denominator

LPI 
CCPP03

Number of compliments received 
(Council wide) 

M C

LD LPI
The level of the Equality Standard for 
Local Government to which the 
Authority conforms.

M C

LPI  
(formerly 
BV12)

The average number of working days 
lost due to sickness.

M C

P
age 20



P
age 21



P
age 22

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Sickness Figures for 2008/2009 by Service

Tota
l F

TE @
 M

ay
 08

Act
ual 

no o
f e

m
plo

ye
es

 - 
Ja

nuar
y

SERVIC
E

Tota
l S

ic
kn

es
s d

ay
s A

pril
 08

 &
 

on

Day
s p

er
 F

TE
 - 

Yea
r t

o D
at

e

Pro
jec

te
d - 

per
 F

TE

Sick
nes

s T
ar

get
 20

00
8/0

9

Apr-0
8

May
-0

8

Ju
n-0

8

Ju
l-0

8

Aug-0
8

Sep
-0

8

Oct
-0

8

Nov-
08

Dec
-0

8

Ja
n-

09

Feb
-0

9

Mar
-0

9

28.00 Legal & Democratic 88.50 3.16 3.79 5.5 29.95 28.00 28.00 28.00 28.00 28.00 28.00 29.95 28.00 28.00 29.95 29.95
3.00 Short term Absences up to 28 days 66.50 2.38 4.00 13.00 0.00 3.00 5.00 5.00 17.00 8.50 7.50 3.50
1.00 Long term Absences 29 days+ 22.00 0.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.00 2.00 0.00

0.13 0.46 0.00 0.11 0.18 0.18 0.61 0.95 0.34 0.13 0.00 0.00
14.00 CEO & Policy 167.50 11.96 14.36 6.0 13.17 14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 13.17 14.00 14.00 13.17 13.17

3.00 Short term Absences up to 28 days 87.50 6.25 2.00 0.00 3.00 5.00 25.00 7.00 3.50 4.00 33.00 5.00
0.00 Long term Absences 29 days+ 80.00 5.71 22.00 16.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 22.00

1.82 1.14 0.21 0.36 1.79 1.93 0.25 0.30 2.36 1.93 0.00 0.00
31.00 Egovernment & Customer Services 298.50 9.63 11.55 5.00 31.01 31.00 31.00 31.00 31.00 31.00 31.00 31.01 31.00 31.00 31.01 31.01

13.00 Short term Absences up to 28 days 161.50 5.21 32.00 11.50 2.00 38.00 3.00 5.50 17.00 5.00 39.50 8.00
1.00 Long term Absences 29 days+ 137.00 4.42 14.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 38.00 36.00 8.00 20.00 10.00 8.00

1.48 0.47 0.06 1.23 1.32 1.34 0.81 0.81 1.60 0.52 0.00 0.00
41.00 Finance 278.50 6.79 8.15 9.0 43.32 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 43.32 41.00 41.00 43.32 43.32

6.00 Short term Absences up to 28 days 153.50 3.74 39.50 3.00 19.00 24.00 4.00 22.00 3.00 5.00 15.00 19.00
0.00 Long term Absences 29 days+ 125.00 3.05 11.00 19.50 10.50 11.50 22.50 11.00 24.50 14.50 0.00 0.00

1.17 0.55 0.72 0.87 0.65 0.80 0.67 0.45 0.37 0.46 0.00 0.00
8.00 HROD 16.00 2.00 2.40 4.25 8.83 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.83 8.00 8.00 8.83 8.83

3.00 Short term Absences up to 28 days 16.00 2.00 1.00 3.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 1.00 3.00 4.00 1.00
0.00 Long term Absences 29 days+ 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.11 0.38 0.13 0.00 0.00 0.25 0.13 0.34 0.50 0.13 0.00 0.00
61.00 Planning & Environment Services 495.00 8.11 9.74 7.25 63.68 61.00 61.00 61.00 61.00 61.00 61.00 63.68 61.00 61.00 63.68 63.68

7.00 Short term Absences up to 28 days 316.00 5.18 34.50 7.00 3.00 49.50 27.00 9.50 49.00 50.00 56.50 30.00
2.00 Long term Absences 29 days+ 179.00 2.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.00 40.00 40.00 24.00 20.00 22.00

0.54 0.11 0.05 0.81 0.98 0.81 1.46 1.16 1.25 0.85 0.00 0.00
168.00 Street Scene & Community Services 1908.50 11.36 13.63 11.0 167.70 168.00 168.00 168.00 168.00 168.00 168.00 167.00 168.00 168.00 167.70 167.70

12.00 Short term Absences up to 28 days 830.50 4.94 65.00 67.00 82.00 82.50 55.00 111.50 123.00 120.00 52.50 72.00
7.00 Long term Absences 29 days+ 1078.00 6.42 40.00 48.00 98.00 174.00 141.00 78.00 116.00 119.00 125.00 139.00

0.63 0.68 1.07 1.53 1.17 1.13 1.42 1.43 1.06 1.26 0.00 0.00

Total Short Term Absence YTD 1631.50 178.00 104.50 110.00 202.00 119.00 162.50 213.50 195.50 208.00 138.50 0.00 0.00
351.00 Total Long Term Absence YTD 1621.00 87.00 86.50 108.50 185.50 234.50 185.00 188.50 197.50 157.00 191.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL Days lost YTD 3252.50 11.12 8.75 265.00 191.00 218.50 387.50 353.50 347.50 402.00 393.00 365.00 329.50 0.00 0.00

TARGET sick days per FTE per month 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.79 0.79 0.78
0.74 0.54 0.62 1.10 1.01 0.99 1.15 1.12 1.04 0.94 0.00 0.00

0.71 1.42 2.13 2.84 3.55 4.26 4.97 5.68 6.39 7.18 7.97 8.75
0.74 1.29 1.91 3.01 4.02 5.01 6.15 7.27 8.31 9.25 0.00 0.00

8.89 7.79 7.69 9.08 9.68 10.05 10.57 10.93 11.10 11.12 0.00 0.00

2004-05 3074.99 735.87 875.43 836.52 627.17
2005-06 3570.58 695.38 949.95 883.98 1041.27
2006-07 3806.00 1067.00 959.50 951.00 828.50
2007-08 3348.50 792.00 759.50 963.00 834.00
20008-09 3252.50 674.50 1088.50 1160.00 329.50

Year Annual Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

FTE March 08 357.66 Key:  more than 10% worse than target     worse than target, but within 10%     on or better than target
FTE May 08 351.00
FTE March 09
# of Months 10

BVPI 12 Sick Days Per FTE in Month

BVPI 12 - Sick Days per FTE YTD

BVPI 12 Projected Outturn

TARGET sick days per FTE YTD 

P
age 23



P
age 24

T
his page is intentionally left blank



    
 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANGAGEMENT BOARD 
 

17 MARCH 2009 
 
 

EMPLOYEE SURVEY 2008 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Smith 
Responsible Head of Service Jo Pitman 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides a summary of the findings following the recent employee 

survey and an overview of the next steps. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Employee Survey 2008 was undertaken during September/October and the 

results received in November. The report was reviewed by CMT in December.  The 
findings are summarised in Appendix A, and interpreted in section 5. The full report 
is available on request. 

 
2.2 The 2008 survey follows on from those conducted in 2006 and 2007, using 

substantially the same design in order to provide a consistent picture. It has 
provided an interesting (and disappointing) contrast to the 2007 outcomes. The 
response rate was much lower – 33% compared with 53% last year – but the 
results are nonetheless valid. Broadly speaking, it indicated clearly that staff felt the 
improvements reflected in the 2007 survey had not been maintained and, in some 
areas, there was a marked downturn in satisfaction. 

 
 
3. SURVEY METHODOLOGY 
 
3.1 15 of the questions asked in 2007 were repeated in order to get an accurate 

comparison and measure of progress; these questions were carefully chosen to 
test those areas that caused concern in the 2007 survey as well as areas where 
results were positive. Additional questions were designed specifically to test 
employee satisfaction with a range of initiatives and improvements brought in as a 
result of previous surveys and the recent Job Evaluation exercise. 

 
3.2 A separate section entitled Stop, Start, Continue was introduced this year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 25



 2 

 
4. SUMMARY OF RESULTS 
 
4.1 A response rate of 33% (135 individual responses) was received, a significant drop 

compared with 2007.  There is no hard data to show why staff did not reply but 
there have been major changes for many staff and the uncertainties surrounding 
Job Evaluation implementation is likely to go some way to explaining the decrease. 

 
4.2 The data shown in appendix A summarises the corporate results. Due to market 

research industry codes of practice, the survey company, Snap, is prevented from 
reporting on individual samples of less than 10 respondents, where the data is 
providing a negative trend. This is because in such small samples it will be 
possible to identify individual responses.  

 
4.3 The data is presented with a traffic light system, where green = more than 70% in 

agreement; amber = 36 – 69% in agreement; and red = less than 35% in 
agreement.  

 
 
5. INTERPRETATION OF RESULTS 
 
5.1 Overall, the survey results show a significant reduction in satisfaction compared 

with 2007. As with previous surveys, satisfaction is higher for younger employees 
and for those with less service. 

 
5.2 Of the 15 benchmark questions, 3 were even better or roughly the same as last 

year, 4 were better but still not good enough and the remaining 8 were getting 
worse. The positive response to the question  “I feel my job is secure” continues to 
fall (68% in 2006, 57% in 2007 and only 31% in 2008). This is not considered 
surprising given the current economic climate and it suggests a realistic level of 
awareness by employees – and I think we should include reference to uncertainty 
arising from the shared services agenda/JE . 

 
5.3 Of the remaining 44 questions, 14 were afforded green traffic light status.   
 
5.4     A further 26 achieved amber traffic light status. 
 
5.5 4 questions showed red traffic light status. These were connected with the Team 

Awards Scheme, motivation, positive atmosphere and Back to the Floor days. All 
are some way off achieving or regaining amber status, with satisfaction languishing 
in the mid to high 20s in terms of percentage points. 

 
5.6 The rest of the questions in the survey were designed to test specific areas, such 

as: 
o Leadership and Management (visible leadership) 
o Communication (Core brief) 
o Performance Management (grasp of objectives, priorities and performance 

measures) 
o Performance & Development Reviews (effective PDRs, face-to-face 

meetings)  
o Working Relationships (colleagues, managers and, where appropriate, 

Councillors) 
o Training and Development (appropriate training given, discussions about use 

of training) 

Page 26



 3 

o Changing the Culture of BDC (Staff Forums, consultation, atmosphere in the 
Council, Back to the Floor days) 

o Equality & Diversity (work-life balance/family-friendly policies, fair treatment) 
o Health & Safety (workload pressures) 

 
5.10 Leadership and Management questions showed the same trend as last year: “I’m 

alright, it’s the others”. 
 
5.11 The Communication question on Core Brief resulted in an amber rating.  
 
5.12 Performance Management questions yielded 4 out of 4 green ratings, though three 

of those areas had reduced in satisfaction compared to last year. These areas 
were: Knowing what is expected to perform to the right standard, managers helping 
staff to understand the Council’s vision and receiving constructive feedback and 
praise.  

 
5.13 Performance & Development Reviews yielded three green ratings and two amber.  

In common with other areas, there has been a drop in the percentages but the 
green areas are well above the 70% marker while the amber areas are close to it.  

 
5.14 Working relationship results were rather mixed. Of the 5 questions, three were 

green and one was rated amber. Both managers and staff felt that their 
relationships with each other and colleagues across BDC were excellent – these all 
attracted green ratings well above the 70% marker. Relationships with Councillors 
resulted in a 35% amber rating, though this should not be viewed as a 
disappointment: the question was amended this year so that staff had the option of 
saying that they had no regular contact. However, the fifth question – comparing  
working relationships over time – generated unfavourable outcomes with 14% 
commenting that they had deteriorated in the last year and only 28% saying they 
had improved. 

 
5.15 Training & Development questions yielded 2 amber ratings. The proportion of staff 

who felt that they received the training they needed reduced to 58% while 51% felt 
their manager carried out post-training briefings, an improvement on last year. 

 
5.16 This year’s Culture Change questions yielded some very disappointing results. Of 

10 questions, 8 were amber and worsening and two were red and similarly 
worsening. Only 28% of staff said that there was more of a positive atmosphere 
than this time last year and only 25% said that Back to the Floor days had resulted 
in positive changes.  

 
5.17 Responses to the Equality & Diversity questions brought a similar result. Though a 

pleasing 83% said that they were treated fairly and consistently by their manager, 
this green rating represented a dip compared to last year and only 50% said that 
the family-friendly policies worked for them. One of the free-format comments 
indicated that staff might be unaware of the Council’s policies in this area. 

 
5.18 We decided to test only one Health & Safety question: “I sometimes feel under 

uncomfortable pressure because of my workload”. Last year, this was rated red 
but, mirroring the outcomes of the 2007 Stress Survey, this is moving in the right 
direction and is rated amber in 2008.  

 
5.19 The questions on Job Evaluation were designed primarily to see how well BDC 

responds to major exercises affecting all staff and it was made clear that questions 

Page 27



 4 

related to the process not individual outcomes. All five questions were rated amber 
with two bordering on green. Though staff broadly felt that the process had been 
handled well by their line manager, fewer (63%) felt that their Senior Manager had 
been sensitive towards their individual outcomes and only 46% felt that information 
about JE was communicated well across the Council. 

 
5.20 Outcomes from the Stop, Start, Continue section reflected the answers elsewhere 

with concerns expressed about JE, the shared services agenda and effective 
management. 

 
6. NEXT STEPS 
 
6.1 Heads of Service have considered the corporate outcomes and communicated 

these to all their staff. Support is available for Heads of Service from the Learning 
& Organisational Development Manager in formulating action plans. 

 
6.2 Staff Forums which took place in February provided staff with the opportunity to 

work in groups to suggest ways of moving forward on some of the red and amber 
questions and how to maintain progress in the green-rated areas 

 
6.3 CMT will consider setting up focus groups to look at specific areas. 
 
  
7. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
7.1 There are no financial implications 
  
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
8.1 There are no legal implications. 
  
9. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
  
9.1 Performance reporting & management links to the Improvement objective 
  
10. RISK MANAGEMENT 
  
10.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

 
•  Not making changes as a result of the Survey which staff recognise.  
 

10.2 These risks are being managed as follows:  
 

•   Survey Action Plan. 
•   Service business planning. 

 
11. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
  
11.1 A motivated workforce underpins good customer service. 
  

Page 28



 5 

12. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
  
12.1 There are no implications for the Council’s Equalities and Diversity Policies. 
  
13. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
  
13.1 � There are no VFM implications   
  
14. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Procurement Issues None  

 
 Personnel Issues None  

 
 Governance/Performance Management –  Results needs to be fed into 

Service Business Plans. 
 

 Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & Disorder Act 1988 None  
 

 Policy  None  
 

 Environmental None  
 

  
15. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
  
 Please include the following table and indicate ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ as appropriate.  

Delete the words in italics. 
  
 Portfolio Holder Yes 
 Chief Executive No.  
 Executive Director (Partnerships & Projects) No. 
 Executive Director (Services) No. 
 Assistant Chief Executive Yes 
 Head of Service  No. 
 Head of Financial Services No. 
 Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services No. 
 Head of Organisational Development & HR No. 
 Corporate Procurement Team No. 
  
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 ALL. 
14. APPENDICES 
  

Page 29



 6 

 Appendix A – Employee Survey Results. 
 

15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
  
 None 
  
Contact officer 
Name: Helen Parkinson, Learning & Organisational Development Manager  
email: h.parkinson@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 881274. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 7 

APPENDIX A 
 
Traffic light colours are shown (definitions per section 4.3 of this report).   
 
Benchmark question results compared with 2007 and 2006 (where 
applicable) 
 
 2008 2007 2006 
Even better than last year    
I have enough information to enable me 
to do my job properly 

79 75 76 
Roughly the same as last year and still 
good 

   
My manager has helped me to 
understand what my work objectives are 

82 82 - 
I am satisfied with my job 72 86 - 
Still not good enough    
Bromsgrove District Council is efficient 
and well run 

47 34 - 
My manager is effective at providing 
leadership 

68 69 57 
My manager talks to me about 
expectations before I attend training 

47 40 37 
I’m kept informed about developments 
within the Council 

50 51 51 
Getting worse    
My training & development needs are 
reviewed regularly 

66 71 50 
Receive Core Brief face-to-face approx. 
every two weeks 

62 84 84 
I feel performance management is better 
overall that last year 

37 44  
I feel that communication is better 
overall than last year 

31 59 - 
I’m confident that senior managers are 
as frank as they can be about their plans 

49 59 41 
I feel that leadership and management is 
better overall than last year 

38 49 - 
I feel that PDRs are better overall than 
last year 

48 68  
I feel my job is secure 31 57 68 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



 8 

Leadership and Management 
 
71% felt that their Service Group was efficient and well run with 83% feeling 
happy about this in their work area. 
51% felt that all managers demonstrated visible leadership, 63% in their Service 
Group and 71% in their work area. 
Performance Management 
↓85% of respondents knew what was expected of them to perform their work to 
the right standard  
↓74% felt that their manager helped them to understand the Council’s vision and 
objectives. 
↑74% got the right level of support and guidance to perform their work to the right 
standard. 
↓72% felt that they received constructive feedback and praise where appropriate. 
PDR 
↓80% were given enough time by their manager to prepare for their annual PDR 
meeting, with 82% encouraged to do so by their manager 
↓75% received an effective PDR this year. 
69% felt the new PDR forms were an improvement 
66% had face-to-face meetings approx monthly with their manager 
Motivation 
 
↓58% felt that BDC is a good place to work 
 
↓59% felt proud to work for BDC 
 
28% felt that the Team Awards Scheme motivated them to do a good job for 
customers 
 
↓29% felt that BDC employees were motivated and only 22% felt more motivated 
this year than last 
 
Health & Safety 
 
↓50% of staff said that sometimes felt uncomfortable due to workload pressures 
 
Job Evaluation 
 

Page 32



 9 

68% said their manager was supportive during the JE process with 68% saying 
their manager made sure they understood the process and 65% saying that their 
manager had helped as needed with their JE questionnaire. 
 
63% agreed that their Senior Manager had handled their JE outcome sensitively 
 
46% felt that information about job evaluation was well communicated across the 
Council 
 
Training and Development 
 
↓58% got all the training they needed to do their job. 
↑51% felt their manager discussed what they had learned and how they would 
use it to do their job better. 
Communication 
53%  of staff found the monthly issue of Connect useful 
Working Relationships 
↑94% of managers felt they had a good working relationship with their staff  
=86% of staff felt they had a good working relationship with their manager 
↓78% agreed that they had good working relationships with colleagues in other 
work areas across the Council 
↓35% of staff felt they had a good working relationship with elected Councillors 
(though the significant drop here is almost certainly due to staff being able to 
indicate if their job did not bring them into contact with elected members.) 
28% of staff felt that working relationships were better than at the same time last 
year, with 53% feeling they had stayed the same and 14% felt they had got 
worse. 
Equality and Diversity 
↓83% felt they were treated fairly and consistently by their manager 
65% felt that work-life balance policies worked for them and 50% felt that the 
family-friendly policies worked for them  
Changing the Culture of BDC 
61% found Staff Forums gave them a chance to be heard by Senior Managers 
↓54% of staff felt that the Bright Ideas scheme was a good way to encourage 
employees to suggest ways to improve things 

Page 33



 10 

↓52% felt that things have continued to change for the better 
↓51% felt they were consulted about things that affected them 
↓51% felt encouraged to suggest ideas for innovation and change  
↓43% felt positive about the changes taking place at BDC 
↓42% felt that their opinion counted 
↓43% said that Senior Managers are serious about being Investors in People 
↓28% agreed there was more of a positive atmosphere than this time last year 
↓25% said that ‘Back to the Floor’ days had resulted in positive changes  
Management questions: 
62% said that the Modern Manager Framework had helped to build their skills  
74% said there was so much information that they found it difficult to absorb, 
prioritise and communicate everything they needed. 
 

Page 34



 11 

Results for all other questions: 
About our respondents 
 

• Just over half the respondents (54%) were male. 10% were aged under 
25, 45% were aged 25-44, 44% were aged 45-64 and 2% were 65 or over.  

• 2% of staff described themselves as disabled.  
• 9% had worked for the Council for less than a year, 49% for 1-5 years, 
25% for 6-10 years and 18% for over 10 years.  

• 47% of the respondents said that they worked in Street Scene and 
Community Services, 15% worked for E-Gov and Customer Services, 14% 
worked for Planning and Environment Services, and 9% worked for 
Financial Services.   

• 74% said that they had no management responsibilities, while the 
remaining 26% were responsible for staff.  

 

 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



    
 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

17TH MARCH 2009 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL - HOUSING STRATEGY 2006 -2011 – 
‘Unlocking the Door To Meeting Housing Needs in The District’ – 
PROGRESS REPORT, MID TERM REVIEW AND NEW ACTION PLAN 
 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr Peter Whittaker 
Responsible Head of Service David Hammond 
 
 
1.   SUMMARY 
 
1.1  In March 2006, the Council received a ‘Fit For Purpose’ accreditation 

from the Government Office for it’s new Housing Strategy Document 
covering the 5 year period 2006 – 2011. 

 
1.2  Three years into the life of the strategy, this report is a third  update 

upon the progress that has been made upon the strategic actions set 
and details the recent Mid Term Review that has been carried out and 
the new action plan that has been formulated for the remaining two 
years of the strategy. 

 
1.3  Attached at Appendix I to this report is the Mid Term Review Summary 

and the Refreshed Housing Strategy Action Plan. 
 
 
2.  RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1  That Members consider the progress report. 
 
 
3.  BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This report is one of the three performance reports that relate to 

Strategic Housing. This report provides members with a half yearly 
update on the progress being made against the action plan set out in 
the Council’s Housing Strategy document. 

 For clarification purposes, the other two Strategic Housing performance 
reports are: 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 37



• The Strategic Housing Audit Commission Inspection Action Plan  
• The annual report made upon BDHT’s performance against 

transfer promises made to tenants, their performance in services 
provided to the Council and the support given to our housing 
strategy. 

 
3.2 Local authorities are required to produce a Housing Strategy Statement 

as an over-arching document that reviews housing-related issues in the 
local authority's area, setting out housing objectives, establishing 
priorities for action both by the local authority and by other service 
providers and stakeholders, and providing a clear Action Plan in 
agreement with the Council's local partners.  

 
3.3 Bromsgrove District Council’s Housing Strategy 2006–2011 was the 

first to be produced by the Council since it transferred it’s housing stock 
in March 2004. The document which was developed in 2006, following 
thorough review and consultation upon housing issues in the District, 
sets out a comprehensive strategy for the Council to focus on its 
strategic role to meet a broad range of housing objectives. The original 
document details the local context, looks at national and regional 
housing policy and outlines the housing needs / survey information that 
we held back in 2006.  The Housing Strategy then set out the Council’s 
four key Housing Priorities: 

 
� PRIORITY 1 – ADDRESSING THE SHORTAGE OF AFFORDABLE 

HOUSING 
o Focusing on achieving a well balanced Housing Market and 

a consistent and appropriate supply of affordable housing to 
meet urban and rural  needs, making best use of planning 
powers and the resources available 

 
� PRIORITY 2 – IMPROVING THE QUALITY AND AVAILBILITY OF 

PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING 
o To achieve sustained decent housing conditions, a strong, 

well managed private rented sector, improved energy 
efficiency of domestic homes and increased availability and 
accessibility of privately rented accommodation offering 
people more choice. 

 
� PRIORITY 3 – ADDRESSING HOMELESSNESS 

o Promoting a continued co-ordinated approach to the ongoing 
provision of early intervention preventative and support 
services for the homeless and an improved supply of 
permanent accommodation to reduce the use of temporary 
accommodation. Increased access to privately rented 
housing for the homeless is targeted to help achieve this and 
to maintain our minimal use of Bed & Breakfast 
accommodation. The strategy also focuses upon providing 
an improved standard and type of temporary 
accommodation. 

Page 38



 
� PRIORITY 4 - ASSISTING VULNERABLE GROUPS TO LIVE 

INDEPENDENTLY 
o Aimed at enabling people who are vulnerable through age, 

disability or life experience to live independently, within the 
community. Promotion of healthy, safe and independent 
living through improved housing conditions, home safety & 
security checks and by creating the right environment 
through improvements and adaptations and linked action to 
enable older people to be discharged from hospital more 
rapidly through more efficient home adaptation. 

 
The Strategy concluded with Action Plans for all four priorities detailing 
the link with the resources available and the arrangements that are in 
place to monitor progress.  

 
4. HOUSING STRATEGY REVIEW AND REFRESH - NOVEMBER 2008 
 
4.1 Since the original Housing Strategy Document was published in 2006 

there has been a considerable amount of energy and commitment 
invested in implementing the strategy and in achieving over 83% of the 
actions that were originally set. 

 
4.2 Having originally committed ourselves to carrying out  a mid term 

review, last November, halfway through the life of the Strategy we re-
consulted with stakeholders, took into account the results of the recent 
Bromsgrove Housing Market Assessment and developed a new set of 
actions (across all 4 priority areas) for the remaining life of the strategy 
and beyond.  

 
4.3 The Mid Term Review and Refreshed Action Plan was approved by 

The Executive Cabinet on the 4th February 2009. 
 
 
5. WHAT DOES THE HOUSING STRATEGY COVER? 
 
5.1 The Council’s strategy is formulated to address the identified housing 

needs of the District. It is a partnership strategy to guide all partners, 
RSLs, voluntary agencies etc to help address the identified needs 
through a set of priorities and actions. It’s not just about delivering 
affordable housing, it is also about: 

 
• preventing homelessness and providing support and assistance to 

those who are homeless; 
• Improving the standard and promoting the availability of private 

sector housing to supplement the lack of affordable housing in the 
District; 

• addressing the housing and support needs of vulnerable clients such 
as the elderly and mentally and physically disabled. 

 

Page 39



6.0 FOCUSING UPON THE DELIVERY OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 
6.1 With specific reference to the part of the strategy that focuses upon the 

‘delivery of affordable housing’ we set a target of achieving the 
provision of 400 new units over the 5 year life of the strategy. Just over 
half way through the life of the strategy 253 units have been delivered, 
so we are currently on course to achieve the target.  

 
6.2 The Council works in partnership work with a number of Registered 

Social Landlords (RSLs). Whilst the BDHT/ West Mercia Housing 
alliance were selected as the Council’s  Principal Preferred Partners 
the Council also works with Bromford Housing and Servite Houses as 
preferred partners and Strategic Housing officers meet regularly to 
advise them of the needs of the district to guide and develop a 
partnership approach to the joint commissioning of affordable housing 
schemes. 

 
6.3 Historically, a considerable amount of larger sized private family 

housing has been developed in the district leading to an imbalance in 
the housing market resulting in a low level of smaller affordable 
housing. The imbalance in the housing market is what the affordable 
housing element of the Council’s Housing Strategy aims to address. 

 
6.4 The scarcity of sites, cost of land and competition from private 

developers has historically presented difficulties to local authorities and 
RSLs in delivering affordable housing. The over supply of housing and 
introduction of the planning moratorium in the Bromsgrove District has 
exacerbated the situation as the lack of private development sites 
coming forward has meant that Bromsgrove as a local authority has 
been limited in its ability to use planning powers to require ‘on site’ 
affordable housing within private developments.  

 
 
7. WHAT IS THE CURRENT HOUSING POSITION GIVEN THE 

CURRENT ECONOMIC DOWNTURN? 
 
7.1 Whist not so relevant in Bromsgrove, nationally the current economic 

recession has started to impact upon the delivery of private 
development and accordingly has had the knock on effect of reducing 
the affordable housing contribution that would have been made 
available on those sites cross subsidised by the private developer. 

 
7.2 At present the effect has not been great in Bromsgrove because as a 

result of the moratorium, there are no large private developments that 
would have provided an affordable housing contribution. In fact 
opportunities have arisen where private development has been 
converted to 100% affordable housing through funding from the Homes 
and Communities Agency (formerly the Housing Corporation). At this 
stage it is hard to predict how the recession may affect the delivery of 

Page 40



future potentially larger private developments in the District upon which 
we will expect a proportion of affordable housing. 

 
7.3 The Council’s Draft Core Strategy proposes that a considerable 

affordable housing requirement (40%) will be placed upon private 
developers as it starts to allocate development sites when the RSS 
Review allocation has been finalised. If the current financial climate 
continues private developers may not be in a hurry to develop and 
therefore the Council’s housing strategy will need to continue to focus 
upon identifying other 100% affordable housing sites and applying for 
development grant (as opposed to getting private developers to cross 
subsidise) from the Homes and Communities Agency for the units to be 
built. 

 
7.4 The RSS is currently undergoing its Examination In Public with 9 

weeks of hearing sessions to take place in April, May and June this 
year. The Council has written to the Panel Secretary asking to be fully 
involved in these sessions where necessary. Once the hearing is 
completed the panel will then write up its report, currently scheduled to 
be finished in September 2009. Any changes that need to be made are 
then incorporated and consulted upon. This is likely to take place in 
spring 2010, with the final RSS published in summer 2010, although 
this is only a draft timetable at the moment, and based on past 
experiences with the RSS likely to change. 

 
 
8. HOW 100% AFORDABLE HOUSING SCHEMES ARE FUNDED.  
 
8.1 The Bromsgrove Housing Strategy sits under and picks up the main 

threads and priorities of the Housing Strategy for the West Midlands 
Region which sets out long term goals for the socially and 
economically effective functioning of the Region’s housing markets. 

 
8.2 The West Midlands Regional Housing Strategy divided the region into 

four parts - North, South, West and Central, for the purpose of 
conducting strategic housing market assessments and formulating 
Housing policies.  

Page 41



 
The District of Bromsgrove, along with the remaining five district 
authorities within Worcestershire, plus Stratford and Warwick make up 
the South Housing Market Area. 

8.3 A Sub Regional Partnership has been formulated to carry out an 
ongoing housing market / needs assessment. Whilst local authority 
Housing Strategies should already link in with the Regional Housing 
Strategic Priorities the development of Sub Regional Housing 
Strategies is now being encouraged to guide investment plans and 
implement the Regional Housing Strategy at Sub Regional and local 
level.  

8.4 Capital funding for housing in the West Midlands Region is allocated on 
a sub regional basis. Whilst 31% of the funding is allocated to schemes 
that support existing housing including private sector renewal and the 
improvement of municipal housing, the major part (69%) makes up 
what is known as the National Affordable Housing Programme (NAHP), 
which is capital funding for the development of new and additional units 
of affordable housing .  

8.5 For the three year funding period 2008 – 2011 the NAHP for the West 
Midlands Region equates to a total of £467m and is divided up across 
the four Sub Regional Housing Market Areas as follows: 
South HMA  £65.4m  (14%) 
West HMA  £46.72m  (10%) 
North HMA  £51.39m (11%) 

Page 42



Central HMA  £303.65m (65%) 
 
9. TAKE UP OF THE NATIONAL AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

PROGRAMME IN THE SOUTH HMA  
9.1 There is a phased approach to the allocation of the £65.4m funding 

available to the South HMA over the three year period 2008 – 2011. In 
the first bidding round, out of £32.8m of scheme bids that were 
received by the Housing Corporation (now known as The Homes and 
Communities Agency) only £13.5m was allocated mainly because of 
delivery issues associated with the bids received. 

9.2 The remaining budget is being allocated through what is known as 
Regular Market Engagement under which the Homes and 
Communities Agency (HCA) regularly consider bids submitted by 
affordable housing providers for grant funding towards new schemes. 
Bids have to be supported by the local strategic housing authority as 
being strategically relevant and deliverable.  

9.3 To date a current total of £26m of bids have been approved (728 units) 
in the South HMA. As per figures supplied in mid Jan 2009, 
Bromsgrove is the district that has taken up the largest allocation within 
the South HMA (£5,705,000 – 156 units). 

 
10. WHAT IS BEING DONE TO ADDRESS THE CHALLENGES AND 

PROMOTE THE DELIVERY OF SITES 
10.1 Sub regionally, there is concern with regard to the quantity and 

deliverability of pipeline schemes that are being worked up in the South 
HMA and their ability to fully utilise the NAHP allocation. The scarcity of 
sites, cost of land and competition from private developers has 
historically presented difficulties to local authorities and RSLs in 
delivering affordable housing.  

10.2 The over supply of housing and introduction of the planning moratorium 
in the Bromsgrove District has exacerbated the situation as the lack of 
private development sites coming forward has meant that Bromsgrove 
as a local authority has been unable to use its planning powers to 
require ‘on site’ affordable housing within private developments. Whist 
not so relevant in Bromsgrove, across the South HMA the current 
economic recession has started to impact upon the delivery of private 
developments and accordingly reduced the affordable housing that 
would have been available on those sites. 

10.3 The SHMA Partnership is carefully monitoring the number and viability 
of pipeline schemes coming along to assess potential take up.  

10.4 There are signs that the HCA are becoming more flexible in terms of 
the value for money it seeks, the level of grant rates allocated and the 
quality standards it requires in order to help promote affordable 
housing in the current financial climate. 

10.5 Local authority CEOs and Council Leaders across the South HMA 
have joined forces to give support and strengthen the potential delivery 

Page 43



of affordable housing by promoting a more joined up approach to bring 
sites forward, develop cross boundary working, pool resources, 
maximise use of public land for affordable housing and reduce planning 
obstacles where possible. To enable a more delivery focussed 
partnership, the structure, capacity and skills of the South Housing 
Market Area Partnership is currently under review. 

 
 
11. KEY STRATEGIC HOUSING PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
11.1 The following Key Performance Indicators summarise the progress 

being made by Strategic Housing Services up to the end of December 
2008.  

 
 

KEY STRATEGIC 
HOUSING PIs 

ACTUAL 
2004/05 

ACTUAL 
2005/06 

ACTUAL 
2006/07 

ACTUAL 
2007/08 

To end of 
Dec 2008 

Achieve delivery of 
400 additional 
units of affordable 
housing over 
period 2006–2011 ( 
= 80pa) 

26 75 72 46 135 

Reduce the use of 
temporary 
accommodation by 
50% from 2004 – 
2010. (2004 
baseline figure = 
68 therefore target 
=34)  

  

63 clients 
in temp 
accom 

16 clients 
in temp 
accom 
 
(Gov’t target  
achieved 
two years 
ahead of 
schedule) 

10 clients 
in temp 
accom  

To increase 
housing energy 
efficiency by 30% 
from 1996 - 2010 

20.69% 22.68% 24.64% 25.94% Collated 
annually 

BV 064 - Number 
of private sector 
vacant dwellings 
returned into 
occupation or 
demolished during 
the year.  

2                               
(Target 3) 

3                              
(Target 3) 

8 
(Target 4) 

19 
(Target 4) 

15 

BV 202 - Number 
of people sleeping 
rough on a single 
night within the 
area. 

0                    
(Target 
<10) 

0                    
(Target 
<10) 

0 
(Target 
<10) 

0 
(Target 
<10) 

0  
(Target 
<10) 

Reduce 
Homelessness 
through 
preventative action 

 52 cases 
prevented 

76 cases 
prevented 

147 cases 
prevented 

118 cases 
prevented 

 
 

Page 44



 
12.  APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Mid Term Housing Strategy Review Summary and 
Refreshed Action Plan.  
 

13.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Bromsgrove District Council – Housing Strategy 2006 – 2011. 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   A.M. Coel – Strategic Housing Manager  
E Mail:  a.coel@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881270 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

 
 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



MMMiiiddd TTTeeerrrmmm RRReeevvviiieeewww

P
age 47



2

P
age 48



3

INTRODUCTION

Bromsgrove’s Housing Strategy 2006–2011 was the first to be produced by the Council since it transferred it’s housing stock in 
March 2004. The document which was developed in 2006, following thorough review and consultation upon housing issues in the 
District, sets out a comprehensive strategy for the Council to focus on its strategic role to meet a broad range of housing objectives.
The original document was set out in four parts: 

PART 1 - Set out the background to the Strategy, details the local context of the District, explain how we learn and what we are 
doing to improve and develop our services and tracks how national, regional and local policy had influenced the development of our
strategy and the role that partnership working and extensive consultation had taken in developing the Council’s housing priorities.

PART 2 – Examined the three key components in the development of our strategy, the overview of housing needs and housing 
market forces operating at the time, the results of the then recent stock condition survey and the capital, revenue and land 
resources that were projected at the time. 

PART 3 – Detailed the Housing Strategy and set out our four key Housing Priorities: 

 PRIORITY 1 – ADDRESSING THE SHORTAGE OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
o Focusing on achieving a well balanced Housing Market and a consistent and appropriate supply of affordable housing 

to meet urban and rural  needs, making best use of planning powers and the resources available 

 PRIORITY 2 – IMPROVING THE QUALITY AND AVAILBILITY OF PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING
o To achieve sustained decent housing conditions, a strong, well managed private rented sector, improved energy 

efficiency of domestic homes and increased availability and accessibility of privately rented accommodation offering 
people more choice.

 PRIORITY 3 – ADDRESSING HOMELESSNESS
o Promoting a continued co-ordinated approach to the ongoing provision of early intervention preventative and support 

services for the homeless and an improved supply of permanent accommodation to reduce the use of temporary 
accommodation. Increased access to privately rented housing for the homeless is targeted to help achieve this and to 
maintain our minimal use of Bed & Breakfast accommodation. The strategy also focuses upon providing an improved 
standard and type of temporary accommodation. 

 PRIORITY 4 - ASSISTING VULNERABLE GROUPS TO LIVE INDEPENDENTLY 

P
age 49



4

o Aimed at enabling people who are vulnerable through age, disability or life experience to live independently, within the 
community. Promotion of healthy, safe and independent living through improved housing conditions, home safety & 
security checks and by creating the right environment through improvements and adaptations and linked action to 
enable older people to be discharged from hospital more rapidly through more efficient home adaptation. 

PART 4 – Concluded with the Action Plans for all four priorities detailing the link with the resources available and the arrangements
that are in place to monitor progress.

The full document can be found on the Bromsgrove District Council website at www.bromsgrove.gov.uk or by following 
the web link http://bromsgrove.whub.org.uk/home/bdc-housing-strategic-housing-strategy-2P

age 50



5

HOUSING STRATEGY REVIEW AND REFRESH DECEMBER 2008

Since the original Housing Strategy Document was published in 2006 there has been a considerable amount of energy and 
commitment invested in implementing the strategy and in achieving over 83% of the actions in the accompanying action plan that 
were set at the time. In developing the five year strategy we recognised that we would need to take stock of progress and any 
changes in market forces and therefore set ourselves a target to carry out a mid term review and refresh. 

This refresh document: 

Provides an overview of the main achievements since the strategy came into operation.
Provides an update upon the key results of the 2008 Bromsgrove Housing Market Assessment for the District
Examines the external constraints affecting our ability to succeed and the positive things that could help us achieve our 
strategic aspirations. 
Sets out a new set of actions for the remaining life of the strategy and beyond.

Consultation - This refresh document and action plan has been developed following the Mid Term Consultation Events with a broad 
range of partners, stakeholders and service users in November 2008.  The purpose of the consultation events were to: 

• Influence and inform the mid term review of the Housing Strategy. 
• Review the targets and priorities.
• Re-set actions for the remaining life of the Strategy. 
• Assist in developing a separate Private Sector Housing Strategy. 

We asked for our consultees’ views and suggestions based upon the following key questions:

• Are the Strategic Housing Priorities still relevant? 
• Should they still be ranked in the same order of importance?   
• Are there new additional priorities that we should now address? 
• Having achieved many of the actions originally set, what new actions should we set up to 2011 and beyond? 

P
age 51



6

OVERVIEW OF THE MAIN ACHIEVEMENTS SINCE THE STRATEGY CAME INTO OPERATION 

The Housing Strategy is based upon bringing together partners and resources to maximise the benefit to the community. The vision
that we have since developed; “Making best use of existing accommodation by improving the quality and accessibility and 
addressing the imbalance in the housing market through the provision of more affordable housing”, has helped us to focus 
our efforts to achieve the greatest impact by making better use of existing stock across all tenures. 

The achievements that have been made over the life of the strategy have been due to the strong partnership support and 
involvement from: 

Our RSL Preferred Partners - Bromsgrove District Housing Trust, West Mercia Housing Group, Bromford Housing and Servite 
Houses.
Bromsgrove Youth Homelessness Forum. 
CAB And Other Homelessness Strategy Steering Group Members. 
Increased Council Member involvement and enthusiasm providing improved leadership and support. 
Close working between Planning and Strategic Housing officers. 
The North Worcestershire Home Improvement Agency and the involvement of Private Landlords. 
The Worcestershire Rural Housing Enabler. 
The strengthening North Worcestershire Housing Partnership.
Local authority partners across the County and South Housing Market Area 
Supporting People 
Homelessness Specialist Advisers at Communities and Local Government 

P
age 52



7

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS – AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

DELIVERY FIGURES

• Target 400 over 5 years (2006-2011)
• 2006-7                                  72
• 2007-8                                  46
• 2008-9 to 31 September      74
• Total delivered at the half way point is 192

• 2008-9 Projected figure an additional 110  
• 2009-10   Projected figure                99 
• 20010-11 Projected figure               150
• Total                                                 551

Target 400 over 5 years (2006-2011)
2006-7                                                             72
2007-8                                                             46
2008-9 to 31 September                                74
Total delivered at the half way point is     192

2008-9 Projected figure an additional       110              
2009-10   Projected figure                            99             
20010-11 Projected figure                          150

Total                                                           551

AFFORDABLE HOUSING
Delivering Homes and Improving 

Environments

PREFERRED PARTNER 
ARRANGEMENTS

• Objective: to formalise development 
arrangements with RSLs 

• Process: A formal tendering process with 
several RSLs

• Outcome: Three Preferred Partner’s 
chosen to work within Bromsgrove District-

• BDHT/West Mercia (Principal)
• Servite
• Bromford 

RURAL HOUSING

• 17 New Rural 
Affordable Homes 
at The Glebe in 
Belbroughton

P
age 53



8

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS - PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING 

Improving Property 
Standards and Enforcemnt

All Mobile Home Sites 
Inspected

SERVICES REVIEWED, 
IMPROVED AND 
DOCUMENTED

Energy Efficiency Grants

P
age 54



9

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS – HOMELESSNESS 

REVIEW OF 
HOMELESSNESS 

SERVICE

HOUSING 
OPTIONS

CLOSED 3 
TEMPORARY 

ACCOMMODATIO
N HOSTELS

NO USE 
OF BED AND 
BREAKFAST

ADDITIONAL 
GOVERNMENT 
FUNDING AND 

AWARDED 
REGIONAL 
CENTRE OF 

EXCELLENCE 
FOR YOUTH 

HOMELESSNESS

REDUCTION IN 
TEMPORARY 

ACCOMMODATION

P
age 55



10

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS – ASSISTING VULNERABLE GROUPS TO LIVE INDEPENDENTLY  

Learning 
Disabilities

Learning Disability 
Roadshow

Accommodation

Choice Based Lettings

Safe House for 
Victims of Domestic 
Violence

• 5 units of self 
contained 
accommodation 
supported by Stonham
Housing

• Sanctuary Scheme

• Freedom Programme

Young People

Bromsgrove Youth
Homeless Forum

• ‘Drop In’ Centre

• Private Tenancy 
Scheme

• Floating Support

PHYSICAL 
DISABILITIES

Improved Performance 
in processing Disabled 
Facilities Grants –
helping people to 
remain at home

and

Identifying alternative 
more suitable housing

EXTRA CARE 
HOUSING

• 27 Units of 
Accommodation for 
older people

• Individually tailored 
care/support
packages

• Enhanced services

P
age 56



11

HEADLINES FROM THE 2008 BROMSGROVE HOUSING MARKET ASSESSMENT 

MEETING THE PROBLEM OF 
AFFORDABILITY

• Only just over half of single income 
households are able to get into the 
housing market by buying a 2 bed flat.

• Only just over one third of joint income 
households are able to move on in the 
housing market by buying a 3 bed house.

• The remainder would require affordable 
housing.

• HOUSING NEED

• There is a need for about 70 new 
affordable homes per year for each of the 
next 10 years

• Two thirds of affordable housing needs to 
be social housing for rent and one third 
intermediate

Consultation with Younger 
People

• There is a need to develop more flexible 
‘housing pathways’ that reflect younger people’s 
incomes and aspirations – are many local young 
people being excluded from living in 
Bromsgrove?

• Young people need more information and more 
opportunities to review their housing options 
from school age onwards including a stronger 
focus on the role and identity of housing 
associations.

Consultation with Older People
• There is a need for:

• more options for older people in large, family 
homes to downsize and release their property 
for younger households.

• More aspirational, two-bedroom products aimed 
at older people, including equity release 
schemes.

• The active promotion of shared ownership.
• The development of extra- care housing and 

‘retirement villages’, incorporating a range of 
options with tailored care and support.

THE HOUSING REQUIRED 
TO 2026

– 850 x 2 bed general needs properties

– 4,800 x 2 bed properties for people of retirement age

– 1,575 x properties/units with “extra care”

– 125 x 3 bed houses – or more if older people remain 
in family-sized homes.

PRIORITIES FOR 
INTERVENTION

• Substantial growth in the requirement for:

– smaller homes for single/couple households.
– smaller, more manageable but aspirational 

housing for older people – not “pokey” flats!
– housing with care for older people.
– affordable housing, especially for younger 

people and for families.

P
age 57



12

THE EXTERNAL CONSTRAINTS AFFECTING OUR 
ABILITY TO SUCCEED. 

In reviewing and refreshing the Housing Strategy our 
consultees were made aware of the major challenges that the 
District Council and its partners continue to face when 
addressing the key strategic priorities.

These challenges were used as the basis in reviewing and re 
formulating strategic actions for the remaining life of the 
strategy and beyond. 

Although constantly changing, at the time of the mid term 
review consultation in November 2008, the key challenges 
were as set out in the right hand column of this page.

Recent Housing Market Assessment information has raised 
awareness of the importance of planning and providing 
appropriate housing choices for an ageing population. The 
declining economic situation and ‘credit crunch’ has lead to 
the development of new actions to address mortgage 
repossessions and homelessness and to overcome the 
impact of the downturn in the building industry upon the 
provision of affordable housing.   

P
age 58



13

THE POSITIVE THINGS THAT COULD HELP US ACHIEVE 
OUR STRATEGIC ASPIRATIONS.

Likewise, in reviewing the strategic priorities and the order of 
ranking, our consultation process involved the consideration 
of opportunities such as new Government policies and 
additional funding streams that are emerging to help address 
housing issues. 

Making best use of existing resources through a wide range of 
new schemes including the introduction of Choice Based 
Lettings and the Kick Start equity release scheme are 
considered important in assisting in supplementing the 
ongoing shortage of affordable housing and the need to 
improve private sector housing conditions. Additional actions 
emerging from the mid term review consultation process 
include new schemes to tackle under occupation and 
encourage down sizing to maximise the impact of existing 
housing stock in meeting housing needs. 

Government opportunities to bring unsold private dwellings 
into the affordable housing stock through the relaxation of the 
Homes and Communities Agency regulations and funding to 
assist home owners is being pursued through the refreshed 
action plan.  

P
age 59



14

A NEW SET OF ACTIONS FOR THE REMAINING LIFE OF THE STRATEGY AND BEYOND

The following Housing Strategy Action Plan replaces the action plan originally set in 2006, from which 83% of the actions had been
achieved by August 2008. 

The new action plan includes a number of the original actions that are ongoing or not yet achieved (in black print) and a set of new 
actions that have been developed from the mid term review consultation process and input from the Homelessness Strategy Steering
Group (mauve print). 

During the mid term review consultation process we asked our partners, stakeholders and service users to identify any additional
priorities that may have emerged since our original Housing Strategy was written. Whilst no additional priority was identified, the 
feedback we received identified that we need to focus our energies on meeting the needs and aspirations of our ageing population.

We held four workshop groups to consider each of the existing housing priorities and asked consultees to identify 3 actions to feedback
to the whole group who were then asked to vote for those actions that they thought were most important.  Where the voting identified that 
these actions should become a priority for the Council, they were ranked with a ‘High’ priority within the revised action plan.

We are delighted to have been recognised as a Regional Centre of Excellence for Youth Homelessness for 2008/09 in partnership with
Bromsgrove Youth Homelessness Forum and Bromsgrove District Housing Trust for providing services that deliver targeted youth 
support via the Basement ‘Drop In’ centre, the private tenancy scheme for under 25’s and specialist outreach floating support. 

Officers from the Council, Bromsgrove Youth Homelessness Forum and Bromsgrove District Housing Trust attended the National Youth
Homelessness Conference on the 8th December 2008 and we have incorporated learning from this event into the revised action plan. 

P
age 60



15

HOUSING STRATEGY ACTION PLAN – REVIEW / REFRESH STAGE – DECEMBER 2008. 

ACTION PLAN - PRIORITY 1. - ADDRESSING THE SHORTAGE OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

Action and Priority Target Completion 
Date

Milestone Progress upon implementation of action as at 31st January 2007  Revised Target for 
Completion 

KEY TARGET   -  With the support of BDHT and other partner RSLs', achieve delivery of 400 additional units of affordable housing over the 5 year period of 
the Strategy.  

Performance in 05/06 = 75 additional affordable housing units,  
Performance for 06/07 outturn = 72 additional units 
Performance for 07/08 = 46. 
Performance for 08/09 = 135 up to 31st Dec 2008. 

PSA 5 – To achieve a better balance between housing availability and the demand for housing, whilst protecting the countryside and Green Belt. 

Proposed Outcome - Increased delivery of affordable housing through Planning Gain.  
Adopt new Supplementary Planning 
Document for Affordable Housing relating to: 

Threshold levels 
Percentage of affordable housing 
Open space/play facilities 
Location / size / type / tenure 
Financial contributions 

HIGH

Dependent upon 
RSS resolution 

The SPD will not be formally adopted until the Core strategy has been 
adopted, although whilst the moratorium is in place the Affordable 
housing SPD will not be used as we would resist any open market 
housing. Information contained in the SPD will be used to guide the 
allocation of new housing sites for long term development needs, it 
could also be used informally help RSLs provide for identified needs on 
100% affordable housing schemes. 

Maximise use of planning policy to influence 
the delivery of housing to reflect the needs of 
an ageing population. 

MEDIUM

Ongoing 

AC 

Adoption of Core 
Strategy July 
2010

Proposed Outcome – Improved partnership working and preferred partnering arrangements 
When land and or funding is available adopt a 
joint commissioning approach with RSLs 
when bidding to Housing Corp for funding. 

HIGH

Ongoing 

AC

Successful 
outcome re: 
Housing 
Corporation bid 
on Perryfields 
Spring 2009 

Report to Housing Choices for Older People 
Partnership Board upon: 

March 2009 Convene a series 
of meetings of 

P
age 61



16

results of Housing Market 
Assessment 
Countywide Housing Support 
Needs of Older Persons Survey 
Models of Housing and Extra Care 
for Older People 
Revenue Implications for Housing 
for Older People 

to enable group to make decisions on type, 
size, tenure and location to address the 
identified shortfall of housing for older 
persons.

HIGH

AC 
BDHT

the Housing 
Choices for Older 
People
Partnership 
Board Jan 2009 

Investigate with RSL partners the potential to 
develop an innovative scheme whereby 
equity released by enabling older people to 
downsize could be utilised to subsidise 
housing opportunities for their offspring. 

HIGH

March 2010 

AC 
BDHT

Consideration of 
idea by Principal 
Preferred Partner 
RSL Liaison 
Group. 

Proposed Outcome – Increased choice of housing options and routes to owner occupancy. 
Investigate intermediate rent models with 
option to purchase schemes. 

HIGH

June 2009 Invite 
experienced RSL 
to County 
Enabling Officers 
Group meeting. 

Proposed Outcome – A balanced housing market – appropriate supply of affordable housing – reduced backlog of unmet need. 
Carry out a review of the Council owned land 
stocks to re-explore any opportunities for 
releasing land for affordable housing. 

HIGH

April 2009 

JB

Access to 
Council land 
records
JB

Continue to encourage HCA to adopt a more 
flexible approach to tenure when grant 
funding affordable housing schemes to allow 
flexibility to match peoples housing needs 
/levels of affordability with tenure of homes 
upon completion of development. 

HIGH

Ongoing 

AC 

Encourage 
County Rural 
Housing Enabling 
Group to make 
representation 
HCA 

P
age 62



17

Continue to identify development options 
with BDHT through the Development Working 
Group and support submission to Housing 
Corporation Investment Clinic as appropriate. 

HIGH

ONGOING 

Continuous 
process.

Outcome of 06/08 
bidding round. 

Portfolio Holders for Planning and Strategic Housing, PS, DH and AC 
now meeting monthly with CEOs of BDHT and WM Housing Group and 
a representative of County Estates Department,  

This Strategic Housing and Principal RSL Partner Group continues to 
meet monthly and is well supported by all mentioned above. County 
Council owned sites are regularly reviewed and joint partnership 
working developed to maximise potential of land and property 
resources available.

Green 

Within the exploration of empty homes and 
affordable housing opportunities within the 
town centre identify properties particularly 
suitable for younger people with reference to 
access to employment, transport, shop and 
leisure facilities. 

HIGH

Ongoing 

JD

Completion of 
Survey of vacant 
accommodation 
over shops in 
Town Centre. 

Proposed Outcome – Provision of affordable rural housing to meet identified local needs. 
Support the Rural Housing Enabler to carry 
out further Parish Council Local Housing 
Need Surveys and bring forward further 
‘Exception Sites’ at 
Tardebigge 
Bentley 
Bournheath 

MEDIUM

Continuous process Survey carried 
out at Tardebigge 
by April 2009 

Schedule of Local Housing Needs Surveys agreed with Rural Housing 
Enabler.

Review long term development plans for 
affordable housing on ADR’s, school sites 
and Town Centre Re-development within LDF 
process.

HIGH

 Re-appointment 
of Head of Local 
Plans.

Being considered as part of the LDF process – Further progress 
currently awaiting outcome of the RSS Review, following which 
capacity of brownfield urban sites will be addressed in advance of ADR 
and Green Belt land being put forward for housing.  

Amber

Create a register of all publicly owned land 
suitable for the development of affordable 
housing and contact organisations to 
investigate disposals.  

HIGH

ONGOING 

December 2007 Register 
complete by 
December 2006 

Affordable Housing Member Group helping to feed in ideas. 
Priority for LAA given approval. 
Strategic Housing and Preferred RSL Partner Group meets monthly 
with representative of County Estates to review site availability and 
progress upon development for affordable housing purposes.  

Green 

P
age 63



18

Incorporate affordable housing within 
proposed Town Centre re-development.  

HIGH

2008/09 Outcome of 
developer 
responses to 
brief and 
consultation. 

Strategic Housing Initiatives Officer surveying Town Centre to develop 
strategy for flats over shops. 

Green 
Review potential for Flats over Shops. 

HIGH

 Dec 2006   Private leasing scheme fully researched and developed. Scheme for 6 
flats reported to Executive Cabinet but not approved on VFM grounds.  

Ongoing work for Strategic Housing Initiatives Officer to bring back into 
use empty homes including units over shops by working with Town 
Centre officer to assess availability of accommodation over shops to 
feed into town centre plans.  

Action archived but 
continuous process 
of identifying 
opportunities.

Green 
Proposed Outcome – Empty homes brought back into use and private sector renting made more accessible. 
Review opportunities to utilise empty 
properties in view of the declining housing 
market

HIGH

Ongoing 

JD

Review 
properties 
previously 
considered for 
purchase by an 
RSL in view of 
economic 
downturn. 

P
age 64



19

ACTION PLAN PRIORITY 2 – IMPROVING THE QUALITY AND AVAILABILITY OF PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING 
Action and Priority Target Completion 

Date
Milestone Progress upon implementation of action as at 31st January 2007  Revised Target for 

Completion 

KEY TARGET - To increase housing energy efficiency by 30% from 1996 – 2010 
Performance  
to March 05 = 20.69%,   
to March 06 = 22.68%,  
to March 07 = 24.64%    
to March 08  = 25.94% 

KEY TARGET – To increase the proportion of vulnerable households achieving Decent Homes Standard to in excess of 70% by 2010.  
Performance  
March 04 = 76.1%,   
March 06 = 76.33,  
March 07 = 76.66%,  
March 08 = 77.30%  

KEY TARGET – To return a minimum of 3 private sector dwellings into occupation each year as a result of action by the Local Authority.  
Performance  
06/07 = 8 units,  
07/08 = 19 units 
08/09 Target  = 8 
10/10 Target = 25 
Proposed Outcome – Sustained long term ‘Decent’ housing conditions, improved quality of privately rented accommodation, higher standards for healthier and safer homes. 
Monitor performance target for achieving 
ongoing improvement in Decent Homes 
Standard

HIGH

75% of vulnerable 
households decent 
by 2020 

65% of vulnerable 
households decent 
by 2006. 
70% by 2010 

The 2004 Bromsgrove District Private Sector Housing Survey advised 
that 76.1% of vulnerable households already lived in Decent Homes. 
Full monitoring and updating of this baseline data began in 2007/08 
with the introduction of new Decent Homes forms for inspecting 
officers and our SLA partners whom also inspect properties. 
Performance is updated based upon home repair grants allocated. 
Performance to March 2008 = 77.30%. 

Green

Review Private Sector Renewal Strategy and 
Housing Assistance Policy 2004. 

HIGH

April 2006 Draft review by Feb 
2006

Target not achieved due to staff resource issues. 

Policy reviewed – October 2007. 

Private Sector Strategy review recommended by Audit Commission at 
Re Inspection and actioned for completion by March 2009. Condition 
Survey update needed to inform the strategy but progress may 
hamper completion of this action.   

April 2009 

Green 

Introduce an Enforcement Policy and fee 
structure via Cabinet. 

March 2006 March 2006 to 
Cabinet 

Fee structure for HMO licensing agreed. 

Currently operating in accordance with Central Government 

April 09 

Green 

P
age 65



20

MEDIUM

Guidance, Enforcement Concordat and Environment Services 
Enforcement Policy. 

Development of a Private Sector Housing Enforcement Policy being 
included within the review of the Private Sector Housing Strategy by 
April 09

Review progress on commissioning 
countywide mapping of housing conditions 
surveys / BRE data by BRE/CPC. 

MEDIUM

November 2007  Reviewed and countywide approach to unified update of condition 
surveys agreed. Specification agreed and in process of being 
commisioned.

Green
Promote services through the development 
of Bromsgrove District Council’s website for 
specific clients groups, i.e. landlords, 
tenants and owner-occupiers to include info 
on running costs, maintenance and energy 
efficiency and provide articles for Together 
Bromsgrove and local press. 

HIGH

July 2009 Write up 
information for 
publication 
June 2009 

Investigate the cost / benefits of 
commissioning a thermal imaging survey of 
the District to identify the focus for energy 
efficiency investment. 

MEDIUM

March 2008  Costs identified to be in region of £11,000 – subject to budget 
submission in 09/10. Would benefit investment targeting but WEEAC 
home energy efficiency questionnaires currently providing an 
indication. Now being commissioned countywide.

Green

Proposed Outcome – Improved energy efficiency of homes. 
Work in partnership with Act on Energy to 
investigate efficient home scheme in 
conjunction with renewable energy scheme 

MEDIUM

April 2009 Arrange meeting 
with WEEAC to 
discuss 
possibilities 
Feb 09 

Work in partnership with Act on Energy to 
investigate training parish councillors on 
energy efficiency. 

MEDIUM

April 2009 Arrange meeting 
with WEEAC to 
discuss 
possibilities  
Feb 09 

Formulate proposal to introduce a grant 
scheme to improve energy efficiency for 
mobile homes, and submit bid for 10/11 
financial year. 

MEDIUM

April 2010 Submit report to 
Council Sep 09 

Work with Redditch and Wyre Forest to 
review the contribution toward renewables to 

July 2009 Completion of 
thermal imaging 

P
age 66



21

improve take up  of grant 

MEDIUM

Feb 09 

Investigate grant criteria for households in 
fuel poverty  

HIGH

July 2009 Arrange meeting 
with WEEAC to 
discuss 
possibilities 
Feb 09 

Target 2% annual home energy saving PA  Target 30% by 2010  26% by Sep 2008 On target for 30% home energy savings by 2010. Year 04/05 20.69%, 
Year 05/06 22.68% (reaching target of 2% p.a., highest annual % 
increase in Worcestershire 05/06, March 07 = 24.64, March 08 = 
25.94).

Updated annually following HECA report. Green

Proposed Outcome – Better support and assistance to older and vulnerable people in making home improvements and adaptations, Healthier and Safer homes. 
Make a minimum of three presentations per 
year to Parish Council’s upon the role of the 
NW Care & Repair Service and Bromsgrove 
Lifeline in supporting older and vulnerable 
residents.

MEDIUM

February 2007   2 completed by 
October 2006 

Parish Road shows completed at Romsley and Bentley Pauncefoot 
during Summer 07 – Blackwell and Lickey and Tutnal and Cobley 
planned for autumn 08. 

Action ongoing 

Green 

Introduce new procurement procedures for 
DFG and Disc grant implementation. 

HIGH

January 2008 Specification for 
tender process by 
August 2007 

Advertisement of framework contract and PQQ carried out and 
contractors shortlisted – Final stage invitation to tender in process.

Amber
Implement Multi Agency Meetings for OT 
referrals that require structural alteration or 
extension to a home to ensure all alternative 
options are fully appraised. 

HIGH

On going 

KSF

PCT
BDHT
Social Services 
Private Sector 
Team

Jan 2009 

Process has commenced WEF 14.01.09  

Proposed Outcome – Increased access to private rented accommodation for the homeless, increased choice and increased support and assistance to landlords. 
Investigate opportunities to develop a 
bridging loan to cover the period between 
tenancies. 

MEDIUM

April 2010 Consider 
implications of 
scheme and 
funding 
requirements 
by Aug 09 for Oct 
bidding round. 

Develop a data base of private landlord 
portfolios. 

June 2009 Write 
questionnaire, 

Currently in process of being compiled.  

P
age 67



22

MEDIUM
compile list of 
landlords 
June 2009 

Investigate Best Practice Accreditation 
Schemes and review whether practical and 
viable. 

LOW 

July 2009 Review examples 
of best practice 
July 2009 

`

Continue to deliver Private Landlords Forum 
meetings and training events. 

HIGH

Continuous process 
of annual meetings. 

Development of 
LL’s Handbook. 

Forum delivered in Nov 06 and again in January 08 – extremely well 
attended – with outcome of private tenancies being made available. 
Private Landlords Focus Group also developed – first meeting on 26th

Feb 07 but not so well attended. 
Signed up to National Landlords Association which includes access to 
guidance and management standards for private renting. 

Continuing annual 
meetings

Green 

P
age 68



23

ACTION PLAN PRIORITY 3 – ADDRESSING HOMELESSNESS 

Action and Priority Target Completion 
Date

Milestone Progress upon implementation of action as at 31st January 2007 Revised Target for 
Completion 

KEY TARGET – To maintain zero usage of B&B for households which include dependent children or a pregnant woman and in an emergency not exceed 
occupation of 6 weeks.  
07/08 Performance maintained.  

KEY TARGET – Reduce the use of temporary accommodation by 50% by 2010  
Performance 
31.12.06 = 23.15% reduction against 05/06 average,  
Oct 07 = 50 people in temp accom  
March 2008 – Government target achieved 2 years in advance – down to 16 in temp accom (Dec 2008 = 10)  

KEY TARGET – Maintain  levels of rough sleeping in the zero - <10 category  
Performance at 31.03.08 maintained at zero 

KEY TARGET – Reduce homelessness and repeat homelessness through preventative action  
Performance 
31.04.07 = 76 cases prevented from becoming homeless with 6 cases of repeat homelessness being received  
31.03.08 = 147 cases prevented during 07/08 

Proposed Outcome – A well co-ordinated homelessness service matched to identified needs. 
Implement Mortgage Rescue Scheme 
in line with government guidance to support 
owner occupiers 

HIGH

Feb 09 Meeting with key 
partners in Jan 09 

Consider the implications of Section 17, 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

HIGH

On going Consideration 
given to Section 
17 for all 
homelessness 
initiatives. 

JD Risk assessed Spend to Save and Rent Deposit in accordance 
with Community Safety Guidance. 

BDHT assessed new Homelessness Support and Visiting officer 
schemes.

Police assessed Sanctuary Scheme 

Green 

Encourage older people who are under-
occupying properties to move into alternative 
accommodation that will better meet their 
needs as they become more frail and in need 
of support. 

On going Consider the 
needs of older 
people in any new 
developments 

- Extra Care Housing Scheme is to provide move on for rent and 
shared ownership (to free up lower priced private houses to become 
available)

8 new two bed bungalows at Morris Walk and Gilbert Rd & 4 planned 
for Houseman Cl to be more attractive option. 

Continuous process 

Green 

P
age 69



24

HIGH

Under occupation given priority status in new Choice Based Lettings 
Policy. 

Joint working underway with BDHT to identify extent of under 
occupation and develop incentive scheme. 

Proposed Outcome – Improved assistance to the homeless, reduced homeless applications, more people prevented from becoming homeless. 
Consider expansion of the Relate Mediation 
with a Counsellor service to 13,14 and 15 
year olds 

Mar 09 Discuss existing 
provision for this 
age group with 
Simon Rushall 

Introduce mentoring/befriending service for 
young homeless people  

MEDIUM

Nov 2006 Help young 
people integrate 
into their 
communities and 
sustain their 
tenancies. 

BYHF have received Big Lottery Funding which includes researching 
and developing a peer mentoring scheme.  After Care have recently 
recruited 3 mentors who will be supporting care leavers. 

Amber

Encourage the take up of ‘Care to Learn’ 
courses for teenage parents 

LOW 

On going More teenage 
parents 
continuing with 
their education 
and able to stay 
with parents 

Strategic Housing Officer attended the County Homelessness Officers 
Group on 27th July to raise awareness of Care to Learn Scheme. 
Charford Multi Agency Resource Centre offer access to education / 
training and child care which could explain lack of take up for the 
District.

Ongoing

Red
Explore the possibilities of working with HB 
& Black Pear credit union for clients with low 
level debt and clients accessing Step Up. 

MEDIUM

Feb 09 Meeting with 
Revenues and 
Black Pear Credit 
Union to discuss 
opportunities Feb 
09

Review Step up scheme to pay deposits 
rather than offering bond to encourage more 
private landlord onto the scheme. 

MEDIUM

April 2009 Research 
implications and 
identify funding 
requirements 
March 09 

Continue to improve links with private 
landlords & develop mechanism for 
advertising on CBL 

MEDIUM

April 09 KSF and LJ to 
develop 
inspection aid for 
properties to be 
promoted on CBL 
March 09 

Work with BDHT and Aftercare to provide a 
training flat for under 21’s 

HIGH

Mar 09 Joint funding to 
be identified from 
partners. Bid to be 
submitted to 
Homelessness 
Strategy Steering 
Group Jan 09. 

Work with Redditch and Bromsgrove PCT to 
develop health professionals awareness of 

Jan 2006 Better health 
provision for 

Centrepoint have now made contact with PCT and are training their 
contact to raise awareness with GP’s and other health professionals. 

April 08 

P
age 70



25

homelessness and means of referral 

HIGH

homeless people 
or people at risk 
of homelessness. 

The County Homelessness Officers Group have developed a Hospital 
Discharge protocol. Approval anticipated by March 07. 

Amber

Proposed Outcome – Increased supply, choice of affordable housing for homeless households. 

Develop allocations panels for new 
developments to maximise the benefit of 
move on from existing stock. 

HIGH

On going First panel to be 
arranged for 
School Drive 
phase 2 scheme 
Apr 2009 

Engage with St Basils through Supporting 
People Steering Group for North 
Worcestershire Younger Persons Scheme.  

HIGH

Ongoing Agree Council 
Officer 
representative on 
Steering Group  

Review the need for supported 
accommodation for clients with more chaotic 
life styles. 

HIGH

April 2010 Work with BDHT 
to review 
requirement for 
this client group. 
April 2010 

Proposed Outcome – A more accessible, customer focused homelessness service available to all people experiencing homelessness. 
Improve and develop the Council’s 
relationship with Private Landlords, explore 
landlord accreditation scheme and develop 
landlord handbook. 

On going Landlords 
Handbook to be 
produced by April 
2006

Relationship with private sector is very good, maintained through 
regular mail shots, landlord forums and letting agents liaison meetings.  
Has been improved with the high take up of Step Up Private Tenancy 
Scheme.  Development of handbook has been considered.  Decided 
to use resource developed by NLA which offers thorough, current and 
in-depth information for landlords.  BDC joined NLA in Feb 08.  Private 
Landlord guide has been developed to make landlords aware of their 
legal responsibilities when letting out properties. 

December 2007 

Green 

Research needs for an outreach worker for 
people with mental health difficulties 

HIGH

April 2006 Mental Health 
manager to attend 
Homelessness 
Steering Group 
meeting by Jan 
2006

Not yet achieved.  A housing strategy for those with mental health 
issues that was being developed by the Mental Health Manager, Adult 
Services but is still in draft form. Strategic Housing Team are working 
with Supporting People and Mental Health Teams to identify needs 

July 2008 

Amber
Improved mapping and signposting of 
homelessness services. 

HIGH

Dec 2009 Homelessness 
Strategy Steering 
Group to identify 
task and finish 
group to carry out 
this work. 
April 09 

Raise awareness of early intervention debt 
advice at CAB. 

On going Provide 
information for 

P
age 71



26

HIGH
article in Parish 
Newsletters March 
09

Raise awareness of employment and 
volunteering opportunities by developing 
relationships with Job Centre and voluntary 
sector and considering opportunities for 
work placements with BDC. 

HIGH

April 2009 Make contact with 
Job Centre April 
2009.

Encourage HB Manager to review the 
decision that HB verifiers must be Council 
staff. 

MEDIUM

Feb 2009 Meeting with new 
head of HB in Jan 
2009

Research health needs of homeless 
households and their ability to access health 
services 

HIGH

June 2006 An assessment of 
the issues by 
April 2006 

Research into accessibility of health service not achieved. 

Menu cards have been developed to promote healthy eating through 
Health and Wellbeing Group. 

Red
Proposed Outcome – A continually improving homelessness service that is based on good practice. 
Continue to review the provision for Teenage 
Parents

MEDIUM

On going Attend County 
Teenage 
Paternity and 
Pregnancy Group 

New monitoring form and questionnaire developed for data collection. 
BDHT gathering data to substantiate need – liaison will then tale place 
with Supporting People. 

Amber
Carry out a review of Good Start packages 
available for new tenants. 

MEDIUM

July 2009 Meeting with 
partners by 
March 09 

Attend tenancy training event at Kettering 
and consider whether it is appropriate for 
Bromsgrove 

MEDIUM

April 09 BDHT/BYHF to 
attend training 
Jan 09 and report 
back to 
Homelessness 
Strategy Steering 
Group 

Carry out satisfaction surveys and focus 
groups to review and improve services. 

HIGH

April 09 Satisfaction 
surveys to be 
issued by Feb 09. 
Focus groups to 
be held by March 
09.

Consider housing advice outreach service in 
rural areas. 

MEDIUM

April 2010 To be considered 
as part of the 
SLA review June 
2009

P
age 72



27

Develop a range of homelessness policies 
and procedures to ensure consistency and 
facilitate the delivery of these services. 

MEDIUM

June 2009 

JB

Policies to be 
written by SLA 
review June 
2009.

Consider initiatives to help strengthen and 
support families in order to prevent 
homelessness. 

On going Arrange to meet 
with Wyre Forest 
Family 
Intervention 
Project and 
discuss how the 
service might be 
expanded to 
include 
Bromsgrove 
District.
April 09 

Continue to work with the Countywide 
Homelessness Strategy Group to support 
and take responsibility for the actions in the 
Countywide Action Plan. 

MEDIUM

Ongoing Attend quarterly 
meetings. 

Investigate Homelessness Education 
Package in partnership  with BDHT and BYHF 

LOW 

December 2007  Programme agreed and currently submitting project proposal for part 
funding through ‘Extended Schools’ 

Green 
Review need to consider grant funding / 
purchase of ESD’s for young people and 
single people. 

HIGH

July 2010 Review in 2010 to 
assess demand 
on existing ESD 
temp accom and 
need to provide 
dispersed units 
to complement 
Foyer Scheme 

Review development of work placements for 
vulnerable people including young and care 
leavers in consultation with St Basils. 

MEDIUM

April 2010 Implementation 
and
establishment of 
the St Basils NW 
Support Service 
for younger 
people. 

Review need to re-commence inspection of 
B&B properties. 

MEDIUM

October 2009 Dependent upon 
homelessness 
deman and need 
to potentially use 
B&B

P
age 73



28

establishments. 
Review need to develop cluster model 
providing peer support for young people. 

MEDIUM

December 2009 Dependent upon 
unmet needs 
following 
implementation 
of Foyer 

Develop local provision of the Countywide 
Family Intervention Project. 

MEDIUM

December 2009  

P
age 74



29

ACTION PLAN PRIORITY 4 – ASSISTING VULNERABLE GROUPS TO LIVE INDEPENDENTLY 

Action and Priority Target Completion 
Date

Milestone Progress upon implementation of action as at 31st January 2007 Revised Target for 
Completion 

KEY TARGET - Provision of 92 units of Extra Care Housing during lifetime of the Strategy.  
Performance 
October 07 – Started on site 
December 08 – Scheme completed. 

KEY TARGET – To contribute to other organisations strategies including reducing domestic violence, reducing hospital admissions due to falls, assisting to 
speed up hospital discharge and reduce crime and disorder, 

Proposed Outcome – Improved independence and health & wellbeing of the community through the provision of more appropriate supported housing solutions for people with 
particular needs.  
Support and encourage inclusion of ‘Lifetime 
Home Standards’ in all new affordable 
housing developments. 

MEDIUM

Ongoing  Delivered in all new build AH schemes funded Hsg Corp. 

To be considered within developing SPD for affordable housing.  

Continuous objective. 

Green 
Consult directly with specific client groups to 
identify needs and aspirations i.e. learning 
disabilities, mental health etc 

HIGH

Consultation 
methods and 
funding requirement 
identified Oct 2009. 

Meet with Adult 
Services to 
discuss 
appropriate 
consultation 
methods. Sept 
2009

Raise awareness of how assistive technology 
might help individuals to continue to live 
independently particularly in respect of 
Dementia. 

HIGH

Report to RSL 
Liaison Group by 
Sept 2009 

Arrange visit to 
Mendip House, 
Redditch to 
understand the 
benefits of 
assistive 
technology May 
2009

Tackle reluctance of private landlords to offer 
accommodation to higher risk clients such as 
ex offenders/substance misusers through 
linking with employment services/training 
opportunities. 

HIGH

Sept 2009 Review 
opportunities to 
link with 
employment 
services Sept 
2009

Develop more community cluster ‘key ring’ Dec 2009 Work with Adult 

P
age 75



30

style schemes for a range of client groups i.e. 
mental health. 

HIGH

Services and 
Supporting 
People to identify 
opportunities and 
funding 
requirements. 

Consider the need for a leaving care project  
with on site support 

LOW 

March 2010 Review the need 
for this client 
specific 
accommodation 
in partnership 
with Aftercare 
Mar 2010 

Make use of Both Ways initiative to provide a 
matching service for young people to share 
accommodation. 

HIGH

Scheme extended to 
Bromsgrove April 
2009

Meet with Both 
Ways Jan 09 

Continue to work with the County Supporting 
People Partnership to:  

Deliver services that improve 
independence and quality of life, 
prevent homelessness and make 
communities safer. 
Review and commission schemes 
to ensure strategically planned, 
good quality and cost effective 
services prevail. 

HIGH

Ongoing Approval of 
Supporting 
People 5 Year 
Strategy 

Supporting People 5 Year Strategy approved by Executive Cabinet 
February 2006. 

Strategic Housing Manager now member of SP Commissioning Group. 

Strategic Housing staff involved in SP Strategic Reviews. 

Continuous process 

Green 

Gypsy and Traveller site review of options for 
Houndsfield Lane Site. 

MEDIUM

December 2007  Discussion have taken place with Stoneham HA and Rooftop HA with 
regard to re-modelling of Transit Site pitches to provide amenity blocks 
an caravan access ramps for older and disabled G&T occupants. 
Expression of interest made to CLG for funding  

Options report made to Cabinet in June 2008. 

ongoing

Green 
Work CHOG members, Adult &Communities 
and PCT to identify the housing needs and 
address homelessness and move on issues 
for disabled and persons with sensory 
impairment.

April 2010 Set up 
CHOG.A&C 
Services /PCT 
working Group 
by July 2009 

Proposed outcome – Improved independence, health & wellbeing – improved home safety and security – reduced admissions and reduced delay in leaving hospital.     
Review of the implementation of a county 
wide under occupation scheme to ensure that 
we make best use of existing accommodation 

HIGH

Sept 2009 Consider whether 
there is a need to 
extend current 
criteria of Home 
Move Grant to 
include social 

P
age 76



31

housing July 
2009

Continue to work with County Teenage 
Pregnancy and Parenting Manager to provide 
data regarding housing allocations and 
floating support for this client group and 
review the requirement for specialist 
accommodation with on site support. 

MEDIUM

On going BDC to continue 
to co-ordinate the 
quarterly 
gathering of data 
from partner local 
authorities 
across the 
County. 

Work with Bromsgrove Lifeline and the 
Worcestershire Telecare Group to promote 
the alarm service and develop schemes to 
help people remain independent in their 
home. 

MEDIUM

Ongoing Success of 
Countywide bid 
for Government 
funding. 

Ongoing promotion of Lifeline to housing providers where opportunities 
arise. Included in Strategic Housing Roadshow presentations to PCs. 

Cabinet to consider adoption of County Telecare Strategy in October 
08.

Green 

Proposed Outcome – Reduced occurrence in domestic violence, safer environment and increased choice.  
Continue to provide funding for Sanctuary 
schemes 

On going Funding made 
available through 
Spend to Save 
budget. 

Proposed outcome – More choice, more sustainable rural communities. 
Meet local rural housing needs for older 
people by incorporating appropriate 
dwellings in new build. 

MEDIUM

Ongoing Housing needs 
survey results. 
Housing Corp 
Grant. 
Planning 
permission.  

Needs of older people identified in 2 out of 5 rural housing needs 
surveys (Alvechurch and Beoley).  Negotiations for site acquisition 
reflect the need for partial provision for older people.  Bromsgrove 
Housing Market Assessment and Older persons Housing Needs 
Survey will inform the process.  

Progressing

Green 
Proposed outcome – Better use of existing housing stock by freeing up family accommodation – More choice of appropriate housing solutions for older people.  
Consider 2 bedroom bungalow 
accommodation and Shared ownership 
options for older people in RSL development 
to promote early move on. 

HIGH

Ongoing  8 two bedroom bungalows currently constructed 06/07 and a further4 
are planned on land to be conveyed to BDHT by the Council. 

Older peoples consultation group being formulated (from March 07) by 
BDHT to consider aspirations of under occupying tenants to encourage 
move on to free up family homes. Consideration being given to loft 
conversions / conservatory extensions etc to enhance suitability of 
existing older people’s bungalows in BDHT stock.  

Continuous inclusion 
where appropriate. 

Green 

P
age 77



32

Contact List 

Jennifer Delorenzo, Housing Initiatives Officer      01527 881228  j.delorenzo@bromsgrove.gov.uk

Jayne Burton, Housing Performance Monitoring and Enabling Officer 01527 881385  j.burton@bromsgrove.gov.uk

Andy Coel, Strategic Housing Manager     01527 881270  a.coel@bromsgrove.gov.uk

Bromsgrove District Council 
The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
Bromsgrove 
B60 1AA 

P
age 78



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

17TH MARCH 2009 
 

 
AUDIT COMMISSION RE-INSPECTION OF STRATEGIC HOUSING 
SERVICES – ACTION PLAN UPDATE ON PROGRESS 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Peter Whittaker 
Responsible Head of Service David Hammond 
 
 
 
1.   SUMMARY 
 
1.1 In August last year, the Performance Management Board considered 

the report of the Audit Commission upon the re- inspection of Strategic 
Housing Services that took place in February 2008 and the action plan 
that officers had formulated to address the Audit Commission’s 
recommendations.  

 
1.2 This report updates members on the progress that has been made in 

addressing the actions set in the action plan. 
 
  RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1  That members note the progress made upon the action plan (Appendix 

1) containing Corporate, Strategic Planning and Strategic Housing 
actions to address the recommendations made by the Audit 
Commission. 

 
3.  BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Council’s Strategic Housing Service was re-inspected by the Audit 

Commission in the week commencing the 25th February 2008. The 
service had previously been inspected in March 2006 when it had been 
rated as being a poor, zero star service with uncertain prospects for 
improvement.   

 
4. SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
 
4.1 The outcome of the Re-Inspection that took place in February 2008 

states that Bromsgrove District Council's Strategic Housing Service is 
now a fair, one-star service which has promising prospects for 
improvement.  

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 79



4.2 The Audit Commission report confirmed that  the progress made since 
the initial inspection represented a significant improvement from 2006 
and makes the following recommendations: 

 
 

Recommendation R1 Improve the focus on customers by: 
• Monitoring, reporting and taking action to ensure that all agreed 

targets within the housing advice and CAB service level 
agreements which relate to accessibility and timeliness of the 
service are met; 

• Developing and implementing arrangements to monitor and report 
measures of satisfaction for all aspects of the strategic housing 
service and setting targets for improvement; 

• Involving customers in the review and re-development of service 
standards for the strategic housing service, implement 
arrangements for customers to be involved in monitoring them, and 
publicise the standards and performance against them; and 

• Ensuring that analysis of complaints, which includes common and 
recurring factors, is regularly reported by service area and that 
action to resolve them is recorded and reported internally and 
externally. 

 
Target for completion – November 2008   

 
Recommendation R2 Improve the focus on diversity by: 
• Collecting and using customer profile information and feedback to 

inform development of a corporate strategy and action plan to 
identify and remove any barriers to accessing services; 

• Developing and implementing diversity monitoring for service take 
up and satisfaction, across all groups identified in the equality 
scheme, reporting this regularly and taking action to address any 
actual or perceived inequality in service provision; 

• Revisiting and updating the Equality Impact Assessments for the 
strategic housing service to ensure that they are robust and that 
any weaknesses are integrated into the current service 
improvement plan; and 

• Reviewing compliance with the CRE Code of Practice for Rented 
Housing and for Employment and ensuring that actions to achieve 
compliance are included in existing improvement plans. 

 
Target for completion – April 2009 

 
Recommendation R3 Maximise the impact of activities in the 
private sector by: 
 
• Revisiting internal guidance regarding identification of Houses in 

Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and developing and implementing 
regular programmes of work in the district to identify the type and 
location of HMOs and targeting inspection and enforcement activity 
appropriately; and 

Page 80



• Developing an overarching strategy to guide all activities in the 
private sector which clearly sets out the expected combined 
benefits of work in this area supported by performance targets and 
monitoring. 

 
Target for completion – April 2009 

 
 

Recommendation R4 Maximise the delivery of affordable housing 
by: 
 

• Ensuring that sufficient staff resources are in place to prioritise the 
development of strategic planning documents linked to delivery of 
affordable housing; 

• Assessing the skills and capacity within the strategic housing and 
planning teams to ensure that they are equipped to maximise 
opportunities for delivery following the outcome of the review of the 
Regional Spatial Strategy, particularly in relation to negotiation 
skills; 

• Formalising arrangements for contact and liaison with developers 
and partners; and  

• Formalise joint working arrangements between the strategic 
housing and planning teams to more proactively consider and 
address required flexibility within pipeline schemes. 

•  
Target for completion – September 2009 
 

 
Recommendation R5 Improving value for money by: 

 
• Ensuring that spending performance against allocated capital 

budgets for grants is more closely monitored and maximised and 
that reporting arrangements allow for prompt action to mitigate any 
under spends; 

• Developing baseline cost, performance, and satisfaction analysis to 
determine value for money of the strategic housing service and any 
services provided under agreement, subject to regular review; 

• Assessing the effectiveness of internal and external funding and 
investment in the service, and the impact of different resource 
streams, to inform a strategy for maximising the impact of future 
funding; and 

• Implementing arrangements to ensure that the impact of investment 
in learning, training and development is assessed and meets stated 
objectives. 

  

 Target for Completion – April 2009  
 
 

Page 81



5. DEVELOPMENT OF AN IMPROVEMENT ACTION PLAN 
 
5.1 In response to the recommendations made, a new Strategic Housing 

Re- Inspection Action Plan was developed last summer to address the 
key recommendations set out above and the actions from the previous 
inspection report that are not fully completed, again focussing upon 
where the service can be further strengthened.  

5.2 The Re-Inspection action plan sets out the areas of work that need to 
be addressed both corporately and those that are more specific to 
Strategic Planning and the Strategic Housing Section itself. The 
proposed outcomes and targets set out in the Audit Commission 
recommendations will, as in the previous action plan, be transferred 
into the new Re-Inspection Action Plan for clarity. 

5.3 The Action Plan is attached at Appendix 1 for Members review of 
progress. 

 
 
 
6.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 There are no financial implications associated with the 

recommendation to approve the action plan as the actions set will be 
addressed within existing budget and staff resources.   

 
 
 
7.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1  There are no legal implications directly linked to the recommendations  
 

   
 
8.  COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1      Housing is a Council priority under Objective 1 – Regeneration. 
 
 
9.  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
  
9.1  The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 
   

• Failure to embrace the recommendations made by the Audit 
Commission could impact upon the Councils corporate rating under 
CPA or similar CAA inspections. 

  
  

 

Page 82



10.  CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1   The recommendation to approve the action plan will ultimately impact 

upon customer service and satisfaction as service improvements are 
implemented.  

 
 
11.  EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1  Actions within the plan will help improve awareness of customer 

requirements and help strengthen the application of the Council’s 
Equalities and Diversity Policies. 

 
12.  VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 Actions within the plan will help improve and strengthen the application 

of the Council’s Value For Money Strategy and Policies. 
  

 
13.  OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
  
 

Procurement Issues 
 
None 
Personnel Implications 
 
None 
Governance/Performance Management 
 
None 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 
 
None 
Policy 
 
None 
Environmental  
 
None 

 

 
14. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 
  

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 
Chief Executive Yes 

Page 83



 

Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  
 

Yes 
Executive Director - Services 
 

Yes 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 
Head of Service 
 

Yes 
Head of Financial Services 
 

Yes 
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

Yes 
Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 
 

15.  WARDS AFFECTED 
 

  ‘All Wards’  
 
16.  APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Strategic Housing Re-Inspection - Action Plan updated 
February 2009.  

 
 
17.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 

Audit Commission Local authority Housing Inspection Report – 
Strategic Housing Re-Inspection – Bromsgrove District Council. 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   A.M. Coel  
E Mail:  a.coel@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881270 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 84



ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
HO

US
IN

G 
RE

-IN
SP

EC
TI

ON
 - 

AC
TI

ON
 P

LA
N 

Up
da

te
d 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

9 
 

 KE
Y R

EC
OM

ME
ND

AT
IO
N 
R1

 -  
 

 IM
PR

OV
E T

HE
 FO

CU
S O

N 
CU

ST
OM

ER
S B

Y:
  

Mo
nit
or
ing

, re
po

rti
ng

 an
d t

ak
ing

 ac
tio

n t
o e

ns
ur
e t
ha
t a
ll a

gr
ee
d t

arg
ets

 w
ith

in 
the

 ho
us
ing

 ad
vic

e a
nd
 C
AB

 se
rvi
ce
   l
ev
el 
ag
ree

me
nts

 w
hic

h r
ela

te 
to 
ac
ce
ss
ibi
lity

 an
d 

tim
eli
ne
ss
 of
 th

e s
erv

ice
 ar
e m

et;
  

De
ve
lop

ing
 an

d i
mp

lem
en
tin
g a

rra
ng

em
en
ts 
to 
mo

nit
or
 an

d r
ep
or
t m

ea
su
res

 of
 sa

tis
fac

tio
n f

or
 al
l a
sp
ec
ts 
of 

the
 st
rat

eg
ic 
ho
us
ing

 se
rvi
ce
 an

d s
ett
ing

 ta
rg
ets

 fo
r im

pr
ov
em

en
t;  

Inv
olv

ing
 cu

sto
me

rs 
in 
the

 re
vie

w 
an
d r

e-d
ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f s
erv

ice
 st
an
da
rd
s f
or
 th

e s
tra

teg
ic 
ho
us
ing

 se
rvi
ce
, im

ple
me

nt 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 fo

r c
us
tom

ers
 to
 be

 in
vo
lve

d i
n 

mo
nit
or
ing

 th
em

, a
nd
 pu

bli
cis

e t
he
 st
an
da
rd
s a

nd
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 ag

ain
st 
the

m;
 an

d  
En

su
rin

g t
ha
t a
na
lys

is 
of 

co
mp

lai
nts

, w
hic

h i
nc
lud

es
 co

mm
on
 an

d r
ec
ur
rin

g f
ac
tor

s, 
is 
reg

ula
rly
 re

po
rte

d b
y s

erv
ice

 ar
ea
 an

d t
ha
t a
cti
on
 to

 re
so
lve

 th
em

 is
 re
co
rd
ed
 an

d 
rep

or
ted

 in
ter

na
lly
 an

d e
xte

rn
all
y. 
 

 Pr
op

os
ed
 O
utc

om
e –

 
 

 C
us
tom

ers
 ar
e a

ble
 to
 ac

ce
ss
 th

e g
en
eri
c a

nd
 sp

ec
ial
ist
 ho

us
ing

 ad
vic

e s
erv

ice
s i
n a

 tim
ely

 w
ay
 an

d t
ha
t a
ny
 ch

an
ge
s i
n d

em
an
d o

r r
es
ou

rci
ng
 re
qu
ire
d a

re 
mo

re 
rea

dil
y 

ide
nti

fie
d; 

 
 

 C
us
tom

er 
fee

db
ac
k a

bo
ut 

the
 se

rvi
ce
 th

ro
ug
h c

om
pla

int
s a

nd
 sa

tis
fac

tio
n i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 is
 us

ed
 to
 im

pr
ov
e s

erv
ice

s; 
an
d; 
 

 
 C
us
tom

ers
 kn

ow
 w
ha
t le

ve
l o
f s
erv

ice
 th

ey
 sh

ou
ld 
rec

eiv
e a

nd
 ca

n s
ee
 ho

w 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 is
 pe

rfo
rm

ing
 ag

ain
st 
ag
ree

d s
tan

da
rd
s. 
 

 Ou
tco

me
s b

ein
g i
mp

ro
ve
d f
or
 lo
ca
l re

sid
en
ts 

 
 

Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 – 
No

ve
mb

er 
20
08
 

 CO
RP

OR
AT

E 
AC

TIO
NS

 
Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts1
 

R1
.1 

Re
so
urc

e a
nd

 de
ve
lop

 st
aff

ing
 to

 an
aly

se
 

an
d c

om
pil
e r

ep
ort

 fro
m 

cu
sto

me
r fe

ed
ba

ck
 fro

m 
ran

ge
 of

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ho

us
ing

 qu
es
tio
nn

air
es
. (i

.e.
 

ho
us
ing

 of
fic
ers

 fo
rm

ula
te 

an
d p

os
t o

ut 
qu

es
tio
nn

air
es
, b

ut 
ne

ed
 a 

res
ou

rce
 to

 co
mp

ile
 

an
d a

na
lys

e c
om

ple
ted

 qu
es
tio
nn
air

es
. 

Ju
ne

 09
 

Su
rve

ys
 av

ail
ab

le 
for

 an
aly

sis
 by

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

HB
 

N/
A 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
. 

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 Te

am
. 

HB
 to

 co
ns
ide

r s
taf

f 
res

ou
rce

 up
on

 
rec

rui
tm

en
t o

f c
urr

en
tly
 

va
ca
nt 

po
sts

 in
 C
CP

P 
Te

am
. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

Page 85



 
R1

.2 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f C
orp

ora
te 

Co
mp

lai
nts

 
Re

co
rdi

ng
 Sy

ste
m 

Im
ple

me
nt 

Fe
b 0

8 
sta

rt  
rec

ord
ing

 1s
t  

Ap
ril 
08

 
Fo

rm
al 
an

nu
al 

rev
iew

 of
  

Cu
sto

me
r F

irs
t 

Str
ate

gy
 

SS
 

Po
lice

 
Co

un
ty 
Co

un
cil 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
. 

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 Te

am
. 

Ac
hie

ve
d 

 
R1

.3 
Qu

art
erl

y r
ep

ort
s t
o C

MT
 re

po
rtin

g u
po

n 
co
mp

lai
nts

 fro
m 

all
 de

pa
rtm

en
ts 

Ju
ly 
08

 
1st
 re

po
rt J

uly
 08

 
SS

 
Ta

gis
h S

oft
wa

re 
Co

mp
an

y 
Co

rpo
rat

e 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio
ns
. 

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 Te

am
. 

Ac
hie

ve
d 

 
R1

.4 
Pu

bli
sh
 re

su
lts
 of

 co
mp

lai
nts

 m
on

ito
rin

g  
on

 
Co

un
cil 

we
bs
ite
 

Ju
ly 
08

 
1st
 re

po
rt J

uly
 08

 
SS

 
Ta

gis
h S

oft
wa

re 
Co

mp
an

y 
Co

rpo
rat

e 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio
ns
. 

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 Te

am
. 

Pu
bli
sh
ed
 an

d n
ow

  
up

da
ted

 re
gu

lar
ly.
 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

ST
RA

TE
GI
C 
HO

US
IN
G 
AC

TIO
NS

 
Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts 

R1
.5 

De
ve
lop

 a 
sp
rea

ds
he

et 
to 

mo
nit
or 

Ho
me

les
s a

pp
lica

tio
n c

lie
nts

 w
ho

 ha
ve
 

ap
pro

ac
he

d a
nd

 be
en

 se
en
 on

 th
e s

am
e d

ay
 

Ju
ly 
08

 
Fo

rm
at 

ag
ree

d 
wit

h B
DH

T 
JB

 
BD

HT
 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 an

d 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 O
ffic

er 
Ag

ree
d o

n 1
1th
 Ap

ril 
tha

t 
BD

HT
 w
ou

ld 
arr

an
ge

 fo
r 

CS
A’s

 to
 st
art

 
mo

nit
ori

ng
. 

Sp
rea

ds
he

et 
se
t u

p a
nd

 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 in
 pr

oc
es
s. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R1
.6 

Mo
nit
or 

clie
nts

 w
ho

 ar
e h

om
ele

ss
 an

d n
ee

d 
sa
me

 da
y a

cc
om

mo
da
tio
n 

Ju
ly 
08

 
Ab

rita
s 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

JB
 

BD
HT

 
Str

ate
gic

 H
ou
sin

g 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 an

d 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 O
ffic

er.
 

BD
HT

 st
aff

. 

Sp
rea

ds
he

et 
se
t u

p a
nd

 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 in
 pr

oc
es
s. 

Page 86



 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R1
.7 

Mo
nit
or 

clie
nts

 w
ho

 ha
ve
 be

en
 of

fic
ere

d a
n 

ap
pt 

to 
se
e a

 ho
us
ing

 of
fic
er 

wit
hin

 5 
da

ys
 of

 
ini
tia
l a
pp

roa
ch
. 

Ju
ly 
08

 
1st
 au

dit
 to

 ta
ke
 

pla
ce
 in
 Ju

ly 
08

 
JB

 
BD

HT
 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 an

d 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 O
ffic

er.
 

BD
HT

 st
aff

. 

Sp
rea

ds
he

et 
se
t u

p a
nd

 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 in
 pr

oc
es
s. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R1
.8 

Me
et 

wit
h C

AB
 to

 di
sc
us
s m

on
ito
rin

g o
f 

se
rvi
ce
 st
an

da
rds

 
Ju
ly 
08

 
 

JB
 

CA
B 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 an

d 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 O
ffic

er.
 

Ite
m 

on
 ne

xt 
fro

nt 
lin
e 

lia
iso

n m
ee

tin
g. 

 
R1

.9 
Me

eti
ng

 to
 re

vie
w 
sc
he

du
le 
of 
cu
sto

me
r 

fee
db

ac
k q

ue
sti
on

na
ire

s 
Ju
ly 
08

 
 

AG
 

 
Str

ate
gic

 H
ou
sin

g 
Te

am
 

Ac
hie

ve
d, 

sc
he

du
le 

be
ing

 w
ork

ed
 to

 by
 

str
ate

gic
 ho

us
ing

 st
aff

 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R1
.10

 R
ep

ort
 an

nu
all
y t
o P

MB
 on

 le
ve
l o
f 

sa
tis
fac

tio
n o

f c
us
tom

ers
 to

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ho

us
ing

 
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 to

 id
en

tify
 ar

ea
s o

f im
pro

ve
me

nt 
an

d a
cti
on
s a

nd
 ta

rge
ts 
to 

ad
dre

ss
. 

An
nu

all
y 

 
AG

/AC
 

 
Str

ate
gic

 H
ou
sin

g 
Te

am
 

Sc
he

du
le 
an

d r
an

ge
 of

 
cu
sto

me
r s

urv
ey
s 

for
mu

lat
ed

 an
d b

ein
g 

iss
ue

d. 
Sta

ff r
es
ou

rce
s 

ins
uff

icie
nt 

to 
pro

vid
e 

an
y m

ea
nin

gfu
l a
na

lys
is 

of 
res

ult
s. 
HB

 se
ek
ing

 
res

ou
rce

 to
 as

sis
t s
ee

 
R1

.1 
ab

ov
e. 

 
R1

.11
 In

ve
sti
ga

te 
be

st 
pra

cti
ce
 au

tho
riti
es
 fo

r 
de

live
ry 

of 
cu
sto

me
r s

erv
ice

 st
an

da
rds

 
Ju
ne

 08
 

 
JD

 
 

Ho
us
ing

 In
itia

tiv
es
 

Of
fic
er 

– i
nfo

rm
ati
on

 
W
ork

ed
 w
ith
 Au

dit
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

 re
 

Page 87



fro
m 

Au
dit
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

 
ide

nti
fyi
ng

 go
od

 pr
ac
tic
e 

au
tho

riti
es
.  R

es
ea

rch
ed

 
au

tho
riti
es
 an

d 
qu

es
tio
nn

air
e m

od
el 

for
mu

lat
ed

. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R1
.12

 C
on

su
lta
tio
n o

n s
erv

ice
 st
an
da

rds
 

Se
p 0

8 
 

JD
 

BD
HT

 
Pa

rtn
er 

RS
Ls
 

CA
B 

Ba
se
lin
e 

Ho
us
ing

 In
itia

tiv
es
 

Of
fic
er 

Co
ns
ult
ati
on

 w
ith
 

cu
sto

me
rs 

tak
en

 pl
ac
e 

to 
un

de
rst

an
d t

he
ir 

ne
ed

s f
rom

 se
rvi
ce
.  

Ad
dit
ion

al 
co
ns
ult
ati
on

 
to 

tak
e p

lac
e t

o c
he

ck
 

sta
nd

ard
s (

on
ce
 

for
mu

lat
ed

) a
re 

rig
ht.

 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R1
.13

 Ag
ree

 an
d d

ev
elo

p s
erv

ice
 st
an

da
rds

 
No

v 0
8 

 
JD

, A
C 

 
Str

ate
gic

 H
ou
sin

g 
Te

am
 

Dr
aft

 Se
rvi
ce
 St

an
da

rds
 

de
ve
lop

ed
 aw

ait
ing

 fin
al 

ph
as
e o

f c
on
su
lta
tio
n 

wit
h c

us
tom

ers
 th

rou
gh

 
the

 C
orp

ora
te 

Cu
sto

me
r 

Pa
ne

l a
nd

 th
en

 on
 al
l 

cu
sto

me
r s

ati
sfa

cti
on

 
su
rve

ys
.   

Ac
hie

ve
d 

R1
.14

 Pr
om

ote
 an

d p
ub

lici
se
 se

rvi
ce
 st
an

da
rds

 
De

c 0
8 

 Re
vis

ed
 ta

rge
t –

 Ju
ly 

09
 

 
JD

 
 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g 
Te

am
. 

Ex
ist
ing

 Pr
int
ing

 an
d 

sta
tio
na

ry 
bu

dg
et.

 

Aw
ait
ing

 fin
al 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 

cu
sto

me
rs 

to 
ch
ec
k f
ina

l 
dra

ft o
f s
tan

da
rds

. 

Page 88



 
R1

.15
 Ad

d c
us
tom

er 
sta

nd
ard

s t
o a

ll o
utg

oin
g 

qu
es
tio
nn

air
es
 an

d i
nc
lud

e q
ue
sti
on

 to
 m

on
ito
r 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 ag

ain
st 
 th

em
 

Ja
n 0

9 
 Re

vis
ed

 Ta
rge

t A
ug

 
09

 

 
Str

ate
gic

 H
ou
sin

g 
Te

am
 

 
Str

ate
gic

 H
ou
sin

g 
Te

am
. 

Fo
llo
ws

 on
 fro

m 
R1

.14
 

ab
ov
e.  

         KE
Y R

EC
OM

ME
ND

AT
IO
N 
R2

  
 IM
PR

OV
E T

HE
 FO

CU
S O

N 
DI
VE

RS
ITY

 B
Y:
  

Co
lle
cti
ng
 an

d u
sin

g c
us
tom

er 
pr
ofi

le 
inf
or
ma

tio
n a

nd
 fe
ed
ba
ck
 to
 in
for

m 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 

a c
or
po

rat
e s

tra
teg

y a
nd

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 to
 id
en
tify

 an
d r

em
ov
e a

ny
 ba

rri
ers

 to
 ac

ce
ss
ing

 
se
rvi
ce
s; 
 

De
ve
lop

ing
 an

d i
mp

lem
en
tin
g d

ive
rsi
ty 
mo

nit
or
ing

 fo
r s
erv

ice
 ta
ke
 up

 an
d s

ati
sfa

cti
on
, a
cro

ss
 al
l g
ro
up
s i
de
nti

fie
d i
n t

he
 eq

ua
lity

 sc
he
me

, re
po

rti
ng
 th
is 
reg

ula
rly
 an

d t
ak
ing

 
ac
tio

n t
o a

dd
res

s a
ny
 ac

tua
l o
r p

erc
eiv

ed
 in
eq
ua
lity

 in
 se

rvi
ce
 pr

ov
isi
on
;  

Re
vis

itin
g a

nd
 up

da
tin

g t
he
 Eq

ua
lity

 Im
pa
ct 
As

se
ss
me

nts
 fo

r t
he
 st
rat

eg
ic 
ho
us
ing

 se
rvi
ce
 to

 en
su
re 
tha

t th
ey
 ar
e r
ob

us
t a
nd
 th
at 
an
y w

ea
kn
es
se
s a

re 
int
eg
rat

ed
 in
to 
the

 
cu
rre

nt 
se
rvi
ce
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t p
lan

; a
nd

  
 Re

vie
wi
ng
 co

mp
lia
nc
e w

ith
 th

e C
RE

 C
od

e o
f P

rac
tic
e f
or
 R
en
ted

 H
ou

sin
g a

nd
 fo

r E
mp

loy
me

nt 
an
d e

ns
ur
ing

 th
at 
ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 co

mp
lia
nc
e a

re 
inc

lud
ed
 in
 ex

ist
ing

 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t p
lan

s 
 Pr
op

os
ed
 O
utc

om
e -
   

 
Se
rvi
ce
s a

re 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e t
o a

ll p
art

s o
f th

e c
om

mu
nit

y a
nd

 ar
e d

eli
ve
red

 fa
irl
y t
o a

ll c
us
tom

ers
.  

  

Page 89



Ou
tco

me
s b

ein
g i
mp

ro
ve
d f
or
 lo
ca
l re

sid
en
ts 

  Ta
rg
et 
 co

mp
let
ion

 – 
 A
pr
il 2

00
9 

 CO
RP

OR
AT

E 
AC

TIO
NS

 
Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts 

R2
.1 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
Cu

sto
me

r A
cc
es
s S

ec
tio
n 

in 
Cu

sto
me

r F
irs
t S

tra
teg

y. 
Ap

ril 
20

09
 

Dr
aft

 av
ail
ab

le 
in 

Se
pte

mb
er 

for
 

CM
T 

HB
 

Po
lice

 
Co

un
ty 
Co

un
cil 

Po
ss
ibl
e 2

00
9/2

01
0 

bu
dg

et 
bid

s 
de

pe
nd

ing
 on

 re
su
lts
 

of 
str

ate
gy
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt.

 

Sta
rte

d w
ork

 on
 th

is 
in 

Oc
t 0

8, 
 de

lay
ed

 by
 C
PA

 

 
R2

.2 
En

su
re 

tha
t E

qu
ali
ty 
Mo

nit
ori
ng

 da
ta 

co
lle
cti
on
 sy

ste
m 

is 
ad

op
ted

 by
 al
l s
erv

ice
 ar

ea
s, 

tha
t d

ata
 is
 su

bm
itte

d t
o t

he
 C
om

mu
nit
y S

afe
ty 

An
aly

st 
on

 tim
e a

nd
 th

e f
ort

hc
om

ing
 re

po
rts

 ar
e 

ac
tio
ne

d b
y s

erv
ice

 de
pa

rtm
en

ts.
 

De
c 0

8 
Co

lle
cti
on
 of

 
me

an
ing

ful
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 to

 in
pu

t 
int
o a

cti
on
 

pla
nn

ing
 an

d 
po

licy
 m

ak
ing

.   

HB
,FS

 
Co

un
ty 
Co

un
cil 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Sa

fet
y 

An
aly

st.
 

Ex
ist
ing

. 
A h

igh
 le
ve
l w

ork
ing

 
gro

up
 in
clu

din
g D

eb
 

Po
ole

 ha
s b

ee
n s

et 
up

 
to 

es
tab

lish
 a 

loc
al 
da

ta 
sy
ste

m 
as
 at

 th
e 

mo
me

nt 
the

 da
ta 

co
lle
cte

d i
s c

om
pil
ed

 by
 

the
 C
om

mu
nit
y S

afe
ty 

An
aly

st.
 Se

rvi
ce
 

de
pa

rtm
en
ts 
ne

ed
 at

 
lea

st 
a y

ea
r’s
 w
ort

h o
f 

da
ta 

to 
en

ab
le 
the

m 
to 

loo
k f
or 

tre
nd
s. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

Page 90



R2
.3 

Co
ns
ult
 th

e c
om

mu
nit
y o

n t
he
 ex

ten
sio

n o
f 

Eq
ua

lity
 M

on
ito
rin

g (
da
ta 

co
lle
cti
on
) to

 ex
ten

d i
t 

to 
the

 ca
teg

ori
es
 of

 se
xu
al 
ori

en
tat

ion
 an

d 
rel

igi
on

 or
 be

lie
f. 

De
c 0

8 
Ma

kin
g c

on
tac

t 
wit

h r
ele

va
nt 

org
an

isa
tio
ns
 an

d 
co
mm

un
ity
 gr

ou
ps
. 

FS
 

 
Eq

ua
lity

 an
d D

ive
rsi
ty 

Of
fic
er.

 
E&

D 
off

ice
r is

 co
ns
ult
ing

 
wit

h c
om

mu
nit
y g

rou
ps
 

ab
ou

t e
xte

nd
ing

 th
e 

ex
ist
ing

 sy
ste

m 
to 

inc
lud

e s
ex
ua

l 
ori

en
tat

ion
 an

d r
eli
gio

n 
or 

be
lie
f a

nd
 th

is 
ha
s 

be
en

 ge
ne

ral
ly 
we

ll 
rec

eiv
ed

. 

 
R2

.4 
Re

vie
w 
co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 th

e C
RE

 C
od

e o
f 

Pr
ac
tic
e f

or 
Em

plo
ym

en
t 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
 

JP
 

 
 

Pr
og

res
s i
n i
nit
iai
tin
g a

 
se
lf a

ss
es
sm

en
t h

as
 

be
en

 de
lay

ed
 du

e t
o 

co
mp

eti
ng

 st
aff

 re
so
urc

e 
pri

ori
tie
s a

ss
oc
iat
ed

 w
ith
 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f s
ing

le 
sta

tus
. J
o P

itm
an

 is
 

inc
lud

ing
 in
 20

09
/10

 
Bu

sin
es
s P

lan
.   

 
 

ST
RA

TE
GI
C 
HO

US
IN
G 
AC

TIO
NS

 
 

Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts 

R2
.5 

Ar
ran

ge
 fo

r E
qu

ali
tie
s O

ffic
er 

to 
me

et 
wit

h 
tea

m 
an

d f
ac
ilita

te 
the

 re
vie

w 
an

d i
mp

rov
e o

f 
ex
ist
ing

 im
pa
ct 
as
se
ss
me

nts
 

Se
pt 

08
 

 
AG

 
 

Eq
ua

lity
 an

d D
ive

rsi
ty 

Of
fic
er 

an
d S

tra
teg

ic 
Ho

us
ing

 Te
am

. 
E+

D 
off

ice
r h

eld
 Im

pa
ct 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
tra

ini
ng

 fo
r 

tea
m 

an
d a

ss
ist
ed

 w
ith
 

sa
mp

le 
EIA

s. 
  o
n 2

6th
 

No
ve
mb

er 
20

08
. F

ion
a 

Sc
ott
 w
ill b

e d
ev
elo

pin
g 

a C
ou

nc
il w

ide
 3 

ye
ar 

rol
lin
g p

lan
 fo

r E
qu

ali
ty 

Im
pa

ct 
As

se
ss
me

nts
 

ba
se
d o

n t
he

 se
rvi
ce
 

se
cti
on

s 3
 ye

ars
 pl
an

 
wh

ich
 w
ill b

e c
he

ck
ed

 at
 

ev
ery

 m
ee

tin
g o

f th
e 

Page 91



Eq
ua

lity
 C
ha
mp

ion
s 

W
ork

ing
 G
rou

p. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R2
.6 

BD
C 
an

d B
DH

T t
o w

ork
 to

 re
vie

w 
co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 C
RE

 C
od

e o
f P

rac
tic
e f

or 
Re

nte
d H

ou
sin

g. 
 

De
c 0

8 
A s

ch
ed

ule
 of

 
me

eti
ng

s a
gre

ed
 

wit
h B

DH
T 

AC
, A

G 
 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g a
nd

 
BD

HT
 st
aff

 re
so
urc

es
. 

Re
vie

w 
me

eti
ng

s h
eld

 
wit

h T
Y o

f B
DH

T i
n D

ec
 

08
 an

d F
eb

 09
. S

elf
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
co
mp

let
ed

 
by
 BD

C 
an

d j
us
t 

aw
ait
ing

 fin
al 

co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 fro

m 
BD

HT
 

rel
ati
ng

 to
 th

eir
 La

nd
lor

d 
Se

rvi
ce
s.  

            KE
Y R

EC
OM

ME
ND

AT
IO
N 
R3

 – 
  M

AX
IM
ISE

 TH
E I
MP

AC
T O

F A
CT

IVI
TIE

S I
N 
TH

E P
RI
VA

TE
 SE

CT
OR

 B
Y:
  

Re
vis

itin
g i
nte

rn
al 
gu
ida

nc
e r
eg
ard

ing
 id
en
tifi

ca
tio
n o

f H
ou

se
s i
n M

ult
ipl
e O

cc
up

ati
on
 (H

MO
s) 
an
d d

ev
elo

pin
g a

nd
 im

ple
me

nti
ng
 re
gu
lar
 pr

og
ram

me
s o

f w
or
k i
n t

he
 di
str

ict
 to
 

ide
nti

fy 
the

 ty
pe
 an

d l
oc
ati
on
 of
 H
MO

s a
nd
 ta
rg
eti
ng
 in
sp
ec
tio
n a

nd
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tiv
ity
 ap

pr
op

ria
tel
y; 
an
d  

Page 92



De
ve
lop

ing
 an

 ov
era

rch
ing

 st
rat

eg
y t
o g

uid
e a

ll a
cti
vit
ies

 in
 th

e p
riv
ate

 se
cto

r w
hic

h c
lea

rly
 se

ts 
ou

t th
e e

xp
ec
ted

 co
mb

ine
d b

en
efi
ts 
of 
wo

rk 
in 
thi
s a

rea
 su

pp
or
ted

 by
 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 ta
rg
ets

 an
d m

on
ito
rin

g. 
 

 
 

Pr
op

os
ed
 O
utc

om
e -
   

Im
pr
ov
ed
 st
an
da
rd
s i
n t
he
 pr

iva
te 
se
cto

r; 
an
d  

Im
pr
ov
ed
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
n o

f th
e p

riv
ate

 se
cto

r t
o m

ee
tin

g h
ou
sin

g n
ee
d. 
 

 Ou
tco

me
s b

ein
g i
mp

ro
ve
d f
or
 lo
ca
l re

sid
en
ts 

 Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 – 
Ap

ril 
20
09
 

 CO
RP

OR
AT

E 
AC

TIO
NS

 
Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
ST

RA
TE

GI
C 
HO

US
IN
G 
AC

TIO
NS

 
Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts 

R3
.1 

Re
vie

w 
an

d R
ev
ise

 H
MO

 po
licy

 an
d t

ak
e 

rep
ort

 to
 Ex

ec
 C
ab

  
Re

po
rt J

an
 20

09
 

Up
da

ted
 H
MO

 
po

licy
, to

 be
 ta

ke
n 

to 
Ex

ec
uti
ve
 

Ca
bin

et 
wit

h 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 St
rat

eg
y. 

 

KS
F, 

LE
 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

.  
Re

vie
w 
co
mp

let
ed
 an

d 
po

licy
 co

rre
cte

d. 
Po

licy
 

is 
inc

orp
ora

ted
 in
 Pr

iva
te 

Se
cto

r H
ou

sin
g S

tra
teg

y 
tha

t h
as
 be

en
 w
ritt

en
 

an
d i
s b

ein
g r

ep
ort

ed
 to

 
Ex

ec
uti
ve
 C
ab

ine
t fo

r 
ap

pro
va
l o
n 2

9th
 Ap

ril.
 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d  

R3
.2 

De
ve
lop

 an
d d

iss
em

ina
te 

qu
es
tio
nn

air
e t

o 
kn
ow

n H
MO

’s,
 R
Sls

, L
ett

ing
 Ag

en
ts,
 C
ha

riti
es
 

Ap
ril 
20

08
 

HM
O 

Qu
es
tio
nn

air
es
 

se
nt 

ou
t to

 al
l 

Pr
iva

tel
y R

en
ted

 
Ac

co
mm

od
ati
on

 

LE
 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

. 
Ex

ist
ing

 pr
int
ing

 an
d 

sta
tio
na

ry 
bu

dg
et.

 

Fo
rm

ula
ted

 
qu

es
tio
nn

air
e a

nd
 se

nt 
ou

t. R
e-i
ss
ue

d d
ue

 to
 

po
or 

res
po

ns
e. 

No
w 

ha
ve
 30

 H
MO

s 
un

de
rgo

ing
 in
sp
ec
tio
n 

an
d p

rio
riti
se
d o

n b
as
is 

of 
ris
k. 
 

Page 93



 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R3
.3 

Up
da

te 
ex
ist
ing

 H
MO

 da
tab

as
e w

ith
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 re

ce
ive

d b
ac
k f
rom

 qu
es
tio
nn

air
es
. 

Ju
ne

 20
08

 
HM

O 
qu

es
tio
nn

air
es
 

rec
eiv

ed
, c
oll
ati
ng
 

an
d c

urr
en

tly
 

an
aly

sin
g d

ata
. 

LE
 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

. 
Po

or 
ini
tia
l re

sp
on

se
 

fro
m 

qu
es
tio
nn

air
es
 se

nt 
ou

t, h
av
e i
de

nti
fie
d 

lan
dlo

rds
 fro

m 
rev

en
ue

s 
de

pt,
 qu

es
tio
nn

air
e h

as
 

be
en

 re
se
nt 

an
d d

ata
 

ba
se
 be

ing
 up

da
ted

. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R3
.4 

De
ve
lop

 a 
ris
k r

eg
ist
er 

of 
HM

O 
pro

pe
rtie

s 
to 

pri
ori

tis
e a

cti
on

 
Ris

k R
eg

ist
er 

co
mp

let
ed

 in
 Ju

ly 
20

08
 

 
KS

L, 
LE

 
 

Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

. 
Ris

k r
eg

ist
er 

se
t u

p a
nd

 
on

go
ing

 pr
oc
es
s o

f 
po

pu
lat
ing

 w
ith
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 fro

m 
qu

es
tio
nn

air
es
 an

d 
ins

pe
cti
on

s. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R3
.5 

Co
mm

en
ce
 re

-ci
rcu

lat
ion

 of
 qu

es
tio
nn

air
e 

an
d c

om
me

nc
e a

nn
ua

l re
vie

w 
of 

HM
O 
reg

ist
er 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 
 

LE
 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

. 
Alr

ea
dy
 re

-ci
rcu

lat
ed

 in
 

ad
va
nc
e d

ue
 to

 po
or 

res
po

ns
e t

o i
nit
ial
 

qu
es
tio
nn

air
e. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R3
.6 

Re
vie

w 
an

d a
gre

e s
pe

cif
ica

tio
n f

or 
ho

us
ing

 
co
nd

itio
n s

urv
ey
 up

da
te 

(co
un

ty)
 ap

pro
ac
h 

Ju
ne

 08
 

Ag
ree

d, 
me

eti
ng

 to
 

be
 sc

he
du

le 
wit

h 
RB

C 
to 

as
sis

t w
ith
 

pro
jec

t. 

KS
F, 

LE
 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

. 
KS

F h
as
 as

sis
ted

 R
BC

 
in 
fin
ali
sin

g t
he

 
sp
ec
ific

ati
on
. N

ow
 in
 

pro
ce
ss
 of

 be
ing

 
co
mm

iss
ion

ed
. 

Page 94



 
Ac

hie
ve
d  

R3
.7 

BD
C 
to 

be
co
me

 pr
oa

cti
ve
 in
 at

ten
da

nc
e o

f 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r H

ou
sin

g O
ffic

er 
Gr
ou

p 
On

go
ing

 
Att

en
da

nc
e a

t 
ev
ery

  m
ee
tin
g 

KS
F, 

LE
 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r T

ea
m 

Le
ad

er,
 

KS
F N

ow
 at

ten
din

g 
me

eti
ng

s. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R3
.8 

Re
se
arc

hin
g g

oo
d p

rac
tic
e f

rom
 ot

he
r lo

ca
l 

au
tho

riti
es
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

r h
ou
sin

g t
ea

ms
 

Au
gu

st 
08

 
Co

mp
let
ion

 of
 

res
ea

rch
, h

ow
ev
er 

to 
ex
ten

d f
urt

he
r 

wit
h a

 fo
rm

al 
ap

pro
ac
h 

KS
F, 

LE
 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

. 
Inf

orm
ati
on

 ga
the

rin
g 

thr
ou

gh
 PS

HO
G 

me
eti
ng

s. 
Cu

rre
ntl
y 

wo
rki
ng

 on
 D
FG

 
tim

es
ca
les

 an
d w

ork
ing

 
wit

h W
yre

 Fo
res

t o
n H

IA 
an

d K
ick

 St
art

 Ex
ec
 

Ca
bin

et 
rep

ort
 fo

r c
ou

nty
 

us
e. 

Ch
air

ing
 KS

 
Ste

eri
ng

 G
rou

p a
nd
 

ha
ve
 in
ve
sti
ga

ted
 ot

he
r 

pro
du

cts
. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d a

nd
 on

go
ing

  
R3

.9 
Ho

us
ing

 St
rat

eg
y M

id 
Te

rm
 R
ev
iew

 
Co

ns
ult
ati
on

 Ev
en

t 
No

v 0
8 

Co
mp

let
e 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g 
Te

am
 

CA
B 

BD
HT

 
Ba

se
lin
e 

Su
pp

ort
ing

 Pe
op

le 

Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

. 
Ho

us
ing

 St
rat

eg
y 

Re
vie

w 
Ev

en
ts 

co
mp

let
ed

 on
 26

th
 N
ov
 

08
. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R3
.10

 C
oll
ate

 In
for

ma
tio
n f

rom
 co

ns
ult
ati
on

 an
d 

res
ea

rch
 

De
c 0

8 
Co

mp
let
e w

ith
 

res
ult
s h

igh
lig
hte

d 
wit

hin
 th

e P
riv
ate

 
Se

cto
r H

ou
sin

g 

KS
F, 

LE
 

 
Str

ate
gic

 H
ou
sin

g 
Te

am
 

Mi
d T

erm
 R
ev
iew

 
Su

mm
ary

 an
d 

Re
fre

sh
ed

 Ac
tio
n P

lan
 

co
mp

let
ed

 on
 3r

d  J
an
 09

 

Page 95



Str
ate

gy
. 

an
d r

ec
eiv

ed
 fin

al 
ap

pro
va
l b
y C

ab
ine

t in
 

Fe
b 0

9.  
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R3
.11

 Fi
rst

 dr
aft
 of

 Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r H

ou
sin

g 
Str

ate
gy
 

De
c 0

8 
 

KS
F 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

. 
Fo

rm
ula

ted
 fo

r re
po

rtin
g 

to 
Ap

ril 
Ex

ec
 C
ab

ine
t. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R3
.12

 Se
co
nd

 C
on

su
lta
tio
n o

f P
riv
ate

 Se
cto

r 
Ho

us
ing

 St
rat

eg
y 

Ja
n 0

9 
 Re

vis
ed

 to
 Ap

ril 
09

 
 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g 
Te

am
 

CA
B 

BD
HT

 
Ba

se
lin
e 

Su
pp

ort
ing

 Pe
op

le 

Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

. 
De

lay
ed

 du
e t

o 
co
mp

eti
ng

 w
ork

loa
d 

fro
m 

pri
va
te 

se
cto

r 
cu
sto

me
rs 

(1s
t  

pri
ori

ty)
To

 be
 ac

tio
ne

d 
Fe

b/M
arc

h 0
9 

 
R3

.13
 C
om

ple
tio
n o

f P
riv
ate

 Se
cto

r H
ou

sin
g 

Str
ate

gy
 

Fe
b 0

9 
 Re

vis
ed

 to
 Ap

ril 
09

 
Co

mp
let
ion

 of
 

Co
un

tyw
ide

 
co
nd

itio
n s

urv
ey
. 

KS
F 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

 
PS

 St
rat

eg
y w

ritt
en

 fo
r 

ap
pro

va
l a
t A

pri
l E

xe
c 

Ca
bin

et 
pri

or 
to 

de
lay

ed
 

de
live

ry 
of 

Co
un

tyw
ide

 
co
nd

itio
n s

urv
ey
. M

ay
 

the
ref

ore
 re

qu
ire

 fu
rth

er 
rev

isio
n a

fte
r s

urv
ey
 

co
mp

let
ed

. 

 
R3

.14
 C
ab

ine
t A

pp
rov

al 
for

 Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 St
rat

eg
y 

Ma
rch

 09
 

 Re
vis

ed
 to

 Ap
ril 
09

 
Co

mp
let
ion

 of
 

Co
un

tyw
ide

 
co
nd

itio
n s

urv
ey
. 

KS
F, 

AC
 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 te
am

 
Pr
oc
es
s d

ela
ye
d b

y 
co
mp

eti
ng

 ca
ll o

n s
taf

f 
res

ou
rce

s t
o m

ain
tai
n 

cu
sto

me
r fi

rst
 ap

pro
ac
h. 

Page 96



 
R3

.15
 D
ev
elo

p a
 m

od
el 
of 

sto
ck
 co

nd
itio

n 
inf
orm

ati
on
 th

at 
ca
n b

e u
pd

ate
d a

nd
 us

ed
 to

 
me

as
ure

 th
e i
mp

ac
t / 

ou
tco

me
s o

f a
cti
on
s 

Ap
ril 
09

 
 Re

vis
ed

 to
 Ju

ly 
09

 
  

Dis
cu
ss
 at

 PS
HO

G 
wa

ys
 to

 de
ve
lop

 a 
for

mu
la 
of 
sto

ck
 

fal
lin
g o

ut 
of 

sta
nd

ard
. 

KS
F 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 te
am

. 
To

 be
 fo

rm
ula

ted
 up

on
 

co
mp

let
ion

 of
 

Co
un

tyw
ide

 C
on

dit
ion

 
Su

rve
y. 
 

 
   KE

Y R
EC

OM
ME

ND
AT

IO
N 
R4

   
 MA

XIM
ISE

 TH
E D

EL
IVE

RY
 O
F A

FF
OR

DA
BL

E H
OU

SIN
G 
BY

:  
 En

su
rin

g t
ha
t s
uff

ici
en
t s
taf
f r
es
ou

rce
s a

re 
in 
pla

ce
 to
 pr

ior
itis

e t
he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
str

ate
gic

 pl
an
nin

g d
oc
um

en
ts 
lin
ke
d t

o d
eli
ve
ry 
of 
aff
or
da
ble

 ho
us
ing

;  
 A
ss
es
sin

g t
he
 sk

ills
 an

d c
ap
ac
ity
 w
ith

in 
the

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ho
us
ing

 an
d p

lan
nin

g t
ea
ms

 to
 en

su
re 
tha

t th
ey
 ar

e e
qu

ipp
ed
 to
 m
ax
im
ise

 op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r d

eli
ve
ry 
fol

low
ing

 th
e 

ou
tco

me
 of

 th
e r
ev
iew

 of
 th

e R
eg
ion

al 
Sp

ati
al 
St
rat

eg
y, 
pa
rti
cu
lar
ly 
in 
rel
ati
on
 to

 ne
go

tia
tio
n s

kil
ls;
  

 Fo
rm

ali
sin

g a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 
for

 co
nta

ct 
an
d l
iai
so
n w

ith
 de

ve
lop

ers
 an

d p
art

ne
rs;

 an
d  

 Fo
rm

ali
se
 jo
int
 w
or
kin

g a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 
be
tw
ee
n t
he
 st
rat

eg
ic 
ho
us
ing

 an
d p

lan
nin

g t
ea
ms

 to
 m
or
e p

ro
ac
tiv
ely

 co
ns
ide

r a
nd
 ad

dr
es
s r
eq
uir

ed
 fle

xib
ilit
y w

ith
in 
pip

eli
ne
 

sc
he
me

s. 
 

 Pr
op

os
ed
 O
utc

om
e -
   

 
• E

ffe
cti
ve
 gu

ida
nc
e, 
sk
ills

, to
ols

 an
d p

rac
tic
es
 ar

e i
n p

lac
e t

o s
up

po
rt d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
ne

w 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

us
ing

.  
  Ou

tco
me

s b
ein

g i
mp

ro
ve
d f
or
 lo
ca
l re

sid
en
ts 

   Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 – 
Se
pte

mb
er 
20
08
 

 CO
RP

OR
AT

E 
AC

TIO
NS

 
Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 97



ST
RA

TE
GI
C 
PL

AN
NI
NG

 A
CT

IO
NS

 
  

Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts 

R4
.1 

He
ad

 of
 Pl

an
nin

g &
 En

vir
on
me

nt 
to 

un
de

rta
ke
 a 

rev
iew

 of
 D
ep

art
me

nt 
to 

en
su
re 

op
era

tio
na

l e
ffic

ien
cy
 an

d a
bil
ity
 to
 de

live
r c

os
t 

eff
ec
tiv
e s

erv
ice

s. 

Ap
ril 
09

 
Re

po
rt t

o C
MT

 
Se

pt 
08

 
Ca

bin
et 

ap
pro

va
l 

Oc
t 0

9 

DH
 

No
ne

 
Ex

ist
ing

 
Co

ns
ult
ati
on

 an
d 

res
tru

ctu
rin

g c
om

ple
ted

. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R4
.2 

HO
S a

nd
 M

an
ag

ers
 to

 en
su
re 

su
ffic

ien
t 

sk
ills

 ex
ist
 to

 ca
rry

 ou
t n

eg
oti
ati
on
s w

ith
 re

ga
rd 

to 
ma

jor
 pl
an

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
ns
, in

clu
din

g 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

us
ing

 sc
he
me

s. 

An
nu

all
y w

ith
 6 

mo
nth

 
rev

iew
 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h C

ou
nc
il P

oli
cy
. 

Un
de

rta
ke
 

pe
rso

na
l 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Re
vie

ws
 

ide
nti
fyi
ng

 an
d 

se
ttin

g o
ut 

ind
ivid

ua
l tr

ain
ing

 
ne

ed
s. 

He
ad

 of
 Pl

an
nin

g &
 

En
vir
on

me
nt.

 
Ar
ea

 Pl
an

nin
g 

Ma
na

ge
rs.

 
Str

ate
gic

 Pl
an

nin
g 

Ma
na

ge
r. 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g 
Ma

na
ge

r. 

No
ne

 
Ex

ist
ing

 
Ma

jor
 ho

us
ing

 
ap

pli
ca
tio
ns
 ar

e 
cu
rre

ntl
y d

ea
lt w

ith
 by

 
the

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

nin
g 

Ma
na

ge
rs.

 H
ow

ev
er 

all
 

ca
se
 of

fic
ers

 ar
e a

cti
ve
ly 

en
co
ura

ge
d t

o a
tta

in 
me

mb
ers

hip
 of

 th
e 

Ro
ya
l T

ow
n P

lan
nin

g 
Ins

titu
te 

wh
ich

 en
su
res

 a 
ba

se
lin
e o

f c
om

pe
ten

cy
. 

In 
ad

dit
ion

 ca
se
 of

fic
ers

 
ha

ve
 un

de
rta

ke
n 

sp
ec
ific

 tra
ini
ng

 su
ch
 as

 
ap

pe
ari

ng
 at

 H
ea

rin
g 

ap
pe

als
 tra

ini
ng
 w
hic

h 
pro

vid
es
 a 

ste
pp

ing
 

sto
ne

 ap
pro

ac
h t

o g
ain

 
ex
pe

rie
nc
e. 

Th
e 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Co
ntr

ol 
se
cti
on

 ha
s a

lso
 

pro
po

se
d a

 re
str

uc
tur

e 
to 

be
 im

ple
me

nte
d 

01
/04

/09
 th

at 
pro

vid
es
 a 

ne
w 
po

st 
of 

Pr
inc

ipa
l 

Pla
nn

ing
 O
ffic

er 
wh

ich
 

wil
l p
rov

ide
 an

 ad
dit
ion

al 
Se

nio
r p

os
t a

nd
 

str
en

gth
en

 th
e u

nit
s 

ab
ility

 to
 de

al 
wit

h 
co
mp

lica
ted

 ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

su
ch
 as

 ho
us
ing

 
pro

po
sa
ls.
 

Page 98



 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R4
.3 

Ar
ran

ge
 m

on
thl
y m

ee
tin
gs
 of

 st
rat

eg
ic 

ho
us
ing

 an
d p

lan
nin

g o
ffic

ers
 to

  d
isc

us
s 

str
ate

gic
 ho

us
ing

/pl
an

nin
g i
ss
ue
s t
o p

rom
ote

 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

us
ing

 

Se
pt 

08
 

Mo
nth

ly 
me

tin
g t

o 
be

 se
t o

n s
am

e 
da

y a
s R

SL
 

Pr
inc

ipl
e P

ref
err

ed
 

pa
rtn

er 
me

eti
ng
s 

AC
 / M

D 
No

ne
 

Ex
ist
ing

 
Mo

nth
ly 
me

eti
ng

s n
ow

 
arr

an
ge

d b
efo

re 
str

ate
gic

 ho
us
ing

 R
SL

 
pre

fer
red

 pa
rtn

er 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 gr

ou
p t

ak
es
 

pla
ce
 ea

ch
 m

on
th.

 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R4
.4 
W
ith
in 
the

 de
ve
lop

ing
 SP

D 
for

 af
for

da
ble

 
ho

us
ing

 en
su
re 

tha
t c
lea

r o
ffic

er 
co
nta

cts
 ar

e 
inc

lud
ed

 an
d p

roc
ed

ure
 fo

r d
ev
elo

pe
rs 

to 
ins

tig
ate

 sc
he
me

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d p

re 
pla

nn
ing

 
en

qu
irie

s a
nd

 m
ee

tin
gs
. 

De
c 0

8 
 Re

vis
ed

 ta
rge

t –
 Ju

ly 
09

 

 
MD

 
 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g a
nd

 
Pla

nn
ing

 O
ffic

ers
 

tim
e. 

AC
 an

d A
F c

urr
en

tly
 

wo
rki
ng

 to
 am

alg
am

ate
 

Dr
aft

 SP
D 
an

d C
ou

nty
 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

SP
D.
  

 Aff
ord

ab
le 
Ho

us
ing

 SP
D 

de
lay

ed
 du

e t
o c

ha
ng

e 
In 

na
tio
na

l p
lan

nin
g 

gu
ida

nc
e, 

wo
rk 

on
go

ing
 

to 
lin
k S

PD
 to

 
Br
om

sg
rov

e C
ore

 
Str

ate
gy
 se

e A
R6

.1 
be

low
  

ST
RA

TE
GI
C 
HO

US
IN
G 
AC

TIO
NS

 
Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts 

R4
.5 

Sp
ec
ific

 sc
he
me

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

me
eti
ng

s t
o 

be
 fo

rm
ali
se
d a

nd
 m

inu
ted

 
Ju
ne

 08
 

 
JB

 
 

 
No

w 
op

era
tio
na

l. 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

Page 99



 KE
Y R

EC
OM

ME
ND

AT
IO
N 
R5

 – 
 

 IM
PR

OV
IN
G 
VA

LU
E F

OR
 M
ON

EY
 B
Y:
  

En
su
rin

g t
ha
t s
pe
nd
ing

 pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 ag

ain
st 
all
oc
ate

d c
ap
ita
l b
ud

ge
ts 
for

 gr
an
ts 
is 
mo

re 
clo

se
ly 
mo

nit
or
ed
 an

d m
ax
im
ise

d a
nd
 th

at 
rep

or
tin
g a

rra
ng

em
en
ts 
all
ow

 fo
r p

ro
mp

t 
ac
tio

n t
o m

itig
ate

 an
y u

nd
er 
sp
en
ds
;  

De
ve
lop

ing
 ba

se
lin
e c

os
t, p

erf
or
ma

nc
e, 
an
d s

ati
sfa

cti
on
 an

aly
sis

 to
 de

ter
mi
ne
 va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 of

 th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
ho

us
ing

 se
rvi
ce
 an

d a
ny
 se

rvi
ce
s p

ro
vid

ed
 un

de
r a
gr
ee
me

nt,
 

su
bje

ct 
to 

reg
ula

r r
ev
iew

;  
As

se
ss
ing

 th
e e

ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of
 in
ter

na
l a
nd
 ex

ter
na
l fu

nd
ing

 an
d i
nv
es
tm

en
t in

 th
e s

erv
ice

, a
nd
 th

e i
mp

ac
t o
f d
iffe

ren
t r
es
ou

rce
 st
rea

ms
, to

 in
for

m 
a s

tra
teg

y f
or
 m
ax
im
isi
ng
 

the
 im

pa
ct 
of 
fut

ur
e f
un
din

g; 
an
d  

Im
ple

me
nti

ng
 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 to

 en
su
re 
tha

t th
e i
mp

ac
t o

f in
ve
stm

en
t in

 le
arn

ing
, tr

ain
ing

 an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en
t is

 as
se
ss
ed
 an

d m
ee
ts 
sta

ted
 ob

jec
tiv
es
.  

 Pr
op

os
ed
 O
utc

om
e -
   

 
• R

es
ou

rce
s a

re 
ma

xim
ise

d; 
an
d  

 
• Im

pr
ov
ed
 in
for

ma
tio
n o

n w
hic

h t
o b

as
e d

ec
isi
on

s a
nd
 pl
an
ne
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nts
.  

  Ou
tco

me
s b

ein
g i
mp

ro
ve
d f
or
 lo
ca
l re

sid
en
ts 

  Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 – 
Ap

ril 
20
09
 

CO
RP

OR
AT

E 
AC

TIO
NS

 
Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts 

R5
.1 

Ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e g
rou

p e
sta

bli
sh
ed

 to
 

mo
nit
or 

on
 qu

art
erl

y b
as
is 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 ag

ain
st 

bu
dg

et.
  

Mo
nth

ly 
ca
pit
al 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 re

po
rts

 pr
ep

are
d f

or 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 bu

dg
et 

ho
lde

rs.
 D
es
ign

ate
d 

ac
co
un

tan
t fo

r H
ou

sin
g t

o a
dd

res
s f
ina

nc
ial
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
wit

h t
ea
m 

 

Ma
y 0

8 
To

 un
de

rta
ke
 

me
eti
ng

s o
n a

 
qu

art
erl

y b
as
is 
 

JL
P, 

TB
 

Dis
cu
ss
ion

s t
o b

e 
he

ld 
wit

h r
ele

va
nt 

pa
rtn

ers
 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
  

pa
ym

en
t p

rof
ile
 

Fin
an

cia
l s
erv

ice
s  

Mo
nth

ly 
me

eti
ng

 w
ith
 

KR
, H

W
 an

d T
on

y 
Be

irn
e t

o r
ev
iew

 
pro

gra
mm

ed
 

ex
pe

nd
itu
re 

wit
hin

 ye
ar.

 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R5
.2 

To
 co

mp
are

 co
sts

 as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th

e 
pro

vis
ion

 of
 th

e s
tra

teg
ic 
ho

us
ing

 se
rvi
ce
 to

 
co
sts

 fro
m 

ne
igh

bo
uri

ng
 di
str

ict
 C
ou

nc
ils.

 
De

c 0
8 

 Ag
ree

d t
o c

om
me

nc
e 

6 m
on

ths
 af

ter
 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f 
Ch

oic
e B

as
ed

 

To
 es

tab
lish

 
ba

se
lin
e c

os
ts 
of 

se
rvi
ce
 pr

ov
isio

n 
AC

, J
LP

 
Dis

cu
ss
ion

s w
ith
 

ne
igh

bo
uri

ng
 se

rvi
ce
 

pro
vid

ers
 fo

r c
os
t 

co
mp

ari
so
n 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g, 
Fin

an
cia

l S
erv

ice
s. 

 Bid
 fo

r c
on
su
lta
nts

 to
 

co
mp

let
e t

he
 w
ork

 
rej

ec
ted

 in
 09

/10
 

6 m
on

th 
rev

iew
 pl
an

ne
d 

for
 Ju

ne
 09

 on
wa

rds
 

wh
ich

 w
ill e

sta
bli
sh
 co

st 
of 

se
rvi
ce
.  C

on
tac

t 
Ta

mw
ort

h b
y e

nd
 of

 Ap
r 

to 
as
k f
or 

fra
me

wo
rk 

of 

Page 100



Le
ttin

gs
. 

 Re
vis

ed
 Ta

rge
t J
un

e 
09

 on
wa

rds
  

bid
din

g r
ou

nd
 

pro
ce
ss
.  

be
nc
hm

ark
ing

.  B
y J

un
e 

ag
ree

 br
ea

kd
ow

n o
f 

se
rvi
ce
 qu

es
tio
ns
 fo

r 
oth

er 
LA

.  
 Bid

 su
bm

itte
d f

or 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
s f
un

din
g t

o 
co
mp

let
e w

ork
 re

fus
ed
. 

 
R5

.3 
To

 un
de

rta
ke
 cu

sto
me

r s
urv

ey
 to

 de
ter

mi
ne

 
lev

els
 of

 sa
tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 th

e s
erv

ice
 ( i

nc
lud

ing
 

ex
ter

na
lly 

pro
vid

ed
 se

rvi
ce
s) 

Ma
r 0

9 
To

 un
de

rta
ke
 

su
rve

y 
HB

 
 

 
Ov

era
ll s

ati
sfa

cti
on

 w
ill 

be
 m

ea
su
red

 us
ing

 
cu
rre

nt 
su
ite
 of

 su
rve

ys
 

for
 al
l s
erv

ice
s w

ith
in 
SH

 

 
R5

.4 
Un

de
rta

ke
 fu

ll r
ev
iew

 of
 pr

oje
cts

 
im
ple

me
nte

d t
o e

ns
ure

 m
ax
im
um

 im
pa
ct 
of 

inv
es
tm

en
t in

 de
live

ry 
of 

se
rvi
ce
 to

 th
e 

cu
sto

me
rs 

Ma
rch

 09
 

To
 un

de
rta

ke
 

rev
iew

 of
 fu

nd
ing

 
str

ea
ms

 
JL
P,A

C 
 

 
Pr
oje

ct 
Ini
tia
tio
n 

Do
cu
me

nts
 co

mp
let
ed

. 

 
ST

RA
TE

GI
C 
HO

US
IN
G 
AC

TIO
NS

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

R5
.5 

Mo
nth

ly 
rep

ort
s u

po
n s

pe
nd
 ag

ain
st 
DF

G 
an

d D
isa

ble
d F

ac
ility

 G
ran

t b
ud

ge
t to

 be
 m

ad
e 

av
ail
ab

le 
to 

SH
 M

an
ag

er,
 fo

r o
nw

ard
 re

po
rtin

g t
o 

De
pa

rtm
en
tal
 M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea
m 

an
d C

MT
. 

Au
gu

st 
20

08
 

On
-go

ing
 

KS
F 

 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r 

Ho
us
ing

 Te
am

 
No

w 
Op

era
tio
na

l 
Ne

w 
PIs

 de
ve
lop

ed
 an

d 
rep

ort
ed

 qu
art

erl
y t
o 

PM
B. 

 R
ep

ort
s o

n s
pe

nd
 

to 
be

 pa
ss
ed
 to

 AC
 

 
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R5
.6 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou

sin
g/P

lan
nin

g T
ea

m 
Gr

ou
p 

an
d R

SL
 Pr

inc
ipa

l P
ref

err
ed

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 gr
ou

p 
to 

co
ns
ide

r b
es
t u

se
 of

 LA
 so

cia
l h
ou

sin
g 

Ju
ne

 20
08

 
 

AC
 / D

H 
/ P

S 
BD

HT
 

W
es
t M

erc
ia 
Ho

us
ing

 
Gr

ou
p 

Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g 
Te

am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old

ers
 fo

r 
Co

mp
let
ed

 an
d 

rev
iew

ed
 on

 m
on
thl
y 

ba
sis

 th
rou

gh
 SH

 

Page 101



gra
nt/

joi
nt 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 to

 m
ax
im
ise

 le
ve
rin

g i
n 

ex
ter

na
l fu

nd
ing

. 
Co

un
ty 
Co

un
cil 

Es
tat

es
 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d 
Str

ate
gic

 H
ou
sin

g 
BD

HT
 an

d W
 M

erc
ia.
 

Pr
efe

rre
d R

SL
 Pa

rtn
er 

Gr
ou

p.  
Ac

hie
ve
d 

R5
.7 

Ma
xim

ise
 co

nti
nu

ed
 go

v’t
 fu

nd
ing

 fo
r 

ho
me

les
sn
es
s, 
Su

pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le,
 D
FG

s a
nd
 

pri
va
te 

se
cto

r re
ne

wa
l b
y s

up
po

rtin
g t

he
 co

lla
tio
n 

of 
da

ta 
to 

ba
ck
 up

 ne
ed
s i
n o

rde
r to

 m
ax
im
ise

 
co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 th

rou
gh

 LA
A 

On
go

ing
 

 
AC

/ P
S /

 AG
 

SH
MA

 D
C 
an

d R
SL

 
pa

rtn
ers

 
Ex

ist
ing

 pl
us
 SH

MA
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 G
rou

p. 
On

go
ing

  

 
 AC

TIO
NS

 R
EM

AIN
IN
G 
FR

OM
 PR

EV
IO
US

 H
OU

SIN
G 
IN
SP

EC
TIO

N 
RE

PO
RT

 TH
AT

 R
EQ

UI
RE

 O
NG

OI
NG

 M
ON

ITO
RI
NG

. 
             Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 – 
Ma

rch
 20

09
.  

CO
RP

OR
AT

E 
AC

TIO
NS

 
Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
ST

RA
TE

GI
C 
HO

US
IN
G 
AC

TIO
NS

 
Ta
rg
et 
Co

mp
let
ion

 
Da

te 
Mi
les

ton
e 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Pa
rtn

er 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on

 
Inv

olv
ed
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Mo
nit
or
ing

 St
atu

s a
nd
 

co
mm

en
ts 

AR
1. 

HU
B t

o r
ec
ord

 di
ve
rsi
ty 
of 

cu
sto

me
rs 

 
Inc

lus
ive

 Eq
ua

litie
s 

Sc
he
me

 in
clu

de
s 

co
mm

itm
en

ts 
to 

mo
nit
or 

se
rvi
ce
 

Co
rpo

rat
e d

ata
 

co
lla
tio
n i
n r

es
pe

ct 
of 

Div
ers

ity
 an

d 
eff

ec
tiv
e 

Fio
na

 Sc
ott

 
All

 H
ea

ds
 of

 Se
rvi
ce
 

an
d t

he
ir d

ep
art

me
nts

 
Eq

ua
litie

s A
ss
ist
an

t 
Ho

me
les

sn
es
s A

dv
ice

 
no

w 
be

ing
 m

on
ito
red

 fo
r 

eth
nic

 ac
ce
ss
 by

 C
AB

.  
 

Page 102



de
live

ry 
on

 et
hn

ic 
ori

gin
 an

d d
isa

bil
ity
 

bu
t n

ot 
for

 th
e o

the
r 

fou
r s

tra
nd

s. 

mo
nit
ori

ng
 of

 
sa
me

. 
Hu

b o
nly

 pr
ov
ide

s 
inf
orm

ati
on
 re

qu
ire

d b
y 

ba
ck
 O
ffic

e s
erv

ice
 

de
pa

rtm
en
ts 
– n

o 
Eq

ua
lity

 an
d D

ive
rsi
ty 

da
ta 

is 
cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g 

co
lle
cte

d. 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f 
se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 

eq
ua

lity
 

mo
nit
ori

ng
 is
 a 

lon
g t

erm
 

pla
n. 

 Th
e s

ch
em

e i
s u

nd
er 

rev
iew

 an
d w

ill b
e 

up
da

ted
 to

 ta
ke
 ac

co
un

t 
of 

ch
an

ge
s t
ha

t h
av
e 

tak
en

 pl
ac
e s

inc
e 

sc
he
me

 fir
st 
pu

bli
sh
ed

. 
i.e
. to

 co
ve
r R

ac
e, 

Ge
nd

er,
 ag

e a
nd

 
dis

ab
ility

. 

Am
be

r 
 Th

ere
 is
 no

 ch
an

ge
 to

 
the

 In
clu

siv
e E

qu
ali
tie
s 

Sc
he
me

 as
 th

is 
is 
no

t 
du

e t
o b

e r
ep

ub
lish

ed
 

un
til 
the

 en
d o

f   
   

De
ce
mb

er 
20

09
. 

Ho
we

ve
r, i

t w
ill b

e 
up

da
ted

 to
 re

fle
ct 

ch
an

ge
s i
n a

ll r
es
pe
cts

 
tha

t h
av
e o

cc
urr

ed
 si
nc
e 

it w
as
 fir

st 
pu

bli
sh
ed

 in
 

20
06

. 
 

AR
2. 

Re
ce
ive

 an
d a

na
lys

e d
ive

rsi
ty 
bre

ak
do

wn
 

(qu
art

erl
y) 

of 
cu
sto

me
rs 

ac
ce
ss
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 

ho
us
ing

 se
rvi
ce
s t
hro

ug
h: 

BD
HT

, C
AB

, W
EE

AC
, 

NW
C&

RA
 

Oc
t 0

6 
Me

eti
ng

s w
ith
 

pa
rtn

er 
ag

en
cie

s 
to 

ag
ree

 re
po

rtin
g 

for
ma

t. 

AG
 

OT
’s 

BD
HT

 
CA

B 
NW

C&
RA

 
WE

EA
C 

Ex
ist
ing

 st
aff

 
No

w 
be

ing
 pr

ov
ide

d b
y 

CA
B R

e H
ou

sin
g A

dv
ice

 
an

d h
om

ele
ss
ne

ss
 

pre
ve
nti
on

 se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 

BD
HT

 on
 W

ait
ing

 Li
st 

Page 103



Ba
se
me

nt 
an

d l
ett

ing
s. 
Ca

re 
an

d 
Re

pa
ir p

rov
ide

 
inf
orm

ati
on
.  W

ee
ac
 ar

e 
no

t y
et 

tak
ing

 th
is 

inf
orm

ati
on
, K

SF
 to

 
dis

cu
ss
 w
ith
 W

EE
AC

 
ho

w 
the

y c
an

 st
art

 
co
lle
cti
ng
. 

Am
be

r 
R6

.1 
Co

mp
let
e c

on
su
lta
tio
n a

nd
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n 

of 
a S

up
ple

me
nta

ry 
Pla

nn
ing

 D
oc
um

en
t o

n 
Aff

ord
ab

le 
Ho

us
ing

 to
 en

ab
le 
me

mb
ers

 to
 

be
co
me

 m
ore

 ac
tiv
ely

 in
vo
lve

d. 

Fe
b 0

7 
 Re

vis
ed

 to
 Ju

ly 
20

08
 

 Re
-S
ch
ed

ule
d t

o 
Oc

tob
er 

20
09

 

 
DH

 
Str

ate
gic

 Pl
an

nin
g 

Te
am

 
Sta

ff r
ec
rui

tm
en

t 
iss

ue
s 

Th
e A

ffo
rda

ble
 H
ou

sin
g 

SP
D 
ha
s b

ee
n d

ela
ye
d 

du
e t

o a
 ch

an
ge

 in
 

na
tio
na

l p
oli
cy
 it 
wa

s 
ho

pe
d t

he
 SP

D 
co
uld

 be
 

lin
ke
d t

o r
eg

ion
al 
po

licy
 

as
 ou

tlin
ed

 in
 D
raf

t 
PP

S1
2, 

alt
ho

ug
h t

his
 

ch
an

ge
 w
as
 ex

clu
de

d i
n 

the
 fin

al 
ve
rsi
on
 of

 
PP

S1
2. 

 Th
e S

PD
 w
ill n

ow
 be

 
lin
ke
d t

o t
he

 C
ore

 
Str

ate
gy
 w
hic

h i
s 

cu
rre

ntl
y b

e c
on

su
lte
d 

on
, w

ork
 is
 ab

ou
t to

 
co
mm

en
ce
 on

 up
da

tin
g 

the
 dr

aft
 SP

D 
to 

all
ow

 it 
to 

be
 ad

op
ted

 al
on

gs
ide

 
the

 co
re 

str
ate

gy
. 

  Th
e H

ou
sin

g S
tra

teg
y 

Ste
eri

ng
 G
rou

p i
s 

de
ve
lop

ing
 af

for
da

ble
 

ho
us
ing

 st
an

da
rds

 in
 

pre
pa

rat
ion

 fo
r 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
AH

 
SP

D.
 

 Str
ate

gic
 H
ou
sin

g 

Page 104



Ma
na

ge
r c

ha
irs
 C
ou

nty
 

En
ab

lin
g G

rou
p –

 H
eld

 
sp
ec
ial
 m

ee
tin
g o

n 3
0th
 

Oc
tob

er 
to 

ag
ree

 
co
un

tyw
ide

 AH
 el
em

en
ts 

for
 SP

D.
  

 

Re
d 

 
AR

4. 
En

ha
nc
e t

he
 R
SL

 pr
op

ert
y d

ata
ba

se
 an

d 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 of

 no
mi
na

tio
n r

igh
ts 
an
d n

eg
oti
ate

 
hig

he
r le

ve
ls 
wh

ere
 po

ss
ibl
e. 

   
Oc

tob
er 

20
06

 
Im

pro
ve
d f

ee
db

ac
k 

inf
orm

ati
on
 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e H
IP 

inf
orm

ati
on
 

ga
the

rin
g p

roc
es
s. 
 

AG
 

All
 R
SL

s 
Ex

ist
ing

 St
aff

 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 no

w 
in 

op
era

tio
n w

ith
 R
SL

s 
Am

be
r  

Ac
hie

ve
d 

        

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

17TH MARCH 2009    
 
 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT HOUSING TRUST- ANNUAL MONITORING 
REPORT 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Peter Whittaker 
Responsible Head of Service David Hammond 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report is the annual monitoring report that sets out the progress that 

Bromsgrove District Housing Trust has made since Large Scale Voluntary 
Transfer took place in March 2004. The report monitors three key areas of 
performance: 

  
• Progress made in the past twelve months on the outstanding promises 

to tenants made at the time of transfer (29 March 04). 
• BDHT’s contribution to meeting the four key priorities in the Council’s 

Housing Strategy 2006-11. 
• BDHT’s performance in managing homelessness and other services for 

the Council under the Housing Agency Agreement. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That the content of the report be noted. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This report is the third annual report to be made to members and covers the 

three key areas of BDHT’s performance referred to in 1.1 above. These are 
dealt with in turn in the following sections of the report and further detail is 
set out in the Appendices. 

  
 
 
4.     PROGRESS BY BDHT AGAINST PROMISES MADE TO TENANTS 

PRIOR TO LARGE SCALE VOLUNTARY TRANSFER 
 
4.1 Progress against the commitments made to tenants at the time of Large 

Scale Voluntary Transfer was has been previously reported in 2006 and 
2007.  Appendix 1 indicates the ongoing progress that has been made 

Agenda Item 8

Page 107



 

against the timescales original set out in the transfer consultation 
documentation.  

 
4.2  BDHT have made good progress against these promises. 
 
4.3 Appendix 1 sets out progress against the promises made: 
 

• In the left hand column the service or property Improvement and 
timescale within which completion was promised. 

 
• Right Hand column – progress made during 2007/8. 

 
 
  
5. THE CONTRIBUTION BEING MADE BY BDHT IN ASSISTING THE 

COUNCIL TO MEET THE FOUR KEY PRIORITIES SET OUT IN THE 
COUNCIL’S HOUSING STRATEGY 2006-2011 

 
5.1 Since stock transfer took place, the Council has worked closely with BDHT 

and other partner agencies in the District including Baseline and CAB to 
ensure that an efficient and effective service is provided to homeless clients 
and those threatened with homelessness. Equally important has been the 
development of joint partnership working with BDHT to help achieve the 
Council’s other three Strategic housing priorities which include delivering 
affordable housing, enabling vulnerable client groups to live independently 
and improving the standard and availability of private sector housing as a 
viable alternative to social housing options. 

 
5.2 Over recent years there have been a number of groups and forums set up 

where the Council’s Strategic Housing Officers work in partnership with 
BDHT and others. These include 

 
• The Homelessness Strategy Steering Group - a multi agency group 

overseeing the delivery of the Homelessness Strategy Action plan and 
taking a holistic to developing a wide range of support and prevention 
services for homeless clients. 

 
• Hostel Decommissioning/Remodelling of Temporary Accommodation 

Working Group – A task and finish group formed to develop a strategy 
for the improving the quality of temporary accommodation for homeless 
clients, increasing community sustainability and improving the 
experience of those who become homeless. This group has achieved its 
objective and has recently been dissolved. 

 
• Gilbert Court Extra Care Housing Scheme - working with BDHT to 

provide an additional 27 units of accommodation for rent/shared 
ownership to address the need for flexible accommodation that meets 
the increasing support needs of the District’s ageing population and 

Page 108



 

provide enhanced services that promotes the health and well being of 
residents.  

 
• RSL Liaison Group - officers work closely with the Council’s partner 

RSLs and in particular BDHT to meet the Council’s Strategic target to 
deliver 400 new properties over the 5 years of the Councils Housing 
Strategy. 

 
• Frontline Housing Liaison Group – were partner agencies responsible for 

the delivery of frontline services met to review service delivery and 
implement improvements to services. 

 
• Charford Regeneration Group – Formulated and led by BDHT, the group 

includes BDC officers, tenants and other organisations aimed at 
improving and regenerating the Austin Road part of the Charford Estate. 
Work is due to start on site in August 08 

 
• Support providers group which works in partnership to ensure that 

clients can be referred to other agencies that have capacity rather than 
remaining on a waiting list. 

 
 

In November last year, the Strategic Housing and Principal RSL Partner 
Consultation Group was formed. The Group includes BDHT and West 
Mercia Housing Group CEOs and Development Officers in monthly strategic 
planning meetings with Strategic Housing and Planning Portfolio Holders, 
The Corporate Director, Head of Planning & Environment and the Strategic 
Housing Manager. The Group has continued to meet monthly and has been 
well supported by officers and embers. A representative of the County 
Council Estates Office now also attends to enable an ongoing review of the 
availability and use of County land for affordable housing.  The formulation 
of this group has greatly assisted the understanding of the housing priorities 
of each of the organisations involved and promoted joined up working to 
achieve positive outcomes and overcome obstacles that have previously 
hampered the delivery of affordable housing in the district.      

 
 
5.3 The table attached at Appendix 2 sets out examples of how BDHT 

continues to actively work in partnership to support the Council’s Housing 
Strategy. In particular, over the past 12 months, a number of major steps 
forward have been taken, most notably: 

 
• Progress in closing three of the Council’s hostels without any impact 

upon the use of Bed and Breakfast accommodation. 
• Extended options appraisal and homelessness prevention services 

being provided when applicants first present as homeless. 
• Support to Strategic Housing Staff in managing Private tenancy 

(Rent Deposit Scheme) and Spend To Save schemes to both 

Page 109



 

prevent homelessness and provide access to privately let 
accommodation. 

• Achieving the reduction in numbers of people residing in temporary 
accommodation and enabling the Council to achieve Government 
targets two years ahead of schedule. 

• Close working with Strategic Housing Officers upon the planning and 
implementation of Choice Based Lettings. 

• Increasing delivery of affordable housing units in the district. 
• Researching models of housing for older people and tackling under 

occupancy. 
 
 
6.0 PERFORMANCE IN MANAGING HOMELESSNESS AND HOUSING 

SERVICES FOR THE COUNCIL  
      
  6.1  BDHT provides a service to the homeless on behalf of the Council under a 

Service Level Agreement. This is encompassed in the Housing Agency 
Agreement that has been in place since LSVT and which covers the 
Council’s homelessness duty, maintenance of the housing register and 
management of the remaining Council Hostel, the dispersed temporary  
accommodation (that has replaced the three hostels that have been 
closed) and the management of the Traveller Caravan site at Wythall. 

 
6.2 The performance of BDHT under the Housing Agency Agreement is key to 

delivery of one of the most important services provided by the Council 
namely the duty towards clients who are homeless or threatened with 
homelessness. In order to monitor performance, a range of local PIs have 
been developed (local and national). Monthly finance meetings and 
quarterly homeless performance meetings are held between the Council’s 
Strategic Housing Performance Officer and BDHT officers. The Strategic 
Housing Manager also meets on a monthly basis with the BDHT Director 
of Operations to monitor ongoing improvement in the provision of services 
and the relationship between staff of the respective organisations. 

 
6.3 Overview of performance during 2007/8 - Performance during the 

2007/8 period has been consistently high following the difficulties that 
arisen during 2006/7 that had impacted upon the level of service that had 
been provided during that year.   

 
6.4 Staff changes made at BDHT in March 2007 enabled much closer 

partnership working to take place with the Council’s Strategic Housing 
staff in resolving many of the concerns that had been raised in the 2006 
Audit Commission Inspection report about the fragmentation of the 
service. A transformation has taken place in the way homeless 
approaches are now dealt with through the implementation of Housing 
Options Interviews at the first point of contact with a client who is 
homeless or threatened with homelessness. This has enabled the BDHT 
service to make a stepped change from simply processing homeless 
applications to being more actively involved in preventing homelessness. 

Page 110



 

The change has allowed us to review of the service provided by CAB and 
allowed a subsequent reduction in cost to BDC as a result of it now only 
being necessary to refer cases requiring specialist assistance to CAB. As 
a result, CAB has been able to maximise their area of expertise, such as 
debt advice & negotiation with landlords, towards those clients who will 
most benefit. Clients are now accessing a more focused, streamlined and 
appropriate service.  

 
6.5      During 2007/8 BDHT successfully kept all client groups from using B & B 

thus maintaining the target of zero use of B & B for 16-17 yrs old which we 
are required to achieve by 2010. 

 
6.6      Furthermore, the appointment of a designated Temporary Accommodation 

Officer at BDHT has helped the Council to achieve the 50% reduction in 
the use of temporary accommodation by 2010, that is the Government 
target for all local authorities, two years early. 

 
6.7 BDHT officers have worked closely with Council officers in 2007/8 to 

deliver a number of new initiatives particularly for young people. These 
include working with Redditch Nightstop to provide a Nightstop service in 
Bromsgrove and working with landlords to provide private tenancies for 
clients who are able to access the private sector. The use of Spend to 
Save has proved so successful that BDHT have now taken over the 
management of the scheme thus freeing up BDC Strategic Housing 
Officers to develop other new joint initiatives such as the Education 
Initiative and the Under-Occupation survey.  

 
  
6.8 As a result of the sustained improvements in the delivery of the service we 

have now achieved: 
 

• A more efficient and seamless service for the homeless. 
• Additional support, home visiting and front line homelessness 

prevention and options appraisal services. 
• A reduction in the number of homeless reviews with no decisions being 

overturned during the year.  
• More focussed and efficient use of CAB’s expertise in debt advice and 

landlord negotiation. 
• A pro-active approach to moving formally homeless clients on from 

temporary accommodation into permanent housing as soon as 
possible. 

• Good joined up working relationships between BDHT, BDC and CAB 
staff. 

• Currently zero use of B&B and reduced use of hostel accommodation. 
• Active approach to developing better solutions for homeless people 

and provision of good standard, self contained, dispersed temporary 
accommodation for those experiencing homelessness. 

• A positive and improved approach to customer care. 

Page 111



 

• A significant contribution to the Council achieving a ‘Fair’ report with 
‘Promising prospects for Improvement’ from the Audit Commission 
following the re-inspection in February this year. 

 
6.9 Below is a table showing performance figures for 2007/8 only one of which 

is marginally below target. However, the service is not just about targets 
and figures but a more holistic approach to homelessness and customer 
care, which is now embedded in the way the service is being delivered 

 
 
 

Local 
Performance 
Indicator 

Target Actual 
2005/6 

Actual 
2006/7 

Actual 2007/8 

% of 
homeless 
applications 
dealt with 
within 33 
days  

97% 97.31% 92.27% 
 

100% 

Length of 
time to 
nominate to 
RSLs  

5 days 4.92 days 3.58 days 3.62 days 

% of new 
applications 
entered on to 
the waiting 
list within 10 
days 

80% 96.19% 83.59% 99.79% 
 

% of 
amendments 
to the 
housing 
register 
made within 
10 days  

100% 95.04% 96.35% 
 

100% 
 

Number of 
homeless 
appeals & 
outcomes 

 5 18 homeless 
appeals.13 
of which 
were upheld. 

3 appeals 
2 upheld & 1 
withdrawn.  

No of BDHT 
lettings made 
to BDC 
waiting list & 
homeless 
applicants 

75% 80.34% 
(184) 

82.72% 
 
(7.72% more than 
required under the 
SLA ) 
 
(182) 

90.59% 
 
(15.59% more than 
required under the 
SLA) 
 
(212) 

Hostel fees 
collection 

Guarant
eed min 

92.7% 100.77% 93.44% 
 

Page 112



 

rate 92% 
Caravan site 
licence fee 
collection 
rate  

Guarant
eed min 
92% 

94.82% 101.57% 117.61% 

 
 
7.0 APPENDICES 
 
  
 Appendix 1 Performance against promises made to tenants 
 Appendix 2      BDHT’s Strategic assistance in supporting the Council’s  
    Housing Strategy 
 
13. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 None 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Andy Coel. Strategic Housing Manager 
E Mail:  a.coel@bromsgrove.gov.uk  
Tel:       (01527) 881270 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



  

 
 
 

Appendix 1 
 

 
Commitment 

 
 

Progress Against Commitment 2008 
 
 

Modernisation of Homes & Planned Maintenance 
Within 3 years: 
 

• Upgrade communal TV aerials to 
digital. 

 
 
Within 5 years  
 

• Double glazed windows for 300 
homes without them; 

 
 

• full central heating to those homes 
that do not have it; 

 
 

• Double glazed front and back 
doors to over 2,500 properties 

 
 

 
 
All existing systems have been upgraded to digital compatibility (set top box use 
only) 
 
 
 
 
All homes are now double glazed 
 
 
 
Full central heating installed to all BDHT homes (except where specifically 
refused by individual tenants). On-going programme of renewals. 
 
 
New front and back doors fitted to 1,054 properties. New doors will be fitted to a 
further 218 properties during 2008/09 and 145 properties in 2009/10. Target to 
complete 2,500 homes within 5 years will not be achieved. Recent stock analysis 
highlighted other property elements to be in more urgent need of replacement 

P
age 114



 

 
 
 

• A range of security measures to 
general needs and sheltered 
housing; 

 
 

• New electrical wiring and sockets 
to over 3000 homes: 

 
 

• Mains operated hard wired smoke 
detectors to over 3000 homes at 
the same time as the rewiring 
programme. 

 
Within 10 years 
 

• Around 1800 full fuel efficient 
central heating systems or 
replacement boilers with a 
package of insulation measures; 

 
 

• Around 2,800 modern kitchens; 
 
 

• Around 1900 new bathrooms 
(tenants to be given choice of 

and, therefore, the door replacement programme has been revised for 
completion over 10 years. 
 
New doors installed to Secure by Design standards.   
 
 
 
 
Electrical upgrades being carried out as part of Kitchen and Bathroom upgrades.  
Those who refuse have electrical checks/upgrades as required. 
 
 
Smoke detectors being installed with Kitchen and Bathrooms work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
New fuel efficient boilers fitted to 792 homes.  
 
 
 
 
 
Promise completed but programme of renewals in place to maintain Decent 
Homes Standard and upgrade homes where works refused by previous tenants.   
 
 
Promise completed but programme of renewals in place to maintain Decent 
Homes Standard and upgrade homes where works refused by previous tenants.   

P
age 115



 

colour and design); 
 
 

• Modern insulation to 1400 homes; 
 
 

• Conversion of small bed-sits into 
one bedroom properties.  

 
 

• Tenants consulted on all 
modernisation proposals. 

 
 

• Tenants to be involved in 
decisions about the specifications 
of the improvements (e.g. 
kitchens). 

 
 

• Tenants can refuse improvements 
unless health and safety issues, 
e.g. gas servicing. 

 
 

• No extra increases in rent to pay 
for modernisation works. 

 
• De-canting of tenants in special 

circumstances with costs of 

  
 
 
98% of BDHT properties meet the government standard, the remaining 2% will 
be completed by 31st March 2009. 
 
Total of 46 flats upgraded at Windsor Gardens and Willow Court.  
 
 
 
 
Tenants consulted individually on kitchen and bathroom details and given choice 
of front door styles. 
 
 
 
Tenants continue to be involved in development of specification through Working 
Group of the Residents Forum. 
 
 
 
Tenants can refuse improvements (but not health and safety tests, such as 
annual gas servicing). 
 
 
 
Rent has only been increased in accordance with agreed formula – see below. 
 
 
Remodelled flats at Windsor Gardens carried out by decanting – removal costs 
paid by BDHT. 

P
age 116



 

disturbance met. 
 
On-going commitment to; 
 

• Planned and cyclical works to 
replace kitchens every 20 years. 

 
 

• Servicing Gas Appliances 
 
 
 
 

• External painting. 
 
 
 

• Work with Council to make sure 
tenant’s homes are adapted where 
needed. 

 
 
 

• Trust & council will set aside 
money to carryout adaptations in 
line with pre-transfer policy. 

 
 
 
 
As at 31/3/2008 98% of BDHT property met the Decent Homes Standard. 
Codeman planned maintenance software used to plan renewals and ensure 
100% compliance with DHS achieved on a “just in time” basis. 
 
As at the 31st March 2008 valid CP12 Certificates were held in respect of 99.8% 
of BDHT stock. Court injunctions to enforce access in respect of all tenants (5) 
failing to provide access to engineers in place.  
 
 
Ongoing commitment to reduce requirement for external painting through use of 
pvc-u.   
 
 
Policy in place to undertake aids and adaptations up to value of £700 without 
referral for funding to BDC. BDHT have reviewed policy and procedure relating 
to aids and adaptations and now fund an additional occupational therapist post 
at the PCT in order to speed up the referral process for aids and adaptations of 
all values. 
 
 
As above 
 

Estate Improvement 
Within 10 years 

• £2 million Estate improvement and 
environment works (such as 

 
With partner agencies and residents BDHT has identified the Austin Road area 
of the Charford Estate as an area for a major regeneration programme. This area 

P
age 117



 

fencing programmes, improved 
lighting, car parking and 
environmental works). 

 
• Consult and involve individual 

tenants and tenant groups on 
proposals to improve 
neighbourhoods. 

 
• Involve tenant groups in 

developing any new estate 
services within available 
resources.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Dedicated budget to pay for 
additional play facilities 

 
 

• Where possible provide additional 
parking spaces on estates. 

 
 

comprises Wimpey “no fines” concrete flats with poor thermal insulation and 
associated condensation problems. This is also the area of highest deprivation in 
the Bromsgrove District and a local crime “hot spot”.   
 
During 2006 a Regeneration Plan was produced with partner agencies and local 
residents to address the structural deficiencies of the properties and to improve 
security by design and estate re-modelling.  
 
 
Work on the installation of whole house ventilation systems commenced during 
2007/08 with the full Re-generation Plan commencing in August 2008 with 
completion due in January 2010. During this time investment will total £4.053 
million. 
 
In accordance with the BDHT Asset Management Strategy an annual Investment 
Sustainability Matrix was completed in January 2008 at a meeting of resident 
representatives, staff, BDC and West Mercia Police. All BDHT estates were 
scored to determine the investment needed. From this emerged the priority for 
further investment in areas in and around the Sidemoor and Catshill estates 
because of relatively high levels of crime. 
 

 
 
The Charford Regeneration scheme includes the provision of play facilities for 5 
– 10 year olds. 
 
 
Increased provision for car parking is a key component of the Charford 
Regeneration Scheme. 
 
 

P
age 118



 

• Consult tenants about grass 
cutting; 

 
 
 
 

• Improve the grass cutting and 
landscape maintenance service. 

 
 
 
 

• Look at introducing extra services 
for all tenants such as box cutting, 
hedge trimming and extra grass 
cutting (free in communal areas, 
small charge at individual 
properties). 

 
 
 

• Review all garage areas and plan 
to improve or refurbish each site 
as necessary. 

Customer perception surveys have been undertaken in September 2006 and 
July 2007 using VMS. When asked in July 2007 to rate the overall standard of 
the grounds maintenance service provided by BDHT, tenants scored an average 
of 7.87/10. Comments from previous surveys were used to refine the service for 
the 2007/08 cutting season. 
 
Immediately following stock transfer BDHT introduced an enhanced grass cutting 
and landscape maintenance service by doubling (to 16) the frequency of grass 
cuts during the growing season and introducing box cutting (i.e. collecting and 
disposing of grass cuttings). Hedges and shrub beds are cut back/pruned twice 
each year. 
 
With effect from the 2007 growing season the service has been further refined 
with a specialist team of two maintaining on a two week cycle the communal 
landscaped areas of  sheltered schemes with communal gardens. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
During 2006 all garage sites were assessed in accordance with the Trust’s Asset 
Management Strategy scoring matrix to determine the future of each site to: 

• Improve and refurbish, or 
• Re-develop. 

 
A Garage Strategy was developed from this with structural works commencing in 
2007/08 and continuing during 2008/09. 
 

Response Repairs 

P
age 119



 

• £3.2 million programme of 
outstanding catch up repairs within 
5 years. 

 
• Improve on pre-transfer response 

repairs performance. 
 
 

• Improved response times 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Free phone service for reporting 
repairs 

Catch-up repairs have been completed.  
 
 
 
The quality of the response repairs service is measured through VMS Customer 
Surveys.  The target average score set for VMS Surveys is 7.8/10. Response 
repairs scored an average of 8.4/10 for 2007/08 
 
With effect from June 2007 BDHT revised target completion timescales for each 
repair category: 
 
Emergencies – from 24 hours to 12 hours 
 
Urgent – from 7 calendar days to 5 calendar days 
 
Routine – from 30 calendar days to 20 calendar days. 
 
Completions against target have remained top quartile (against last available 
reported national top quartile). The percentage of response repairs completed 
within target has improved in the four years since stock transfer. Performance for 
the last three years is set out in the table below. 
 

% of response repairs completed in target Repair Category 
2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 

Emergency 99.60 99.96 99.86 
Urgent 95.90 98.50 99.85 
Routine 90.60 97.60 97.66 
 
 
 
Free phone service now extended to all service enquiries. 

P
age 120



 

 
• Appointments service for urgent 

and  non urgent repairs 
 

 
• Consider introducing extra 

services such as a handy person 
service and gold service. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

• Introduce new ways to report a 
repair, e.g. by internet. 

 
 
 

 
 
An appointment system for all routine repairs will be introduced by August 2008 
to compliment the existing appointment system for emergency and urgent 
repairs. 
 
Following consultation with tenants BDHT introduced a Handy person service 
from 1st June 2007.  
 
To reward tenants who comply with the conditions of their tenancy BDHT 
operates a number of rewards, 
 

• a quarterly prize draw for tenants who are not in rent arrears or tenants 
who are in arrears but maintaining re-payment plans, and, 

• an annual prize draw for tenants providing access for annual gas 
servicing. 

 
BDHT has, with members of the Residents Forum, evaluated options to 
introduce a “Gold Service”. Members of the Forum considered that an 
“individual” based reward scheme would in general be too expensive to operate 
and did not represent good value for money. They have opted to retain the 
rewards described above to be supplemented by: 
• individual access to a free “handyman” service for tenants meeting agreed 

criteria, and; 
• a community reward scheme supporting local neighbourhood initiatives. 
 
 
Following “lean processing” of the response service it has been decided that 
Graphical Repairs Ordering software will not provide a cost effective solution and 
that a revised repair ordering process using a simplified Schedule of Rates will 
provide a better VfM resolution. 

P
age 121



 

• Priority repairs to be completed 
within 12 working days (rather 
than 15 working days) and by 
appointment. 

 
 

• Monitor performance against pre-
set targets. 

 
 

• Seek to raise performance year on 
year. 

 
• Provide tenants with information 

on performance annually. 
 

 
See above. 
 
 
 
 
 
Monitoring systems are in place using Business Objects reporting software. 
Repairs performance is monitored monthly by EMT with quarterly exceptions 
report to Board.  
 
See above. Performance on all repair categories has improved year-on-year and 
remains top quartile. 
 
BDHT Annual Report and website. 

Sheltered Housing 
Improvements to homes and community 
rooms within sheltered housing schemes. 
 
 

• To provide services to the same 
standard as the Council and aim to 
improve them. 

 
• Continue to meet needs of older 

people. 
 

• Use floating support workers in 
addition to wardens. 

The recommendations from the Best Value Reviews of both sheltered and very 
sheltered housing support services have now been implemented providing a 
modern, flexible team based service to over 900 residents. 
 
Resultant improvements within the sheltered housing service were recognised in 
June 2007 when the service gained Centre for Sheltered Housing Services 
(CSHS) accreditation. This is an industry recognised standard and “passported” 
the service through Supporting People (SP) inspection.  
 
SP strategy is to move support provision for the majority of elderly residents from 
scheme based support and towards a floating service based upon the individual 
need of residents. With effect from April 2009 BDHT will commence a new 
contract with Supporting People based upon the provision of a floating support 

P
age 122



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Continue to provide existing 
amenities such as laundry, 
common rooms, window cleaning 
and grounds maintenance subject 
to a service charge. 

• Determine and pay particular 
attention to investment needs of 
homes and community rooms in 
sheltered housing schemes. 

 
 

• Programme of consultation with 
tenants with the aim of providing 
where needed new or upgraded 
door entry systems, programme of 
security and insulation work, 
modernisation of sheltered 
housing schemes including 
refurbishment and conversion of 

service and no longer linked to the tenure or type of property occupied by the 
individual receiving support. With the introduction of the new contract, those 
tenants in sheltered housing who do not need support will not attract SP funding 
and the individual tenant will not be liable for a support service charge, instead 
the service will be directed to those tenants who need support including those 
who do not want to live in a sheltered housing scheme. 
 
The Gilbert Court Extra Care Scheme is being developed with partners, including 
BDC and is due to open in November 2008. With the opening of this scheme 
existing very sheltered schemes will be re-designated as sheltered housing in 
line with revised Supporting People funding arrangements. 
 
These services continue to be provided. 
 
 
 
 
 
BDHT Decent Homes Policy in place detailing additional issues for supported 
housing needs. A 5 year programme of upgrades to community rooms including 
complete re-decoration and fitment of new carpets, curtains and light fittings is 
being delivered following consultation with residents at each scheme. Work is 
being undertaken to 3 schemes during 2008/09. 
 
Following consultation with residents the emergency alarm call equipment within 
the sheltered housing schemes is being upgraded during 2008/09 from the 
existing hard wired system to a modern dispersed “Smart Call” service for all 
residents in sheltered housing requesting the service. This system allows for the 
provision, where required, of additional sensors including “wandering sensors”, 
flood detectors, fall sensors and pill dispensers.  
 

P
age 123



 

some bed-sits and a programme 
of improvements to communal 
rooms and facilities including 
gardens. 

 
 

• Continue to provide access to a 
community alarm service. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Emergency Alarm call provision has continued through the Bromsgrove Lifeline 
service (BDC). 

Development 
Within 5 years: 
 

• 70 additional homes for rent. 
Since transfer BDHT has: 
 

• acquired 19 new homes through “buy-back” of properties from the 
existing housing market; 

• built 26 new homes 
• a committed development programme to deliver 97 new homes 

within the next two years. 
Tenant Participation 

A Tenant participation policy. 
 
 

• Adopt and develop the Council’s 
Tenant Participation Compact. 

 
 
 

• Tenants given opportunity to 
participate at various levels that 
suit them. 

 

The Resident involvement strategy was reviewed with customers and a new 
Strategy was agreed by the BDHT Board in June 2007.   
 
BDHT has developed a variety of ways in which tenants can become involved. 
This approach is designed to provide tenants with a range of flexible options for 
involvement reflective of tenants varied lifestyles, time commitments and degree 
to which they wish to be involved. Options include: 
 

• Area Panels – residents meet with officers focusing on estate based 
issues 

 
• Residents Forum – residents meet with members of the senior and 

P
age 124



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

executive management team to influence BDHT strategic direction and 
policy. 

 
• Armchair Panel developed to allow participation from customers who 

do not wish to attend meetings. 
 

• “Chatterbox” Group developed for residents aged 12-21. This 
successful consultation group has provided the Trust with valuable 
insights into the key issues for this often difficult to reach group. 

 
• Tenant Mystery Shoppers – monthly “shops” testing if services are 

being delivered in accordance with published service standards. 
Results are presented to Executive Management Team and Service 
Improvement Team. 

 
• Business Plan Working Groups – comprising members of the 

Residents Forum working with officers of the Trust to develop and 
implement the Residents Forum Business Plan. 

 
• Estate Walkabouts, BDHT publishes an annual schedule of estate 

walkabouts undertaken by Estate Officers with invitations to Area Panel 
members and tenants to participate. 

 
• Customer Surveys, BDHT undertook a Status Survey of all tenants 

during 2006, this is being repeated in 2008 and annually thereafter. 
Status surveys are supported by a number of service specific surveys.  

 
• The “Big Consult” – BDHT surveyed all tenants asking for their views 

on their priorities for the next five years. The wider community was also 
consulted through a wrap around with feedback form in the 

P
age 125



 

 
 

• Regular information to tenants, 
including regular newsletter. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Regular performance report. 
 
 
 

• Actively support and develop local 
residents groups. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
• Continue to work with Tenants 

representatives. 
 
 

Bromsgrove Advertiser. Over 400 residents responded to these 
surveys. 

 
• The BDHT Choice magazine continues to be produced quarterly for 

BDHT tenants and the Leaseholder magazine is issued twice yearly. 
Scheme based bi-monthly newsletters are now distributed to each 
sheltered housing scheme. 

 
• BDHT measures the impact of resident involvement each year and 

publishes the results in a Resident Involvement Impact Assessment 
(September 2007).  

 
 
BDHT Annual Report. In addition performance information is posted onto the 
BDHT website. 
 
 
Resident involvement continues to develop and grow. Between March 2007 and 
March 2008 the number of residents actively involved through the Residents 
Forum, Area Panels and “Armchair Panel” has grown by almost 70% to 112 
members. 
 
The number Tenants able to undertake monthly “mystery shops” has risen during 
2007/08 by 71% to 12. 
 
The “Chatterbox” group for residents aged 12-21years now has 28 members, a 
rise of 56% during 2007/08. 
 
With support from BDHT 7 of our older residents have formed the “Silver 
Hoodies” singing group. The aim of this group is to break down age barriers with 
younger residents. The scheme has been so successful that it has been short 

P
age 126



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Establish Area committees. 
 
 
 
 

• Recognise need for local 
representation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Focus groups made up of 
managers and tenants. Quality 
housing services working Group 
and repairs Improvement working 
Group will continue to be involved. 

 

listed in a national housing awards scheme.  
 
BDHT has worked with members of the Residents Forum to develop their 
understanding of the business to enable residents to scrutinise our activities 
rigorously. Members of the forum have developed a Residents Forum Business 
Plan identifying 22 top priorities which have been fed into the BDHT Business 
Planning process. Members of the Residents Forum now present reports to 
Board. 
 
With residents BDHT have established a “Task & Finish” group to review current 
governance structures to further enhance resident led-scrutiny of BDHT. This 
group is due to report in December 2009 
 
Area Panels are now supported by regular Estate Walkabouts where members 
of each Panel and other residents can identify with officers areas of concern and 
any works required. The issues identified at each “walkabout” are fed back to the 
next panel meeting so that an ethos of “you said…we did” is built up.  
 
This approach is being developed further through the development of Area Panel 
Manifestos. Each Area Panel will publish a list of commitments to improve an 
area by BDHT based on residents priorities determined by analysis of feedback 
received via Estate Walkabouts, the “Big Consult”, 2008 Status Survey, and 
PACT meetings . Each manifesto will be sent to every BDHT tenant in that 
locality. BDHT performance against promises will be fed back to every tenant via 
a progress report every 6 months. The first Area Panel Manifestos will be 
published in November 2008. 
 
Residents continue to be involved in service review groups, for example tenants 
sat on the Response Repairs Working Group (which agreed the reduction in 
target times for each repair category) and the Customer Care & Access to 
Services Strategy review group which, amongst other things, has led to the 

P
age 127



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
• Satisfaction Surveys to tenants 

every three years. (STATUS) 
 
 

• Other regular surveys. 
 
 
 
 

• Tenants able to become Board 
members (5 out of 15 places on 
board for tenants).  

introduction of more flexible operating times to meet the needs of working 
tenants. 
 
Residents also serve on the Service Improvement Team which examines the 
results of customer perception surveys to identify areas where services can be 
further improved and delivering continuous “small step” service improvement. 
 
A number of Resident Advisory Groups have been established during the last 
year to inform and monitor the delivery of BDHT Equality Schemes and 
associated Action Plans on Disability, Gender and Race.  
 
BDHT are required to undertake a standardised customer perception survey 
known as the “Status Survey” at least once every three years. BDHT undertook 
the last survey in 2006, a follow up survey is currently being undertaken by the 
Feedback Service of the National Housing Federation on behalf of BDHT.  
 
BDHT continue to carryout service specific surveys to ensure continuous 
improvement in all service areas. Following a review of survey methodology 
BDHT is now using Snap software and following Status scoring regime to ensure 
alignment and comparison with Status results 
 
BDHT maintains five Tenant board members, now accounting for 42% of Board 
membership (following the reduction of BDC nominees from five to two). 

General Customer Services 
• Simple clear complaints procedure 

to be available. 
 
 

• Customer care and Complaints 
Policy. 

 

BDHT has a well established simple complaints procedure that is well advertised 
at reception, at community rooms and via the website. Details on how to 
complain have been published and distributed to all tenants. BDHT has 
published service standards on dealing with complaints which have been 
distributed to all tenants. 
 

P
age 128



 

• Designated officer to deal with 
complaints. 

 
• Step-by-step procedure to 

complain. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Customer care training 
 

Number of Complaints Received Annually

0
5
10
15
20
25
30
35
40

Cumulative Total To
31/3/06

Cumulative Total To
31/3/07

Cumulative Total To
31/3/08

  
BDHT Board receive a quarterly report detailing: 
 

• The number of complaints received; 
• The number of cases resolved; 
• The number of complaints justified or partially justified; 
• Changes to policy or procedure made as a result of 

learning from complaints 
• Satisfaction of complainants on closure of complaint; 
• Diversity analysis 

 
This information is fed back to tenants in summary form on a quarterly basis 
through the BDHT “Choice” magazine. 
The Customer Care & Access to Services Strategy identified the need for a 

P
age 129



 

 
 

• Quality and performance 
improvement training 

 

bespoke customer care training package to be delivered to all staff, this training 
is being deployed during 2008 and 2009. 
 
 
BDHT continues to support the professional development of staff through 
corporate sponsorship. Training is commissioned based on an annual training 
needs assessment for each team member and includes vocational training, legal 
updates and best/innovative practice courses. Average training spend per 
employee per annum is £407.00 rising to a projected spend of £487.00 per 
employee for 2008/09. 
 

Community Work 
• Work closely with public bodies 

such as OT, Education Service, 
Police, health authority, GPs and 
voluntary agencies. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BDHT continues to work closely with the Police and the Community Safety 
Partnership to tackle incidents of anti-social behaviour. BDHT participates in the 
county wide Hate Crimes initiative and has become a local hate crimes reporting 
centre. 
 
BDHT officers continue to regularly attend PACT meetings covering areas of 
BDHT operation. 
 
BDHT officers work closely with local schools on housing and community issues 
including participation in the Young Enterprise Scheme. 
 
BDHT officers have developed the “Considering Housing” scheme. Through this 
scheme BDHT officers deliver sessions for 13 -15 year olds at local high schools 
looking at their future housing options and linkages between housing options and 
career choices. 
  
BDHT works closely with Social Services and service users to meet the needs of 
a range of vulnerable groups including the frail elderly (for example provision of 
Extra Care at Gilbert Court) and customers with mental illness and learning 
disabilities. 

P
age 130



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• With Employment Service to tackle 
social exclusion and support 
neighbourhood renewal initiatives. 

 
 
 

• Consult with tenants about the 
need to recruit specialist staff to try 
to help tenants improve the quality 
of life on estates, for example by 
tackling neighbour nuisance or 
offering advice and assistance 
with benefit claims. 

 
BDHT works closely with voluntary agencies such as Baseline to provide support 
for young homeless people and New Start in the provision of furniture for 
vulnerable tenants and the Multi-Agency Resource Centre. 
 
BDHT are members of the Homelessness Strategy Group led by BDC. 
 
With financial support from BDC and Supporting People BDHT has developed a 
Floating Support Service for vulnerable adults over 25 years of age to ensure 
chaotic lives can be stabilised in order to help clients sustain their tenancy and 
provide a platform to return to work wherever possible. 
 
BDHT has developed an economic engagement strategy to assist economically 
disadvantaged members of the community get into or return to work. BDHT are 
working with key statutory partners including BDC to support local strategies. 
 
BDHT has created a two-year housing trainee post with funding from Supporting 
People to provide an employment opportunity for a disadvantaged young person. 
 
BDHT has also received Supporting People funding to deliver a “Confidence 
Building and Ready to Work” scheme for homeless people. 
 
BDHT has introduced two specialist teams to deal with: 
 
a). Nuisance, Anti-Social Behaviour & Estate Management, and 
 
b).Rent payment, rent arrears and debt management. 
 
In consultation with residents BDHT has developed the following strategies: 
 

a) Respect Strategy setting out how BDHT will deal with anti-social 

P
age 131



 

behaviour, and 
b) Income Management Strategy, which includes BDHT’s strategic approach 

to preventing tenant indebtedness. 
 
BDHT has also now developed a Financial Inclusion strategy to further assist 
residents to minimise the affects of the “credit crunch”. 

Anti-social behaviour and racial harassment 
• Committed to taking decisive 

action to tackle asb, nuisance and 
racial harassment 

 
 

• Work closely with tenants and 
other agencies to develop 
strategies tailored to the needs of 
individual estates. 

With tenants BDHT has developed a strategy, policy and procedure to deal with 
anti-social behaviour, nuisance and disputes. BDHT has developed a specialist 
team to respond to such issues. BDHT met and signed up to the Respect 
Standard for Housing Management.  
 
BDHT works closely with residents and other agencies to deal with ASB, 
including the local police, local authority Community Safety Team, youth groups 
and parish councils. 
 
BDHT officers undertake quarterly “estate walkabouts” with members of the local 
Area Panels and Community Safety Officers. Issues raised are acted upon and 
results reported back to Area Panel meetings. Issues identified include: 

• unkempt drying areas – a planned programme of improvements 
have been agreed and are being implemented through the Asset 
Management Team. 

• Condition of boundary fences on alley ways and garage sites – 
incorporated into and on-going programme of fence repair and 
replacement.      

 
BDHT is represented by officers at all area PACT meetings. 
 
BDHT is a Hate Crime reporting centre and has developed a Hate Crime policy 
covering all diversity strands. 
 

P
age 132



 

During 2007/08 the Tenancy Services Team completed 114 investigations into 
complaints of anti-social behaviour, annoyance and nuisance. All victims are 
contacted at the end of the process to record their perception of the service they 
have received. 47 clients responded (41% response rate). 87% of respondents 
stated that they were satisfied with the way in which their complaint was handled. 
 

Gold Service 
• Consult tenants on how to 

introduce a “gold service”. 
 
 

Following consultation with tenants BDHT introduced a Handy person service 
from 1st June 2007.  
 
To reward tenants who comply with the conditions of their tenancy BDHT 
operates a number of rewards, 
 

• a quarterly prize draw for tenants who are not in rent arrears or tenants 
who are in arrears but maintaining re-payment plans, and, 

•  an annual prize draw for tenants providing access for annual gas 
servicing. 

 
BDHT has, with members of the Residents Forum, evaluated options to 
introduce a “Gold Service”. Members of the Forum considered that an 
“individual” based reward scheme would in general be too expensive to operate 
and did not represent good value for money. They have opted to retain the 
rewards described above to be supplemented by: 
• individual access to a free “handyman” service for tenants meeting agreed 

criteria, and; 
• a community reward scheme supporting local neighbourhood initiatives. 
 
 

Supported Housing 
• Consult with tenants and 

investigate providing support 
With financial support from BDC and Supporting People BDHT has developed a 
Floating Support Service for vulnerable adults over 25 years of age to ensure 

P
age 133



 

workers for new tenants using 
available Government funding. 

chaotic lives can be stabilised in order to help clients sustain their tenancy and 
thus prevent homelessness. These officers support up to 17 clients at any one 
time. As well as supporting clients who have become homeless, during 2007/08 
these officers prevented 6 households from actually becoming homeless in 
addition to the 77 preventions achieved by the BDHT Housing Options team who 
provide a housing advice service for BDC. 
 
 

Allocating Homes 
• Only let to people in housing need. 
 

 
 

 
 
• Nomination rights to applicants on 

Council Register. 
 

• Transfer List for existing tenants to 
be able to move. 

 

BDHT is a partner with BDC in the regional “Home Choice Plus” Choice Based 
Letting scheme. This scheme operates through a common allocation policy 
agreed by both BDHT and BDC. The scheme maintains the ability of existing 
social housing tenants to move by “transfer” to alternative accommodation. The 
scheme is scheduled to “go live” in October 2008.  
 
During 2007/08 85% of lettings made by BDHT were to new tenants with 15% to 
existing (transfer) tenants.  
 
Of the lettings to new tenants, 90% were to applicants on the BDC Housing 
Register. 

Rent 
• Guarantee that Rent increases 

annually limited to rate of inflation 
plus ½% plus £2.00 per week in 
any year. 

 
• After 2012 rent increase by 

inflation plus ½% 
 

Annual rent increases have been in accordance with this formula. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 134



 

• Service charges separated from 
rent charges. 

 
• Continue to be able to pay rent in 

the same way, (including cash 
office and rent collector). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Only seek end a tenancy for rent 
arrears as a last resort. 

 
• Grounds for eviction will be the 

same as for the Council. 

 
Service charges are identified separately from rent charges. 
 
BDHT has further promoted the use of Direct Debit for payment of rent with a 
further monthly date provided to offer greater choice to tenants. Approximately 
30% of tenants now pay rent by this means.  
 
At BDHT we are also now able to take rent payments from tenants using debit 
cards by phone. 
 
Through the use of All Pay BDHT tenants can now pay rent by internet and at 
local post offices and Pay Zones as well as via the internet.   
 
BDHT arrears policy states that eviction will be sought only as a last resort. 
 
 
The transferring tenant’s agreement only allows BDHT to use those grounds that 
were available to the Council, i.e. they cannot use ground 8 – mandatory 
possession for arrears over 8 weeks. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 135



  

 
 

 
Appendix 2      

 
COUNCIL STRATEGIC 
HOUSING PRIORITY 

PROGRESS BY BDHT IN CONTRIBUTING TOWARDS THE COUNCIL’S FOUR 
STRATEGIC HOUSING PRIORITIES DURING 2007 / 2008 

� PRIORITY 1 – 
ADDRESSING THE 
SHORTAGE OF 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

 
 
� Focusing on achieving a 

well balanced Housing 
Market and a consistent 
and appropriate supply of 
affordable housing to meet 
urban and rural  needs, 
making best use of 
planning powers and the 
resources available 

 
 
 
 
 

• During 2007 / 08 BDHT purchased a further10 Buy Back properties, with financial 
assistance from BDC, to help meet the needs of homeless families in the district and 
for use as dispersed self contained temporary accommodation enabling the closure 
of three of the Council’s homeless hostels at Wythall, Rubery and Sidemoor 

 
• Four Two bedroom bungalows were delivered at Morris Walk, Charford. 

 
• Six new build two bedroom shared ownership homes and 8 houses for rent were  

completed in Rubery in May 2008  
 

• Planning permission has been granted by BDC Planning Committee for BDHT to 
develop 20, two and three bedroom affordable homes at Hopwood. 

 
• A further planning application has been granted and Housing Corporation funding 

approved for the development of 19 homes on the site of the Former Redgrove 
School in Stoke Prior. 

 
• Properties in Flavel Rd, Charford have been acquired for redeveloped to provide 9 

two bed and 8 one bed flats which are due to be delivered by March 2009. 
 

• BDHT have converted Gateway Refuge into be five self contained units of 
accommodation for clients fleeing domestic abuse. Due for completion in 
September 2008. 

 

P
age 136



 

• BDHT have worked with BDC and Bromford Housing Group officers to successfully 
achieve the closure of Hamilton House Supported Accommodation Scheme which 
they will now upgrade to provide 4 one bedroom self contained flats due for 
completion in March 09. 

 
• To prevent any further delay, Development of five two bedroom houses for shared 

ownership on the site of the former Wythall Hostel has now been taken over by 
BDHT from Servite Houses (RSL) who are temporarily restricted by the Housing 
Corporation. 

 
• Work is now underway to convert Rubery and Sidemoor hostels into a total of 10 

self contained flats for general needs letting. 
 

• BDHT have jointly funded with the Council and other partner RSL’s the 
commissioning of a Housing Market Study to provide further more detailed 
information on the housing need and balance of the market in the district. 

 
• BDHT allocation policy is based on an assessment of housing need in the same 

format as that of the Council’s policy.  Excellent joint working by BDHT officers with 
Strategic Housing Officers of the Council has taken place to launch and implement 
the South Housing market Area Choice Based Letting Scheme using a shared 
allocation policy. The Government approved method of allocating social housing is 
due to be implemented in October 2008. 

 
• At the time of LSVT it was negotiated that BDHT grant nomination rights to BDC of 

75% of new lettings. In 2007/08 90% of all new BDHT lettings were to applicants on 
the BDC Register. 

 
 

� PRIORITY 2 – • BDHT has adopted a BDHT Decent Homes Standard (DHS) which is an 

P
age 137



 

IMPROVING THE 
QUALITY AND 
AVAILBILITY OF 
PRIVATE SECTOR 
HOUSING 

 
 
� To achieve sustained 

decent housing conditions, 
a strong, well managed 
private rented sector, 
improved energy efficiency 
of domestic homes and 
increased availability and 
accessibility of privately 
rented accommodation 
offering people more 
choice. 

 

enhancement of the basic Government prescribed DHS.  Improvements to tenants 
homes undertaken by BDHT resulted in 100% of BDHT homes meeting the DHS at 
the 31st March 2007. Asset Management software allows BDHT to plan future 
improvements on a “just in time” basis to ensure homes continue to meet the DHS. 

 
• Improved energy efficiency is a key BDHT target toward reducing costs for tenants 

in running their homes and reducing environmental impact. At the 31st March 2007 
the SAP rating (a measure of a property’s energy efficiency) was 74. 

 
• Performance against DHS and SAP is top quartile. 

 
• BDHT is assisting and supporting the BDC Private Tenancy Scheme by finding and 

encouraging landlords to participate in the scheme. BDHT officers have taken over 
the day to day running of the Council initiated Spend to Save scheme thus freeing 
up BDC officer time to work on new initiatives. 

 
• Closer working has developed between BDC private sector housing officers and 

BDHT to improve response to requests by BDHT tenants for disabled persons 
adaptations.  

 
 

� PRIORITY 3 – 
ADDRESSING 
HOMELESSNESS 

� Promoting a continued co-
ordinated approach to the 
ongoing provision of early 
intervention preventative 
and support services for 
the homeless and an 

• With financial support from BDC and Supporting People BDHT has developed a 
Floating Support Service for vulnerable adults over 25 years of age to ensure 
chaotic lives can be stabilised in order to help each client sustain their tenancy and 
thus prevent homelessness. The service employing two full time support officers can 
support 17 clients at anyone time with 3 hours support provided for each client each 
week. 

 
• BDHT has worked closely with BDC to close BDC hostel accommodation. To date 

one hostel has closed (Wythall) with Rubery Lodge and Holly Lodge hostels due to 

P
age 138



 

Number of homeless households occupying 
temporary accommodation

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

2006 2007

Number of
homeless
households
occupying
temporary

improved supply of 
permanent 
accommodation to reduce 
the use of temporary 
accommodation. 
Increased access to 
privately rented housing 
for the homeless is 
targeted to help achieve 
this and to maintain our 
minimal use of Bed & 
Breakfast accommodation. 
The strategy also focuses 
upon providing an 
improved standard and 
type of temporary 
accommodation where it 
has to be used, offering 
dispersed self contained 
housing. 

 

close by January 2008. 
 

• To replace the hostel accommodation BDHT has procured a total of ten additional 
properties with funding support from BDC. The remodelling of Rubery Hostel and 

Holly Lodge has started and will provide a 
total of 10 additional units of 
accommodation one of which will be 
specially adapted for disabled clients. 
These units are due to be delivered in 
April 2009.  

 
• BDHT has implemented an action plan to 

reduce the number of homeless 
households in temporary accommodation 

resulting in a big reduction in the number of homeless households occupying 
temporary accommodation over the last twelve months: at 31 March 08 the figure 
was 16, down from 63 on 31st March 07 and has since fallen further to 13 on 30 
June 2008. 

 
• Since stock transfer the primary role of BDHT officers under the Homelessness 

Service Level Agreement has been the assessment of homeless applications. Since 
April 2007 BDHT officers have moved away from providing a signposting service on 
homeless prevention to a pro-active role, providing formal “Housing Options” 
interviews with potentially homeless clients and active prevention work.  

 
• In 2007/8 BDHT officers prevented 85 households from becoming homeless. 

 
• BDHT officers have worked with BDC colleagues to implement actions resulting 

from the Audit Commission inspection of strategic housing. 
 

P
age 139



 

 
� PRIORITY 4 - ASSISTING 

VULNERABLE GROUPS 
TO LIVE 
INDEPENDENTLY 

 
� Aimed at enabling people 

who are vulnerable 
through age, disability or 
life experience to live 
independently, within the 
community. Promotion of 
healthy, safe and 
independent living, 
through improved housing 
conditions, home safety & 
security checks and by 
creating the right 
environment through 
improvements and 
adaptations and linked 
action to enable older 
people to be discharged 
from hospital more rapidly 
through more efficient 
home adaptation. 

 

BDHT has worked in partnership with BDC, County Council Supporting People and the 
Housing Corporation to secure capital and revenue funding for the development of the 
Extra Care housing scheme at Gilbert Court, Charford. The refurbishment existing homes 
and new building of the 27 additional units is due to be completed in autumn 2008.  
 
BDHT continue to work closely with the Police and through multi-agency PACT meetings 
to resolve estate and ASB issues and consult with BDC and tenants/residents upon estate 
refurbishment and regeneration projects.  
 
BDHT is a Hate Crime Reporting Centre as part of a countywide initiative to promote the 
reporting of such crimes. 
 
BDHT have a Respect fund (£7,000) to provide target hardening measures for victims of 
crime. 
 
BDHT work with the Police and other statutory agencies including the Probation Service to 
manage prolific offenders. 
 
BDHT work closely with Social Service departments to meet the needs of some of the most 
vulnerable in our community, for example, BDHT are part of multi-agency groups looking at 
the needs of customers suffering mental health issues and learning difficulties. 
 
BDHT also work with voluntary groups, church groups, parish councils and youth group to 
resolve issues around ASB (e.g. projects at Shawfields and at Charford) and with specialist 
providers such as ASB4 and mediation services to resolve issues. 
 
BDHT has implemented a Communities fund of £5,000 per annum to support local 
community groups, grants have so far been made to a local youth football team and a local 
youth cricket team. 
 

P
age 140



 

BDHT works closely with other support providers such as Stoneham (DV) and Baseline 
(under 25s) to ensure new tenants receives support to sustain tenancies. 
 
Officers continue to work with school students through the Young Enterprise Scheme. 

 
   
 
 
 
 

P
age 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



06/03/2009 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

17 MARCH 2009 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT [JANUARY 2009] 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  
 

Councillor Mike Webb  
Portfolio Holder for Customer Care 
and Service 
 

Responsible Officer Hugh Bennett  
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

 
1.  SUMMARY 

 
1.1 To ask the Board to consider the Improvement Plan Exception Report 

for January 2009 (Appendix 1).   
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That the Board considers and approves the revisions to the 

Improvement Plan Exception Report attached as Appendix 1, and the 
corrective action being taken.  

 
2.2 That the Board notes that for the 110 actions highlighted for January 

within the plan 86.4 percent of the Improvement Plan is on target 
[green], 3.6% percent is one month behind [amber] and 0 percent is 
over one month behind [red].  10 percent of actions have been 
reprogrammed with approval. [NB reprogrammed actions are those 
that have been suspended completely and those that have been 
moved to a later point in the year.  Extended actions are listed 
separately are actions that are anticipated to take longer than had 
originally been programmed].  The increase since last month reflects 
the re-programming of the town centre actions (as a result of Parkside), 
the re-programming of the train station (as a result of the updated 
situation regarding its funding) and the customer access strategy. 

 
2.3  This month’s performance is shown on the first page of Appendix 1.   
 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 July 2008 Cabinet approved the Improvement Plan 2008/09.  The 

Improvement Plan is directly linked to the five corporate priorities and 
thirteen enablers identified in the Council Plan 2008/2011. 

 
3.2 The Improvement Plan is designed to push the Council through to a 

rating of Fair during 2008.   
 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Agenda Item 9

Page 143



06/03/2009 

 
4.1 No financial implications.  
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 No legal implications.  
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  The Improvement Plan relates to all of the Council’s four objectives and 

five priorities as per the 2008/2011 Council Plan. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1.1 The risks associated with the Improvement Plan are covered in the 

CCPP departmental risk register. Specific corporate risks are related to 
the Improvement Plan in the following ways: 

 
Corporate Risk Title Improvement Plan Reference 
KO1: Effective Financial Management 
and Internal Control 

FP2 – Financial Management 
FP3 – Financial Strategy 

KO2: Effective corporate leadership FP1 – Value for Money  
FP2 – Financial Management 
FP3 – Financial Strategy 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 

Reporting 
PR2 –Improved Governance 

KO3: Effective  Member / Officer 
relations 

PR2 –Improved Governance 
HROD1 – Learning and 

Development 
KO4: Effective Member / Member 
relations 

PR2 –Improved Governance 
HROD1 – Learning and 

Development 
KO5*: Full compliance with the Civil 
Contingencies Act and effective 
Business Continuity 

PR1 – Customer Process 

KO6: Maximising the benefits of 
investment in ICT equipment and 
training 

PR3 – Spatial Business Project 

KO7: Effective partnership working PR4 – Improved Partnership 
Working 

KO8: Effective communications 
(internal and external) 

PR1 – Customer Process 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 

Reporting 
HROD 4– Performance Culture 

KO9: Equalities and diversity agenda 
embedded across the Authority 

CP3 – Customer Service 
CP4 – Sense of Community 

KO10: Appropriate investment in 
employee development and training 

HROD1 – Learning and 
Development 
HROD2 – Modernisation 
HROD4 – Performance Culture 

KO11: Effective employee recruitment HROD2 – Modernisation 

Page 144



06/03/2009 

and retention  
KO12: Full compliance with all Health 
and Safety legislation 

FP3 – Financial Strategy 
PR1 – Customer Process 
HROD2 – Modernisation 

KO13: Effective two tier working and 
Community Engagement 

CP4 – Sense of Community 
PR4 – Improved Partnership 

Working 
KO14: Successful implementation of 
Job Evaluation 

HROD2 - Modernisation 
KO15: All Council data is accurate and 
of high quality 

FP2 – Financial Management 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 

Reporting 
PR3 – Spatial Business Project 
HROD4 – Performance culture 

KO16: The Council no longer in 
recovery 

FP1 – Value for Money 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 
Reporting 

KO17: Effective Projects Management FP1 – Value for Money 
PR3 – Spatial Business Project 

KO19: Effective Business and 
Performance Management 

FP4 – Financial and Performance 
Reporting 

KO20: Effective Customer Focused 
Authority 

CP3 – Customer Service 
CP4 – Sense of Community 
PR1 – Customer Process 

 
* KO5 and KO18 have been merged 
 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The Improvement Plan is concerned with the strategic and operational 

issues that will affect the customer. 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Please see sections CP3 and CP4 of the Improvement Plan 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 See section FP1 of the Improvement Plan 
 
11.   OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
Procurement Issues: See Section FP1 of the Improvement Plan. 
Personnel Implications: See Sections HROD1-HROD4 of the 
Improvement Plan.  
Governance/Performance Management:  See Sections FP4 and PR2 
of the Improvement Plan. 
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998:  See section CP4 of the Improvement Plan 
Policy:  All sections of the Improvement Plan relate to this. 
Environmental:  See sections CP1 and PR5 of the Improvement Plan. 

 

Page 145



06/03/2009 

 
 
 
 12.    OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
  

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes  
 

Chief Executive 
 

At CMT 
Executive Director (Partnerships and 
Projects) 

At CMT 
Executive Director (Services)  
 

At CMT 
Assistant Chief Executive Yes 

 
Head of Service Yes  
Head of Financial Services At CMT 
Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

At CMT 
Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

At CMT 
Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 
 
13.  WARDS AFFECTED 
 
13.1 All wards  
 
14.   APPENDICES 

 
14.1  Appendix 1 Improvement Plan Exception Report January 2009 
 
15.     BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
 
15.1 The full Improvement Plan for January can be found at 

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk under meetings Minutes and Agendas. A 
hard copy is also left in the Members’ Room each month. 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER 
Name:   Brian Nicholls  
E Mail:  b.nicholls@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881443 
 

Page 146



Exception Report for January 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 06/03/2009 10:23 
 

5 

 
PROGRESS IN 2008/09 
 
Overall performance as at the end of January 2009, in comparison with the previous year, is as follows: -  

 

 

 

 
 

July 2007 August 2007 September 2007 October 2007 November 2007 December 2007 
RED 1 0.6% RED 1 0.7% RED 4 2.4% RED 3 1.8% RED 5 3.1% RED 3 2.0% 
AMBER 5 3.2% AMBER 13 9.2% AMBER 11 6.6% AMBER 16 9.6% AMBER 11 7.0% AMBER 17 11.6% 
GREEN 152 95.6% GREEN 126 88.7% GREEN 149 89.2% GREEN 142 85.0% GREEN 138 86.9% GREEN 121 82.3% 
REPRO 1 0.6% REPRO 2 1.4% REPRO 3 1.8% REPRO 6 3.6% REPRO 5 3.1% REPRO 6 4.1% 

January 2008 February 2008 March 2008 April 2008 May 2008 June 2008 
RED 2 1.4% RED 2 1.4% RED 2 1.5% RED 3 2.7% RED 8 7.55% RED 6 6.3% 
AMBER 16 11.4% AMBER 10 7.3% AMBER 10 7.4% AMBER 11 9.9% AMBER 4 3.8% AMBER 4 4.2% 
GREEN 118 84.3% GREEN 122 88.4% GREEN 117 86.7% GREEN 92 82.9% GREEN 86 81.1% GREEN 74 77.0% 
REPRO 4 2.9% REPRO 4 2.9% REPRO 6 4.4% REPRO 5 4.5% REPRO 8 7.55% REPRO 12 12.5% 

July 2008 August 2008 September 2008 October 2008 November 2008 December 2008 
RED 11 8.6% RED 17 14.4% RED 16 11.9% RED 15 10.6% RED 12 8.7% RED 13 9.9% 
AMBER 3 2.3% AMBER 4 3.4% AMBER 8 6.0% AMBER 7 5.0% AMBER 8 5.8% AMBER 5 3.9% 
GREEN 114 89.1% GREEN 96 81.4% GREEN 99 73.9% GREEN 104 73.8% GREEN 106 76.8% GREEN 100 76.3% 
REPRO 0 0% REPRO 1 0.8% REPRO* 11 8.2% REPRO 15 10.6% REPRO 12 8.7% REPRO 13 9.9% 

January 2009 February 2009 March 2009 April 2009 May 2009 June 2009 
RED 0 0% RED   RED   RED   RED   RED   
AMBER 4 3.6% AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   
GREEN 95 86.4% GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   
REPRO 11 10.0% REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   

P
age 147



Exception Report for January 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 06/03/2009 10:23 
 

6 

Where: - 
 
 On Target or 

completed 
 One month 

behind target 
or less 

 Over one 
month 
behind target 

 Original date 
of planned 
action 

 Re-
programmed 
date.* 

* NB. Reprogrammed actions are both those that have been suspended completely and those that have been moved to a later point in the 
year.  They are not actions that have been extended and they do not appear on the exception report. 
 
Out of the total of 112 actions for January 2009, 4 actions have been extended with approval.  This amounts to 3.6 percent of the 
original actions scheduled for this month.  Extended actions are shown with hatched marking and extend the timescale of a current 
or ongoing action on the Improvement Plan.  
 
An Exception Report detailing corrective actions follows: 
 
 

P
age 148



Exception Report for January 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 06/03/2009 10:23 
 

7 

 
 
 
 

 

CP4: Sense of Community 
Ref  December 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

4.3.1
3 

Establish monitoring & meeting 
arrangements set out in the SLA 
with the Artrix. 

 Work in this area is ongoing due to concern raised 
by the Operating Trust of the Artrix over some of the 
phrasing in the agreement document.  Extended to 
December. 

JG Jul-08 Feb 09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

4.3 Popularity of events programme  
 

4.3.13 Establish monitoring & 
meeting arrangements set 
out in the SLA with the 
Artrix. 

JG             Work in this area is ongoing due to 
concern raised by the Operating Trust of 
the Artrix over some of the phrasing in 
the agreement document.  Officers have 
forwarded the revised SLA to the 
Operating Trust and are awaiting 
feedback before commencing formal 
discussions.  Officers have yet to receive 
feedback and are at present chasing this 
issue up and requesting completion pre 
Christmas. A meeting is being held on 
the 17th Dec and it Is envisaged that the 
formal document will be signed by both 
parties in Feb 09.  

P
age 149



Exception Report for January 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 06/03/2009 10:23 
 

8 

 

CP4: Sense of Community 
Ref  December 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

4.3.1
4 

Agree service improvement plan 
and targets based on SLA, 
previous years performance and 
BDC user feedback out turns.  

 Work in this area is ongoing due to concern raised 
by the Operating Trust of the Artrix over some of the 
phrasing in the agreement document.  Extended to 
December. 

JG Jul-08 Feb-09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

4.3 Popularity of events programme  
 

4.3.14 Agree service improvement 
plan and targets based on 
SLA, previous years 
performance and BDC user 
feedback out turns.  

JG             As above. Work in this area is ongoing 
due to concern raised by the Operating 
Trust of the Artrix over some of the 
phrasing in the agreement document.  
Officers have forwarded the revised SLA 
to the Operating Trust and are awaiting 
feedback before commencing formal 
discussions.  A meeting is being held on 
the 17th Dec and it Is envisaged that the 
formal document will be signed by both 
parties in Feb 09.   

P
age 150



Exception Report for January 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 06/03/2009 10:23 
 

9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CP4: Sense of Community 
Ref  December 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

4.3.1
5 

Agree service improvement plan 
and targets based on SLA, 
previous years performance and 
BDC user feedback out turns.  

 Due to delays in the acceptance of the SLA work in 
this area has not yet been progressed.  

JG Sep-08 Jan-09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

4.3 Popularity of events programme  
 

4.3.15 Agree service improvement 
plan and targets based on 
SLA, previous years 
performance and BDC user 
feedback out turns.  

JG        
 

     Suspended as per 4.3.1.1    

P
age 151



Exception Report for January 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 06/03/2009 10:23 
 

10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PR5: Planning 
Ref December 2008 Action Colour Corrective Action Who Original 

Date 
Revised 
Date 

    DH Dec 08 Jan 09 
 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

14.5 Maintain Greenbelt through enforcement and upheld appeals 
14.5.1 Maintain training 

programme every 12 weeks 
             Next training event to include 

enforcement. Department 
attended Parish Council Forum at 
end of January. 

P
age 152



 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

17 MARCH 2009 
 

COUNCIL PLAN 2009-2012 PART 2 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Hollingworth,  
Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett, Assistant Chief 

Executive 
Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Council Plan 2009-2012 sets out the Council’s priorities for the next 

three years, defines these in terms of targets and actions and links our 
plans to the medium terms financial strategy.    

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
  
2.1 That PMB:- 
 

i. Considers the Council Plan 2009-2012 attached at Appendix 1, in 
particular, whether the targets and measures are appropriate and 
stretching. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Cabinet and Full Council re-confirmed the vision, Council objectives and 

reduced the number of priorities from five to four in September 2008.  The 
four priorities are:- 

 
• Town Centre 
• Housing 
• Sense of Community 
• Clean Streets and Climate Change 

 
3.2 The Council’s balanced scorecard within the Council Plan has been updated 

to reflect the changes and sets out these four priorities under the Customer 
perspective.  These are supported by priorities under each of the other three 
perspectives (Financial and Performance, Process, and Human Resources 
and Organisational Development).  

 
3.3 Some changes have been made within the other perspectives.  In line with 

the new CAA guidance the Financial perspective has been extended to 
encompass Performance and the priorities under this perspective are now 

Agenda Item 10

Page 153



‘Managing Finances’, ‘Governing the Business’, ‘Managing Resources’ and 
‘Managing Performance’.  ‘Value for Money’ pervades all of these priorities.   
The Process perspective includes a priority on the ‘Joint CEO with Redditch 
BC’ project which has replaced the ‘Spatial Project’ priority, and ‘Improved 
Governance’ has been altered slightly to give a new emphasis as ‘Political 
Governance’. Finally, the ‘Performance Culture’ priority under the HROD 
perspective has been dropped as it is covered in the Financial and 
Performance perspective.  

 
3.4 A key aspect of the Audit Commission’s assessment regime is the ability of 

public services to convert ambition from aspiration into reality through 
outcomes that can be recognised through perception monitoring.  The 
Council Plan 2009-2012 sets out a specific, measurable, agreed, realistic 
and time bound (SMART) strategic action plan that identifies the outcomes 
we are trying to achieve for each key deliverable, how we will know that we 
are progressing towards these outcomes, projects and resources in support 
of the outcomes, when we expect to deliver them and who is responsible.  

 
3.5 The Council Plan will need to be supplemented with further detail in order 

for Cabinet to oversee progress against it.  The key to this will be the 
development of the next detailed Improvement Plan which will be based on 
the Council Plan.  This work is due to take place between March and June 
2009.  Besides measuring progress on projects, Cabinet will also need to 
monitor progress on key indicators that relate to our priorities.  A new set of 
corporate performance indicators is currently being consulted upon and the 
Council Plan will be updated with a full list of these as soon as they are 
confirmed.  These indicators will be monitored throughout 2009/10. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1 These are as set out in the Medium Term Financial Plan approved at Full 

Council on 22nd January 2009.  
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no legal implications to this report. 
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  The Council Plan outlines the key deliverables in support of each of the 

Council priorities, which in turn, impact on the Council objectives.  
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1  The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 
 

• Failure to produce a clear direction for the Council for the next three 
years by not producing a Council Plan 

Page 154



• Failure to produce a clear framework against which Council activities 
and budgets can be aligned to priorities 

• Failure to produce a basis upon which the new Improvement Plan 
can be developed. 

  
7.2    These risks are being managed as follows:  

 
• Failure to produce a clear direction for the Council for the next three 

years by not producing a Council Plan: 
 

 Risk Register: CCPP 
 Key Objective Ref No: 08  
 Key Objective: Council Plan 
 
• Failure to produce a clear framework against which Council activities 

and budgets can be aligned to priorities: 
 

 Risk Register: Corporate 
 Key Objective Ref No: 1   
 Key Objective: Effective Financial Management and Internal Control 

 
• Failure to produce a basis upon which the new Improvement Plan 

can be developed. 
 

 Risk Register: CCPP 
 Key Objective Ref No: 05   

Key Objective: Drive delivery of the Improvement Plan, prepare the 
Council for its CPA re-inspection and prepare for CAA 

 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The Council Plan 2009-2012 will guide the Council’s future service delivery 

and will therefore have a direct impact on the Customer.  Specific Customer 
Implications are covered in CP1, CP3 and PR1 in Appendix 1. 

 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  Please see CP3 in Appendix 1. 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Please see FPP1, FPP2, FPP3 and FPP4 in Appendix 1. 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  

Procurement Issues 
A number of the strategic actions have procurement issues.  These 
are located in CP1, FPP2, FPP3, PR3 and PR4 in Appendix 1. 
 

Page 155



Personnel Implications 
Actions relating to personnel are located in FP3, HROD1, HROD2 
and HROD3 in Appendix 1. 
 
Governance/Performance Management 
Actions relating to governance and performance management are to 
be found in FP2, FP4 and PR2 in Appendix 1.  
 
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998 
Community Safety is covered under CP3 in Appendix 1. 
 
Policy  
The Council Plan takes account of the Local Government Act 2007 
and the Council Plan Part 1 referred to a range of policy documents.   
 
Environmental 
See CP4 and PR4 in Appendix 1 
 

 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder Yes 
Chief Executive Yes 
Executive Director (Partnerships and Projects)  Yes 
Executive Director (Services) Yes 
Assistant Chief Executive Yes 
Head of Service Yes 
Head of Financial Services 
(must approve Financial Implications before 
report submitted to Leader’s Group  

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
(for approval of any significant Legal 
Implications) 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
(for approval of any significant HR 
Implications) 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
(for approval of any procurement implications) 

No 
 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

 All Wards 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 Council Plan 2009-2012 

Page 156



  
 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Cabinet Report, Council Plan 2009/2012 Part 1, Bromsgrove District 
Council (September 2008). 

 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name : Hugh Bennett (Assistant Chief Executive) 
E Mail:     h.bennett@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881786 
 
   
      

Page 157



 

 

P
age 158



 
 

 

Page 159



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

2 

 

Page 160



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

3 

 CO
NT

EN
TS

 
 

PA
GE

 
1. 

Int
rod

uc
tio
n f
rom

 th
e L

ea
de
r o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il 

…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

5 
2. 

Ab
ou
t B

rom
sg
rov

e D
ist
ric
t 

…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

7 
3. 

Str
ate

gic
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 W

ork
ing

 
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

12
 

4. 
Se

ttin
g t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 Pr
ior
itie

s 
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

14
 

5. 
Ou

r V
isio

n, 
Va

lue
s, 
Co

un
cil 

Ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d 
Pr
ior
itie

s 
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

16
 

6. 
Co

un
cil’

s B
ala

nc
ed
 Sc

ore
ca
rd 

…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

19
 

7. 
Str

ate
gic

 Ac
tio
n P

lan
 

…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

21
 

8. 
Co

rpo
rat

e P
erf

orm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

52
 

9. 
Me

diu
m 
Te

rm
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

61
 

10
. 

Va
lue

 fo
r M

on
ey
 St

rat
eg
y 

…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

72
 

11
. 

Co
un
cil’

s P
erf

orm
an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 

…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

74
 

12
. 

Gl
os
sa
ry 
of 

Te
rm

s 
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
. 

76
 

Page 161



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

4 

 If 
yo
u 
req

uir
e 
thi
s 
do
cu
me

nt 
in 

lar
ge

 p
rin
t, 
Br
ail
le 

or 
au
dio

 ta
pe
, 

ple
as
e c

on
tac

t: 
Fio

na
 Sc

ott
, E

qu
ali
tie
s O

ffic
er,

  
Th

e C
ou
nc
il H

ou
se
, B

urc
ot 
La

ne
, B

rom
sg
rov

e, 
B6

0 1
AA

 
Te

l: 0
15
27

 88
17
19

, e
ma

il: 
f.s
co
tt@

bro
ms

gro
ve
.go

v.u
k 

    

Page 162



 
Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

5 
 1. 
 In
tro
du
cti
on
 fr
om

 th
e L

ea
de
r o
f th

e C
ou
nc
il 

W
elc

om
e t
o t
he
 

Br
om

sg
rov

e D
ist
ric
t 

Co
un
cil 

Pla
n. 

 Th
e P

lan
 

se
ts 
ou
t a
 “ro

ad
 m
ap
” fo

r 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 w
ork

 
be
tw
ee
n n

ow
 an

d 2
01
2. 

 
Th

e C
ou
nc
il o

pe
rat

es
 in
 a 

co
mp

lex
 en

vir
on
me

nt,
 

ha
vin

g t
o b

ala
nc
e p

ub
lic 

ex
pe
cta

tio
n o

f th
e 

Co
un
cil’

s s
erv

ice
s 

alo
ng
sid

e t
he
 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t’s
 sh

are
d 

pri
ori
tie
s f
or 

loc
al 

go
ve
rnm

en
t, s

tat
uto

ry 
ob
lig
ati
on
s a

nd
 th
e c

ou
nty

wid
e L

oc
al 
Ar
ea
 Ag

ree
me

nt,
 as

 w
ell
 

as
 un

de
rst
an
din

g t
he
 de

mo
gra

ph
ic 
iss

ue
s w

e f
ac
e, 

in 
pa
rtic

ula
r, a

 co
mm

uti
ng
 w
ork

for
ce
 an

d a
n a

ge
ing

 po
pu
lat
ion

.  
Th

e l
oc
al 
go
ve
rnm

en
t e
xp
en
dit
ure

 en
vir
on
me

nt 
ha
s b

ec
om

e 
mu

ch
 tig

hte
r in

 re
ce
nt 
ye
ars

 du
e t
o C

en
tra

l G
ov
ern

me
nt 

sp
en
din

g p
res

su
res

, s
o v

alu
e f

or 
mo

ne
y i
s n

ow
 m

ore
 im

po
rta

nt 
tha

n e
ve
r b

efo
re,

 pa
rtic

ula
rly
 in
 th

e c
urr

en
t c
lim

ate
 of
 ec

on
om

ic 
un
ce
rta

int
y. 
 To

 he
lp 
me

et 
thi
s a

ge
nd
a t
he
 C
ou
nc
il h

as
 be

en
 

ex
plo

rin
g j
oin

t w
ork

ing
 an

d s
ha
red

 se
rvi
ce
s o

pp
ort

un
itie

s w
ith
 

Re
dd
itc
h B

oro
ug
h C

ou
nc
il in

 Pa
yro

ll, 
Ele

cti
on
s, 
Co

mm
un
ity
 

Sa
fet

y a
nd
 Eq

ua
litie

s a
nd
 D
ive

rsi
ty 
se
rvi
ce
s, 
an
d i
n A

ug
us
t 

20
08
 Ke

vin
 D
ick

s t
oo
k o

n t
he
 ro

le 
of 
Ac

tin
g J

oin
t C

hie
f 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
 of

 bo
th 
Co

un
cils

 as
 pa

rt o
f a

 ye
ar-

lon
g p

roj
ec
t.  

Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as
 m
ad
e s

ign
ific

an
t p

rog
res

s i
n t
he
 la
st 
few

 
ye
ars

. W
e h

av
e b

ee
n i
n v

olu
nta

ry 
en
ga
ge
me

nt 
wit

h C
en
tra

l 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t s
inc

e 2
00
4 a

nd
 w
ere

 ra
ted

 as
 “P

oo
r” (

as
 w
e 

ex
pe
cte

d) 
wh

en
 ou

r fi
rst
 C
om

pre
he
ns
ive

 Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
rat

ing
 w
as
 pu

bli
sh
ed
 in
 Ju

ne
 20

07
.  A

 hu
ge
 

am
ou
nt 
of 
tim

e a
nd
 co

mm
itm

en
t b
y d

ed
ica

ted
 st
aff
 an

d 
Me

mb
ers

 ha
s b

ee
n a

 ke
y p

art
 of

 ou
r im

pro
ve
me

nt 
jou

rne
y a

nd
 

thi
s h

ard
 w
ork

 ha
s b

ee
n r

ec
og
nis

ed
 in
 ou

r n
ew

 C
PA

 ra
tin
g o

f 
“Fa

ir” 
wh

ich
 w
e a

ch
iev

ed
 in
 M
arc

h 2
00
9. 
 W

ith
 th
e n

ew
 

Co
mp

reh
en
siv

e A
rea

 As
se
ss
me

nt 
ins

pe
cti
on
 re

gim
e c

om
ing

 
int
o e

ffe
ct 
in 
Ap

ril 
20
09
 w
e b

eli
ev
e w

e a
re 

we
ll o

n o
ur 

wa
y t
o 

be
co
mi
ng
 an

 “E
xc
ell
en
t” C

ou
nc
il. 
W
e h

av
e a

 re
so
urc

ed
 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n t
ha
t is

 fo
cu
se
d o

n i
de
nti
fie
d p

erf
orm

an
ce
 

iss
ue
s, 
im
pro

ve
d M

em
be
r/M

em
be
r a

nd
 M
em

be
r/o

ffic
er 

rel
ati
on
s a

nd
 le
ad
ers

hip
 fro

m 
bo
th 

Me
mb

ers
 an

d s
en
ior
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt,
 so

me
thi
ng
 th

e C
ou
nc
il h

as
 be

en
 la
ck
ing

 in
 th
e 

pa
st.
   

Th
e C

ou
nc
il P

lan
 br

ing
s t
og
eth

er 
all
 th
e d

iffe
ren

t in
for

ma
tio
n 

tha
t in

flu
en
ce
s C

ou
nc
il s

erv
ice

s t
hro

ug
h t

he
 ba

lan
ce
d 

sc
ore

ca
rd 

tec
hn
iqu

e w
hic

h a
rtic

ula
tes

 ou
r a

mb
itio

ns
 fo
r th

e 
Co

un
cil 

an
d t
he
 D
ist
ric
t in

to 
me

as
ure

s o
f s
uc
ce
ss
 w
e 

un
de
rst
an
d a

nd
 ca

n w
ork

 to
wa

rd.
  T

he
 C
ou
nc
il P

lan
 is
 th
e 

sta
rtin

g p
oin

t fo
r d

riv
ing

 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
fra

me
wo

rk,
 m

ed
ium

 te
rm

 fin
an
cia

l p
lan

, a
nn
ua
l 

bu
dg
ets

 an
d c

orp
ora

te 
ris
k r
eg
ist
er.

  A
s a

 re
su
lt, 
we

 do
 no

t 
ex
pe
ct 
the

 Pl
an
 to
 be

 le
ft o

n a
 du

sty
 bo

ok
 sh

elf
, b
ut 
to 
be
 a 

livi
ng
 do

cu
me

nt,
 th
at 

de
cis

ion
-m

ak
ers

 re
fer

 to
 in
 or

de
r to

 
pro

vid
e a

n e
ffe

cti
ve
 st
rat

eg
ic 
dir
ec
tio
n f
or 

the
 C
ou
nc
il. 

  

Page 163



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

6 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as
 a 

Vis
ion

 fo
r th

e D
ist
ric
t a

nd
 th
e C

ou
nc
il, 
on
e 

tha
t w

e a
ll u

nd
ers

tan
d a

nd
 ow

n, 
an
d t
he
 C
ou
nc
il P

lan
 ex

pa
nd
s 

thi
s V

isio
n: 

“W
or

kin
g t

og
eth

er 
to 

bu
ild

 a 
dis

tri
ct 

wh
ere

 pe
op

le 
are

 
pr

ou
d t

o l
ive

 an
d w

or
k, 

thr
ou

gh
 co

mm
un

ity
 le

ad
ers

hip
 

an
d e

xc
ell

en
t s

erv
ice

s”
. 

W
ork

ing
 to

ge
the

r is
 cr
itic

al 
to 

de
live

rin
g t
his

 vi
sio

n. 
 In
 th
e p

as
t, 

the
 C
ou
nc
il h

as
 no

t w
ork

ed
 as

 a 
tea

m.
  P

rop
er 

po
litic

al 
de
ba
te,
 

rob
us
t s
cru

tin
y, 
Me

mb
er 

am
bit
ion

 an
d o

ffic
er 

ad
vic

e a
ll h

av
e 

the
ir p

lac
e w

ith
in 
a m

od
ern

 co
un
cil,

 bu
t th

is 
mu

st 
ha
pp
en
 

wit
hin

 a 
fra

me
wo

rk 
of 

res
pe
ct 
an
d r

ec
og
nit
ion

 th
at 
we

 ar
e a

ll 
he
re 

to 
se
rve

 ou
r c
om

mu
nit
ies

.  C
om

mu
nit
y l
ea
de
rsh

ip 
is 
als

o 
vit
al.
  A

s M
em

be
rs 
we

 ha
ve
 a 

du
ty 
to 

wo
rk 
wit

h a
nd
 

un
de
rst
an
d o

ur 
co
mm

un
itie

s; 
be
ing

 el
ec
ted

 ev
ery

 fo
ur 

ye
ars

 is
 

no
t e
no
ug
h. 

 W
e n

ee
d t
o e

ng
ag
e r

eg
ula

rly
 w
ith
 ou

r 
co
mm

un
itie

s, 
in 
ord

er 
to 
rep

res
en
t th

em
 an

d g
ive

 th
em

 a 
sa
y i
n 

de
cis

ion
s a

ffe
cti
ng
 th

eir
 lo
ca
l a
rea

s. 
  

Th
e m

ain
 is
su
es
 w
e f

ac
e a

s a
 D
ist
ric
t a

re 
de
tai
led

 in
 th
e n

ex
t 

se
cti
on
 of
 th
e P

lan
.  T

he
se
 in
clu

de
 th
e n

ee
d t
o r

eg
en
era

te 
ou
r 

tow
n c

en
tre

 so
 th
at 

it r
efl
ec
ts 
the

 w
ea
lth
 of
 th
e D

ist
ric
t a
nd
 

en
su
rin
g w

e h
av
e s

uff
icie

nt 
aff
ord

ab
le 
ho
us
ing

.  W
e h

av
e 

bro
ug
ht 

the
se
, p

lus
 ou

r o
the

r tw
o p

rio
riti
es
 an

d t
he
 w
ork

 w
e 

ha
ve
 un

de
rta

ke
n t
o d

ev
elo

p t
he
 C
ou
nc
il t
og
eth

er 
un
de

r th
e 

“B
uil
din

g P
rid
e” 

ba
nn
er:

- 

 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il P

lan
 w
as
 de

ve
lop

ed
 by

 M
em

be
rs 
an
d o

ffic
ers

 
co
ns
ide

rin
g a

 ra
ng
e o

f in
for

ma
tio
n f

rom
 re

sid
en
ts 
inc

lud
ing

 
cu
sto

me
r s
urv

ey
s a

nd
 fo
cu
s g

rou
ps
, P

lac
e S

urv
ey
 re

su
lts
, 

PA
CT

 an
d L

oc
al 
Ne

igh
bo
urh

oo
d P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
fee

db
ac
k a

s w
ell
 

as
 co

ns
ide

rin
g o

ur 
cu
rre

nt 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
, n
ati
on
al 
leg

isla
tio
n, 

the
 C
ou
nty

 an
d D

ist
ric
t C

om
mu

nit
y S

tra
teg

ies
 an

d o
ur 

fin
an
cia

l 
po
sit
ion

.  I
 ve

ry 
mu

ch
 ho

pe
 th
at 

the
 Pl

an
 re

fle
cts

 th
e b

es
t p
art

 
of 

loc
al,
 co

un
ty,
 re

gio
na
l a
nd
 na

tio
na
l a
sp
ira
tio
ns
 fo
r o

ur 
Dis

tric
t.  

I w
an
t th

is 
to 
be
co
me

 an
 on

-go
ing

 pr
oc
es
s, 
on
e o

f 
dia

log
ue
.  W

ith
 th

is 
in 
mi
nd
, e
ve
ry 
ye
ar 

we
 w
ill r

efr
es
h t

he
 

Co
un
cil 

Pla
n t

o e
ns
ure

 w
e a

re 
list

en
ing

 an
d r

efl
ec
tin
g t
he
 

vie
ws

 of
 ou

r c
om

mu
nit
ies

. 
 

 
 

Ro
ge

r H
oll

ing
wo

rth
 

Ke
vin

 D
ick

s 
Le
ad
er 

of 
the

 C
ou
nc
il 

Ac
tin
g J

oin
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu
tiv
e o

f 
Br
om

sg
rov

e D
ist
ric
t a

nd
 

Re
dd
itc
h B

oro
ug
h C

ou
nc
ils 

 An
 el
ec
tro

nic
 ve

rsi
on
 of

 th
is 
pla

n c
an
 be

 fo
un
d o

n o
ur 

we
bs
ite
: 

ww
w.

br
om

sg
ro

ve
.go

v.u
k

Page 164



 
Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

7 
 2. 
 Ab

ou
t B
ro
ms

gr
ov
e D

ist
ric
t 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

 Br
om

sg
rov

e D
ist
ric
t is

 in
 no

rth
 W

orc
es
ter

sh
ire
, c
ov
eri
ng
 a 

lar
ge
 ar

ea
 of
 ap

pro
xim

ate
ly 
83
.9 
sq
ua
re 

mi
les

.  W
hil
st 
on
ly 
14
 

mi
les

 fro
m 

the
 ce

ntr
e o

f B
irm

ing
ha
m,

 th
e L

ick
ey
 H
ills

 co
un
try
 

pa
rk 
pro

vid
es
 an

 im
po
rta

nt 
div

idi
ng
 lin

e b
etw

ee
n t
he
 ur

ba
n 

W
es
t M

idl
an
ds
 C
on
urb

ati
on
 an

d t
he
 ru

ral
 la
nd
sc
ap
e o

f n
ort

h 
W
orc

es
ter

sh
ire
.  N

ine
ty 

pe
rce

nt 
of 
the

 D
ist
ric
t is

 
gre

en
be
lt w

hic
h c

rea
tes

 
dif
fic
ult
ies

 fo
r h

ou
sin

g 
po
licy

.  F
ou
r ra

dia
l ro

ute
s 

pa
ss
 th
rou

gh
 th
e D

ist
ric
t, 

ea
ch
 se

rve
d b

y r
ail
wa

y 
lin
es
 an

d m
ajo

r ro
ad
s, 

inc
lud

ing
 th

e M
5 r

un
nin

g 
no
rth

 an
d s

ou
th,

 th
e M

42
 

run
nin

g e
as
t a
nd
 w
es
t, 

wit
h f

urt
he
r li
nk
s t
o t
he
 

M4
0 a

nd
 M
6. 

 Da
ta 

su
gg
es
ts 
tha

t 1
6,6

43
 pe

op
le 
tra

ve
l in

to 
the

 D
ist
ric
t fo

r 
wo

rk,
 w
ith
 26

,11
2 (

29
%)

 of
 th
e p

op
ula

tio
n t
rav

ell
ing

 ou
t, a

 ne
t 

co
mm

ute
 ou

t o
f 9

,46
9.1
  O

ur 
ma

in 
co
mm

un
itie

s a
re 

de
tai
led

 in
 

the
 m
ap
 (a

bo
ve
).  

Th
e D

ist
ric
t h

as
 no

 w
ard

s i
n t

he
 to
p 2

0%
 

mo
st 
de
pri
ve
d i
n E

ng
lan

d.2
 

 
    

    
    

    
    
    

    
    

    
    

    
1  O

NS
 20

01
 C

en
su

s 
2  D

CL
G 

Ind
ice

s o
f M

ult
ipl

e D
ep

riv
ati

on
 20

07
 

Po
pu

lat
ion

 
 Th

e p
op
ula

tio
n o

f th
e D

ist
ric
t is

 92
,30

03  an
d t
he
 O
ffic

e f
or 

Na
tio
na
l S

tat
ist
ics

 pr
ed
ict
s t
ha
t th

is 
wil

l in
cre

as
e b

y 2
0.5

% 
ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
23
 ye

ars
 to
 11

1,2
00
 in
 20

31
.4   
Th

e o
ve
r 6

5 
po
pu
lat
ion

 to
tal
s 1

7,0
00
 (1

8.4
% 

of 
the

 po
pu
lat
ion

)5  a
nd
 th
is 

old
er 

po
pu
lat
ion

 is
 pr

ed
ict
ed
 to
 ex

pa
nd
 as

 a 
pro

po
rtio

n o
f th

e 
ov
era

ll D
ist
ric
t p

op
ula

tio
n s

ign
ific

an
tly
 ov

er 
the

 ne
xt 
20
-25

 
ye
ars

, w
ith
 th

e o
ve
r 8

0s
 po

pu
lat
ion

 es
tim

ate
d t
o i
nc
rea

se
 by

 
13
2%

 by
 20

31
.6   

 Th
ere

 ar
e 3

7,4
92
 ho

us
eh
old

s i
n t

he
 D
ist
ric
t.7  T

he
 cu

rre
nt 

rev
iew

 of
 th
e R

eg
ion

al 
Sp

ati
al 
Str

ate
gy
 is
 lik

ely
 to

 re
qu
ire
 

ho
me

s f
or 

3,0
00
-7,

00
0 h

ou
se
ho
lds

 to
 be

 bu
ilt 
in 
the

 D
ist
ric
t in

 
the

 ne
xt 
25
 ye

ars
 an

d i
t is

 al
so
 pr

ob
ab
le 
tha

t th
e D

ist
ric
t w

ill 
ha
ve
 to

 ta
ke
 so

me
 of
 R
ed
dit
ch
 Bo

rou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 ho
us
ing

 
all
oc
ati
on
.   

 Th
e b

lac
k a

nd
 m
ino

rity
 et

hn
ic 
po
pu
lat
ion

 (B
ME

) is
 6.

4%
, w

hic
h 

is 
low

 fo
r th

e r
eg
ion

 an
d n

ati
on
all
y. 
 Th

is 
pe
rce

nta
ge
 

co
mp

ris
es
 1%

 Iri
sh
, 2
.6%

 As
ian

, 1
.2%

 M
ixe

d, 
1.0

% 
Bla

ck
 an

d 
0.6

% 
Ch

ine
se
.8   
Th

ere
 ar

e n
o d

efi
nit
ive

 da
ta 
so
urc

es
 fo
r th

e 
mi
gra

nt 
wo

rke
r p

op
ula

tio
n l
ivin

g i
n B

rom
sg
rov

e, 
bu
t in

dic
ati
ve
 

fig
ure

s s
ug
ge
st 
thi
s i
s i
n t

he
 re

gio
n o

f 0
.2%

.9   
 

     
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

    
    

3  O
NS

 20
07

 M
id-

Ye
ar 

Po
pu

lat
ion

 Es
tim

ate
s  

4  O
NS

 20
06

 Su
bn

ati
on

al 
po

pu
lat

ion
 pr

oje
cti

on
s 

5  O
NS

 20
07

 M
id-

Ye
ar 

Po
pu

lat
ion

 Es
tim

ate
s 

6  O
NS

 20
06

 Su
bn

ati
on

al 
po

pu
lat

ion
 pr

oje
cti

on
s 

7  W
orc

es
ter

sh
ire

 C
ou

nty
 C

ou
nc

il R
SS

 H
ou

se
ho

ld 
Fo

rec
as

ts 
Re

po
rt 2

00
8 

8  O
NS

 20
06

 R
es

ide
nt 

Po
pu

lat
ion

 Es
tim

ate
s b

y E
thn

ic 
Gr

ou
p 

9  W
orc

es
ter

 C
ou

nty
 Ec

on
om

ic 
As

se
ss

me
nt 

20
07

-20
08

 

Page 165



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

8 

Ec
on

om
y 

 Th
e e

co
no
mi
c p

ict
ure

 of
 th
e D

ist
ric
t is

 ge
ne
ral
ly 
ve
ry 
po

sit
ive

 
in 
sp
ite
 of
 th
e c

urr
en
t e
co
no
mi
c d

ow
ntu

rn.
  T

he
 m
ea
n 

ho
us
eh
old

 in
co
me

 is
 £3

8,6
90
, w

hic
h i
s t
he
 hi
gh
es
t in

 th
e 

co
un
ty 
(th

e c
ou
nty

 av
era

ge
 is
 £3

5,6
56
).10

  T
he
re 

are
 th
ree

 
ma

jor
 ar

ea
s o

f e
co
no
mi
c r
eg
en
era

tio
n w

ith
in 
the

 D
ist
ric
t: t

he
 

Lo
ng
bri
dg
e s

ite
, B

rom
sg
rov

e t
ow

n c
en
tre

 an
d B

rom
sg
rov

e 
rai
lwa

y s
tat

ion
.  I
n A

pri
l 2
00
5, 

pa
rts
 of
 Ph

oe
nix

 Ve
ntu

re 
Ho

ldi
ng
s (
PV

H)
, m

os
t s
ign

ific
an
tly
 M
G 
Ro

ve
r a

nd
 Po

we
rTr

ain
 

en
ter

ed
 ad

mi
nis

tra
tio
n, 
res

ult
ing

 in
 th
e c

los
ure

 of
 th
e 

Lo
ng
bri
dg
e c

ar 
pla

nt.
  T

he
se
 pa

rts
 of
 th
e G

rou
p e

mp
loy

ed
 

aro
un
d 5

,85
0 p

eo
ple

 in
 th

e W
es
t M

idl
an
ds
 an

d a
n e

sti
ma

ted
 

£4
10
m 

wa
s s

pe
nt 

wit
h f

irm
s b

as
ed
 in
 th
e W

es
t M

idl
an
ds
 as

 
pa
rt o

f th
e s

up
ply

 ch
ain

.  W
hil
st 
un
em

plo
ym

en
t le

ve
ls 
na

tur
all
y 

inc
rea

se
d w

ith
 th

e c
los

ure
, th

e D
ist
ric
t’s
 un

em
plo

ym
en
t le

ve
ls 

ha
ve
 si
nc
e r

etu
rne

d t
o v

ery
 lo
w 
lev

els
 (1

.8%
)11
, a
lth
ou
gh
 

un
em

plo
ym

en
t is

 pr
ed
ict
ed
 to
 ris

e n
ati
on
all
y a

s t
he
 co

un
try
 

en
ter

s r
ec
es
sio

n. 
  B

rom
sg
rov

e t
ow

n c
en
tre

 ne
ed
s a

 m
ajo

r 
ov
erh

au
l to

 en
co
ura

ge
 lo
ca
l s
ho
pp
ing

 an
d t
o b

e a
ble

 to
 

co
mp

ete
 w
ith
 ne

igh
bo
uri
ng
 sh

op
pin

g c
en
tre

s. 
 Br

om
sg
rov

e 
sta

tio
n i
s t
he
 th

ird
 ar

ea
 of

 co
nc
ern

.  T
he
 cu

rre
nt 

sta
tio
n 

fac
iliti

es
 ar

e n
ot 

co
ns
ide

red
 fit
 fo
r p

urp
os
e a

nd
 a 
fea

sib
ility

 
stu

dy
 is
 cu

rre
ntl
y b

ein
g c

arr
ied

 ou
t o
n t
he
 po

ss
ibl
e r

ed
es
ign

 of
 

the
 st
ati
on
 so

 th
at 
it c

an
 ta

ke
 bi
gg
er 

tra
ins

 an
d m

ore
 

pa
ss
en
ge
rs 
an
d a

n i
nc
rea

se
 of
 at
 le
as
t 3
00
 ad

dit
ion

al 
ca
r 

pa
rki
ng
 sp

ac
es
.  T

his
 w
ou
ld 
he
lp 
“fu

tur
e p

roo
f” t

he
 st
ati
on
 

ag
ain

st 
an
y c

ha
ng
es
 to
 tra

ns
po
rt c

ha
rge

s t
ha
t m

ay
 af
fec

t 
Bir

mi
ng
ha
m 
cit
y c

en
tre

. T
he
 ra

ilw
ay
 st
ati
on
 w
ill b

e f
un
de
d b

y a
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 an

d n
eg
oti
ati
on
s b

etw
ee
n N

etw
ork

 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

10
 P

ay
Ch

ec
k 2

00
8 

11
 W

CC
 C

ou
nty

 Ec
on

om
ic 

Su
mm

ary
 Au

gu
st 

20
08

 

Ra
il a

nd
 al
l th

e o
the

r p
art

ne
rs 
are

 cu
rre

ntl
y t
ak
ing

 pl
ac
e t

o p
ut 

tog
eth

er 
the

 fu
nd
ing

 pa
ck
ag
e. 

 U
nti
l th

e f
un
din

g p
ac
ka
ge
 is
 

fin
ali
se
d a

 sp
ec
ific

 da
te 
of 

co
mp

let
ion

 ca
nn
ot 
be
 pr

ov
ide

d. 
 Su

sta
ina

ble
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
 W
e a

ll n
ee
d t
o m

ak
e a

 de
cis

ive
 m

ov
e t

ow
ard

 m
ore

 su
sta

ina
ble

 
de
ve
lop

me
nt,
 no

t ju
st 
be
ca
us
e i
t is

 th
e r

igh
t th

ing
 to

 do
, b
ut 

als
o b

ec
au
se
 it 
is 
in 
ou
r o

wn
 lo
ng
-te

rm
 be

st 
int
ere

sts
.  B

y 
thi
nk
ing

 ab
ou
t th

e w
ay
 in
 w
hic

h w
e d

o t
hin

gs
 an

d b
ec
om

ing
 

mo
re 

su
sta

ina
ble

, w
e c

an
 m
ee
t o
ur 

ow
n n

ee
ds
 w
ith
ou
t 

co
mp

rom
isin

g t
he
 ab

ility
 of

 fu
tur

e g
en
era

tio
ns
 to
 m
ee
t th

eir
 

ne
ed
s. 
 Th

is 
is 
the

 co
nc
ep
t o
f s
us
tai
na
ble

 de
ve
lop

me
nt,
 an

d 
mu

st 
un
de
rpi
n a

ll o
f o

ur 
ac
tio
ns
.  W

e a
lre
ad
y h

av
e a

 nu
mb

er 
of 

ini
tia
tiv
es
 in
 pl
ac
e t
o h

elp
 im

pro
ve
 ou

r s
us
tai
na
bil
ity
.  T

he
 

Co
un
cil 

Ho
us
e i
s i
n t
he
 pr

oc
es
s o

f s
wit

ch
ing

 to
 10

0%
 gr

ee
n 

ele
ctr
icit

y, 
an
d p

art
 of
 ou

r p
ow

er 
co
me

s f
rom

 so
lar
 pa

ne
ls 
on
 

ou
r ro

of.
  W

e u
se
 10

0%
 re

cy
cle

d p
ap
er,

 an
d e

nc
ou
rag

e 
rec

yc
lin
g i
n h

ou
se
 an

d i
n t

he
 w
ide

r D
ist
ric
t.  
We

 ar
e a

lso
 

sig
ne
d u

p t
o t
he
 W

orc
es
ter

sh
ire
 ca

r s
ha
rin
g s

ch
em

e. 
  

 Th
e L

oc
al 
Str

ate
gic

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

’s 
Be

tte
r E

nv
iro
nm

en
t G

rou
p 

ha
s a

 nu
mb

er 
of 
pro

jec
ts 
un
de
rw
ay
 ai
mi
ng
 to

 re
du
ce
 ou

r 
ca
rbo

n f
oo
tpr

int
, h
elp

 co
ns
erv

e a
nd
 en

ha
nc
e o

ur 
bio

div
ers

ity
, 

an
d r

ed
uc
e p

oll
uti
on
. T

he
 C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 its

 pa
rtn

ers
 w
an
t to

 
en
su
re 

tha
t th

e s
eri
ou
s i
ss
ue
 of
 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
 is
 ad

dre
ss
ed
, 

an
d t
he
 C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 th
e L

SP
 ha

ve
 th

ere
for

e m
ad
e c

lim
ate

 
ch
an
ge
 a 
pri
ori
ty.
  T

he
re 

are
 se

ve
ral
 N
ati
on
al 
Ind

ica
tor

s 
aro

un
d c

lim
ate

 ch
an
ge
 w
hic

h n
ee
d t
o b

e p
erf

orm
an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
d a

nd
 m
on
ito
red

.  A
 bu

dg
et 
bid

 ha
s t
he
ref

ore
 be

en
 

su
bm

itte
d t
o t
he
 C
ab
ine

t to
 em

plo
y a

 de
dic

ate
d C

lim
ate

 
Ch

an
ge
 O
ffic

er 
to 
all
ow

 th
es
e i
ss
ue
s t
o b

e c
on
sid

ere
d 

str
ate

gic
all
y, 
pro

vid
e t

ec
hn
ica

l a
dv
ice

 on
 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
, 

Page 166



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

9 

en
vir
on
me

nta
l a
nd
 br

oa
de
r s
us
tai
na
bil
ity
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s 
inc

lud
ing

 cu
rre

nt 
an
d f
ort

hc
om

ing
 le
gis

lat
ion

, re
gu
lat
ion

s a
nd
 

req
uir
em

en
ts 
for

 lo
ca
l g
ov
ern

me
nt,

 an
d t
ran

sla
te 

thi
s i
nto

 
se
rvi
ce
 ar

ea
s’ 
ne
ed
 to
 im

ple
me

nt 
to 
en
su
re 

co
mp

lia
nc
e. 
  

 Af
for

da
ble

 H
ou

sin
g 

 On
e o

f th
e b

igg
es
t is

su
es
 fa

cin
g t
he
 D
ist
ric
t is

 af
for

da
ble

 
ho
us
ing

:  8
3.4

% 
of 
ho
us
eh
old

s a
re 

ow
ne
r o

cc
up
ied

,12  
the

 11
th  

hig
he
st 
fig
ure

 in
 En

gla
nd
 an

d W
ale

s, 
an
d t
he
 av

era
ge
 ho

us
e 

pri
ce
 be

ing
 £2

40
,86

7, 
alt
ho
ug
h t

his
 fig

ure
 is
 fa
llin

g i
n l
ine

 w
ith
 

the
 gl
ob
al 
ec
on
om

ic 
do
wn

tur
n.1

3  Th
e C

ou
nc
il is

 cu
rre

ntl
y 

op
era

tin
g a

 pl
an
nin

g m
ora

tor
ium

 w
ith
 on

ly 
aff
ord

ab
le 
ho
us
ing

 
de
ve
lop

me
nts

 be
ing

 bu
ilt.
  T

he
 H
ou
sin

g S
tra

teg
y h

as
 a 

tar
ge
t 

of 
80
 un

its
 of
 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 a 
ye
ar 

for
 th
e n

ex
t th

ree
 

ye
ars

. 
 Ed

uc
ati

on
, D

ep
riv

ati
on

 an
d H

ea
lth

  
 Th

e p
erc

en
tag

e o
f th

e p
op
ula

tio
n q

ua
lifie

d t
o N

VQ
 Le

ve
l 4
 is
 

sig
nif
ica

ntl
y h

igh
er 

tha
n a

ve
rag

e. 
 G
CS

E r
es
ult
s g

ain
ed
 at
 

loc
al 
au
tho

rity
 sc

ho
ols

 an
d c

oll
eg
es
 in
 W

orc
es
ter

sh
ire
 in
 20

08
 

we
re 

am
on
gs
t th

e h
igh

es
t in

 th
e c

ou
ntr

y (
64
.4%

 ac
hie

ve
d f
ive

 
or 

mo
re 

GC
SE

s a
t A

*-C
).14

  T
he
 D
ist
ric
t ra

nk
s 2

99
th 
ou
t o
f 3

54
 

co
un
cils

 on
 th
e n

ati
on
al 
ind

ex
 of

 m
ult
ipl
e d

ep
riv
ati
on
 20

07
 

(w
he
re 

1 i
s t
he
 m
os
t d
ep
riv
ed
), m

ak
ing

 th
e D

ist
ric
t o

ne
 of
 th
e 

lea
st 
de
pri
ve
d n

ati
on
all
y. 15

 It 
is 
als

o t
he
 on

ly 
dis

tric
t in

 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
12

 O
NS

 20
01

 C
en

su
s 

13
 S

ou
th 

Ho
us

ing
 M

ark
et 

As
se

ss
me

nt 
Ap

ril 
20

07
 

14
 W

orc
es

ter
sh

ire
 LE

A K
ey

 St
ag

e 4
 re

su
lts

 20
07

/08
 

15
 &

 1
6 

DC
LG

 In
dic

es
 of

 M
ult

ipl
e D

ep
riv

ati
on

 20
07

 

W
orc

es
ter

sh
ire
 to
 ha

ve
 be

co
me

 le
ss
 de

pri
ve
d s

inc
e 2

00
4.1

6  
On

ly 
64
0 h

ou
se
ho
lds

 ar
e i
n r

ec
eip

t o
f b

en
efi
ts 
in 
the

 D
ist
ric
t, 

on
e o

f th
e l
ow

es
t fi
gu
res

 in
 W

orc
es
ter

sh
ire
.17  
 As

 a 
res

ult
, 

ide
nti
fyi
ng
 th

e v
uln

era
ble

 w
ith
in 
ou
r c
om

mu
nit
ies

 is
 m
ore

 
dif
fic
ult
 th
an
 a 
dis

tric
t w

ith
 ge

og
rap

hic
 ar

ea
s o

f d
ep
riv
ati
on
. 

 Ge
ne
ral
ly,
 th

e D
ist
ric
t’s
 po

pu
lat
ion

 is
 he

alt
hie

r th
an
 th
e 

reg
ion

al 
av
era

ge
.  Y

ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
(18

-24
) h

av
e a

 hi
gh
 ris

k 
sta

tus
 be

ing
 th
e m

os
t li
ke
ly 
to 

sm
ok
e, 

bin
ge
 dr

ink
 an

d n
ot 
tak

e 
ex
erc

ise
.  P

ote
nti
all
y, 
we

 co
uld

 be
 st
ori
ng
 up

 pr
ob
lem

s i
n o

ur 
yo
un
g p

eo
ple

.  A
 re

ce
nt 

Pr
im
ary

 C
are

 Tr
us
t (P

CT
) a

nn
ua
l 

rep
ort

 no
ted

 th
at 
ou
r c
hil
dre

n’s
 he

alt
h i
s g

oo
d, 
bu
t th

ere
 is
 a 

ne
ed
 fo

r m
ore

 ch
ild
 an

d a
do
les

ce
nt 
me

nta
l h
ea
lth
 se

rvi
ce
s. 
 

Th
e P

CT
 re

tai
n a

 co
nc
ern

 (s
ha
red

 by
 th

e C
ou
nc
il’s

 ow
n 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Sa

fet
y T

ea
m)

 th
at 

do
me

sti
c v

iol
en
ce
 re

ma
ins

 
“co

mm
on
 pl
ac
e”.

 Th
e r

ate
 of
 te
en
ag
e p

reg
na
nc
ies

 in
 

Br
om

sg
rov

e i
n 2

00
6 w

as
 23

.6 
co
nc
ep
tio
ns
 pe

r 1
,00

0 f
em

ale
s, 

wh
ich

 is
 al
mo

st 
ha
lf t
ha
t o
f th

e E
ng
lan

d a
ve
rag

e o
f 4

1.1
.18  

 Cr
im

e a
nd

 Fe
ar 

of 
Cr

im
e 

At 
the

 en
d o

f th
e 2

00
7/0

8 y
ea
r, c

rim
e h

ad
 re

du
ce
d b

y 3
2%

 in
 

the
 D
ist
ric
t, s

urp
as
sin

g t
he
 ta
rge

t o
f a

 17
.5%

 re
du
cti
on
 fro

m 
the

 20
03
/04

 ba
se
lin
e r

es
ult
s.19

 Th
is 
wa

s e
xc
ep
tio
na
l w

he
n 

co
mp

are
d t
o t
he
 na

tio
na
l re

du
cti
on
 of
 ju
st 
4%

, a
nd
 th
e c

ou
nty

-
wid

e f
igu

re 
of 
24
%.

 R
ed
uc
tio
ns
 w
ere

 se
en
 in
 al
l B

riti
sh
 C
rim

e 
Su

rve
y c

om
pa
rat

or 
cri
me

 ty
pe
s, 
wit

h t
he
 la
rge

st 
de
cre

as
e 

be
ing

 se
en
 in
 do

me
sti
c b

urg
lar
y a

t 5
3%

 an
d t
he
 sm

all
es
t in

 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

    
    

16
 ib

id 
17

 W
orc

es
ter

 C
ou

nty
 Ec

on
om

ic 
As

se
ss

me
nt 

20
07

-20
08

 
18

 D
H 

20
08

 Br
om

sg
rov

e H
ea

lth
 Pr

ofi
le 

 
19

 B
riti

sh
 C

rim
e S

urv
ey

 20
08

 

Page 167



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

10
 

cri
mi
na
l d
am

ag
e w

hic
h o

nly
 re

du
ce
d b

y 1
2%

 co
mp

are
d t
o t
he
 

ba
se
lin
e y

ea
r 2

00
3/0

4. 
Fe

ar 
of 

cri
me

, h
ow

ev
er,

 re
ma

ins
 a 
pro

ble
m 

in 
the

 D
ist
ric
t 

de
sp
ite
 th
e r

ed
uc
tio
n i
n a

ctu
al 
cri
me

 in
 20

07
/08

.  8
0%

 of
 

res
ide

nts
 re

sp
on
din

g t
o t

he
 20

08
 W

es
t M

erc
ia 
Cr
im
e a

nd
 

Sa
fet

y S
urv

ey
 in
dic

ate
d t

ha
t th

ey
 ha

ve
 be

en
 fe
arf

ul 
ab
ou
t th

e 
po
ss
ibi
lity

 of
 an

y c
rim

es
 ha

pp
en
ing

 to
 th
em

 in
 th

eir
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d i
n t
he
 la
st 
12
 m
on
ths

, c
om

pa
red

 to
 ju
st 
56
% 

in 
the

 20
07
 su

rve
y. 
 Pe

op
le 
we

re 
mo

st 
fea

rfu
l o
f h

ou
se
 bu

rgl
ary

, 
va
nd
ali
sm

 or
 da

ma
ge
 to
 pr

op
ert

y a
nd
 ha

vin
g t
he
ir c

ar 
bro

ke
n 

in 
to,

 de
sp
ite
 si
gn
ific

an
t re

du
cti
on
s i
n a

ll o
f th

es
e c

rim
e t

yp
es
 

du
rin
g 2

00
7/0

8. 
 H
ow

ev
er,

 re
sid

en
ts 
mo

st 
co
mm

on
ly 
ide

nti
fie
d 

the
 fo
llo
win

g i
ss
ue
s a

s n
ee
din

g t
o b

e a
dd
res

se
d f

irs
t, 

co
ns
ide

rin
g t
he
m 
to 
be
 th

e w
ors

t p
rob

lem
s i
n t
he
ir 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d: 

sp
ee
din

g t
raf

fic
; g
rou

ps
 of
 pe

op
le 
loi
ter

ing
 

aro
un
d i
n p

ub
lic 

pla
ce
s a

nd
 un

de
rag

e d
rin
kin

g.20
 

  Re
gu

lat
or

y, 
Po

liti
ca

l, M
an

ag
eri

al 
an

d F
ina

nc
ial

 C
on

tex
t 

 Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as
 a 
ma

jor
ity
 C
on
se
rva

tiv
e a

dm
ini
str
ati
on

, w
ith
 

tw
en
ty-
se
ve
n C

on
se
rva

tiv
es
, s
ix 
La
bo
ur,

 fo
ur 

Ind
ep
en
de
nts

, 
an
d t
wo

 W
yth

all
 R
es
ide

nts
’ A

ss
oc
iat
ion

.  T
he
 C
ou
nc
il o

pe
rat

es
 

a m
od
ern

ise
d p

oli
tic
al 
str
uc
tur

e w
ith
 th
e L

ea
de
r/C

ab
ine

t 
mo

de
l, s

up
po
rte

d b
y t
hre

e n
on
-E
xe
cu
tiv
e B

oa
rds

: A
ud
it B

oa
rd,

 
Sc

rut
iny

 St
ee
rin
g B

oa
rd 

an
d P

erf
orm

an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Bo
ard

.  T
he
re 

is 
als

o a
 Pl

an
nin

g C
om

mi
tte
e, 
Sta

nd
ard

s 
Co

mm
itte

e a
nd
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 C
om

mi
tte

e. 
 Th

e C
ou
nc
il h

as
 a 

Co
rpo

rat
e M

an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m 

(C
MT

) a
nd
 a 
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
, 

Ke
vin

 D
ick

s. 
     

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

20
 W

es
t M

erc
ia 

Cr
im

e a
nd

 Sa
fet

y S
urv

ey
 20

08
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as
 a 
ne
t b
ud
ge
t o
f  £

11
.98

4 (
20
09
/10

), a
 

pla
nn
ed
 C
ou
nc
il T

ax
 in
cre

as
e o

f 4
.45

% 
an
d G

ov
ern

me
nt 

Gr
an
t o
f £
4.9

45
m.

  T
he
 C
ou
nc
il e

mp
loy

s 3
68
 st
aff
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as
 ha

d a
 Jo

int
 C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
e w

ith
 R
ed
dit
ch
 

Bo
rou

gh
 C
ou
nc
il o

n a
 tri
al 
ba
sis

 si
nc
e A

ug
us
t 2
00
8. 

 Th
e 

pu
rpo

se
 of
 th

is 
ye
ar-

lon
g p

roj
ec
t is

 to
 ex

plo
re 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r 

joi
nt 

wo
rki
ng
 be

tw
ee
n b

oth
 co

un
cils

 an
d t

he
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f 

sh
are

d s
erv

ice
s. 
 Pr

og
res

s i
s m

on
ito
red

 on
 a 
reg

ula
r b

as
is 
by
 

bo
th 
the

 Ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n a

nd
 th
e G

ov
ern

me
nt 
Mo

nit
ori
ng
 

Bo
ard

, a
nd
 a 
rev

iew
 is
 pl
an
ne
d f
or 

the
 su

mm
er 

20
09
 to

 
as
ce
rta

in 
the

 su
cc
es
s o

f th
is 
pro

jec
t.

Page 168



 
Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

11
 

  Ta
ble

 3 
- A
bo
ut 
Br
om

sg
ro
ve
 D
ist
ric
t  

 
 

  
    

    Siz
e A

rea
:  

    
   

 
83
.9 
sq
ua
re 

mi
les

 
    P

op
ula

tio
n: 

 
 

92
,30

0 
 Ho

us
eh

old
s: 

    
    

37
,49

2 
 To

wn
s a

nd
 

lar
ge

 vi
lla

ge
s: 

 Br
om

sg
rov

e, 
Ha

gle
y, 
 

 
  

 
    

    
   R

ub
ery

, W
yth

all
 

    M
ain

 Em
plo

ym
en

t: 
Pu

bli
c A

dm
ini
str
ati
on
, E

du
ca
tio
n &

 
 

  
 

    
    

   H
ea
lth
 (2

5.9
%)

; D
ist
rib
uti
on
, H

ote
ls,
 

 
  

 
    

    
   &

 R
es
tau

ran
ts 
(23

.1%
) 

 Un
em

plo
ym

en
t: 

 
1.8

% 
 Et

hn
ici

ty:
  

 
6.4

% 
 De

pr
iva

tio
n R

an
kin

g: 
29
9 o

ut 
of 
35
4 

 

Page 169



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

12
 

3. 
 St
rat
eg
ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 W
or
kin

g 
Br

om
sg

ro
ve

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
Th

e B
rom

sg
rov

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
Bo

ard
 (th

e D
ist
ric
t’s
 Lo

ca
l 

Str
ate

gic
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
) c
on
sis

ts 
of 
ke
y p

ub
lic,

 pr
iva

te 
an
d 

vo
lun

tar
y s

ec
tor

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
s o

pe
rat

ing
 w
ith
in 
the

 D
ist
ric
t.  

Th
e p

urp
os
e o

f th
e B

oa
rd 

is 
to 

wo
rk 
tog

eth
er 

on
 a 
ran

ge
 of
 

iss
ue
s t
ha
t re

qu
ire
 jo
ine

d u
p t
hin

kin
g t
o d

eli
ve
r jo

ine
d u

p 
so
lut
ion

s f
or 

ou
r re

sid
en
ts.
  T

he
 Bo

ard
 is
 ch

air
ed
 by

 th
e L

ea
de
r 

of 
the

 C
ou
nc
il, 
Co

un
cill

or 
Ro

ge
r H

oll
ing

wo
rth

. 
Su

sta
ina

ble
 C

om
mu

nit
y S

tra
teg

y 2
00

8-2
01

1 
Th

e S
us
tai
na
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y s
ets

 ou
t a

 vi
sio

n f
or 

the
 

Dis
tric

t a
nd
 is
 co

nc
ern

ed
 w
ith
 ad

dre
ss
ing

 is
su
es
 im

po
rta

nt 
to 

res
ide

nts
, th

e b
us
ine

ss
 co

mm
un
ity
 an

d v
isit

ors
 to

 th
e D

ist
ric
t.  

It i
s b

as
ed
 on

 an
 un

de
rst
an
din

g o
f th

e a
va
ila
ble

 ev
ide

nc
e a

nd
 

foc
us
es
 on

 th
e w

ay
 in
 w
hic

h s
erv

ice
s a

re 
de
live

red
 an

d h
ow

 
the

y c
an
 be

 im
pro

ve
d f
or 

ev
ery

on
e's

 be
ne
fit.
  T

he
 St

rat
eg
y i
s a

 
de
ve
lop

me
nta

l, r
oll
ing

 do
cu
me

nt 
an
d t
he
 pr

ior
itie

s i
de

nti
fie
d 

ma
y c

ha
ng
e o

ve
r ti
me

 as
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
 ar

e r
ea
lise

d a
nd
 ne

w 
iss

ue
s e

me
rge

.  T
he
 ai
ms

 an
d o

bje
cti
ve
s o

f th
e S

tra
teg

y a
re 

to 
pro

vid
e a

 co
-or

din
ate

d a
pp
roa

ch
 to
 im

pro
vin

g t
he
 qu

ali
ty 
of 

life
 

for
 ev

ery
on
e i
n t

he
 D
ist
ric
t a

nd
 is
 in
 ef
fec

t a
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
 fo
r 

the
 Lo

ca
l S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Bo

ard
 to
 m
an
ag
e a

ga
ins

t a
nd
 

be
 he

ld 
ac
co
un
tab

le 
on
 (F

ull
 C
ou
nc
il r
ec
eiv

e a
n a

nn
ua
l re

po
rt 

fro
m 

the
 Bo

ard
). 

Wo
rce

ste
rsh

ire
 Lo

ca
l A

rea
 A

gr
ee

me
nts

 20
06

-20
09

 an
d 

20
08

- 2
01

2 
In 

Ap
ril 
20
06
 C
en
tra

l G
ov
ern

me
nt 
an
d W

orc
es
ter

sh
ire
 C
ou
nty

 
Co

un
cil,

 as
 th
e a

cc
ou
nta

ble
 bo

dy
 fo

r th
e W

orc
es
ter

sh
ire
 LS

P, 
sig

ne
d a

 Lo
ca
l A

rea
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
(LA

A)
 co

ve
rin
g t
he
 pe

rio
d 1

st  

Ap
ril 
20
06
 to
 31

st  M
arc

h 2
00
9. 
 Th

e a
gre

em
en
t is

 a 
for

m 
of 

co
ntr

ac
t w

ith
 si
x o

bje
cti
ve
s a

nd
 a 

ran
ge
 of
 ta

rge
ts 
in 
su
pp
ort

 of
 

the
m.

  S
om

e o
f th

e t
arg

ets
 at

tra
ct 
a “

pu
mp

 pr
im
ing

 gr
an
t” f

rom
 

the
 G
ov
ern

me
nt 

in 
su
pp
ort

 of
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

a r
an
ge
 of

 “s
tre

tch
 

tar
ge
ts”
.  I
f th

es
e a

re 
de
live

red
 th

e G
ov
ern

me
nt 

wil
l p
ay
 a 

“re
wa

rd 
gra

nt”
.  J

us
t li
ke
 th
e B

rom
sg
rov

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wa

nts
 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 op

era
tin
g w

ith
in 
the

 D
ist
ric
t to

 al
ign

 th
eir
 

bu
sin

es
s p

lan
s t
o t
he
 D
ist
ric
t’s
 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y, 
the

 
W
orc

es
ter

sh
ire
 LS

P e
xp
ec
ts 
Dis

tric
t L
SP

s t
o a

lig
n t

he
ir 

co
mm

un
ity
 st
rat

eg
ies

 to
 th
e L

AA
.  A

s a
 re

su
lt, 
Br
om

sg
rov

e 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ha

s a
do
pte

d t
he
 si
x o

bje
cti
ve
s t
he
 LA

A a
s i
ts 
six

 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d t
he
 D
ist
ric
t L

SP
 ta
rge

ts 
are

 cr
os
s r
efe

ren
ce
d t
o 

the
 LA

A t
arg

ets
 in
 th
e D

ist
ric
t S

us
tai
na
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y 

Str
ate

gy
; h

ow
ev
er,

 it 
is 
rec

og
nis

ed
 th
at 
the

re 
are

 so
me

 
pro

jec
ts 
wh

ich
 ar

e v
ery

 im
po
rta

nt 
at 
a d

ist
ric
t le

ve
l w

hic
h a

re 
no
t re

fle
cte

d i
n t
he
 LA

A, 
for

 ex
am

ple
, th

e r
eg
en
era

tio
n o

f 
Br
om

sg
rov

e t
ow

n c
en
tre

, L
on
gb
rid
ge
 an

d B
rom

sg
rov

e r
ail
wa

y 
sta

tio
n. 
 In
 th
es
e i
ns
tan

ce
s t
he
 Br

om
sg
rov

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
is 
sti
ll 

se
ek
ing

 to
 w
ork

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 al
l th

e r
ele

va
nt 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 in
 or

de
r to

 de
live

r jo
ine

d u
p s

olu
tio
ns
 fo
r lo

ca
l 

pe
op
le.
  D

uri
ng
 20

08
, a
 ne

w 
LA

A w
as
 ne

go
tia
ted

 by
 th

e 
W
orc

es
ter

sh
ire
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 fo

r th
e p

eri
od
 20

08
-20

11
.   
As

 a 
res

ult
 of

 th
e n

ew
 LA

A t
arg

ets
, th

e B
rom

sg
rov

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
ha
s 

rev
iew

ed
 an

d r
efr

es
he
d i
ts 
Hig

h L
ev
el 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
s a

nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n w
hic

h f
orm

 th
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
fra

me
wo

rk 
to 

en
su
re 

tha
t th

e B
rom

sg
rov

e 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 m
ak
es
 as

 fu
ll a

 co
ntr

ibu
tio
n a

s p
os
sib

le.
  T

he
 

Su
sta

ina
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y h
as
 al
so
 be

en
 re

fre
sh
ed
 to
 

ad
dre

ss
 th
e n

ew
 LA

A. 
 Th

e C
ou
nty

 LS
P h

as
 co

ns
ult
ed
 on

 th
e 

dra
ft C

ou
nty

 Su
sta

ina
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y 2
00
8-2

01
1 a

nd
 

the
 D
ist
ric
t re

sp
on
de
d t
o t

he
 dr

aft
. 

Page 170



 
Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

13
 

 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Ta
ble

 4 
– B

ro
ms

gr
ov
e P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
Ob
jec
tiv
es
 an

d P
rio
rit
ies
 

“W
e w

ill 
ma

ke
 B

ro
ms

gr
ov

e D
ist

ric
t 

a b
ett

er 
pla

ce
 to

 w
or

k, 
liv

e a
nd

 
vis

it b
y d

riv
ing

 fo
rw

ard
 ch

an
ge

” 

Sa
fe 

an
d F

ee
l 

Sa
fe 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
Ec

on
om

ic 
Su

cc
es

s 
He

alt
h a

nd
 

We
ll B

ein
g 

Ch
ild

ren
 an

d 
Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

 

Fe
ar 

of 
Cr

im
e 

CO
2 

Em
iss

ion
s 

To
wn

 C
en

tre
 

He
alt

hy
 

Lif
es

tyl
es

 
En

joy
 an

d 
Ac

hie
ve

 

Lo
ng

br
idg

e 
Inc

lus
ion

 an
d 

Co
ntr

ibu
tio

n 

St
ro

ng
er 

Co
mm

un
itie

s 

Ol
de

r P
eo

ple
 

Ho
us

ing
 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 

Vis
ion

 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 

Page 171



 
Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

14
 

 4. 
 Se

ttin
g t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 Pr
ior
itie

s  
Th

e C
ou

nc
il P

lan
 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il P

lan
 br

ing
s t
og
eth

er 
na
tio
na
l a
nd
 co

mm
un
ity
 

pri
ori
tie
s a

nd
 en

su
res

 th
at 

the
 C
ou
nc
il h

as
 a 
str
uc
tur

ed
 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o p

rov
idi
ng
 qu

ali
ty 
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 ad

din
g v

alu
e f

or 
loc

al 
pe
op
le.
  T

he
 Pl

an
 si
ts 
at 

the
 to
p o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 st
rat

eg
ic 

pla
nn
ing

 an
d p

erf
orm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
tem

s. 
 It 
en
su
res

 
tha

t w
e t

ak
e c

o-o
rdi
na
ted

 ac
tio
n t
o a

dd
res

s t
he
 ag

ree
d f
ou
r 

Co
un
cil 

Ob
jec

tiv
es
 (C

Os
) a

nd
 fo
ur 

Pr
ior
itie

s. 
 Th

es
e a

re 
es
se
nti
al 
to 
the

 de
live

ry 
of 

ou
r V

isio
n a

nd
 Va

lue
s. 
 Th

e C
ou
nc
il 

Pla
n s

its
 w
ith
in 
a w

ide
r s
tra

teg
ic 
fra

me
wo

rk 
for

me
d b

y t
he
 

Dis
tric

t S
us
tai
na
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y a
nd
 C
ou
nty

wid
e 

Su
sta

ina
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y. 
Th

e r
ela

tio
ns
hip

 be
tw
ee

n t
he
 

Co
un
cil 

Pla
n a

nd
 ot
he
r k
ey
 pl
an
s i
s s

et 
ou
t o
n p

ag
e 7

6. 
Th

e k
ey
 fe

atu
res

 of
 th
e C

ou
nc
il P

lan
 an

d a
ss
oc
iat
ed
 pl
an
s a

re 
as
 fo

llo
ws

:- 
• 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il P
lan

 si
ts 
be
low

 th
e n

ati
on
al 
pri
ori
tie
s a

nd
 

Su
sta

ina
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y f
or 

the
 w
ho
le 
of 
the

 
Dis

tric
t a

nd
 ab

ov
e t

he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n, 
De

pa
rtm

en
tal
 Se

rvi
ce
 Bu

sin
es
s P

lan
s a

nd
 Ac

tio
n P

lan
s. 
 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il P

lan
 is
 a 

thr
ee
 ye

ar 
do
cu
me

nt.
 

• 
Th

e C
ou
nc
il P

lan
 ac

ts 
as
 a 
hig

h l
ev
el 
‘m
ap
’.  
Ea

ch
 C
ou
nc
il 

Ob
jec

tiv
e a

nd
 Pr

ior
ity
 ha

s a
 re

fer
en
ce
 nu

mb
er 

an
d t
he
se
 

are
 tra

ck
ed
 in
to 
De

pa
rtm

en
tal
 Se

rvi
ce
 Bu

sin
es
s P

lan
s, 

Te
am

 Pl
an
s a

nd
 in
div

idu
al 
Pe

rso
na
l D

ev
elo

pm
en
t R

ev
iew

s, 
to 

cre
ate

 a 
‘go

lde
n t
hre

ad
’.  
By

 cr
ea
tin
g t
his

 ‘th
rea

d’ 
we

 
be
co
me

 m
ore

 ef
fic
ien

t, c
on
ce
ntr

ati
ng
 ou

r re
so
urc

es
 an

d 
en
erg

y o
n t

ho
se
 th
ing

s t
ha
t re

all
y m

att
er.

 

• 
Th

e t
hre

e y
ea
r C

ou
nc
il P

lan
 is
 su

pp
ort

ed
 ea

ch
 ye

ar 
by
 an

 
an
nu
al 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

lan
, w

hic
h p

rov
ide

s M
em

be
rs 
an
d 

se
nio

r m
an
ag
em

en
t w

ith
 a 
foc

us
 on

 th
os
e a

cti
on
s w

hic
h 

are
 co

ns
ide

red
 ke

y t
o d

riv
ing

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
in 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
.  

• 
Alo

ng
sid

e t
he
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n s
its
 a 
se
t o
f C

orp
ora

te 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs,
 ap

pro
xim

ate
ly 
25
-30

 in
 to

tal
 an

d 
ba
se
d o

n t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 Pr
ior
itie

s. 
 Ag

ain
, th

es
e a

re 
de
sig

ne
d t
o p

rov
ide

 M
em

be
rs 
an
d s

en
ior
 m
an
ag
em

en
t w

ith
 

a f
oc
us
 on

 im
pro

vin
g t
ho
se
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 in
dic

ato
rs 
wh

ich
 

are
 co

ns
ide

red
 ke

y t
o d

riv
ing

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
in 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 
se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry.
  

• 
Th

e C
ou
nc
il P

lan
 is
 un

de
rpi
nn
ed
 by

 th
e t
hre

e y
ea
r M

ed
ium

 
Te

rm
 Fi

na
nc

ial
 St

rat
eg

y a
nd
 th

e a
nn
ua
l B

ud
ge

t P
lan

.  
Th

es
e e

ns
ure

 th
at 

res
ou
rce

s f
oll
ow

 th
e s

tat
ed
 pr

ior
itie

s o
f 

the
 C
ou
nc
il. 

• 
Th

e r
isk

s a
ss
oc
iat
ed
 w
ith
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

the
 C
ou
nc
il P

lan
 

are
 m
an
ag
ed
 th

rou
gh
 th
e C

or
po

rat
e R

isk
 R

eg
ist

er 
an
d 

Ac
tio
n P

lan
. 

• 
Th

e C
ou
nc
il’s

 ov
era

ll f
ina

nc
ial
 an

d s
erv

ice
 de

live
ry 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 is
 se

t o
ut 
in 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t a
nd
 

a s
um

ma
ry 
pu
bli
sh
ed
 fo
r a

ll r
es
ide

nts
. 

       

Page 172



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

15
 

Ho
w 

the
 C

ou
nc

il P
lan

 In
flu

en
ce

s t
he

 B
ud

ge
t  

Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as
 im

pro
ve
d t

he
 lin

ka
ge
s b

etw
ee
n c

on
su
lta
tio
n, 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 a
nd
 th

e 
an
nu
al 

an
d 
thr

ee
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t p

roc
es
s 

wit
h t

he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
an
 in
teg

rat
ed
 fo

rw
ard

 pl
an
.  C

us
tom

er 
su
rve

ys
 a
re 

us
ed
 to

 te
st 

ou
r p

rio
riti
es
 w

ith
 re

sid
en
ts 

an
d 
to 

as
ce
rta

in 
the

ir s
ati
sfa

cti
on
 le
ve
ls 
wit

h C
ou
nc
il s

erv
ice

s. 
  

As
 p

art
 o

f t
he
 a

nn
ua
l b

ud
ge
t r

ou
nd
 b

ids
 fo

r 
fun

din
g 

are
 

su
bm

itte
d 

by
 e

ac
h 

Co
un
cil 

se
rvi
ce
 a

rea
, 
as
 w

ell
 a

s 
the

 
Co

un
cil’

s E
qu
ali
ty 
an
d D

ive
rsi
ty 
Fo

rum
 fo

r c
on
sid

era
tio
n b

y t
he
 

Fu
ll C

ou
nc
il. 

 T
he
 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t o

f t
he
se
 b
ud
ge
t b

ids
 is

 s
et 

wit
hin

 th
e s

tro
ng
 st

rat
eg
ic 

fra
me

wo
rk 

of 
the

 C
ou
nc
il P

lan
 an

d 
its
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 an

d p
rio
riti
es
: b

ids
 m

us
t d

em
on
str
ate

 lin
ks
 to

 an
y 

or 
all
 o
f t
he
 C

ou
nc
il’s

 p
rio
riti
es
, p

rov
ide

 va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey
 a
nd
 

ha
ve
 a 

de
mo

ns
tra

ble
 im

pa
ct 
on
 cu

sto
me

rs.
 

Fo
r t

he
 fi
rst
 ti
me

 in
 2
00
8, 

the
 C

ou
nc
il 
us
ed
 a
 B

ud
ge
t J

ury
 

ma
de
 u
p 
of 

me
mb

ers
 o
f t
he
 p
ub
lic 

wh
ich

 h
as
 p
rov

ed
 v
ery

 
su
cc
es
sfu

l a
nd
 w

hic
h 
wil

l b
e 
de
ve
lop

ed
 fu

rth
er 

in 
the

 co
mi
ng
 

ye
ars

.  
Bu

dg
et 

Ju
ry 

me
mb

ers
 at

ten
de
d a

 se
rie
s o

f in
ter

ac
tiv
e 

me
eti
ng
s 
an
d 
the

ir 
pre

fer
en
ce
s 
for

 b
ud
ge
t b

ids
 w

ere
 fe

d 
to 

Co
un
cill

ors
 to

 a
ss
ist
 th

em
 in

 d
ec
idi
ng
 w

hic
h 
bid

s 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 

fun
de
d. 

 A
n 

on
lin
e 

bu
dg
et 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 f
or 

the
 p

ub
lic 

to 
co
mm

en
t o

n 
the

 b
ud
ge
t is

 a
lso

 ru
n 
on
 th

e 
Co

un
cil’

s w
eb
sit
e 

ea
ch
 ye

ar 
an
d t

his
 in
for

ma
tio
n w

as
 ta

ke
n t

o C
ou
nc
illo

rs 
as
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 bu

dg
et 
de
lib
era

tio
ns
  

Fu
rth

er 
Inf

or
ma

tio
n 

Ele
ctr
on
ic 

ve
rsi
on
s 
of 

the
 k
ey
 d
oc
um

en
ts 

me
nti
on
ed
 e
arl
ier
 

ca
n b

e f
ou
nd
 on

 ou
r w

eb
sit
e a

t: 
ww

w.
br

om
sg

ro
ve

.go
v.u

k 

 
                 

Page 173



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

16
 

Ou
r V
isi
on
, V
alu

es
, C
ou
nc
il O

bje
cti
ve
s a
nd
 Pr
ior
itie

s:-
 

 

Page 174



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

17
 

W
e h

av
e f

urt
he

r a
rtic

ula
ted

 ea
ch

 of
 ou

r V
alu

es
 as

 fo
llo

ws
:-  

 

 

Page 175



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

18
 

 
 

Page 176



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

19
 

6. 
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 B
ala
nc
ed
 Sc

or
ec
ard

  
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 a 

ba
lan

ce
d s

co
rec

ard
 fo

r th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 fo

ur 
pri

ori
tie

s, 
wh

ich
 w

ere
 ap

pro
ve

d b
y F

ull
 C

ou
nc

il o
n 1

7th
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
.   

Th
e s

co
rec

ard
 id

en
tifi

es
 th

e k
ey

 su
pp

ort
 se

rvi
ce

 ac
tiv

itie
s r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 de
live

r th
e p

rio
riti

es
.  A

 Sp
ec

ific
, M

ea
su

rab
le,

 Ag
ree

d, 
Re

ali
sti

c a
nd

 Ta
rge

ted
 (S

MA
RT

) s
tra

teg
ic 

ac
tio

n p
lan

 fo
r th

e b
ala

nc
ed

 sc
ore

ca
rd 

ha
s a

lso
 be

en
 ag

ree
d (

se
e p

ag
es

 21
 to

 51
). 

  Cu
sto

me
r 

Pe
rsp

ec
tiv

e 
(C
P)
  

 

 
To

wn
 C
en

tre
  

(C
P1

) 
 

Ho
us

ing
  

(C
P2

) 
 

Se
ns

e o
f C

om
mu

nit
y  

(C
P3

) 
 

 Cl
ea

n S
tre

ets
 an

d C
lim

ate
 

Ch
an

ge
 

(C
P4

) 
 

 Fin
an

cia
l a

nd
 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

Pe
rsp

ec
tiv

e 
(FP

) 
 

 
Ma

na
gin

g F
ina

nc
es
 

(in
clu

din
g V

alu
e f

or
 

Mo
ne

y) 
(FP

1) 

Go
ve
rn
ing

 th
e B

us
ine

ss
 

(in
clu

din
g V

alu
e f

or
 

Mo
ne

y) 
 (F

P2
) 

Ma
na

gin
g R

es
ou

rce
s 

(in
clu

din
g V

alu
e f

or
 M

on
ey
) 

 (F
P3

) 
Ma

na
gin

g P
erf

or
ma

nc
e 

(in
clu

din
g V

alu
e f

or
 M

on
ey
) 

(FP
4) 

  Pr
oc

es
s 

Pe
rsp

ec
tiv

e 
(P
R)
 

  

Cu
sto

me
r 

Pr
oc

es
se

s  
(P
R1

) 
Po

liti
ca

l G
ov

ern
an

ce
  

(P
R2

) 
Jo

int
 C
EO

 w
ith

 
Re

dd
itc

h B
or
ou

gh
 

Co
un

cil
 

(P
R3

) 

Im
pr
ov

ed
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 W
or
kin

g 
(P
R4

) 

  
Pla

nn
ing

 
(P
R5

) 

 Hu
ma

n 
Re

so
ur
ce

s a
nd

 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Pe
rsp

ec
tiv

e 
(H
RO

D)
 

 
Le

arn
ing

 an
d D

ev
elo

pm
en

t  
(H
RO

D1
) 

 
Hu

ma
n R

es
ou

rce
 M

od
ern

isa
tio

n  
(H
RO

D2
) 

 
Po

sit
ive

 Em
plo

ye
e C

lim
ate

 
(H
RO

D3
) 

Page 177



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

20
 

Page 178



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

21
 

7. 
 St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n P

lan
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

Co
mp
let
e 

ev
ide
nc
e-b

as
ed
 

un
ifie
d v
isio

n 
  

30
 Ju
ne
 20
09
 

To
wn
 C
en
tre
 

Re
ge
ne
rat
ion
 

Pa
rtn
ers
hip
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 

for
 Pl
an
nin
g &

 
Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 

for
 Pa

rtn
ers
hip
s 

an
d P

roj
ec
ts 

Ag
ree

me
nt 
on
 

pre
fer
red

 op
tio
n 

of 
Ar
ea
 Ac

tio
n 

Pla
n  

Pr
efe
rre
d 

op
tio
n a
gre

ed
 

Un
ifie
d v
isio

n 
co
mp
let
e 

 

Co
nd
uc
t fu
rth
er 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

wit
h k
ey
 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 

30
 Se

pte
mb
er 

20
09
 

To
wn
 C
en
tre
 

Re
ge
ne
rat
ion
 

Pa
rtn
ers
hip
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 

for
 Pl
an
nin
g &

 
Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 

for
 Pa

rtn
ers
hip
s 

an
d P

roj
ec
ts 

W
rite
 br
ief
 fo
r 

de
sig
n s
ch
em
e 

an
d a
pp
roa

ch
 

arc
hit
ec
ts 

 

30
 Se

pte
mb
er 

20
09
 

To
wn
 C
en
tre
 

Re
ge
ne
rat
ion
 

Pa
rtn
ers
hip
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 

for
 Pa

rtn
ers
hip
s 

an
d P

roj
ec
ts 

Hig
h S

tre
et 

      

De
sig
n f
or 
Hig

h 
Str
ee
t a
nd
 

fun
din
g 

se
cu
red

 

Pr
oc
ure

 de
sig
n 

sc
he
me
 fo
r 

Hig
h S

tre
et 

 Su
bm
it f
un
din
g 

bid
s 

Ide
nti
fy 
an
d 

ap
pro

ac
h 

fun
de
rs 
an
d 

pre
pa
re 
bid
s 

 

30
 Se

pte
mb
er 

20
09
 

To
wn
 C
en
tre
 

Re
ge
ne
rat
ion
 

Pa
rtn
ers
hip
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 

for
 Pa

rtn
ers
hip
s 

an
d P

roj
ec
ts 

To
wn

 C
en

tre
 

(C
P1

) 
  

Ma
rke
t H
all
 si
te 

Ag
ree

me
nt 

rea
ch
ed
 on
 

red
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

of 
the
 m
ark
et 

ha
ll s
ite
 

Fe
as
ibi
lity
 

stu
dy
 on
 

red
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

op
tio
ns
 

co
mp
let
e 

 

Re
ac
h 

ag
ree

me
nt,
 

clo
se
 m
ark
et 

ha
ll a
nd
 

rel
oc
ate
 m
ark
et 

to 
an
 ou
tdo
or 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 

20
09
 

To
wn
 C
en
tre
 

Re
ge
ne
rat
ion
 

Pa
rtn
ers
hip
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 

for
 Pa

rtn
ers
hip
s 

an
d P

roj
ec
ts 

Page 179



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

22
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

sit
e o
n t
he
 hi
gh
 

str
ee
t  

 Cr
ea
tio
n o
f 

sta
ke
ho
lde
r 

for
um
 

 

1 A
pri
l 2
00
9 

on
wa
rds
 

Re
ge
ne
rat
ion
 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

Co
re 

op
era

tio
ns
 

gro
up
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 

for
 Pa

rtn
ers
hip
s 

an
d P

roj
ec
ts 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

En
ga
ge
me
nt 

Ma
jor
ity
 of
 ke
y 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 

en
ga
ge
d 

He
ad
 co
un
t o
f 

att
en
da
nc
e a
t 

me
eti
ng
s a
nd
 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
 

rep
res
en
tat
ion
 

of 
ke
y g
rou

ps
 

Pr
od
uc
e 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

En
ga
ge
me
nt 

Str
ate
gy
 fo
r 

pro
jec
t 

1 A
pri
l 2
00
9 

on
wa
rds
 

Re
ge
ne
rat
ion
 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

Co
re 

op
era

tio
ns
 

gro
up
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 

for
 Pa

rtn
ers
hip
s 

an
d P

roj
ec
ts 

Page 180



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

23
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

Aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us
ing
 

     

24
0 u
nit
s o
f 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us
ing
 bu
ilt 

ov
er 
thr
ee
 

ye
ars
 

80
 un
its
 pe
r 

ye
ar 

Su
pp
ort
 an
d 

en
ab
le 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 fo
r 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us
ing
 on
 

ap
pro

ve
d s
ite
  

in 
ac
co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h C

ore
 

Str
ate
gy
 an
d 

RS
S a

llo
ca
tio
n 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Str
ate
gic
 

Ho
us
ing
; 

Pr
inc
ipl
e R

SL
 

Pa
rtn
er 

Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

Gr
ou
p 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
rat
eg
ic 

Ho
us
ing
  

Co
nti
nu
e t
o 

mo
nit
or 
an
d 

su
pp
ort
 th
e 

eff
ec
tiv
en
es
s o
f 

Pa
rtn
ers
hip
 

ho
me
les
sn
es
s 

pre
ve
nti
on
 

se
rvi
ce
s 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Str
ate
gic
 

Ho
us
ing
; 

BD
HT
; C
AB
; 

BY
HF
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
rat
eg
ic 

Ho
us
ing
  

Ho
me
les
sn
es
s 

pre
ve
nti
on
 an
d 

red
uc
tio
n i
n t
he
 

us
e o
f 

tem
po
rar
y 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 

  

Ma
int
ain
 us
e o
f 

tem
po
rar
y 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 

at 
or 
be
low

 
Go
ve
rnm

en
t 

rec
om
me
nd
ed
 

tar
ge
t o
f 3
4 

ind
ivid

ua
ls 
by
 

20
11
 

 

Qu
art
erl
y 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 

rep
ort
 

Im
ple
me
nt 

mo
rtg
ag
e 

res
cu
e s
ch
em
e 

 

1st
 Ap

ril 
20
09
 

on
wa
rds
 

Str
ate
gic
 

Ho
us
ing
 Te

am
; 

RS
L P

art
ne
rs;
 

CA
B 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
rat
eg
ic 

Ho
us
ing
 

Ho
us

ing
 (C

P2
) 

  

Pr
iva
te 
se
cto
r 

ho
us
ing
 

  

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 

av
era

ge
 tim

e i
n 

we
ek
s f
rom

 
ref
err
al 
to 

Qu
art
erl
y 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 

rep
ort
 

On
go
ing
 

im
pro

ve
me
nt 
in 

de
live

ry 
tim
e f
or 

Dis
ab
led
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Pr
iva
te 
Se
cto
r 

Te
am
; C
are

 
an
d R

ep
air
 

ag
en
cy
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
rat
eg
ic 

Ho
us
ing
  

Page 181



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

24
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

 
co
mp
let
ion
 fo
r 

ca
teg
ori
es
 1-
3 

Dis
ab
led
 

Fa
cili
tie
s G

ran
ts 

(ba
se
lin
e t
o b
e 

es
tab
lish

ed
) 

Fa
cili
tie
s G

ran
ts 

Page 182



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

25
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g T

he
re?

 
Pr

oje
ct/

Ac
tio

n 
Co

mp
let

ion
 

Da
te 

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 

Me
mb

er 
Re
vis
e e
ve
nts
 

pro
gra

mm
e t
o 

ex
ten
d 

co
ve
rag

e 
thr
ou
gh
ou
t 

Dis
tric
t 

 

30
 Se

pte
mb
er 

20
09
 

 
Str
ee
t S
ce
ne
 an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

    

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Str
ee
t S
ce
ne
 

an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 

Ev
en
ts 

pro
gra

mm
e  

% 
sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

wit
h: 
sp
ort
s 

fac
iliti
es
; n
atu
re 

tra
ils 
an
d 

co
un
try
 pa
ths
; 

pa
rks
 an
d o
pe
n 

sp
ac
es
; b
on
fire
 

nig
ht;
 st
ree

t 
the
atr
e; 

ba
nd
sta
nd
; 

Ch
ris
tm
as
 

lig
hts
; 

ran
ge
 of
 

en
ter
tai
nm
en
t a
t 

the
 Ar
trix
.  

(B
DC
 C
us
tom
er 

Sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

Su
rve
y) 

 

An
nu
al 

Cu
sto
me
r P
an
el 

su
rve
y 

  

Ro
ll o
ut 

ev
en
ts 

fac
ilita

tio
n 

pa
ck
 to
 

pa
rtn
ers
 an
d 

loc
al 

org
an
isa
tio
ns
 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Str
ee
t S
ce
ne
 an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

    

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Str
ee
t S
ce
ne
 

an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 

68
 PA

CT
 

me
eti
ng
s o
ve
r 

12
 m
on
ths
, 

rep
ea
ted
 

an
nu
all
y 

  

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Me
mb
ers
, S
en
ior
 

Of
fic
ers
 an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Sa
fet
y T
ea
m 

 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Str
ee
t S
ce
ne
 

an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Se
ns

e o
f 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
(C
P3

) 

Fe
ar 
of 
cri
me
  

       

LA
A t

arg
ets

: 
NI

 2 
- %

 of
 pe

op
le 

wh
o f

ee
l th

ey
 

be
lon

g i
n t

he
ir l

oc
al 

are
a (

Pla
ce

 
Su

rve
y);

  
NI

 17
 – 

Pe
rce

pti
on

s 
of 

an
ti-s

oc
ial

 
be

ha
vio

ur;
 

NI
 18

 –A
du

lt r
e-

off
en

din
g r

ate
s f

or 
tho

se
 un

de
r 

pro
ba

tio
n 

su
pe

rvi
sio

n; 
NI

20
 – 

As
sa

ult
 w

ith
 

Ne
igh
bo
urh

oo
d 

ma
na
ge
me
nt 

ac
tiv
itie
s 

    
Pr
om
oti
on
 of
 

CD
RP
 ac
tio
n 

pla
n 

  

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Me
mb
ers
, S
en
ior
 

Of
fic
ers
 an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Sa
fet
y T
ea
m 

 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Str
ee
t S
ce
ne
 

an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Page 183



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

26
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g T

he
re?

 
Pr

oje
ct/

Ac
tio

n 
Co

mp
let

ion
 

Da
te 

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 

Me
mb

er 
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 
inj

ury
 cr

im
e r

ate
; 

NI
 21

 – 
De

ali
ng

 w
ith

 
loc

al 
co

nc
ern

s 
ab

ou
t a

nti
-so

cia
l 

be
ha

vio
ur 

an
d 

cri
me

 is
su

es
 by

 th
e 

loc
al 

co
un

cil 
an

d 
po

lice
; 

NI
 39

 – 
Ra

te 
of 

ho
sp

ita
l a

dm
iss

ion
s 

pe
r 1

00
,00

0 f
or 

alc
oh

ol 
rel

ate
d 

ha
rm

; 
NI

 19
5 -

 Im
pro

ve
d 

str
ee

t a
nd

 
en

vir
on

me
nta

l 
cle

an
lin

es
s (

lev
els

 
of 

gra
ffit

i a
nd

 fly
-

po
sti

ng
) 

 BD
C 

tar
ge

ts:
 

NI
17

 – 
Pe

rce
pti

on
s 

of 
an

tis
oc

ial
 

be
ha

vio
ur;

 
NI

 22
 - P

erc
ep

tio
ns

 
of 

pa
ren

ts 
tak

ing
 

res
po

ns
ibi

lity
 fo

r th
e 

be
ha

vio
ur 

of 
the

ir 
ch

ild
ren

 
NI

 24
 – 

Sa
tis

fac
tio

n 
wit

h t
he

 w
ay

 th
e 

po
lice

 an
d l

oc
al 

co
un

cil 
de

al 
wit

h 
an

ti-s
oc

ial
 

be
ha

vio
ur 

  

Bu
dg
et 
bid
 fo
r 

inc
rea

se
d 

nu
mb
er 
of 

Ne
igh
bo
urh

oo
d W

ard
en
s 

Im
ple
me
nta
tio
n 

fro
m 
1st
 Ap

ril 
20
09
 

Bu
dg
et 
bid
  

 
De
pu
ty 

Le
ad
er 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Str
ee
t S
ce
ne
 

an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

Page 184



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

27
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g T

he
re?

 
Pr

oje
ct/

Ac
tio

n 
Co

mp
let

ion
 

Da
te 

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 

Me
mb

er 
Co
mm

un
ity
 

bid
s 

su
bm
itte
d t
o 

Eq
ua
lity
 an
d 

Div
ers
ity
 

Fo
rum

 

 
CC

PP
 Te

am
, 

Le
ga
l, E
qu
ali
tie
s 

an
d D

em
oc
rat
ic 

Se
rvi
ce
s, 

Fin
an
cia
l 

Se
rvi
ce
s; 
 

Eq
ua
lity
 an
d 

Div
ers
ity
 Fo

rum
;  

Dis
ab
led
 U
se
rs’
 

Gr
ou
p &

  
Br
om
sg
rov
e 

Bla
ck
 H
ist
ory
 

So
cie
ty 

 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 

an
d L
eg
al 

an
d 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

     

Eq
ua
litie

s 

De
live

ry 
ag
ain
st 
3 y
ea
r 

de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 

Eq
ua
lity
 

Im
pa
ct 

As
se
ss
me
nt 

ac
tio
n p
lan
s  

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

He
ad
s o
f S
erv
ice
 

Le
ad
er 
of 
the
 

Co
un
cil;
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 

an
d L
eg
al 

an
d 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 
Re
pe
at 

Bu
dg
et 
Ju
ry 

31
 Ja
nu
ary
 

20
10
 an
d 

an
nu
all
y 

the
rea

fte
r 

He
ad
 of
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 

Se
rvi
ce
s a
nd
 

CC
PP
 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
ce

 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

En
ga
ge
me
nt 
 

NI
 1 
- %

 of
 

pe
op
le 
wh
o 

be
lie
ve
 pe
op
le 

fro
m 
dif
fer
en
t 

ba
ck
gro

un
ds
 

ge
t o
n w

ell
 

tog
eth
er 
in 
the
ir 

loc
al 
are

a  
(P
lac
e S
urv
ey
) 

 NI
 2 
- %

 of
 

pe
op
le 
wh
o f
ee
l 

the
y b
elo
ng
 in
 

the
ir l
oc
al 
are

a 
(P
lac
e S
urv
ey
) 

Pa
rtic
ipa
tor
y 

Bu
dg
eti
ng
 

    
Ch
ild
ren

 an
d 

Yo
un
g 

31
 Ja
nu
ary
 

20
10
 

CC
PP
 Te

am
, 

W
CC
 

De
pu
ty 

Le
ad
er 

Page 185



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

28
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g T

he
re?

 
Pr

oje
ct/

Ac
tio

n 
Co

mp
let

ion
 

Da
te 

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 

Me
mb

er 
 

Pe
op
le’
s 

Pa
rtic
ipa
tor
y 

Bu
dg
eti
ng
 

ev
en
t 

 

 FL
OS

S f
un
din
g  

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Str
ee
t S
ce
ne
 

an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

Fin
ali
se
 

arr
an
ge
me
nts
 

for
 ex
ist
ing
 

LN
Ps
  

30
 Ap

ril 
20
09
 

CC
PP
 Te

am
 

Le
ad
er 
of 
the
 

Co
un
cil 

Lo
ca
l 

Ne
igh
bo
urh

oo
d 

Pa
rtn
ers
hip
s 

    
Ro
ll o
ut 
a 

fur
the
r tw

o 
LN
Ps
 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 

20
09
 

Bu
dg
et 
Bid

 
Le
ad
er 
of 
the
 

Co
un
cil 

CY
P 

Pa
rtic
ipa
tor
y 

Bu
dg
eti
ng
 

ev
en
t 

 

31
 Ja
nu
ary
 

20
10
 

CC
PP
 Te

am
, 

W
CC
 

 FL
OS

S f
un
din
g  

De
pu
ty 

Le
ad
er 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Str
ee
t S
ce
ne
 

an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

Ch
ild
ren

 an
d 

Yo
un
g P

eo
ple
 

NI
 11
0 –
 Yo

un
g 

pe
op
le’
s 

pa
rtic
ipa
tio
n i
n 

po
sit
ive
 

ac
tiv
itie
s  

No
 of
 at
ten
de
es
 

at 
ev
en
ts 

 All
oc
ati
on
 of
 £s
 

to 
CY
P p

roj
ec
ts 

‘Co
ol 
to 
be
  

he
alt
hy
’ e
ve
nt 

  

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
0 

He
alt
h 

Im
pro

ve
me
nt 

Co
ord

ina
tor
; 

Sp
ort
s 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Te
am
, P
art
ne
rs 

De
pu
ty 

Le
ad
er;
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Str
ee
t S
ce
ne
 

an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

 

Page 186



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

29
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

Ra
pid
 re
sp
on
se
 

hit
 sq
ua
d 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Ap
pro

ve
d 

bu
dg
et 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
ree

t 
Sc
en
e a
nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Pr
og
ram

me
d 

cle
an
 ac
co
rdi
ng
 

to En
vir
on
me
nta
l 

Pr
ote
cti
on
 Ac

t 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Ap
pro

ve
d 

bu
dg
et 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
ree

t 
Sc
en
e a
nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Re
du
ce
 le
ve
l o
f 

un
ac
ce
pta
ble
 

litt
er 

 

NI
 19
5A
 -

Im
pro

ve
d s
tre
et 

an
d 

en
vir
on
me
nta
l 

cle
an
lin
es
s 

(le
ve
ls 
of 
litt
er,
 

de
trit
us
, g
raf
fiti
 

an
d f
ly-
po
sti
ng
) 

Ac
hie
ve
me
nt 
of 

an
nu
al 
tar
ge
t 

Gr
ad
ua
l 

inc
rea

se
 in
 

En
for
ce
me
nt 

Ac
tiv
ity
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Ap
pro

ve
d 

bu
dg
et 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
ree

t 
Sc
en
e a
nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Ra
pid
 re
sp
on
se
 

hit
 sq
ua
d 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Ap
pro

ve
d 

bu
dg
et 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
ree

t 
Sc
en
e a
nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Pr
og
ram

me
d 

cle
an
 ac
co
rdi
ng
 

to En
vir
on
me
nta
l 

Pr
ote
cti
on
 Ac

t 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Ap
pro

ve
d 

bu
dg
et 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
ree

t 
Sc
en
e a
nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Cl
ea

n S
tre

ets
 

an
d C

lim
ate

 
Ch

an
ge

 (C
P4

) 

Im
pro

ve
d 

Cu
sto
me
r 

Pe
rce
pti
on
 of
 

cle
an
lin
es
s 

    

Cu
sto
me
r 

sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

wit
h 

cle
an
lin
es
s o
f 

Dis
tric
t  

(B
DC
 C
us
tom
er 

Sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

Su
rve
y 2
00
8/0
9 

ou
ttu
rn 
= 6
7%
) 

An
nu
al 

Cu
sto
me
r 

Sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

Su
rve
y 

Gr
ad
ua
l 

inc
rea

se
 in
 

En
for
ce
me
nt 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Ap
pro

ve
d 

bu
dg
et 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
ree

t 
Sc
en
e a
nd
 

Page 187



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

30
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

Ac
tiv
ity
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Inc
rea

se
d 

rec
yc
lin
g r
ate
s 

   

NI
 19
2 -
 %
 

ho
us
eh
old
 

wa
ste
 se
nt 
for
 

reu
se
 re
cy
clin

g 
an
d 

co
mp
os
tin
g 

Ac
hie
ve
me
nt 
of 

An
nu
al 
tar
ge
t 

Ch
an
ge
 m
eth
od
 

of 
co
lle
cti
on
 to
 

co
-m
ing
led
 w
ith
 

ne
w 
ve
hic
les
 

30
 Ap

ril 
20
10
 

Bu
dg
et 
bid
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
ree

t 
Sc
en
e a
nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

  

Page 188



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

31
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

Int
eg
rat
ed
 

fin
an
cia
l a
nd
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me
nt 

tab
le 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Se
rvi
ce
 

ac
co
un
tan
ts 
an
d 

bu
dg
et 
ho
lde
rs 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
ce
 

Int
eg
rat
ed
 

fin
an
cia
l a
nd
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 

     

Bu
dg
et 
ali
gn
ed
 

to 
pri
ori
tie
s 

 Co
rre
cti
ve
 

ac
tio
ns
 ba
se
d 

on
 in
teg
rat
ed
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 

Qu
art
erl
y 

int
eg
rat
ed
 

rep
ort
s t
o 

Ca
bin
et 
an
d 

PM
B 

Me
eti
ng
s w

ith
 

bu
dg
et 
ho
lde
rs 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Se
rvi
ce
 

ac
co
un
tan
ts 
an
d 

bu
dg
et 
ho
lde
rs 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
ce
 

Fin
an
cia
l P
lan
 

tim
eta
ble
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Se
rvi
ce
 

ac
co
un
tan
ts 
an
d 

bu
dg
et 
ho
lde
rs 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
ce
 

De
live

r M
ed
ium

 
Te
rm
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 

Pla
n a
nd
 

sta
tut
ory
 

ac
co
un
ts 

  

Bu
dg
et 
ali
gn
ed
 

to 
pri
ori
tie
s 

 Un
qu
ali
fie
d 

op
ini
on
 on
 

ac
co
un
ts 

Ba
lan
ce
d 

thr
ee
-ye
ar 
pla
n 

 Ac
co
un
ts 

su
bm
itte
d o
n 

tim
e 

Ne
w 
Us
e o
f 

Re
so
urc
es
 

Ac
tio
n P

lan
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Se
rvi
ce
 

ac
co
un
tan
ts 
an
d 

bu
dg
et 
ho
lde
rs 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
ce
 

Re
pe
at 
Bu
dg
et 

Ju
ry 

31
 Ja
nu
ary
 

20
10
 an
d 

an
nu
all
y 

the
rea

fte
r 

He
ad
 of
 

Fin
an
cia
l 

Se
rvi
ce
s a
nd
 

CC
PP
 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
ce

 
Bu
dg
et 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

    

% 
of 
res
ide
nts
 

wh
o 

un
de
rst
an
d t
he
 

ch
oic
es
 th
e 

Co
un
cil 
ha
s t
o 

ma
ke
  

(B
DC
 C
us
tom
er 

Sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

Su
rve
y 2
00
8/0
9 

ba
se
lin
e =
 87
%)
 

An
nu
al 

Cu
sto
me
r 

Sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

Su
rve
y 

Fu
rth
er 
on
lin
e 

Bu
dg
et 

Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

31
 Ja
nu
ary
 

20
10
 an
d 

an
nu
all
y 

the
rea

fte
r 

He
ad
 of
 

Fin
an
cia
l 

Se
rvi
ce
s a
nd
 

CC
PP
 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
ce

 

Ma
na

gin
g 

Fin
an

ce
s 

(in
clu

din
g 

Va
lue

 fo
r 

Mo
ne

y) 
(FP

1) 

Alt
ern

ati
ve
 

me
tho
ds
 of
 

se
rvi
ce
 de
live

ry 
Ca
sh
ab
le 

sa
vin
gs
 an
d 

im
pro

ve
d 

se
rvi
ce
s 

Ac
hie
ve
me
nt 
of 

sa
vin
gs
 as
 

ide
nti
fie
d 

Qu
art
erl
y r
ep
ort
 
31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Se
rvi
ce
 

ac
co
un
tan
ts 
an
d 

bu
dg
et 
ho
lde
rs 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
ce
 

Page 189



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

32
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

Im
pro

ve
d 

pro
cu
rem

en
t 

   

Fe
we
r 

su
pp
lie
rs 
an
d 

eff
icie

nc
y 

sa
vin
gs
 

Mo
nth
ly 

pro
cu
rem

en
t 

rep
ort
 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

Ac
tio
n P

lan
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

Ma
na
ge
r a
nd
 

CM
T 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
ce
 

Su
pp
lie
r 

en
ga
ge
me
nt 

wit
h 

pro
cu
rem

en
t 

 

Mo
re 
eff
ec
tiv
e 

ten
de
r p
roc
es
s 

Mo
re 
su
pp
lie
rs 

en
ga
gin
g w

ith
 

the
 C
ou
nc
il 

Su
pp
lie
r 

Se
mi
na
rs 
to 
be
 

de
ve
lop
ed
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

Ma
na
ge
r  

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
ce
 

Go
ve
rn
ing

 th
e 

Bu
sin

es
s 

(in
clu

din
g 

Va
lue

 fo
r 

Mo
ne

y) 
 (F

P2
) 

Eff
ec
tiv
e r
isk
 

ma
na
ge
me
nt 

   

Ris
ks
 

su
cc
es
sfu
lly 

ma
na
ge
d 

Qu
art
erl
y 

rev
iew

 of
 

co
rpo

rat
e r
isk
 

reg
ist
er 

Ris
k 

Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

Str
ate
gy
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Int
ern

al 
Au
dit
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
ce
 

 

Page 190



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

33
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

An
nu
al 
rev
iew

 of
 

As
se
t 

Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

Pla
n 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 Le
ga
l 

se
rvi
ce
s a
nd
 

Hu
ma
n 

res
ou
rce
s 

Dis
po
se
 of
/ 

ret
ain
 as
se
ts 
as
 

pe
r C
ou
nc
il 

pri
ori
tie
s 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 Le
ga
l 

se
rvi
ce
s a
nd
 

Hu
ma
n 

res
ou
rce
s 

Ma
na
ge
 as
se
ts 

eff
ec
tiv
ely
  

     

De
live

ry 
ag
ain
st 
As
se
t 

Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

Pla
n a
cti
on
 

pla
n t
o p
rof
ile
 

Qu
art
erl
y 

rep
ort
ing
  

Un
de
rta
ke
 

reg
ula
r 

pro
gra

mm
e o
f 

co
nd
itio
n 

su
rve
ys
 fo
r a
ll 

as
se
ts 
to 
en
su
re 

the
y a
re 
fit 
for
 

pu
rpo

se
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 Le
ga
l 

se
rvi
ce
s a
nd
 

Hu
ma
n 

res
ou
rce
s 

An
nu
al 
up
da
te 

of 
wo
rkf
orc
e 

pla
n 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

OD
 Bu

dg
et;
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

ma
na
ge
rs 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 Le
ga
l 

se
rvi
ce
s a
nd
 

Hu
ma
n 

res
ou
rce
s 

Ma
na

gin
g 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
(in

clu
din

g 
Va

lue
 fo

r 
Mo

ne
y) 

(FP
3) 

Pr
od
uc
e 

W
ork
for
ce
 Pl
an
 

      

Re
du
ce
d 

dis
tur
ba
nc
e t
o 

se
rvi
ce
 de
live

ry 
ca
us
ed
 by
 

em
plo
ye
e 

tur
no
ve
r 

 Inc
rea

se
 in
 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
  

 

Em
plo
ye
e 

Su
rve
y 

 Re
po
rtin
g o
f 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n 

nu
mb
ers
 an
d 

na
tur
e o
f 

ap
pli
ca
nts
 

 Re
du
ce
d 

Im
ple
me
nta
tio
n 

of 
wo
rkf
orc
e 

pla
n s
tra
teg
ies
 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

OD
 Bu

dg
et;
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

ma
na
ge
rs 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 Le
ga
l 

se
rvi
ce
s a
nd
 

Hu
ma
n 

res
ou
rce
s 

Page 191



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

34
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

Str
ate
gie
s 

rev
iew

ed
 on
 an
 

an
nu
al 
ba
sis
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

OD
 Bu

dg
et;
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

ma
na
ge
rs 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 Le
ga
l 

se
rvi
ce
s a
nd
 

Hu
ma
n 

res
ou
rce
s 

Inc
rea

se
 in
 

int
ern

al 
ap
po
int
me
nts
 

 

rec
rui
tm
en
t 

co
sts
 

Or
ga
nis
ati
on
al 

int
erv
en
tio
ns
 to
 

res
po
nd
 to
 

em
plo
ye
e 

su
rve
y r
es
ult
s 

 

1st
 Ap

ril 
20
09
 

on
wa
rds
 

HR
OD

 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Bu
dg
et 
bid
 fo
r 

joi
nt 
Cli
ma
te 

Ch
an
ge
 O
ffic
er 

wit
h R

ed
dit
ch
 

BC
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Bu
dg
et 
Bid

 
Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
ree

t 
Sc
en
e a
nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 

En
vir
on
me
nta
l 

ris
k 

ma
na
ge
me
nt 

NI
 1
86
 –
 P
er 

ca
pit
a 

red
uc
tio
n 

in 
CO

2 
em
iss
ion
s 

in 
the
 LA

 ar
ea
; 

 NI
 18
8 –
 

Pla
nn
ing
 to
 

ad
ap
t to
 

Cli
ma
te 

Ch
an
ge
; 

 NI
 19
3 –
 

Pe
rce
nta
ge
 of
 

mu
nic
ipa
l 

wa
ste
 la
nd
fille

d 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 

ag
ain
st 
LA
A 

tar
ge
ts 

Cli
ma
te 
Ch
an
ge
 

Ac
tio
n P

lan
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Bu
dg
et 
bid
 fo
r 

Cli
ma
te 
Ch
an
ge
 

Of
fic
er 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
ree

t 
Sc
en
e a
nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 

Page 192



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

35
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
 

Ou
tco

me
 

Me
as

ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

Ide
nti
fy 
an
d 

de
live

r p
rio
rity
 

se
rvi
ce
s, 

ou
tco
me
s a
nd
 

im
pro

ve
me
nts
 

 

% 
Co
un
cil 
Pla

n 
KP
Is 
de
live

red
 

Mo
nth
ly 

rep
ort
ing
 

Pr
od
uc
tio
n o
f 

mo
nth
ly 
rep

ort
 

As
 pe
r fo

rw
ard

 
pla
n 

CC
PP
 Te

am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r 

for
 

Cu
sto
me
r C
are

 
an
d S

erv
ice
 

 
Pr
ov
ide
 th
e 

lea
de
rsh
ip,
 

ca
pa
cit
y a
nd
 

ca
pa
bil
ity
 

ne
ce
ss
ary
 to
 

de
live

r fu
tur
e 

im
pro

ve
me
nts
 

 

Po
sit
ive
 sc
ore

 
in 
an
nu
al 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me
nt 

as
se
ss
me
nt 
by
 

Au
dit
 

Co
mm

iss
ion
 

 Ac
hie
ve
 Le
ve
l 

4 D
ata
 Q
ua
lity
 

sc
ore

 

Six
 m
on
th 

rev
iew

 re
po
rte
d 

to 
PM

B 
De
live

ry 
of 
the
 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

Str
ate
gy
 Ac

tio
n 

Pla
n 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

CC
PP
 Te

am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r 

for
 

Cu
sto
me
r C
are

 
an
d S

erv
ice
 

 

Co
ntr
ibu
te 
to 

im
pro

vin
g 

wid
er 

co
mm

un
ity
 

ou
tco
me
s (
e.g
. 

LA
A, 
MA

A)
 

 

% 
of 

Su
sta
ina
ble
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Str
ate
gy
 KP

Is 
on
 ta
rge

t 

Bi-
mo
nth
ly 

rep
ort
ing
 to
 

LS
P B

oa
rd 

Su
sta
ina
ble
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Str
ate
gy
 

fun
da
me
nta
l 

rev
iew

 
co
mp
let
ed
 

30
 N
ov
em
be
r 

20
09
 

CC
PP
 Te

am
; 

LS
P T

he
me
 

Gr
ou
p L
ea
de
rs 

Le
ad
er 
of 
the
 

Co
un
cil 

Ma
na

gin
g 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

(in
clu

din
g 

Va
lue

 fo
r 

Mo
ne

y) 
(FP

4) 

Ta
ck
le 

ine
qu
ali
ty 
an
d 

im
pro

ve
 

ou
tco
me
s f
or 

pe
op
le 
in 

De
live

ry 
ag
ain
st 

pri
ori
tie
s 

se
lec
ted
 by
 th
e 

an
nu
al 
E&
D 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 fe
d 

int
o C

ou
nc
il 

Pla
n p
art
 1 
 

an
d o
n i
nto
 

an
nu
al 
bu
dg
et 

An
nu
al 
E&
D 

Fo
rum

/ D
UG

 
co
nfe
ren

ce
 to
 

ide
nti
fy 
top
 

pri
ori
tie
s f
or 

30
 Se
pte
mb
er 

20
09
 

CC
PP
 Te

am
; 

Eq
ua
litie

s o
ffic
er;
 

E&
D 
Fo
rum

; 
Dis

ab
led
 U
se
rs’
 

Gr
ou
p 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 Le
ga
l 

se
rvi
ce
s a
nd
 

Hu
ma
n 

res
ou
rce
s 

Page 193



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

36
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
 

Ou
tco

me
 

Me
as

ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

vu
lne
rab

le 
cir
cu
ms
tan
ce
s 

Fo
rum

 
co
nfe
ren

ce
 

 E&
D 
Fo
rum

 
Cu
sto
me
r 

Sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

Su
rve
y 

 

cy
cle
 

vu
lne
rab

le 
gro

up
s 

 

Page 194



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

37
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

De
live

ry 
ag
ain
st 

Cu
sto
me
r F
irs
t 

Str
ate
gy
 Ac

tio
n 

pla
n 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

He
ad
 of
 E-

Go
ve
rnm

en
t; 

Im
pro

ve
me
nt 

Ma
na
ge
r; C

SC
 

sta
ff 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Cu
sto
me
r C
are

 
an
d S

erv
ice
 

Cu
sto
me
r 

Se
rvi
ce
 C
en
tre
 
% 
Cu
sto
me
rs 

wh
o w

ou
ld 

rec
om
me
nd
 th
e 

Cu
sto
me
r 

Se
rvi
ce
 C
en
tre
 

to 
a f
rie
nd
  

(B
DC
 C
us
tom
er 

sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

su
rve
y 2
00
8/0
9 

ba
se
lin
e =
 73
%)
 

 

Cu
sto
me
r 

Sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

Su
rve
y 

An
aly
sis
 of
 

en
qu
irie
s b
y 

typ
e 

 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 

20
10
 

He
ad
 of
 E-

Go
ve
rnm

en
t; 

Im
pro

ve
me
nt 

Ma
na
ge
r; C

SC
 

sta
ff 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Cu
sto
me
r C
are

 
an
d S

erv
ice
 

Cu
sto
me
r 

Sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

% 
Ov
era

ll 
Sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

wit
h t
he
 w
ay
 

the
 C
ou
nc
il 

run
s t
hin
gs
 

(B
DC
 C
us
tom
er 

sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

su
rve
y 2
00
8/0
9 

ba
se
lin
e =
 61
%)
 

  

Cu
sto
me
r 

Sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

Su
rve
y 

De
live

ry 
of 

Cu
sto
me
r F
irs
t 

an
d A

cc
es
s 

Str
ate
gy
 Ac

tio
n 

Pla
n 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Cu
sto
me
r F
irs
t 

Bo
ard

 
Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Cu
sto
me
r C
are

 
an
d S

erv
ice
 

Cu
sto

me
r 

Pr
oc

es
se

s 
(P
R1

) 
 

Co
mp
lai
nts
 

Ha
nd
lin
g 

 
% 
Co
mp
lai
nts
 

ha
nd
led
 in
 a 

sa
tis
fac
tor
y 

ma
nn
er 

 Se
rvi
ce
 

im
pro

ve
me
nts
 

Qu
art
erl
y 

rep
ort
 to
 C
MT

 
Pr
od
uc
tio
n o
f 

rep
ort
 

Qu
art
erl
y f
rom

 
1st
 Ap

ril 
20
09
 

on
wa
rds
 

CC
PP
 Te

am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Cu
sto
me
r C
are

 
an
d S

erv
ice
 

Page 195



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

38
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

res
ult
ing
 fro

m 
co
mp
lai
nts
 

 
Sp
ati
al 
pro

jec
t 

12
 m
on
th 
po
st-

pro
jec
t 

ev
alu
ati
on
 

rep
ort
 to
 PM

B 
 

Pr
od
uc
tio
n o
f 

rep
ort
 us
ing
 

fee
db
ac
k f
rom

 
He
ad
s o
f 

Se
rvi
ce
 

Co
ord

ina
tio
n o
f 

se
rvi
ce
 sp
ec
ific
 

fee
db
ac
k f
rom

 
He
ad
s o
f 

Se
rvi
ce
 to
 

inf
orm

 
ev
alu
ati
on
 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 

20
09
 

E-
Go
v T
ea
m 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Pa
rtn
ers
hip
s 

an
d P

roj
ec
ts 

 

Page 196



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

39
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y D

eli
ve
rab

le 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

Eth
ica
l 

go
ve
rna

nc
e 

im
pro

ve
me
nt 

thr
ou
gh
 be
tte
r 

rep
ort
s a
nd
 pr
e-

ch
ec
k a
nd
 

pre
se
nta
tio
n b
y 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 

an
d L
eg
al 
& 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Ov
erv
iew

 an
d 

Sc
rut
iny
 

    

NI
 4 
- %

 of
 

pe
op
le 
wh
o 

fee
l th
ey
 ca
n 

inf
lue
nc
e 

de
cis
ion
s i
n 

the
ir l
oc
ali
ty 

Pla
ce
 Su

rve
y  

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Ca
lls 
for
 ac
tio
n 

int
rod

uc
ed
 in
 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 

reg
ula
tio
ns
 an
d 

gu
ida
nc
e 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
1 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 

an
d L
eg
al 
& 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Iss
uin
g o
f 

gu
ida
nc
e a
nd
 

tra
ini
ng
 ba
se
d i
n 

ide
nti
fie
d i
ss
ue
s 

an
d i
mp
rov
ed
 

me
mb
er 

co
nd
uc
t 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 

an
d L
eg
al 
& 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Po
liti

ca
l 

Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 

(P
R2

) 

Me
mb
er 

sta
nd
ard

s 
    

% 
pe
op
le 
wh
o 

are
 aw

are
 of
 

the
 el
ec
ted
 

me
mb
er 

co
mp
lai
nt 

sy
ste
m 

 Re
du
cti
on
 in
 

ca
se
s r
ep
ort
ed
 

to 
Sta

nd
ard

s 
Bo
ard

 

Sta
nd
ard

s 
Co
mm

itte
e 

Re
gu
lar
 tra

ini
ng
 

an
d b
rie
fin
g  

se
ss
ion
s o
n 

co
nd
uc
t, 

be
ha
vio
ur,
 bi
as
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 

an
d L
eg
al 
& 

Page 197



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

40
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y D

eli
ve
rab

le 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

an
d p
re-

de
ter
mi
na
tio
n 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

De
live

ry 
of 

ma
nd
ato
ry 
an
d 

pri
ori
ty 
ele
me
nts
 

of 
Me
mb
er 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

 

1 A
pri
l 2
00
9 

on
wa
rds
 

Me
mb
er 

Tra
ini
ng
 

ap
pro

ve
d 

bu
dg
et 

  

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 

an
d L
eg
al 
an
d 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 

Mo
de
rn 

Co
un
cill
or 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

             

Ev
alu
ati
on
 of
 

Mo
de
rn 

Co
un
cill
or 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

ag
ain
st 
ag
ree

d 
cri
ter
ia 

 Ac
hie
ve
me
nt 

of 
lev
els
 w
ith
in 

the
 M
em
be
r 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Ch
art
er 

 

Mo
re 
rob

us
t 

reg
ula
tor
y 

en
vir
on
me
nt 

 Me
mb
ers
 

fee
lin
g 

co
nfi
de
nt 
in 
the
 

rol
es
 an
d 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
the
y p
erf
orm

 
Me
mb
er 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Ch
art
er 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Me
mb
er 

Tra
ini
ng
 

ap
pro

ve
d 

bu
dg
et 

  

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 

an
d L
eg
al 
an
d 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 
Int
rod

uc
tio
n o
f 

ele
cto
ral
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

sta
nd
ard

s 
 

30
 Ju
ne
 20
09
 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 

an
d L
eg
al 
& 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Ele
cti
on
s 

     

NI
 4 
- %

 of
 

pe
op
le 
wh
o 

fee
l th
ey
 ca
n 

inf
lue
nc
e 

de
cis
ion
s i
n 

the
ir l
oc
ali
ty 

Pla
ce
 Su

rve
y 

 Ele
cti
on
 

de
live

red
 to
 

sta
tut
ory
 

sta
nd
ard

s 
  

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
of 

a s
ch
oo
ls 
an
d 

co
mm

un
ity
 

pro
gra

mm
e t
ha
t 

en
co
ura

ge
s 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 

an
d L
eg
al 
& 

Page 198



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

41
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y D

eli
ve
rab

le 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

ev
ery
on
e t
o 

pa
rtic
ipa
te 
in 
the
 

de
mo
cra
tic
 

pro
ce
ss
. 

 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Ele
cto
ral
 ch
art
er 

ma
rk 
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 

an
d L
eg
al 
& 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

     

Page 199



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

42
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y D

eli
ve
rab

le 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

Me
diu
m 
win

s 
   

De
live

ry 
of 

be
ne
fits
 as
 pe
r 

bu
sin
es
s 

ca
se
s. 

 

Bu
sin
es
s 

ca
se
s 

ap
pro

ve
d (
31
 

Ja
nu
ary
 09
) 

De
live

ry 
of 

pro
jec
t p
lan
s f
or 

ea
ch
 bu
sin
es
s 

ca
se
 ap
pro

ve
d. 

31
 Ju
ly 
20
09
 

He
ad
s o
f 

Se
rvi
ce
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
cia
l 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Co
mp
let
ion
 of
 

ph
as
e 3
 bu
sin
es
s 

ca
se
 w
ith
 cl
ea
r 

sta
tem

en
t o
f 

se
rvi
ce
 de
live

ry 
be
ne
fit 
an
d 

eff
icie

nc
ies
 

 

Ap
pro

va
l o
f 

ph
as
e 3
 

bu
sin
es
s c
as
e 

(al
l s
erv
ice
s) 

Pr
oc
es
s 

co
mm

en
ce
d a
s 

pe
r S
ha
red

 
Se
rvi
ce
s B

oa
rd 

ap
pro

ve
d s
tar
t 

da
te.
 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
of 

bu
sin
es
s c
as
e. 

31
 Ju
ly 
20
09
 

He
ad
s o
f 

Se
rvi
ce
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
cia
l 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Jo
int

 C
EO

 
wi
th 

Re
dd

itc
h 

Bo
ro
ug

h 
Co

un
cil

 (P
R3

) 

De
cis
ion
 to
 

pro
gre

ss
 

    

De
live

ry 
of 

ph
as
e 3
 

bu
sin
es
s c
as
e 

Ap
pro

va
l o
f 

pe
rm
an
en
t 

Jo
int
 C
EO

 
Re
po
rt t
o b
oth
 

Fu
ll C

ou
nc
ils 

se
ttin
g o
ut 

se
rvi
ce
 an
d 

eff
icie

nc
y 

be
ne
fits
. 

As
 pe
r e
ac
h 

ag
ree

d 
bu
sin
es
s c
as
e. 

 Fu
ll C

ou
nc
il 3
1 

Ju
ly 
20
09
 

Ac
tin
g J
oin
t 

CE
O.
 

 CM
T o

f b
oth
 

co
un
cils

 
 Ex
ter
na
l 

su
pp
ort
 fu
nd
ed
 

£4
0,0
00
 fo
r 

ea
ch
 au
tho
rity
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

ho
lde
r fo

r 
Fin
an
cia
l 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 

Page 200



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

43
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

Co
-m
ing
led
 

rec
yc
lab
les
 

co
lle
cti
on
 

   

NI
 19
2 -
 %
 

ho
us
eh
old
 

wa
ste
 se
nt 
for
 

reu
se
, 

rec
yc
lin
g a
nd
 

co
mp
os
tin
g 

 % 
Co
ve
rag

e o
f 

the
 se
rvi
ce
 

An
nu
al 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 

ag
ain
st 
tar
ge
ts 

Jo
int
 w
ork
ing
 

wit
h W

CC
 to
 

de
live

r c
o -

mi
ng
led
 se
rvi
ce
 

30
 Ap

ril 
20
10
 

Bu
dg
et 
Bid

 
De
pu
ty 
Le
ad
er 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 St
ree

t 
Sc
en
e a
nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Se
rvi
ce
s  

Fu
nd
am
en
tal
 

rev
iew

 of
 

Br
om
sg
rov
e 

Su
sta
ina
ble
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Str
ate
gy
  

    

% 
of 

Su
sta
ina
ble
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Str
ate
gy
 KP

Is 
on
 ta
rge

t 

Bi-
mo
nth
ly 

rep
ort
ing
 to
 

LS
P B

oa
rd 

Su
sta
ina
ble
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Str
ate
gy
 

fun
da
me
nta
l 

rev
iew

 
co
mp
let
ed
 

30
 N
ov
em
be
r 

20
09
 

CC
PP
 Te

am
; 

LS
P T

he
me
 

Gr
ou
p L
ea
de
rs 

Le
ad
er 
of 
the
 

Co
un
cil 

Im
pr
ov

ed
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
Wo

rki
ng

 (P
R4

) 

Gr
an
ts 
Po
licy
  

         

BA
RN

 an
d 

Ca
bin
et 
sig
ne
d 

up
 to
 gr
an
ts 

po
licy
 

Pr
od
uc
tio
n o
f 

po
licy
 

Re
se
arc
h a
nd
 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 to
 

pre
pa
re 
dra

ft 
po
licy
 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 

20
09
 

CC
PP
 Te

am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho
lde
r 

for
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 

se
rvi
ce
s 

Page 201



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

44
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

Pr
og
res
s A

rea
 

Ac
tio
n P

lan
 to
 

ad
op
tio
n 

 

30
 Ju
ne
 20
09
 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Co
ntr
ol 
 an
d 

Str
ate
gic
 

Pla
nn
ing
 Po

licy
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Pla

nn
ing
 

Lo
ng
bri
dg
e 

    

Ar
ea
 Ac

tio
n 

Pla
n a
gre

ed
 

 De
ter
mi
na
tio
n 

of 
pla
nn
ing
 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n 

Ex
am
ina
tio
n i
n 

pu
bli
c 

 Pla
nn
ing
 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n 

co
ns
ide
red

 by
 

Pla
nn
ing
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

Se
cu
re 

co
mm

un
ity
 

be
ne
fits
 vi
a 

s.1
06
 

ag
ree

me
nts
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Co
ntr
ol 
 an
d 

Str
ate
gic
 

Pla
nn
ing
 Po

licy
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Pla

nn
ing
 

RS
S2
 -

ex
am
ina
tio
n i
n 

pu
bli
c 

30
 Ju
ne
 20
09
 

Str
ate
gic
 

Pla
nn
ing
 Po

licy
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Pla

nn
ing

 
RS
S3
 – 
su
bm
it 

Co
un
cil 

res
po
ns
e t
o 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

30
 Ju
ne
 20
09
 

Str
ate
gic
 

Pla
nn
ing
 Po

licy
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Pla

nn
ing

 

Re
gio
na
l 

Sp
ati
al 

Str
ate
gy
 

 

Ag
ree

 ho
us
ing
 

an
d 

em
plo
ym
en
t 

fig
ure

s f
or 

Dis
tric
t th
rou

gh
 

RS
S2
 

 Ag
ree

 gy
ps
y 

an
d t
rav
ell
er 

sit
e f
igu
res
 an
d 

en
vir
on
me
nta
l 

po
lici
es
 fo
r 

Dis
tric
t th
rou

gh
 

RS
S 3

 

Att
en
da
nc
e a
t 

ex
am
ina
tio
n i
n 

pu
bli
c 

RS
S 3

 – 
ex
am
ina
tio
n i
n 

pu
bli
c 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
0 

Str
ate
gic
 

Pla
nn
ing
 Po

licy
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Pla

nn
ing

 

Pla
nn

ing
 

(P
R5

) 
 

Lo
ca
l 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 

  

Lo
ca
l 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 

(LD
F) 

do
cu
me
nts
 

pro
du
ce
d t
o 

LD
F o

n t
arg

et 
ag
ain
st 

tim
es
ca
les
 

Pr
od
uc
tio
n, 

su
bm
iss
ion
 an
d 

ad
op
tio
n o
f L
DF
 

do
cu
me
nts
:  

• 
Lo
ng
bri
dg
e 

     30
 Ju
ne
 20
09
 

Str
ate
gic
 

Pla
nn
ing
 Po

licy
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Pla

nn
ing
  

 

Page 202



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

45
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

• 
Co
re 
Str
ate
gy
 

• 
To
wn
 C
en
tre
 

30
 Ju
ne
 20
10
 

30
 Ju
ne
 20
11
 

 
tar
ge
t 

tim
es
ca
les
 

Pr
od
uc
tio
n, 

su
bm
iss
ion
 an
d 

ad
op
tio
n o
f 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Pla
n D

oc
um
en
ts 

on
 ro
llin
g b
as
is 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Str
ate
gic
 

Pla
nn
ing
 Po

licy
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Pla

nn
ing
  

 

To
p q
ua
rtil
e  

NI
 15
7 f
or 

pro
ce
ss
ing
 

Pla
nn
ing
 

Ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

Ac
hie
ve
me
nt 
of 

an
nu
al 
tar
ge
ts 
 
Re
cru
itm
en
t a
nd
 

ret
en
tio
n o
f s
taf
f 

to 
en
su
re 

ca
pa
cit
y e
xis
ts 
 

to 
de
live

r a
ga
ins
t 

tar
ge
ts 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 

20
09
 an
d 

an
nu
all
y 

the
rea

fte
r 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Co
ntr
ol 
 

 
Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Pla

nn
ing
  

De
ter
mi
na
tio
n o
f 

pla
nn
ing
 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 in
 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 

po
licy
, ta
kin
g i
nto
 

ac
co
un
t a
ll 

ma
ter
ial
 

co
ns
ide
rat
ion
s 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

 
De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Co
ntr
ol 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Pla

nn
ing
  

Eff
ec
tiv
e 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Co
ntr
ol 
Se
rvi
ce
 

    
Ma
int
ain
 ex
ten
t 

of 
cu
rre
nt 

gre
en
be
lt a
t 

90
% 
of 
Dis

tric
t 

Pr
oa
cti
ve
 

en
for
ce
me
nt 

ac
tio
n 

 Mo
nit
ori
ng
 

nu
mb
er 
of 

ap
pe
als
 up
he
ld 

Qu
art
erl
y 

Me
mb
er 

Pla
nn
ing
 tra

ini
ng
 
31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

 
De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Co
ntr
ol 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Pla

nn
ing
  

  

Page 203



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

46
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

De
ve
lop
 co
re 

co
mp
ete
nc
ies
 

for
 al
l s
taf
f 

 

31
 Ja
n 2
01
0 

L&
D 
Ma
na
ge
r 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Re
vie
w 
of 
PD
R 

pro
ce
ss
 

31
 Ja
n 2
01
0 

L&
D 
Ma
na
ge
r 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Em
plo
ye
e s
kill
s 

an
d c
ap
ac
ity
 

       

10
0%

 of
 st
aff
 

wit
h a
nn
ua
l 

PD
R 

co
mp
let
ed
 

 % 
sta
ff w

ho
 

un
de
rst
an
d 

wh
at 
the
y a
nd
 

are
 co
ntr
ibu
tin
g 

to 
Co
un
cil 

ob
jec
tiv
es
 (B
DC
 

em
plo
ye
e s
urv
ey
 

20
08
/09
 ba
se
lin
e 

= 7
4%
) 

Em
plo
ye
e 

su
rve
y 

  

Str
ea
ml
ine
 

Mo
de
rn 

Ma
na
ge
r 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
to 

ma
ke
 m
ore

 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e 

31
 Ja
n 2
01
0 

L&
D 
Ma
na
ge
r 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Re
vie
w 
an
d 

de
live

r II
P a

cti
on
 

pla
n 

30
 Ap

ril 
20
11
 

HR
OD

 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Le
arn

ing
 an

d 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

(H
R&

OD
1) 

Ma
int
ain
 

Inv
es
tor
s i
n 

Pe
op
le 
 

ac
cre
dit
ati
on
 

Ac
hie
ve
 IIP

 
rea

cc
red

ita
tio
n 

Ex
ter
na
l 

as
se
ss
me
nt 

fro
m 
W
MQ

C 
 Em

plo
ye
e 

Su
rve
y 

Ho
ld 
an
nu
al 

Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

31
 O
cto
be
r 

20
09
 an
d 

HR
OD

 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 

Page 204



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

47
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

Co
nfe
ren

ce
 

an
nu
all
y 

the
rea

fte
r 

Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 

Page 205



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

48
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

Ma
int
en
an
ce
 of
 

eq
ua
l p
ay
 

      

Ma
int
en
an
ce
 of
 

ze
ro 
cla
im
s 

un
de
r th

e 
Eq
ua
l P
ay
 Ac

t 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 by
 

CM
T o

n a
n 

ex
ce
pti
on
 ba
sis
 
An
nu
al 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
 

pa
y s
tru
ctu
re 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
0 

an
d a
nn
ua
lly 

the
rea

fte
r 

HR
OD

 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

De
live

r th
e 

an
nu
al 
HR

 
po
licy
 

pro
gra

mm
e 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
0 

HR
OD

 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

HR
 

Mo
de

rn
isa

tio
n 

(H
R&

OD
2) 

Po
licy
 re
vie
w 

an
d 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 

            

Sta
tut
ori
ly 

co
mp
lia
nt 

po
lici
es
 in
 

pla
ce
 

Fe
ed
ba
ck
 fro

m 
an
nu
al 
HR

OD
 

se
rvi
ce
 su
rve
y 

Co
nti
nu
e t
o 

co
ns
ult
 

ma
na
ge
rs 
as
 

po
lici
es
 ar
e 

rev
iew

ed
/ 

de
ve
lop
ed
 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
0 

HR
OD

 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 

Page 206



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

49
 

 Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

W
ork
for
ce
 pl
an
 

str
ate
gie
s 

     

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

HR
OD

 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Re
cru
itm
en
t 

an
d R

ete
nti
on
 

of 
sta
ff 

  

Inc
rea

se
 in
 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
  

 Re
du
ce
d 

tur
no
ve
r 

 Inc
rea

se
 in
 

int
ern

al 
ap
po
int
me
nts
 

 

Em
plo
ye
e 

Su
rve
y 

 Re
po
rtin
g o
f 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n 

nu
mb
ers
 an
d 

na
tur
e o
f 

ap
pli
ca
nts
 

 
Or
ga
nis
ati
on
al 

int
erv
en
tio
ns
 to
 

res
po
nd
 to
 

em
plo
ye
e 

su
rve
y r
es
ult
s 

 

1st
 Ap

ril 
20
09
 

on
wa
rds
 

HR
OD

 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Po
sit

ive
 

Em
plo

ye
e 

Cl
im

ate
 

(H
R&

OD
3) 

Em
plo
ye
e 

sa
tis
fac
tio
n 

% 
of 
sta
ff 

ag
ree

ing
 th
at 

BD
C 
ha
s 

mo
tiv
ate
d s
taf
f 

(B
DC
 st
aff
 

su
rve
y 2
00
8/0
9 

ba
se
lin
e =
 29
%)
 

 % 
sta
ff 

ag
ree

ing
 th
ing
s 

are
 ch
an
gin
g 

for
 th
e b
ett
er 

(B
DC
 st
aff
 

su
rve
y 2
00
8/0
9 

ba
se
lin
e =
 43
%)
 

Em
plo
ye
e 

Su
rve
y a
t 1
5-

18
 m
on
th 

int
erv
als
 

 Ide
nti
fic
ati
on
 of
  

tre
nd
s t
hro

ug
h 

‘Co
nn
ec
t w
ith
 

Ke
v’ 
on
 a 

qu
art
erl
y b
as
is 

  

De
live

ry 
of 
IIP
 

ac
tio
n p
lan
/ 

Em
plo
ye
e 

su
rve
y r
ec
ov
ery
 

pla
n 

   

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
0 

HR
OD

 te
am
 

  
Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 

Page 207



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

50
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

 % 
sta
ff 

ag
ree

ing
 th
ey
 

are
 co
ns
ult
ed
 

ab
ou
t th
ing
s 

tha
t a
ffe
ct 
the
m 

(B
DC
 st
aff
 

su
rve
y 2
00
8/0
9 

ba
se
lin
e =
 51
%)
 

  
6-w

ee
kly
 

me
eti
ng
 w
ith
 

un
ion
s a
tte
nd
ed
 

by
 se
nio
r 

ma
na
ge
rs 

 

31
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

       

HR
OD

 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 

Ind
us
tria
l 

rel
ati
on
s 

No
 in
du
str
ial
 

ac
tio
n 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 

thr
ou
gh
 un
ion
 

me
eti
ng
s 

 

An
nu
al 
rev
iew

 of
 

JC
C 

arr
an
ge
me
nts
 

 

30
 N
ov
em
be
r 

20
09
 

 
HR

OD
 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 
Sa
fe 
wo
rki
ng
 

en
vir
on
me
nt 

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 

nu
mb
er 
of 

ne
ar-
mi
ss
es
 

Mo
nth
ly 

ac
cid
en
t 

sta
tis
tic
s 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
of 

He
alt
h a
nd
 

Sa
fet
y s
tra
teg
y 

30
 Ju
ne
 20
10
 

HR
OD

 te
am
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde
r fo

r 
Hu
ma
n 

Page 208



Co
un
cil
 Pl
an
 20
09
/20
12
 

51
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ke
y 

De
liv

era
ble

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Me

as
ur
e 

Ho
w 
Do

 W
e 

Kn
ow

 W
e A

re 
Ge

ttin
g 

Th
ere

? 

Pr
oje

ct/
Ac

tio
n 

Co
mp

let
ion

 
Da

te 
Re

so
ur
ce

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r 

rep
ort
ed
 to
 

CM
T 

Re
so
urc
es
 an
d 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

De
mo
cra
tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 

Page 209



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

08
/20

11
 

52
 

 8. 
 C
or
po

rat
e P

erf
or
ma

nc
e I

nd
ica

tor
s  

 Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 se

t o
f C
orp

ora
te 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic
ato

rs 
ha
s b
ee
n r
ev
ise
d t
o t
ak
e a

cc
ou
nt 
of 
the

 re
du
cti
on
 in
 th
e n

um
be
r o
f C
ou
nc
il 

pri
ori
tie
s f
rom

 fiv
e t
o f
ou
r a
nd
 al
so
 to
 ta
ke
 ac
co
un
t o
f th

e n
ew
 se

t o
f N
ati
on
al 
Ind

ica
tor
s (
NI
s) 
tha

t w
as
 in
tro
du
ce
d i
n A

pri
l 2
00
8. 
Fo
r 

so
me

 N
Is 
tar
ge
ts 
ha
ve
 be

en
 se
t fo

r th
e f
irs
t ti
me

 th
is 
ye
ar 
us
ing
 ba

se
lin
e d

ata
  c
oll
ec
ted

 ov
er 
the

 pa
st 
ye
ar.
  N
Is 
ha
ve
 re
pla
ce
d B

es
t 

Va
lue
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic
ato

rs 
(B
VP

Is)
 w
hic
h w

ere
 be

en
 in
 us

e f
rom

 20
00
-20

08
 an

d t
he
y w

ill b
e u

se
d t
o i
nfo

rm
 C
om

pre
he
ns
ive
 

Ar
ea
 As

se
ss
me

nts
 (C
AA

) w
hic
h w

ill c
om

me
nc
e i
n 2

00
9. 
 C
AA

 w
ill p

lac
e a

 fa
r s
tro
ng
er 
em

ph
as
is 
on
 ou

tco
me

s a
nd
 pu

bli
c 

pe
rce

pti
on
 th
an
 ha

s p
rev

iou
sly
 be

en
 us

ed
 to
 as
se
ss
 pu

bli
c s
ec
tor
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
. 

 A t
ota

l o
f 1
98
 ne

w 
Na
tio
na
l In
dic
ato

rs 
(N
Is)
 ha

ve
 be

en
 in
 us
e s

inc
e A

pri
l 2
00
8. 
 O
f th

e 1
98
 in
dic
ato

rs 
on
ly 
64
 ap

ply
 at
 th
e D

ist
ric
t 

Co
un
cil 
lev
el 
an
d o

f th
os
e t
he
re 
are

 on
ly 
17
 th
at 
are

 co
lle
cte
d b

y d
ist
ric
t c
ou
nc
ils.
  T
his
 si
gn
ific
an
t re

du
cti
on
 ha

s g
ive
n u

s t
he
 

op
po
rtu
nit
y t
o f
oc
us
 ou

r a
tte
nti
on
 on

 lo
ca
l p
erf
orm

an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 th
at 
be
tte
r re

fle
ct 
ou
r p
rio
riti
es
.  

 
Ta

rg
ets

 
PI 

Re
f 

PI 
De

sc
rip

tio
n 

Ho
S 

Se
t ta

rg
ets

 
or

 ba
se

lin
e 

in 
20

09
? 

Re
po

rti
ng

 
fre

qu
en

cy
 

09
/10

 
10

/11
 

11
/12

 
Pr

ior
ity

 - T
ow

n c
en

tre
– O

utc
om

e m
ea

su
res

 
  

%a
ge

 sa
tis
fie
d w

ith
 re

tai
l &

 le
isu

re 
fac

iliti
es
 in
 to

wn
 ce

ntr
e (

so
urc

e -
 

Cu
sto

me
r P

an
el 
su
rve

y) 
Ph

il S
tre

et 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

20
% 

21
% 

22
% 

 
%a

ge
 sa

tis
fie
d w

ith
 tra

ns
po

rt l
ink

s 
to/

fro
m 

the
 to

wn
 ce

ntr
e (

so
urc

e -
 

Cu
sto

me
r P

an
el 
su
rve

y) 
 

Hu
gh

 
Be

nn
ett

 
T 

An
nu

al 
26

% 
27

% 
28

% 

 
%a

ge
 sa

tis
fie
d w

ith
 C
hri
stm

as
 lig

hts
 

(so
urc

e -
 C
us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l s
urv

ey
 

Ph
il S

tre
et 

T 
An

nu
al 
 

37
% 

39
% 

41
% 

 
%a

ge
 sa

tis
fie
d w

ith
 th

e r
an

ge
 an

d 
qu

ali
ty 
of 

sh
op

s (
so
urc

e -
 C
us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l s
urv

ey
)  

Ph
il S

tre
et 

T 
An

nu
al 
 

18
% 

19
% 

20
% 

Pr
ior

ity
 - T

ow
n c

en
tre

 – 
Ou

tpu
t m

ea
su

res
 

  
Ne

t n
um

be
r o

f n
ew

 bu
sin

es
se
s i
n 

tow
n c

en
tre

 (w
ith
 a 

sh
op
 fro

nt)
.   

Ph
il S

tre
et  

B 
Qu

art
erl

y 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 

Page 210



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

53
 

Ta
rg

ets
 

PI 
Re

f 
PI 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
Ho

S 
Se

t ta
rg

ets
 

or
 ba

se
lin

e 
in 

20
09

? 
Re

po
rti

ng
 

fre
qu

en
cy

 
09

/10
 

10
/11

 
11

/12
 

 
To

wn
 ce

ntr
e c

ar 
pa
rk 

us
ag

e. 
 N
ew

 
ind

ica
tor

 
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
B 

Mo
nth

ly 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 tra

ns
po
rt u

sa
ge

. N
ew

 
ind

ica
tor

 
Hu

gh
 

Be
nn

ett
 

B 
Mo

nth
ly 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

 
Sh

op
mo

bil
ity
 ce

ntr
e u

sa
ge

.  N
ew

 
ind

ica
tor

 
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
15

0 p
er 

mo
nth

 
16

0 p
er 

mo
nth

 
17

0 p
er 

mo
nth

  
Pr

ior
ity

 - H
ou

sin
g -

 O
utc

om
e m

ea
su

res
 

  
Sa

tis
fac

tio
n m

ea
su
res

 fo
r D

FG
s 

(ex
ist
ing

 su
rve

y t
o b

e r
ev
ise

d) 
 

Da
ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

B 
Qu

art
erl

y 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 
NI
 15

5 
No

. o
f a

ffo
rda

ble
 ho

me
s d

eli
ve
red

  
Da

ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

T 
Qu

art
erl

y 
80

 
80

 
80

 
NI
 15

6  
No

. o
f h

ou
se
ho

lds
 oc

cu
py
ing

 
tem

po
rar

y a
cc
om

mo
da

tio
n  

Da
ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

T 
Qu

art
erl

y 
< 3

4 
< 3

4 
< 3

4 
Pr

ior
ity

 - H
ou

sin
g -

 O
utp

ut 
me

as
ur

es
 

  
Av

era
ge

 tim
e f

rom
 re

fer
ral
 to

 
co
mp

let
ion

 fo
r D

FG
s -
 ca

teg
ory

 1 
Da

ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

T 
Qu

art
erl

y 
34

 w
ee

ks
 

34
 w
ee

ks
 

34
 w
ee

ks
 

 
Av

era
ge

 tim
e f

rom
 re

fer
ral
 to

 
co
mp

let
ion

 fo
r D

FG
s –

 ca
teg

ory
 2 

Da
ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

T 
Qu

art
erl

y 
38

 w
ee

ks
 

35
 w
ee

ks
 

35
 w
ee

ks
 

 
Av

era
ge

 tim
e f

rom
 re

fer
ral
 to

 
co
mp

let
ion

 fo
r D

FG
s  
- c
ate

go
ry 

3 
Da

ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

T 
Qu

art
erl

y 
52

 w
ee

ks
 

52
 w
ee

ks
 

52
 w
ee

ks
 

 
% 

of 
DF

G 
bu

dg
et 

all
oc
ate

d t
o 

ap
pro

ve
d s

ch
em

es
  

Da
ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

Ac
tiv
ity
 

me
as
ure

 
Qu

art
erl

y 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 
 

% 
of 

DF
G 
bu

dg
et 

sp
en
t  

Da
ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

Ac
tiv
ity
 

me
as
ure

 
Qu

art
erl

y 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 
Pr

ior
ity

 – 
Se

ns
e o

f C
om

mu
nit

y O
utc

om
e m

ea
su

res
 

 An
ti S

oc
ial

 B
eh

av
iou

r a
nd

 C
rim

e  
NI
 17

 
Pe

rce
pti
on

 of
 an

ti s
oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
-  

An
nu

al 
 (s

ou
rce

 - P
lac

e s
urv

ey
/ 

Cu
sto

me
r P

an
el 
su
rve

y) 
 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
B 

An
nu

al 
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Page 211



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

54
 

Ta
rg

ets
 

PI 
Re

f 
PI 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
Ho

S 
Se

t ta
rg

ets
 

or
 ba

se
lin

e 
in 

20
09

? 
Re

po
rti

ng
 

fre
qu

en
cy

 
09

/10
 

10
/11

 
11

/12
 

NI
 21

 
De

ali
ng

 w
ith
 lo
ca
l c
on

ce
rns

 ab
ou

t 
an

ti-s
oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d c
rim

e i
ss
ue

s 
by
 th

e l
oc
al 
co
un

cil 
an

d p
oli
ce
 -  

An
nu

al 
(so

urc
e -

 Pl
ac
e s

urv
ey
/ 

Cu
sto

me
r P

an
el 
su
rve

y) 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
B 

An
nu

al 
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

NI
 27

 
Un

de
rst

an
din

g o
f lo

ca
l c
on

ce
rns

 
ab

ou
t a

nti
-so

cia
l b
eh

av
iou

r a
nd
 cr

im
e 

iss
ue

s b
y t
he

 lo
ca
l c
ou

nc
il a

nd
 po

lice
 

– A
nn

ua
l (s

ou
rce

 - P
lac

e s
urv

ey
/ 

Cu
sto

me
r P

an
el 
su
rve

y) 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
B 

An
nu

al 
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Ev
en

ts 
 

Ac
tiv
e s

urv
ey
 (S

po
rt E

ng
lan

d) 
- 

Sa
tis
fac

tio
n 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
71

% 
72

% 
73

% 
 

Sa
tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 pa

rks
 & 

op
en

 sp
ac
es
 

(so
urc

e -
 C
us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l S

urv
ey
)  

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

69
% 

71
% 

73
% 

 
Sa

tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 ba

nd
sta

nd
 (s

ou
rce

 - 
Cu

sto
me

r P
an

el 
Su

rve
y) 

 
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

34
% 

36
% 

38
% 

 
Sa

tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 st
ree

t th
ea

tre
 

(so
urc

e -
 C
us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l S

urv
ey
)  

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

31
%x

 
33

% 
35

% 
 

Sa
tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 in
do

or 
sp
ort

s 
fac

iliti
es
 (s

ou
rce

 - C
us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l 

Su
rve

y) 
 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

28
% 

30
% 

32
% 

 
Sa

tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 ou

tdo
or 

sp
ort

s 
fac

iliti
es
 (s

ou
rce

 - C
us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l 

Su
rve

y) 
 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

24
% 

26
% 

28
% 

 
Sa

tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 bo

nfi
re 

nig
ht 

(so
urc

e 
- C

us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l S

urv
ey
)  

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

25
% 

27
% 

29
% 

 
Ov

era
ll s

ati
sfa

cti
on

 w
ith
 cu

ltu
ral

 & 
rec

rea
tio
na

l fa
cili

tie
s (

so
urc

e -
 

Cu
sto

me
r P

an
el 
Su

rve
y) 

 
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

28
% 

30
% 

32
% 

NI
 11

 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

in 
the

 Ar
ts 
(co

un
ty 
wid

e) 
 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

51
%  

52
% 

53
% 

Page 212



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

55
 

Ta
rg

ets
 

PI 
Re

f 
PI 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
Ho

S 
Se

t ta
rg

ets
 

or
 ba

se
lin

e 
in 

20
09

? 
Re

po
rti

ng
 

fre
qu

en
cy

 
09

/10
 

10
/11

 
11

/12
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 in
flu

en
ce
 

NI
 4 

% 
of 

pe
op

le 
wh

o f
ee

l th
at 
the

y c
an

 
inf
lue

nc
e d

ec
isio

ns
 in
 th
eir

 lo
ca
lity

 
An

nu
al 
(so

urc
e -

 Pl
ac
e 

Su
rve

y/C
us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l s
urv

ey
)  

Hu
gh

 
Be

nn
ett

 
B 

An
nu

al 
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

 
Aw

are
ne

ss
 of

 Bu
dg

et 
jur

y p
roc

es
s 

(C
us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l S

urv
ey
)  

Hu
gh

 
Be

nn
ett

 
B 

An
nu

al 
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Se
ns

e o
f C

om
mu

nit
y 

NI
 3 

Civ
ic 
pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n i
n t

he
 lo
ca
l a
rea

 
(so

urc
e -

 Pl
ac
e s

urv
ey
/ C

us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l s
urv

ey
) 

Cla
ire

 
Fe

lto
n  

B 
An

nu
al 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

NI
 1 

% 
of 

pe
op

le 
wh

o b
eli
ev
e p

eo
ple

 fro
m 

dif
fer

en
t b

ac
kg
rou

nd
s g

et 
on
 w
ell
 

tog
eth

er 
in 
the

ir l
oc
al 
are

a  
(so

urc
e -

 
Pla

ce
 su

rve
y/ 
Cu

sto
me

r P
an

el 
su
rve

y) 

Cla
ire

 
Fe

lto
n  

B 
An

nu
al 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

 
NI
 2 

- %
 of

 pe
op

le 
wh

o f
ee

l th
at 

the
y 

be
lon

g t
o t

he
ir n

eig
hb

ou
rho

od
 (s

ou
rce

 
- P

lac
e s

urv
ey
/ C

us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l 

su
rve

y) 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll  
B 

An
nu

al 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 

 
Ele

cto
ral

 tu
rno

ut 
  

Cla
ire

 
Fe

lto
n  

T 
An

nu
al 

n/a
 

n/a
 

38
% 

Pr
ior

ity
 – 

Se
ns

e o
f C

om
mu

nit
y O

utp
ut 

me
as

ur
es

 
 An

ti S
oc

ial
 B

eh
av

iou
r a

nd
 C

rim
e  
 

CS
2 

Div
ers

ion
ary

 ac
tiv
itie

s –
 nu

mb
er 

of 
se
ss
ion

s p
rov

ide
d 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Qu
art

erl
y 

15
7 

16
5 

17
3 

CS
3 

Div
ers

ion
ary

 ac
tiv
itie

s –
 nu

mb
er 

of 
us
ers

 at
ten

din
g  

 
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Qu
art

erl
y  

43
6 

45
8 

48
1 

NW
BC

U1
 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
Bu

rgl
ari

es
  

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
36

0 
n/a

 
n/a

 
NW

BC
U2

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
vio

len
t c
rim

es
 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
10

56
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

NW
BC

U3
 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
rob

be
rie

s 
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
60

 
n/a

 
n/a

 

Page 213



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

56
 

Ta
rg

ets
 

PI 
Re

f 
PI 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
Ho

S 
Se

t ta
rg

ets
 

or
 ba

se
lin

e 
in 

20
09

? 
Re

po
rti

ng
 

fre
qu

en
cy

 
09

/10
 

10
/11

 
11

/12
 

NW
BC

U4
 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
ve
hic

le 
cri
me

s 
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
76

8 
n/a

 
n/a

 
 

% 
of 

PA
CT

 m
ee

tin
gs
 at

ten
de

d b
y 

CM
T m

em
be
rs 

Hu
gh

 
Be

nn
ett

 
T 

Qu
art

erl
y 

85
% 

85
% 

85
% 

CS
1A

 
CC

TV
 in
cid

en
ts 
rep

ort
ed
 – 

Cr
im
e 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
 

29
83

 
36

00
 

36
00

 
CS

1B
 

CC
TV

 in
cid

en
ts 
ini
tia
ted

 by
 C
CT

V  
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
 

10
47

 
11

00
 

11
00

 
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

Do
me

sti
c v

iol
en

ce
 

inc
ide

nts
 in
ve
sti
ga

ted
 - n

ew
 lo
ca
l P

I 
fro

m 
CD

RP
 fig

ure
s  
 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
B 

Qu
art

erl
y  

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

 
% 

of 
DV

 in
cid

en
ts 
res

ult
ing

 in
 a 

ch
arg

e –
 ne

w 
loc

al 
PI 

fro
m 

CD
RP

 
fig
ure

s 
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
B 

Qu
art

erl
y 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Ev
en

ts 
SC

1 
Att

en
da

nc
e a

t a
rts

 ev
en

ts 
 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
25

.25
0 

25
,75

0 
26

,27
5 

SC
2 

Att
en

da
nc
e a

t b
on
fire

  
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
11

,35
0 

11
,57

5 
11

,80
0 

SC
3 

Sp
ort

s c
en

tre
s u

sa
ge

s  
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
67

2,4
20

 
75

5,4
25

 
78

7,7
67

 
SC

4 
Sp

ort
s d

ev
elo

pm
en

t u
sa
ge

s  
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
20

,50
5 

22
,55

6 
24

,81
2 

NI
 8 

 
Ad

ult
 Pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n i
n S

po
rt 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

22
% 

23
% 

n/a
 

 
Ac

tiv
e s

urv
ey
 (S

po
rt E

ng
lan

d) 
– 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tio
n  

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

24
.7%

 
25

.7%
 

26
.7%

 
 

Ac
tiv
e s

urv
ey
 (S

po
rt E

ng
lan

d) 
– 

Vo
lun

tee
rin

g  
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

5.7
% 

6.7
% 

7.7
% 

 
Ac

tiv
e s

urv
ey
 (S

po
rt E

ng
lan

d) 
– C

lub
 

Me
mb

ers
hip

  
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

30
% 

31
% 

32
% 

 
Ac

tiv
e s

urv
ey
 (S

po
rt E

ng
lan

d) 
– 

Re
ce
ivin

g T
uit
ion

 
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

20
.7%

 
21

.7%
 

22
.7%

 
 

Ac
tiv
e s

urv
ey
 (S

po
rt E

ng
lan

d) 
– 

Or
ga

nis
ed
 co

mp
eti
tio
n 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

18
.5%

 
19

.5%
 

20
.5%

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 in

flu
en

ce
 

 
% 

of 
PA

CT
 m

ee
tin
gs
 at

ten
de

d b
y 

CM
T m

em
be
rs 

(qu
art

erl
y) 

Hu
gh

 
Be

nn
ett

 
T 

Qu
art

erl
y 

85
% 

85
% 

85
% 

Page 214



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

57
 

Ta
rg

ets
 

PI 
Re

f 
PI 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
Ho

S 
Se

t ta
rg

ets
 

or
 ba

se
lin

e 
in 

20
09

? 
Re

po
rti

ng
 

fre
qu

en
cy

 
09

/10
 

10
/11

 
11

/12
 

NI
 3 

Civ
ic 
pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n i
n t

he
 lo
ca
l a
rea

 
An

nu
al 
 

(so
urc

e -
 Pl

ac
e S

urv
ey
/ C

us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l s
urv

ey
) 

Cla
ire

 
Fe

lto
n 

B 
An

nu
al 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
ch
ild
ren

 at
ten

din
g “

Yo
u 

de
cid

e” 
co
ns
ult
ati
on

 ev
en

ts 
 

Ph
il S

tre
et 

T 
An

nu
al 
 

80
 

90
 

10
0 

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
res

po
ns
es
 to

 in
ter

ne
t 

bu
dg

et 
co
ns
ult
ati
on

  
Hu

gh
 

Be
nn

ett
 

T 
An

nu
al 
 

30
 

40
 

50
 

 
%a

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 
wh

o k
no

w 
wh

o 
the

ir l
oc
al 
co
un
cill

or 
is 
(so

urc
e -

 
Cu

sto
me

r P
an

el 
Su

rve
y) 

Cla
ire

 
Fe

lto
n 

T 
An

nu
al 

42
% 

43
% 

45
% 

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
life

lin
e u

nit
s i
n u

se
 

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
 

 
 

Se
ns

e o
f C

om
mu

nit
y 

NI
6 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio
n i
n r

eg
ula

r v
olu

nte
eri

ng
 

An
nu

al 
(so

urc
e -

 Pl
ac
e s

urv
ey
/ 

Cu
sto

me
r P

an
el 
su
rve

y) 
Hu

gh
 

Be
nn

ett
 

B 
An

nu
al 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

 
Pr
op

ort
ion

 of
 m

em
be

rs 
of 
the

 
Eq

ua
litie

s a
nd
 D
ive

rsi
ty 
for

um
  a

nd
 

Dis
ab

led
 U
se
rs 

Gr
ou

p s
ati
sfi
ed

 w
ith
 

the
 C
ou

nc
il –

 ne
w 
loc

al 
ind

ica
tor

  

Cla
ire

 
Fe

lto
n 

B 
Qu

art
erl

y 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
pe

op
le 
att

en
din

g E
 & 

D 
ev
en

ts 
(e.

g. 
Div

ali
, B

lac
k h

ist
ory

 
mo

nth
) n

ew
 lo
ca
l in

dic
ato

r  
Cla

ire
 

Fe
lto
n 

B 
Qu

art
erl

y 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 

 
%a

ge
 of

 el
ec
tor

al 
ag

e o
n e

lec
tor

al 
rol

l 
– n

ew
 lo
ca
l in

dic
ato

r 
Cla

ire
 

Fe
lto
n 

B 
Qu

art
erl

y 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 

 
No

. o
f h

ate
 cr

im
e i
nc
ide

nts
  

Cla
ire

 
Fe

lto
n 

ac
tiv
ity
 

me
as
ure

 
Mo

nth
ly 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

 
% 

of 
 re

po
rte

d h
ate

 cr
im
e i
nc
ide

nts
 

req
uir

ing
 fu

rth
er 

ac
tio
n t

ha
t re

ce
ive

d 
fur

the
r a

cti
on

  –
 ne

w 
loc

al 
ind

ica
tor

 
Cla

ire
 

Fe
lto
n 

T 
Mo

nth
ly 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 

Page 215



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

58
 

Ta
rg

ets
 

PI 
Re

f 
PI 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
Ho

S 
Se

t ta
rg

ets
 

or
 ba

se
lin

e 
in 

20
09

? 
Re

po
rti

ng
 

fre
qu

en
cy

 
09

/10
 

10
/11

 
11

/12
 

 
%a

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 
wh

o r
em

em
be
r 

rec
eiv

ing
 ‘T

og
eth

er 
Br
om

sg
rov

e’ 
– 

(so
urc

e -
 C
us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l S

urv
ey
) 

Hu
gh

 
Be

nn
ett

 
T 

An
nu

al 
  

65
% 

70
% 

75
% 

 
%a

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 
wh

o f
ou

nd
 

‘To
ge

the
r B

rom
sg
rov

e’ 
us
efu

l –
 

(so
urc

e -
 C
us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l S

urv
ey
) 

Hu
gh

 
Be

nn
ett

 
T 

An
nu

al 
  

65
% 

70
% 

75
% 

Pr
ior

ity
 – 

St
ree

t S
ce

ne
 &

 C
lim

ate
 C

ha
ng

e –
 O

utc
om

e m
ea

su
res

 
  

Sa
tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 cl
ea

nli
ne

ss
 of

 yo
ur 

str
ee
t (s

ou
rce

 - C
us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l 

su
rve

y) 
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

An
nu

al 
 

62
% 

63
% 

65
% 

NI
 5 

Ov
era

ll g
en

era
l s
ati
sfa

cti
on

 w
ith
 th

e 
are

a (
so
urc

e -
 ad

d q
ue

sti
on

 to
 

Cu
sto

me
r P

an
el 
su
rve

y i
n y

ea
rs 

wh
en

 
Pla

ce
 su

rve
y n

ot 
he

ld)
 

Ke
vin

 
Dic

ks
 

T 
An

nu
al 
 

55
% 

60
% 

65
% 

NI
 19

4 
Le

ve
l o
f a

ir q
ua

lity
 – 

red
uc
tio
n o

f N
Ox

 
an

d p
rim

ary
 PM

10
 em

iss
ion

 th
rou

gh
 

loc
al 
au

tho
rity

 es
tat

e &
 op

era
tio
ns
  

Ph
il S

tre
et 

 
B 

An
nu

al 
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

NI
 18

5 
CO

2 r
ed

uc
tio
n f

rom
 lo
ca
l a
uth

ori
ty 

op
era

tio
ns
 

 
Ph

il S
tre

et 
 

B 
An

nu
al 
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Pr
ior

ity
 – 

St
ree

t S
ce

ne
 &

 C
lim

ate
 C

ha
ng

e –
 O

utp
ut 

me
as

ur
es

 
  

Mi
ss
ed

 ho
us
eh

old
 co

lle
cti
on

s  
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
11

40
 

10
18

 
10

00
 

 
Mi
ss
ed

 re
cy
cle

 co
lle
cti
on

s  
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
24

0 
22

9 
21

0 
NI
 19

1 
Re

sid
ua

l w
as
te 

pe
r h

ou
se
ho

ld 
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
59

3k
g 

59
3k
g 

59
3k
g 

NI
 19

2 
%a

ge
 w
as
te 

re-
us
ed
, re

cy
cle

d o
r 

co
mp

os
ted

   
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
30

% 
35

% 
40

% 
NI
 19

5 
Im

pro
ve
d s

tre
et 

& e
nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

cle
an

lin
es
s -

 gr
aff
iti 
  

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

3 t
im
es
 a 

ye
ar 

5%
 

5%
 

5%
 

NI
 19

5 
Im

pro
ve
d s

tre
et 

& e
nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

cle
an

lin
es
s -

  li
tte

r  
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

3 t
im
es
 a 

ye
ar 

13
%  

13
% 

13
% 

Page 216



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

59
 

Ta
rg

ets
 

PI 
Re

f 
PI 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
Ho

S 
Se

t ta
rg

ets
 

or
 ba

se
lin

e 
in 

20
09

? 
Re

po
rti

ng
 

fre
qu

en
cy

 
09

/10
 

10
/11

 
11

/12
 

NI
 19

5 
Im

pro
ve
d s

tre
et 

& e
nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

cle
an

lin
es
s -

 de
trit

us
  

Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

3 t
im
es
 a 

ye
ar 

20
% 

20
% 

20
% 

NI
 19

5 
Im

pro
ve
d s

tre
et 

& e
nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

cle
an

lin
es
s -

 fly
 po

sti
ng

  
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

3 t
im
es
 a 

ye
ar 

1%
 

1%
 

1%
 

NI
 19

6 
Im

pro
ve
d s

tre
et 

& e
nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

cle
an

lin
es
s f
ly 
tip
pin

g  
Mi
ke
 Be

ll 
T 

3 t
im
es
 a 

ye
ar 

2 
2 

2 
NI
 18

7 
Ta

ck
lin
g f

ue
l p
ov
ert

y  
Ph

il S
tre

et 
B 

An
nu

al 
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Co
rp

or
ate

 an
d k

ey
 se

rvi
ce

 m
ea

su
res

  
 NI
 15

7 
Sp

ee
d o

f p
roc

es
sin

g p
lan

nin
g 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 – 

ma
jor

 
Da

ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

T 
Mo

nth
ly 
 

80
% 

85
% 

85
% 

NI
 15

7 
Sp

ee
d o

f p
roc

es
sin

g p
lan

nin
g 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 –m

ino
r 

Da
ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

T 
Mo

nth
ly 
 

85
% 

85
% 

85
% 

NI
 15

7 
Sp

ee
d o

f p
roc

es
sin

g p
lan

nin
g 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 –o

the
r  

Da
ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

T 
Mo

nth
ly 
 

90
% 

90
% 

90
% 

CS
CL

P1
 
CS

C 
- re

so
lut
ion

 at
 1s

t  p
oin

t o
f 

co
nta

ct,
  

De
b 

Po
ole

 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
95

% 
95

% 
95

% 
CS

CL
P2

 
CS

C 
-  %

 of
 ca

lls 
an

sw
ere

d 
De

b 
Po

ole
 

T 
Mo

nth
ly 

85
%  

85
% 

85
% 

CS
CL

P3
 
CS

C 
-  a

v. 
sp
ee

d o
f a

ns
we

r  
De

b 
Po

ole
 

T 
Mo

nth
ly 

20
 se

cs
 

20
 se

cs
 

15
 se

cs
 

NI
 18

1 
tim

e t
o p

roc
es
s H

OB
/C
T b

en
efi
t 

cla
im
s o

r c
ha

ng
e e

ve
nts

 – 
mo

nth
ly 
 

Ja
yn
e 

Pic
ke
rin
g 

T 
Mo

nth
ly 

15
 da

ys
 

15
 da

ys
 

15
 da

ys
 

LP
IB1

a 
To

tal
 va

lue
 of

 H
B o

ve
rpa

ym
en

ts 
ou

tst
an

din
g a

t th
e s

tar
t o
f th

e q
ua
rte

r. 
 

Ja
yn
e 

Pic
ke
rin
g  

ac
tiv
ity
 

me
as
ure

 
Qu

art
erl

y 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 

LP
IB1

b 
To

tal
 va

lue
 of

 H
B o

ve
rpa

ym
en

ts 
ide

nti
fie
d d

uri
ng

 th
e q

ua
rte

r 
Ja
yn
e 

Pic
ke
rin
g 

ac
tiv
ity
 

me
as
ure

 
Qu

art
erl

y 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 
LP

IB1
c 

% 
of 

HB
 ov

erp
ay
me

nts
 re

co
ve
red

 
du

rin
g t

he
 qu

art
er 

of 
the

 ou
tst
an

din
g 

de
bt.

 
Ja
yn
e 

Pic
ke
rin
g 

T 
Qu

art
erl

y 
15

% 
20

% 
25

% 

Page 217



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

60
 

Ta
rg

ets
 

PI 
Re

f 
PI 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
Ho

S 
Se

t ta
rg

ets
 

or
 ba

se
lin

e 
in 

20
09

? 
Re

po
rti

ng
 

fre
qu

en
cy

 
09

/10
 

10
/11

 
11

/12
 

LP
IB1

d 
Ma

xim
um

 %
 of

 th
e o

uts
tan

din
g H

B 
ov
erp

ay
me

nts
 de

bt 
wr
itte

n o
ff d

uri
ng

 
the

  q
ua

rte
r 

Ja
yn
e 

Pic
ke
rin
g 

T 
Qu

art
erl

y 
2%

 
2%

 
2%

 

NI
 17

9 
VF

M 
tot

al 
ne
t v
alu

e o
f c
as
h r

ele
as
ing

 
ga

ins
 si
nc
e t

he
 st
art

 of
 20

08
-09

  
Ja
yn
e 

Pic
ke
rin
g 

T 
An

nu
al 

£8
76

k 
£1

,34
1k
 

£1
,47

2k
 

 
%a

ge
 of

 in
vo
ice

s p
aid

 w
ith
in 
10

 da
ys
 

of 
rec

eip
t  

Ja
yn
e 

Pic
ke
rin
g 

T 
Mo

nth
ly 

? 
? 

? 
 

%a
ge

 of
 in
vo
ice

s p
aid

 w
ith
in 
30

 da
ys
 

of 
rec

eip
t  

Ja
yn
e 

Pic
ke
rin
g 

T 
Mo

nth
ly 

98
% 

98
% 

98
% 

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
co
mp

lai
nts

 re
ce
ive

d  
 

Hu
gh

 
Be

nn
ett

 
ac
tiv
ity
 

me
as
ure

 
Mo

nth
ly 
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

 
Le

ve
l o
f e

qu
ali
ty 
sta

nd
ard

 
Cla

ire
 

Fe
lto
n 

T 
Qu

art
erl

y 
lev

el 
3 

n/a
  

n/a
 

 
Ne

w 
Eq

ua
lity

 fra
me

wo
rk 

(re
pla

ce
s 

eq
ua

lity
 st
an

da
rd 

ab
ov
e i
n 2

00
9/1

0) 
Cla

ire
 

Fe
lto
n 

B 
Qu

art
erl

y 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 
 

Sic
kn
es
s a

bs
en

ce
 – 

av
era

ge
 da

ys
 pe

r 
em

plo
ye
e  

 
Jo
 Pi

tm
an

 
T 

Mo
nth

ly 
8.5

 da
ys
* 

8.5
 da

ys
* 

8 d
ay
s* 

 * N
ote

 – 
Sic

kn
es
s a

bs
en
ce
 ta

rge
ts 
sh
ow

n a
re 

tho
se
 ca

rrie
d f

orw
ard

 fro
m 

las
t y
ea

rs 
pla

n. 
 In

 vi
ew

 of
 th

e h
igh

 le
ve
ls 
of 

sic
kn
es
s i
n 2

00
8/0

9 t
he

se
 

tar
ge

ts 
are

 cu
rre

ntl
y u

nd
er 

rev
iew

, re
vis

ed
 ta

rge
ts 
wil

l b
e i
nc
lud

ed
 in
 th

e v
ers

ion
 of

 th
e r

ep
ort

 go
ing

 fo
rw
ard

 to
 C
ab

ine
t 

 

Page 218



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

61
 

9. 
 M

ed
ium

 Te
rm

 Fi
na

nc
ial

 Pl
an

 20
09

-20
12
 

 Bu
dg

et 
Su

mm
ary

 20
09
/20

12
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc
il P

lan
 is
 su
pp
ort
ed
 by
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 fin
an
cia
l re

so
urc

es
.  T

he
 th
ree

 ye
ar 
me

diu
m 
ter
m 
fin
an
cia
l p
lan
 is
 su

mm
ari
se
d 

be
low

:-  
 

 
20
09
/10

 
£’0

00
 

20
10
/11

 
£’0

00
 

 
20
11
/12

 
£’0

00
 

Ba
se
 
co
st 

of 
Ge
ne
ral
 
Fu
nd
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

12
,11

3 
12
,51

4 
13
,04

8 
Pr
es
su
res

 
– 

Hig
h 

bid
s 

& 
un
av
oid
ab
les
 

1,0
82
 

1,0
03
 

1,0
09
 

Tra
ns
fer
 
re 

gra
nts
 
rec

eiv
ed
 
– 

Pla
nn
ing
 

De
live

ry 
& 

Lo
ca
l 

Au
tho

rity
 Bu

sin
es
s G

ran
t 

-36
2 

-23
 

-22
 

Sa
vin
gs
 

-56
6  

-1,
03
5 

-1,
19
6 

Inv
es
tm
en
t In

co
me

 
-15

0 
-12

1 
-14

2 
Co
st 
of 
Bo
rro
win

g 
0 

7 
73
 

Re
ch
arg

e t
o c
ap
ita
l p
rog

ram
me

 
-13

3 
-13

6 
-13

6 
Ne
t o
pe
rat
ing
 ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

11
,98

4 
12
,20

9 
12
,63

4 
Tra

ns
fer
 fro

m 
(-)
 to
  b
ala
nc
es
 

-17
2 

5 
-13

 
Co
lle
cti
on
 Fu

nd
 su
rpl
us
 

-39
 

0 
0 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t G

ran
t 

-4,
94
5 

-5,
04
7 

-5,
09
7 

Co
un
cil 
Ta
x @

 4.
45
% 

-6,
82
8 

-7,
16
7 

-7,
52
4 

    

Page 219



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

62
 

Bu
dg

et 
Ch

an
ge

s 2
00
9/1

0  
 Th
e C

ou
nc
il T
ax
 in
cre

as
e f
or 
20
09
/10

 w
ill g

en
era

te 
£3
05
k o
f a
dd
itio
na
l in
co
me

 fo
r th

e C
ou
nc
il, 
wh
ich
 w
he
n s

et 
alo
ng
sid
e t
he
 

de
ma

nd
s f
or 
inc
rea

se
d s
erv

ice
 pr
ov
isio

n m
ad
e b

y l
oc
al 
res

ide
nts

 an
d t
he
 im
pa
ct 
of 
the

 ec
on
om

ic 
clim

ate
 gi
ve
s t
he
 C
ou
nc
il v
ery

 
lim
ite
d f
lex
ibi
lity
 to
 m
ee
t lo

ca
l n
ee
ds
.  T

he
 C
ou
nc
il h
as
 re
sp
on
de
d t
o t
his
 in
 th
ree

 w
ay
s. 
 Fi
rst
ly,
 al
l b
ud
ge
t b
ids
 ha

ve
 be

en
 ra
nk
ed
 as

 
un
av
oid
ab
le,
 hi
gh
 pr
ior
ity
, m

ed
ium

 pr
ior
ity
 an

d l
ow
 pr
ior
ity
.  T

he
 pr
ior
itis
ati
on
 of
 th
es
e b

ids
 is
 ba

se
d o

n t
he
ir c
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 th
e 

Co
un
cil’
s c
orp

ora
te 
ob
jec
tiv
es
 an

d p
rio
riti
es
.  S

ec
on
dly
, th

e C
ou
nc
il h
as
 ag

ree
d £

0.5
m 
of 
fin
an
cia
l s
av
ing
s f
or 
20
09
/01

0, 
ris
ing
 to
 

£1
.2m

 in
 20

11
/12

, a
nd
 th
ird
ly 
the

 C
ou
nc
il h
as
 a 
Va
lue
 fo
r M

on
ey
 St
rat
eg
y w

hic
h i
t h
as
 us
ed
 to
 fin
d f
urt
he
r e
ffic
ien
cie
s a

nd
 im
pro

ve
 

se
rvi
ce
 qu

ali
ty.
 

                        

Page 220



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

63
 

Fo
r 2

00
9/1

0 t
o 2

01
1/1

2 t
he

 fo
llo

wi
ng

 hi
gh

 pr
ior

ity
 bu

dg
et 

bid
s w

ere
 su

cc
es
sfu

l:- 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ke
y D

eli
ve
rab

le 
Bi
ds

 
20
09
/

20
10
 

£0
00
 

20
10
/

20
11
 

£0
00
 

20
11
/

20
12
 

£0
00
 

Co
mm

en
tar

y  
Bu

dg
et 

Ho
lde

r 
Lin

k t
o 

Co
rp
or
ate

 
Ob

jec
tiv

es
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ra
nk

ing
 

Ri
sk
 to

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
pr
ior

itie
s 

CS
C 
Sta

ffin
g  

76
 

76
 

76
 
2.5

 fte
 C
SA

s +
 1 
ma

na
ge

r ( 
To

 
rep

lac
e t

he
 re

du
cti
on
 in
 C
ou

nty
 

fun
din

g) 
De

b P
oo

le 
Se

ns
e O

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

Hig
h 

Hig
h r

isk
 of

 la
ck
 of

 
cu
sto

me
r s

erv
ice

 if 
bid

 no
t 

ap
pro

ve
d -

 re
du
cti
on

 in
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

CS
As

 

Dis
ab

ility
 G
rou

p &
 

Fin
din

g a
 vo

ice
 

1  
1  

1  

Dis
ab

ility
 G
rou

p -
 En

ab
le 
gro

up
 to

 
pro

vid
e s

oc
ial
 an

d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 

ne
tw
ork

 fo
r p

eo
ple

 w
ith
 di
sa
bil
ity
 

an
d F

ind
ing

 a 
vo
ice

 D
ete

rm
ine

 
de
ma

nd
 fo

r n
etw

ork
 an

d i
f o

ne
, s
et 

up
 ne

tw
ork

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 su
pp

ort
 an

d 
pro

vid
e v

oic
e f

or 
thi
s c

om
mu

nit
y. 

  
Se

ns
e O

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

Hig
h 

Hig
h R

isk
 to
 th
e s

en
se
 of

 
co
mm

un
ity
 fe

lt b
y t
his

 
gro

up
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

        

Page 221



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

64
 

Ke
y D

eli
ve
rab

le 
Bi
ds

 
20
09
/

20
10
 

£0
00
 

20
10
/

20
11
 

£0
00
 

20
11
/

20
12
 

£0
00
 

Co
mm

en
tar

y  
Bu

dg
et 

Ho
lde

r 
Lin

k t
o 

Co
rp
or
ate

 
Ob

jec
tiv

es
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ra
nk

ing
 

Ri
sk
 to

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
pr
ior

itie
s 

Fu
n F

arm
 D
ay
 

0  
0  

0  

Fu
n f

arm
 da

y -
 En

ab
le 
BY

HF
 to
 

wo
rk 

wit
h 1

6-2
5 y

ea
r o

lds
 on

 
org

an
isin

g a
n e

ve
nt 

(to
 he

lp 
de
ve
lop

 lif
e s

kill
s a

nd
 co

nfi
de
nc
e).

 
W
ith
dra

wn
 

  
Se

ns
e O

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

Hig
h 

  

All
otm

en
t P

roj
ec
t 

1  
1  

1  

All
otm

en
t P

roj
ec
t - 

Re
ge

ne
rat

e r
un
 

do
wn

 al
lot
me

nt.
 

Pa
ds
ton

e a
nd

 G
ree

ns
co
pe

 D
ay
 

Se
rvi
ce
 to

 w
ork

 on
 al
lot
me

nt.
 

  
Se

ns
e O

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

Hig
h 

Me
diu

m 
Ris

k -
 th
e 

all
otm

en
t p
roj

ec
t 

de
mo

ns
tra

tes
 th
e C

ou
nc
il is

 
wo

rki
ng
 w
ith
 di
sa
dv
an
tag

ed
 

gro
up
s a

cro
ss
 th
e D

ist
ric
t 

Cli
ma

te 
Ch

an
ge

 
Str

ate
gy
 

20
  

20
  

20
  

Sh
are

d p
os
t to

 re
vie

w 
ho

w 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

an
d i
ts 
pa
rtn

ers
 ad

dre
ss
es
 

the
 is
su
es
 of

 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge

 an
d 

bio
-di

ve
rsi
ty 
 

Da
ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

Cle
an

 St
ree

ts 
an

d 
Cli

ma
te 
Ch

an
ge

 
Hig

h 

Hig
h r

isk
 of

 th
e C

ou
nc
il 

be
ing

 un
ab

le 
to 
ful
fill 

its
 ro

le 
in 
rel

ati
on

 to
 ke

y p
rio

rity
 of

 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge

 

Gr
ad
ua
te 

Tra
ine

e 
25
  

25
  

25
  

Ne
w 
po

st 
to 

im
pro

ve
 m

ark
eti
ng

 an
d 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 in
vo
lve

me
nt 
ac
ros

s t
he
 

Dis
tric

t - 
lin
ke
d t
o r

es
tru

ctu
re 

of 
the

 
de
pa
rtm

en
t  

Hu
gh
 

Be
nn

ett
 

Se
ns
e O

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

Hig
h 

Hig
h r

isk
 of

 th
e C

ou
nc
il 

be
ing

 un
ab

le 
to 

im
pro

ve
 its

 
wo

rki
ng
 w
ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 an
d 

sta
ke
ho
lde

rs 
to 

inc
rea

se
 

the
 in
vo
lve

me
nt 
of 

res
ide

nts
 in
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 

wit
h t

he
 C
ou

nc
il  

W
ard

en
s/ 
AS

B O
ffic

ers
 

30
  

30
  

30
  

To
 in
cre

as
e t
he

 m
ain

str
ea
m 

fun
de
d 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d w

ard
en

 po
sts

 to
 3,
 

giv
ing

 4 
in 
tot
al 
de

pe
nd

an
t u

po
n 

Sa
fer

 C
om

mu
nit
ies

 Bo
ard

 fu
nd

ing
.  

Mi
ke
 

Be
ll/J

oh
n 

Go
dw

in 
Se

ns
e O

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

Hig
h 

Hig
h r

isk
 to
 th
e s

en
se
 of

 
co
mm

un
ity
 as

 m
ore

 
wa

rde
ns
 w
ill g

ive
 su

pp
ort

 to
 

are
as
 w
he

re 
the

re 
ma

y b
e 

iss
ue
s t
ha
t n

ee
d 

ad
dre

ss
ing

. 

Ca
r P

ark
 C
ha
ng

es
 

38
  

38
  

38
  
To

 no
t in

cre
as
e c

ar 
pa
rk 

ch
arg

es
 in
 

20
09

/10
 

Mi
ke
 

Be
ll/J

oh
n 

Go
dw

in 
To

wn
 C
en

tre
 

Hig
h 

Lo
w 
Ris

k  
PP

G1
7-P

lay
 Ar

ea
, R

&R
 

& m
ain

ten
an
ce
 

n/a
 
? 

? 
To

 be
 de

ve
lop

ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f 
PP

CG
17
 

Mi
ke
 

Be
ll/J

oh
n 

Go
dw

in 
  

Hig
h 

  

Page 222



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

65
 

Ke
y D

eli
ve
rab

le 
Bi
ds

 
20
09
/

20
10
 

£0
00
 

20
10
/

20
11
 

£0
00
 

20
11
/

20
12
 

£0
00
 

Co
mm

en
tar

y  
Bu

dg
et 

Ho
lde

r 
Lin

k t
o 

Co
rp
or
ate

 
Ob

jec
tiv

es
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ra
nk

ing
 

Ri
sk
 to

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
pr
ior

itie
s 

Pr
oje

ct 
Su

pp
ort

 
35
  

35
  

35
  
Em

erg
en
cy
 Pl

an
nin

g A
ss
ist
an
t, 

Bu
sin

es
s C

on
tin
uit
y/ 
To

wn
 C
en
tre

 
Su

pp
ort

 of
fic
er 

Ph
il S

tre
et 

 
To

wn
 C
en

tre
 

Hig
h 

Hig
h r

isk
 to
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
ke
y p

roj
ec
ts 
to 

be
 

un
de
rta

ke
n b

y t
he
 C
ou

nc
il 

off
ice

r w
ill s

up
po
rt D

ire
cto

r 
an
d e

ns
ure

 pr
oje

cts
 ar

e 
de
live

red
 on

 tim
e 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Tr

an
sp
ort

 
30
  

30
  

30
  
1 D

riv
ers

 an
d v

eh
icle

 - n
et 

of 
inc

om
e r

ec
eiv

ed
 fro

m 
cu
sto

me
rs 

Hu
gh
 

Be
nn

ett
 

Se
ns
e O

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

Hig
h 

Hig
h r

isk
 as

 co
nc
ern

 ha
s 

be
en

 ra
ise

d a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
tim

es
 by

 di
sa
dv
an
tag

ed
 

gro
up
s t
ha

t th
is 
se
rvi
ce
 is
 

no
t a

va
ila
ble

 in
 Br

om
sg
rov

e 
an
d i
s a

 hi
gh

 pr
ior

ity
 to

 ou
r 

res
ide

nts
 to

 im
po
rve

 th
eir

 
se
ns
e o

f c
om

mu
nit
y  

Sh
ort

fal
l in

 in
co
me

 on
 

B&
B a

nd
 H
os
tel
s 

19
  

20
  

21
  

ho
ste

ls 
ha

ve
 be

en
 tra

ns
fer

red
 to

 
BD

HT
 an

d t
he
ref

ore
 no

 lo
ng

er 
rec

eiv
e i
nc
om

e a
nd
 B&

B n
ot 

req
uir
ed

 
Da

ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

Ho
us
ing

 
Hig

h 
Lo

w 
Ris

k 

Ba
se
me

nt 
Pr
oje

ct 
0  

20
  

25
  
To

 pr
ov
ide

 SL
A w

ith
 ba

se
me

nt 
pro

jec
t - 

su
pp
ort

 ho
me

les
s a

nd
 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 

Da
ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

Ho
us
ing

 
Hig

h 

Hig
h R

isk
 to
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
the

 H
ou
sin

g p
rio

rity
 as

 
yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 w
il n

ot 
ge

t 
the

 su
pp

ort
 an

d a
dv
ice

 th
ey
 

ne
ed

 to
 pr

ev
en
t th

em
 fro

m 
be
ing

 ho
me

les
s 

Yo
uth

 Bu
dg

eti
ng
 

10
  

10
  

10
  
W
hit
e p

ap
er 

- g
ett

ing
 yo

un
ge
r 

pe
op

le 
inv

olv
ed
 

Mi
ke
 

Be
ll/J

oh
n 

Go
dw

in 
Se

ns
e O

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

Hig
h 

Me
diu

m 
ris
k t
o d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
the

 se
ns
e o

f c
om

mu
nit
y a

s 
yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 w
ill n

ot 
ha

ve
 

the
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t
o g

et 
inv

olv
ed

 w
ith
 th

e C
ou

nc
il  

Co
ns
ult
an
ts 
re 

EIP
 

10
0  

  
  

Ins
pe
cto

rs 
for

 in
ve
sti
ga
tio
n &

 
pre

pa
rin

g r
ep

ort
 -  

  
Re

ge
ne
rat

ion
/En

vir
o

nm
en
t 

Hig
h 

Hig
h r

isk
 to
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
a 

rob
us
t a
cti
on
 pl
an
 fo

r th
e 

reg
en

era
tio
n o

f th
e D

ist
ric
t

Page 223



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

66
 

Ke
y D

eli
ve
rab

le 
Bi
ds

 
20
09
/

20
10
 

£0
00
 

20
10
/

20
11
 

£0
00
 

20
11
/

20
12
 

£0
00
 

Co
mm

en
tar

y  
Bu

dg
et 

Ho
lde

r 
Lin

k t
o 

Co
rp
or
ate

 
Ob

jec
tiv

es
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ra
nk

ing
 

Ri
sk
 to

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
pr
ior

itie
s 

Mu
se
um

 
25
  

10
  

10
  
Ca

tal
og

ing
 an

d t
ran

sp
ort

ati
on
 lin

k 
to 
the

 cl
os
ure

 of
 th
e f

ac
ility

 ba
se
d 

mu
se
um

 se
rvi
ce
. 

Mi
ke
 

Be
ll/J

oh
n 

Go
dw

in 
Se

ns
e O

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

Hig
h 

Me
diu

m 
ris
k a

s t
he
 fu

nd
s 

wil
l n
ot 
be

 av
ail
ab

le 
to 

su
pp
ort

 th
e o

pti
on
 

ap
pro

ve
d b

y m
em

be
rs 

in 
rel
ati
on
 to

 th
e m

us
eu
m 

Pe
rm

an
en
tly
 re

cru
it 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
ma

na
ge
r 

25
.0  

0.0
 

0.0
 

To
 ex

ten
d t
he

 co
ntr

ac
t fo

r th
e 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
ma

na
ge
r b

y a
 fu

rth
er 

6 m
on
ths

 - m
atc

h s
av
ing

s i
nc
lud

ed
 

in 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
C 

Hu
gh
 

Be
nn

ett
 

  
Hig

h 

Me
diu

m 
r is
k a

s t
he
 fu

nd
s 

wil
l n
ot 
be

 av
ail
ab

le 
to 

su
pp
ort

 th
e o

pti
on
 

ap
pro

ve
d b

y m
em

be
rs 

in 
rel
ati
on
 to

 th
e m

us
eu
m 

Fo
ye
r 2

4 h
ou
r s

up
po
rt 

3.0
 

10
.0 

10
.0 

Jo
int
 fu

nd
ing

 of
 an

 en
ha

nc
ed
 le
ve
l 

of 
su
pp
ort

 an
d s

up
erv

isio
n a

t th
e 

pro
po
se
d n

ew
 Fo

ye
r s

ch
em

e f
or 

16
 

to 
25

 ye
ar 

old
s b

y p
rov

idi
ng

 (jo
int
ly 

fun
de
d) 

nig
h t

im
e a

nd
 w
ee

ke
nd
 

ca
ret

ak
eri
ng
 / s

up
po
rt s

up
erv

iso
r 

on
 si
te.

 
Da

ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

Ho
us
ing

 
Hig

h 
Hig

h R
isk

 to
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
su
pp
ort

ed
 ho

us
ing

 w
ith
in 

the
 Fo

ye
r P

roj
ec
t 

MA
RC

 
15
.0 

15
.0 

15
.0 

Gr
an
t fu

nd
ing

 re
 M

AR
C 
ce
ntr

e 
Da

ve
 

Ha
mm

on
d 

Ho
us
ing

 
Hig

h 

Hig
h R

isk
 to
 th
e s

en
se
 of

 
co
mm

un
ity
 as

 th
e M

AR
C 

ce
ntr

e w
ou

ld 
av
e t

o c
los

e 
an
d m

an
y p

eo
ple

 w
ou

ld 
no
t 

ha
ve
 a 
fac

ility
 to

 us
e i
n t

he
 

Ch
arf

ord
 ar

ea
 fo

r a
dv
ice

 
an
d s

up
po
rt 

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s 
22
  

22
  

22
  

to 
inc

rea
se
 su

bs
tan

tiv
e f

un
din

g f
or 

ex
ist
ing

 2 
ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

s f
rom

 £4
k t
o £

15
k  
- 

08
/09

 fu
nd
ed

 fro
m 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

n (
ca
bin

et 
30
/04

/08
) 

(un
pa
ris
he

d) 
Hu

gh
 

Be
nn

ett
 

Se
ns
e O

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

Hig
h 

Me
diu

m 
Ris

k t
o d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
the

 se
ns
e o

f c
om

mu
nit
y a

s 
the

 ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 sc
he
me

 w
ou
ld 

no
t b

e r
oll
ed

 ou
t to

 al
l a
rea

s 
ac
ros

s t
he
 D
ist
ric
t a

nd
 lo
ca
l 

pe
op

le 
wo

uld
 no

t b
e a

ble
 to

 
be
 as

 in
vo
lve

d a
s w

as
 

ini
tia
lly 

ex
pe
cte

d 

Page 224



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

67
 

Ke
y D

eli
ve
rab

le 
Bi
ds

 
20
09
/

20
10
 

£0
00
 

20
10
/

20
11
 

£0
00
 

20
11
/

20
12
 

£0
00
 

Co
mm

en
tar

y  
Bu

dg
et 

Ho
lde

r 
Lin

k t
o 

Co
rp
or
ate

 
Ob

jec
tiv

es
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Ra
nk

ing
 

Ri
sk
 to

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
pr
ior

itie
s 

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s 
30
  

60
  

90
  

To
 in
cre

as
e N

eig
hb

ou
rho

od
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

s t
o H

ag
ley

 (£
20

k) 
an
d 

Ch
arf

ord
 (£

10
k) 

in 
20

09
/10

 an
d a

 
fur

the
r 2

 pe
r a

nn
um

 @
 £1

5k
 ea

ch
 

in 
20

10
/11

 & 
20
11

/12
 

Hu
gh
 

Be
nn

ett
 

Se
ns
e O

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

Hig
h 

Me
diu

m 
Ris

k t
o d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
the

 se
ns
e o

f c
om

mu
nit
y a

s 
the

 ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 sc
he
me

 w
ou
ld 

no
t b

e r
oll
ed

 ou
t to

 al
l a
rea

s 
ac
ros

s t
he
 D
ist
ric
t a

nd
 lo
ca
l 

pe
op

le 
wo

uld
 no

t b
e a

ble
 to

 
be
 as

 in
vo
lve

d a
s w

as
 

ini
tia
lly 

ex
pe
cte

d 
                      

Page 225



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

68
 

Fo
r 2

00
9/1

0 t
o 2

01
1/1

2 t
he

 fo
llo

wi
ng

 un
av
oid

ab
le 
sp

en
din

g p
res

su
res

 / i
nc

om
e s

ho
rtf
all

s w
ere

 ap
pr
ov

ed
: 

 
 

 
 

Ot
he

r P
os

sib
le 
Pr
es
su

res
/U
na

vo
ida

ble
s 

20
09
/20

10
 

20
10
/20

11
 

20
11
/20

12
 

Co
mm

en
tar

y  
20
09
/10

 - 2
01
1/1

2 
£'0

00
 

£'0
00
 

£'0
00
 

  

IC
T H

elp
de

sk
 In
-H
ou
se
 

25
 

25
 

25
 

Th
is 
wa

s i
nit
ial
ly 
pro

po
se
d a

s a
 sa

vin
g b

ut 
du

e t
o r

es
ou

rce
 

im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 th
e d

ep
art

me
nt 
wil

l re
qu

ire
 th

is 
to 
be

 de
live

red
 ex

ter
na
lly 

thr
ou
gh

 th
e 3

 ye
ar 

pla
n -

 op
tio
ns
 ar

e b
ein

g d
isc

us
se
d w

ith
 R
ed

dit
ch
 

for
 su

pp
ort

 
Ca

r P
ark

 In
co
me

 - 0
80
9 s

ho
rtfa

ll 
90

 
90

 
90

 
Sh

ort
fal
l a
nti
cip

ate
d i
n c

ar 
pa
rk 

inc
om

e 
Co

nc
es
sio

na
ry 
Fa

res
 

50
 

50
 

50
 
Ov

ers
pe
nd

 on
 co

nc
es
sio

na
ry 
far

es
 us

ag
e 

Fu
el 
Bil

ls 
(U
tilit

ies
) 

50
 

50
 

50
 
Ris

ing
 U
tilit

y C
os
ts 
ac
ros

s C
ou
nc
il B

uil
din

gs
  

Ele
cti
on
s B

ud
ge
t  

15
 

15
 

15
 
Ele

cti
on
s b

ud
ge
t re

qu
ire
d t

o d
eli
ve
r q

ua
lity

 se
rvi
ce
 to

 re
sid

en
ts 
an

d 
me

mb
ers

 
JE

 Li
ce
nc
e &

 R
ed

dit
ch
 

  
6 

  
To

 fu
nd
 so

ftw
are

 JE
 m

od
ell
ing

  

Ov
er 

60
's 
fre

e s
wim

s 
  

  
26

 
DC

MS
 fu

nd
ing

 on
ly 
av
ail
ab

le 
for

 2 
ye
ars

 - p
rop

os
al 
ag
ree

d b
y 

me
mb

ers
 

Sm
ok
e F

ree
 Po

st 
35

 
35

 
35

 
Gr

an
t in

co
me

 no
 lo
ng

er 
av
ail
ab

le 
- g

ran
t w

as
 le
ft i
n b

ud
ge
t 

ca
lcu

lat
ion

s  
Ele

cti
on
 

0 
10

 
60

 
Ele

cti
on

 co
sts

 - t
o d

eli
ve
r th

e e
lec

tio
n i
n 2

01
1/1

2 
Inc

rea
se
 in
 fu

el 
ch
arg

es
 ba

se
d o

n u
sa
ge
 

90
 

90
 

90
 
Im

pa
ct 
of 

inc
rea

se
 in
 fu

el 
ch
arg

es
 fo

r u
se
 of

 th
e d

ep
ot 

fle
et 

Lic
en
se
 en

ter
pri
se
  

  
25

 
25

 
To

 up
da
te 

Mi
cro

so
ft l
ice

ns
es
 

Pla
nn

ing
 ap

ps
 , l
an
d c

ha
rge

s 
11
0 

11
0 

60
 
Sh

ort
fal
ls 
in 
inc

om
e a

nti
cip

ate
d f

rom
 pl
an
nin

g a
pp

lica
tio
ns
, la

nd
 

ch
arg

es
 an

d b
uil
din

g r
eg

ula
tio
ns
 

Ne
ga
tiv
e b

ud
ge

ts 
off

se
t  

19
 

19
 

19
 
To

 co
rre

ct 
pri
or 

ye
ar 

bu
dg

ets
 

Me
mb

ers
 re

mu
ne
rat

ion
 - i
nc
rea

se
s o

ve
r in

fla
tio
n  

5 
5 

5 
To

 ad
dre

ss
 th
e c

os
ts 
as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th

e c
ha

ng
es
 to
 m

em
be
r 

Co
mm

itte
es
 an

d B
oa
rds

 to
 in
clu

de
 C
ha
mp

ion
s  

Inc
om

e F
rom

 BD
HT

 re
 sa

le 
of 

ho
us
es
 

50
 

50
 

0 
inc

om
e t
arg

et 
no

w 
red

uc
ed

 du
e t

o d
ec
lin
e i
n s

ale
s -

 bu
dg
et 
for

 
ec
on
om

ic 
rec

ov
ery

 fro
m 

11
/12

 
Air

 qu
ali
ty 
mo

nit
ori

ng
  

20
 
  

  
To

 m
on
ito
r a

ir q
ua

lity
 in
 th

e t
ow

n c
en

tre
- s

tat
uto

ry 
req

uir
em

en
t 

Page 226



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

69
 

SIA
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 (C
CT

V)
 20

09
 

3 
  

  
Lic

en
se
 co

st 
for

 C
CT

V s
ys
tem

 

Ch
arg

e f
or 

lan
d r

en
tal
 Br

om
sg
rov

e R
ov
ers

 
15

 
  

  
To

 re
vie

w 
po
sit
ion

 on
 th

e e
xp
iry
 da

te 
at 
the

 en
d o

f 0
9/1

0 w
ith
 th

e a
im
 

to 
ch
arg

e r
en
tal
 to

 R
ov
ers

 
 TO

TA
L 

57
7 

58
0 

55
0 

  
  Fo

r 2
00
9/1

0 t
o 2

01
1/1

2 t
he

 fo
llo

wi
ng

 sa
vin

gs
 w
ere

 ap
pr
ov

ed
: 

  
 

 
 

De
sc
rip

tio
n 

20
09
/20

10
 2

01
0/2

01
1 

20
11
/20

12
 C

om
me

nta
ry 

 
Ri
sk
 to

 D
eli

ve
ry 

of 
Se

rvi
ce
 

  
£'0
00
 

£'0
00
 

£'0
00
 

  
  

No
n D

om
es
tic
 R
ate

s 
-30

 
-30

 
-30

 
Sa

vin
g f

rom
 re

va
lua

tio
ns
 of

 pr
op
ert

ies
 

Lo
w 
ris
k 

Clo
thi
ng

 & 
Un

ifo
rm

s 
-5 

-5 
-5 

Sa
vin

gs
 on

 pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
an

d u
se
 of

 un
ifo
rm

s 
Lo

w 
ris
k 

Co
rpo

rat
e T

rai
nin

g 
-50

 
-50

 
-50

 

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 co

rpo
rat

e t
rai

nig
n b

ud
ge

t to
 £1

50
k 

pe
r a

nn
um

. B
as
ed
 on

 de
live

ry 
of 

pri
ori
ty 

tra
ini
ng
 fo

r a
ll s

taf
f - 

cu
sto

me
r s
erv

ice
, P

ers
on
al 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Re

vie
ws

. 
Me

diu
m 

Ris
k o

f s
taf
f n

ot 
ab

le 
to 

de
live

r s
erv

ice
s t
o 

the
 ex

pe
cte

d q
ua

lity
 of

 th
e p

ub
lic.

 
Pr
int
ing

 & 
Sta

tio
ne
ry 

-25
 

-25
 

-25
 
Im

pro
ve
d p

roc
ure

me
nt 
- in

clu
de

s s
av
ing

 fro
m 

IC
T &

 pr
int
ing

 
Lo

w 
ris
k 

Me
mb

er 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

-8 
-8 

-8 
Re

du
cti
on
 in
 m

em
be
r tr

ain
ing

 bu
dg

et 
to 

£1
5k
 

pe
r a

nn
um

. B
as
ed
 on

 ro
bu

st 
pla

n d
eli
ve
red

 
du
rin

g 2
00
7/0

8 &
 20

08
/09

.  
Me

diu
m 

Ris
k o

f M
em

be
rs 

no
t b
ein

g a
ble

 to
 

un
de
rta

ke
 ro

le 
to 

the
 ex

pe
cte

d q
ua

lity
 of

 th
e p

ub
lic.

Dis
cre

tio
na
ry 

Ra
te 

Re
lie
f 

-10
 

-10
 

-10
 
Re

du
cti
on
 on

 re
lie
f b

as
ed
 on

 pr
ior
 ye

ars
 

req
ue
sts

 fro
m 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 

Lo
w 
ris
k 

Em
erg

en
cy
 

Pla
nn

ing
/W

ork
s 

-13
 

-13
 

-13
 
Ne

w 
SL

A b
ein

g d
isc

us
se
d t

o r
ed
uc
e t

he
 le
ve
l o
f 

fun
din

g a
llo
ca
ted

 by
 Br

om
sg
rov

e 
Me

diu
m 

Ris
k o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il b

ein
g u

na
ble

 to
 ge

t 
ad
eq

ua
te 

su
pp

ort
 du

rin
g e

me
rge

nc
y. 

Ho
us
ing

 Be
ne

fit 
Ov

erp
ay
me

nt 
rec

ov
eri
es
 

-10
0 

-10
0 

-10
0 

Ad
dit
ion

al 
gra

nt 
rec

eiv
ed
 du

e t
o r

ec
ov
ery

 of
 

Ho
us
ing

 be
ne
fit 
ov
erp

ay
me

nts
  

Lo
w 
ris
k 

Inc
om

e H
ire
 C
ha
rge

s 
-15

 
-15

 
-15

 
Ad

dit
ion

al 
inc

om
e a

nti
cip

ate
d f

rom
 Tr

ad
e 

W
as
te 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Me
diu

m 
Ris

k o
f b

us
ine

ss
es
 be

ing
 un

ab
le 
to 

pa
y 

du
e t

o e
co
no
mi
c c

lim
ate

  
 

Page 227



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

70
 

De
sc
rip

tio
n 

20
09
/20

10
 2

01
0/2

01
1 

20
11
/20

12
 C

om
me

nta
ry 

 
Ri
sk
 to

 D
eli

ve
ry 

of 
Se

rvi
ce
 

  
£'0

00
 

£'0
00
 

£'0
00
  

 
  

IC
T T

rai
nin

g 
-5 

-5 
-5 

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 bu

dg
et 

 
Lo

w 
ris
k 

IC
T s

up
po
rt 

inf
ras

tru
cu
tre

 
-20

 
-20

 
-20

 
Sa

vin
gs
 on

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e 
Lo

w 
ris
k 

Dis
as
ter

 sh
are

 w
ith
 

Re
dd

itc
h 

-20
 

-20
 

-20
 
Sh

ari
ng
 IC

T d
isa

ste
r re

co
ve
ry 

wit
h R

ed
dit
ch
 

Me
diu

m 
ris
k o

f th
e j
oin

t a
pp

roa
ch
 no

t w
ork

ing
 

be
tw
ee

n t
he
 tw

o C
ou
nc
ils.

 
Ad

dit
ion

al 
inc

om
e f

rom
 

lice
ns
ing

 
-10

 
-10

 
-10

 
Ad

dit
ion

al 
lice

ns
ing

 in
co
me

 in
clu

din
g i
nc
rea

se
 

in 
tax

i lic
en
se
s d

ue
 to

 ec
on

om
ic 
clim

ate
  

Lo
w 
ris
k 

Sa
vin

gs
 fro

m 
ad
ve
rtis

ing
  

-20
 

-20
 

-20
 
im
pro

ve
d p

roc
ure

me
nt 
fro

m 
ne
go
tia
tin
g w

ith
 

ne
w 
su
pp

lie
r 

Lo
w 
ris
k 

Lif
eli
ne
 

-2 
-2 

-2 
Sa

vin
g b

as
ed
 on

 PN
C 
ca
pit
al 
bid

 ge
ne

rat
ed

 by
 

ad
dit
ion

al 
se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 

an
d i
nc
om

e 
ge
ne
rat

ion
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

.   
Me

diu
m 

ris
k o

f th
e C

ap
ita
l P

rog
ram

me
 be

ing
 

rej
ec
ted

 w
hic

h w
ou

ld 
im
pa
ct 
on
 th

e d
eli
ve
ry 

of 
the

 
ad
dit
ion

al 
inc

om
e 

Lif
eli
ne
 

-1 
-5 

-15
 
Sa

vin
g b

as
ed
 on

 PN
C 
ca
pit
al 
bid

 an
d c

urr
en
t 

se
rvi
ce
 re

vie
w 
an

d r
e-m

od
eli
ng
.   

Me
diu

m 
ris
k o

f th
e C

ap
ita
l P

rog
ram

me
 be

ing
 

rej
ec
ted

 w
hic

h w
ou

ld 
im
pa
ct 
on
 th

e d
eli
ve
ry 

of 
the

 
ad
dit
ion

al 
inc

om
e 

Do
lph

in 
Ce

ntr
e 

0 
0 

-20
 
Ad

dit
ion

al 
inc

om
e b

as
ed
 on

 H
ea

lth
 & 

Fit
ne

ss
 

inv
es
tm

en
t a
nd
 in
cre

as
ed

 m
em

be
rsh

ip 
sa
les

.  
Me

diu
m 

ris
k o

f th
e p

ub
lic 

no
t u
sin

g t
he
 gy

m 
as
 

ex
pe
cte

d d
ue

 to
 th

e e
co
no

mi
c c

lim
ate

 
Gr

ou
nd
s M

ain
ten

an
ce
 

co
st 
rev

iew
  

-12
 

-12
 

-12
 
Fo

llo
win

g r
ev
iew

 of
 gr

ou
nd

s m
ain

ten
an
ce
 

pro
vis

ion
 in
 pa

rks
 an

d o
pe
n s

pa
ce
s, 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 

ha
s b

ee
n r

ev
ise

d t
o g

en
era

te 
sa
vin

gs
 id
en
tifi
ed
.  

Lo
w 
ris
k  

Alt
ern

ati
ve
 m

eth
od
s o

f 
se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 

/ s
ha
red

 
se
rvi
ce
s 

-13
3 

-52
3 

-65
4 

Sh
are

d s
erv

ice
 w
ork

ing
 

Me
diu

m 
Ris

k o
f th

e s
av
ing

s n
ot 

be
ing

 de
live

red
 If 

joi
nt 
CE

O 
rol

e n
ot 
ac
hie

ve
d. 

Co
un

cil 
wo

uld
 ai
m 

to 
de
live

r s
av
ing

s t
hro

ug
h o

the
r jo

int
 w
ork

ing
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
  

Co
mm

en
ce
me

nt 
of 

co
-

mi
ng
led

 re
cy
clin

g 
co
lle
cti
on
s (

co
lle
ct 
as
 

alt
ern

ati
ng
 co

lle
cti
on

 
wit

h r
es
idu

al)
 

0  
-10

0 
-10

0 
Sa

vin
gs
 as

 a 
res

ult
 of

 m
ov
ing

 to
 co

-m
ing

le 
wa

ste
 op

era
tio
ns
  

Me
diu

m 
ris
k o

f c
o-m

ing
le 
se
rvi
ce
 no

t b
ein

g 
de
live

red
 by

 th
e C

ou
nty

. 

Page 228



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

71
 

Ap
pe

al 
Co

ns
ult
an
ts 

Bu
dg

et 
-10

 
-10

 
-10

 
De

let
ion

 of
 bu

dg
et 

for
 ap

pe
als

 w
ith
in 
the

 
Pla

nn
ing

 pr
oc
es
s 

Me
diu

m 
ris
k o

f s
pe
cia

list
 ad

vic
e a

nd
 su

pp
ort

 
req

uir
ed

 if 
de
cis

ion
s a

re 
ma

de
 th

at 
ma

y b
e 

ch
all
en
ge

d o
n p

lan
nin

g m
att
ers

  
Co

ntr
ac
tua

l/O
ve
rtim

e 
Ch

an
ge
s 

-14
 

-14
 

-14
 
Str

ee
t C

lea
ns
ing

 O
pe

rat
ion

 - r
ev
iew

 of
 se

rvi
ce
 

de
live

ry 
 

Lo
w 
Ris

k 

Gr
ou
nd
s M

ain
ten

an
ce
 - 

Ce
me

ter
ies

 
-18

 
-18

 
-18

 

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 po

sts
 fro

m 
4 t
o 3

 ac
ros

s t
he

 
ce
me

ter
y s

erv
ice

 an
d i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 a 

fle
xib

le 
wo

rk 
pa
tte
rn 

wit
h i
n r

em
ain

ing
 

op
era

tiv
es
.  

Lo
w 
Ris

k 
Po

sta
ge

 R
ev
iew

 
-5 

-5 
-5 

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 bu

dg
et 

fol
low

ing
 re

vie
w 

Lo
w 
Ris

k 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l H
ea

lth
 

Lic
en
sin

g 
-10

 
-10

 
-10

 
Inc

om
e r

ec
eiv

ed
 in
 re

sp
ec
t o

f e
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 

he
alt
h l
ice

ns
ing

 se
rvi
ce
 

Lo
w 
ris
k o

f b
us
ine

ss
es
 no

t a
pp

lyin
g f

or 
lice

ns
es
 

du
rin

g c
urr

en
t e

co
no
mi
c c

lim
ate

 

Sa
vin

gs
 fro

m 
bu
sin

es
s 

pro
ce
ss
 ch

an
ge
 

-25
 
  

  
Sa

vin
gs
 to
 be

 de
live

red
 by

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
ma

na
ge
r th

rou
gh

 re
vie

win
g b

us
ine

ss
 pr

oc
es
se
s 

wit
hin

 th
e C

ou
nc
il  

Me
diu

m 
Ris

k o
f d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
sa
vin

gs
 as

 ch
an

ge
 in
 

pro
ce
ss
es
 m

ay
 ta
ke
 lo
ng

er 
tha

n o
rig

ina
lly 

an
tic
ipa

ted
  

Ge
ne
ral

 gr
an

ts 
bu
dg

et 
-5 

-5 
-5 

Ge
ne
ral

 sa
vin

gs
  

Lo
w 
Ris

k 

TO
TA

L S
AV

IN
GS

 
-56

6  
-1,

03
5  

-1,
19
6  

 
 

 

Page 229



 
Co

un
cil

 Pl
an

 20
09

/20
12

 

72
 

 10
.  V

alu
e f

or
 M

on
ey

 St
rat

eg
y  

Th
e C

ou
nc
il is

 co
mm

itte
d t
o e

sta
bli
sh
ing
 Va

lue
 fo
r 

Mo
ne
y p
rin
cip
les
 in
 th
e w

ay
 in
 w
hic
h i
ts 
de
live

rs 
se
rvi
ce
s. 
Th
e k
ey
 pr
oc
es
se
s t
hro

ug
h w

hic
h t
he
se
 

pri
nc
ipl
es
 ar
e d

eli
ve
red

 ar
e c
on
tai
ne
d w

ith
in 
the

 Va
lue
 

for
 M
on
ey
 St
rat
eg
y. 
So
me

 of
 th
es
e p

rin
cip
les
 ar
e 

em
be
dd
ed
 to
 a 
les
se
r o
r g
rea

ter
 de

gre
e w

ith
in 
the

 
org

an
isa
tio
n; 
oth

ers
 w
ill n

ee
d t
o b

e e
sta
bli
sh
ed
. 

De
pa
rtm

en
ts 
mu

st 
de
ve
lop
 a 
vis
ion
 of
 w
ha
t s
erv

ice
s t
he
y 

wil
l d
eli
ve
r a
nd
 w
ha
t th

e s
erv

ice
s w

ill l
oo
k l
ike
. T
his
 is
 

alr
ea
dy
 in
clu
de
d a

s a
 ke
y p
art
 of
 th
e S

erv
ice
 Bu

sin
es
s 

Pla
nn
ing
 pr
oc
es
s. 
On
ce
 th
e v
isio

n h
as
 be

en
 es
tab

lish
ed
 

an
d t
ran

sla
ted

 in
to 
pra

cti
ca
l a
cti
vit
ies
, a

ll r
es
ou
rce

s m
us
t 

be
 di
rec

ted
 in
to 
ac
hie
vin
g t
ha
t v
isio

n. 
If a

ny
 ac

tiv
ity
 is
 

on
ly 
pa
rtly
 ai
me

d a
t a
ch
iev
ing
 th
e o

ve
ral
l v
isio

n, 
the

 
res

ou
rce

s m
us
t b
e r
ed
ire
cte

d t
o o

the
r a
cti
vit
ies
. T
he
 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity
 fo
r d
ev
elo
pin
g a

nd
 im
ple
me

nti
ng
 th
is 
vis
ion
 

mu
st 
be
 th
at 
of 
the

 H
ea
d o

f S
erv

ice
.  I
n o

rde
r to

 de
ve
lop
 

an
d e

sta
bli
sh
 a 
Va
lue
 fo
r M

on
ey
 cu

ltu
re 
wit
hin
 th
e 

Co
un
cil:
- 

 
•  

De
pa
rtm

en
ts 
mu

st 
tak
e c

are
 to
 in
ve
sti
ga
te 
an
d 

un
de
rst
an
d c

us
tom

ers
’ e
xp
ec
tat
ion
s a
nd
 pr
ior
itie
s 

an
d r
ea
llo
ca
te 
res

ou
rce

s t
o s
ati
sfy
 th
em

. T
his
 is
 ke

y 
to 
ma

kin
g s
ure

 th
at 
res

ou
rce

s a
re 
all
oc
ate

d 
ac
co
rdi
ng
 to
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 ov
era

ll p
rio
riti
es
. 

 •  
De
pa
rtm

en
ts 
mu

st 
ac
t c
om

me
rci
all
y i
n d

eli
ve
rin
g 

se
rvi
ce
s. 
Pu
bli
c s
ec
tor
 m
an
ag
ers

 ac
t c
om

me
rci
all
y 

wh
en
 th
ey
 us

e a
nd
 pr
oc
ure

 re
so
urc

es
 (s
uc
h a

s s
taf
f, 

eq
uip
me

nt,
 av
ail
ab
le 
fun

ds
) e
ffic
ien
tly
 an

d t
ho
se
 

res
ou
rce

s a
re 
so
lel
y u
se
d f
or 
ac
hie
vin
g t
he
 ov
era

ll 
vis
ion
 of
 th
e s
erv

ice
. 

 •  
As
 w
ell
 as

 es
tab

lish
ing
 Va

lue
 fo
r M

on
ey
 pr
inc
ipl
es
 

wit
hin
 th
eir
 se

rvi
ce
 on

 a 
da
y-t
o-d

ay
 ba

sis
, 

de
pa
rtm

en
ts 
mu

st 
loo
k t
o d

ev
elo
p s

pe
cif
ic 
Va
lue
 fo
r 

Mo
ne
y p
roj
ec
ts 
aim

ed
 at
 ge

ne
rat
ing
 ef
fic
ien
cy
 ga

ins
 

an
d/o

r s
erv

ice
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
. T
he
 cr
ite
ria
 fo
r 

se
lec
tin
g t
he
se
 pr
oje
cts
 w
ill f
oc
us
 on

 ar
ea
s o
f a
bo
ve
 

av
era

ge
 co

st 
an
d/o

r b
elo
w 
av
era

ge
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
. 

 •  
Th
e S

erv
ice
 Bu

sin
es
s P

lan
s m

us
t in
clu
de
 Va

lue
 fo
r 

Mo
ne
y t
arg

ets
 an

d b
e l
ink
ed
 to
 th
e a

ch
iev
em

en
t o
f 

eff
icie

nc
y g
ain
s t
o b

e i
nc
lud
ed
 in
 th
e b

ud
ge
t. A

t th
e 

sa
me

 tim
e t
he
y h
av
e t
o d

eli
ve
r lo

ng
er-
ter
m 
eff
icie

nc
y 

ga
ins
 to
 be

 in
clu
de
d i
n t
he
 M
ed
ium

 Te
rm
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 

Pla
n. 
 Fo

r s
om

e s
erv

ice
s V

FM
 ta
rge

ts 
wil
l b
e 

rel
ati
ve
ly 
ea
sy
 to
 qu

an
tify
 an

d m
ea
su
re.
 Fo

r o
the

rs 
(e.
g. 
pla
nn
ing
) th

e a
ch
iev
em

en
t o
f a
 se
t o
f 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 go

als
 m
ay
 co

ns
titu

te 
the

 ac
hie
ve
me

nt 
of 
Va
lue
 fo
r M

on
ey
.  

 •  
W
he
re 
se
rvi
ce
 de

pa
rtm

en
ts 
are

 pr
op
os
ing
 

eff
icie

nc
ies
, th

ey
 m
us
t c
on
su
lt w

ith
 ce

ntr
al 

de
pa
rtm

en
ts 
tha

t p
os
se
ss
 th
e e

xp
ert
ise
 to
 de

al 
wit
h 

pa
rtic
ula
r is
su
es
 th
at 
ma

y a
ris
e, 
for
 ex
am

ple
 in
 th
e 

fie
lds
 of
 Le

ga
l s
erv

ice
s, 
Fin

an
cia
l s
erv

ice
s, 
IC
T a

nd
 

Hu
ma

n R
es
ou
rce

s. 
Fo
r e
xa
mp

le,
 m
os
t e
ffic
ien
cy
 

pro
po
sa
ls 
wil
l h
av
e s

om
e H

R 
im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 fo
r s
taf
f 

Page 230



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

73
 

an
d t
he
 C
ou
nc
il a
nd
 m
ay
 re
qu
ire
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 

the
 tra

de
 un

ion
s. 

 •  
De
pa
rtm

en
ts 
ne
ed
 to
 m
on
ito
r o
n a

 re
gu
lar
 ba

sis
 ho

w 
we
ll t
he
y a
re 
ac
hie
vin
g t
he
 co
st 
an
d p

erf
orm

an
ce
 

tar
ge
ts.
 Th

is 
wil
l re

qu
ire
 th
e a

bil
ity
 to
 ac

ce
ss
 da

ta 
on
 

de
ma

nd
 an

d i
mm

ed
iat
ely
 ra
the

r th
an
 at
 th
e e

nd
 of
 a 

qu
art
er 
or 
a m

on
th.
 M
an
ag
ers

 m
us
t h
old
 re
gu
lar
 

me
eti
ng
s w

hic
h c

on
ce
ntr
ate

 on
 up

-to
-da

te 
as
se
ss
me

nts
 of
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 an

d p
lan
 ac

tio
n t
o b

e 
im
ple
me

nte
d a

s s
oo
n a

s p
os
sib
le 
to 
im
pro

ve
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
. 

 •  
Th
e l
arg

e I
CT
 pr
oje
cts
 su
ch
 as
 th
e S

pa
tia
l P
roj
ec
t 

ha
ve
 th
e c
ap
ab
ility

 of
 de

live
rin
g s
ign
ific
an
t 

eff
icie

nc
ies
, b
ut 
the

se
 ef
fic
ien
cie
s c
an
 on

ly 
be
 

ma
xim

ise
d i
f th

e u
se
r d
ep
art
me

nts
 pl
an
 at
 an

 ea
rly
 

sta
ge
 ho

w 
the

y a
re 
go
ing
 to
 us
e t
he
 ne

w 
tec

hn
olo
gic
al 
ca
pa
bil
itie
s t
o p

rov
ide
 m
ea
su
rab

ly 
be
tte
r c
us
tom

er 
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
/or
 de

live
r c
os
t s
av
ing
s. 

Th
e d

ep
art
me

nts
 al
so
 ne

ed
 to
 co

ns
ide
r (a

nd
 in
clu
de
 

in 
the

ir s
erv

ice
 pl
an
s) 
ho
w 
the

 ne
w 
tec

hn
olo
gie
s w

ill 
en
ab
le 
the

m 
to 
tra
ns
for
m 
the

 w
ay
 in
 w
hic
h t
he
y d
o 

bu
sin
es
s a
nd
 en

ab
le 
the

m 
to 
rea

llo
ca
te 
res

ou
rce

s 
fro
m 
tra
dit
ion
al 
ac
tiv
itie
s t
o n

ew
 w
ay
s o

f w
ork

ing
. 

 •  
CM

T n
ee
ds
 to
 co
ns
ide
r o
n a

 re
gu
lar
 ba

sis
 ex
am

ple
s 

of 
wh
ere

 au
tho

rity
-w
ide
 pr
oje
cts
 ne

ed
 to
 be

 
im
ple
me

nte
d i
n o

rde
r to

 de
live

r e
ffic
ien
cy
 ga

ins
. T
his
 

mi
gh
t in

clu
de
 in
itia
tiv
es
 to
 im
pro

ve
 si
ck
ne
ss
 ab

se
nc
e 

rat
es
 ac

ros
s t
he
 C
ou
nc
il o
r p
roc

ure
me

nts
 af
fec
tin
g 

on
e o

r m
ore

 de
pa
rtm

en
ts.
 Th

e C
ou
nc
il’s
 C
orp

ora
te 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Te
am

 al
so
 ne

ed
s t
o c
on
sid
er 
wh
eth

er 
it c
an
 de

mo
ns
tra
te 
tha

t V
alu
e f
or 
Mo

ne
y i
s b

ein
g 

de
live

red
. T
his
 m
igh
t in

vo
lve
 co

ns
ide
rin
g t
he
 

ou
tso
urc

ing
 of
 pa

rtic
ula
r s
erv

ice
s s
uc
h a

s l
eis
ure

 an
d 

ref
us
e c
oll
ec
tio
n. 

 
•  

Ma
na
ge
rs 
mu

st 
dra

w 
up
 an

 ac
tio
n p

lan
 to
 de

live
r 

Va
lue
 fo
r M

on
ey
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e w

ay
 in
 w
hic
h t
he
y 

de
live

r th
eir
 se

rvi
ce
s. 
Th
is 
ac
tio
n p

lan
 ne

ed
s t
o s

et 
ou
t p
rac

tic
al 
wa
ys
 in
 w
hic
h o

ffic
ers

 ca
n i
mp

rov
e 

Va
lue
 fo
r M

on
ey
 in
 th
e n

ex
t y
ea
r a
nd
 in
 th
e m

ed
ium

 
ter
m 
(1 
to 
5 y
ea
rs)
.  T

he
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 m
us
t a
im
 to
 

im
pro

ve
 th
e k
ey
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
dic
ato

rs 
for
 th
e 

se
rvi
ce
 as

 w
ell
 as

 un
it c
os
ts 

 •  
Th
e C

ou
nc
il w

ill c
on
tin
ue
 to
 us
e p

art
ne
rsh

ips
 w
ith
 

the
 pu

bli
c, 
pri
va
te 
an
d v
olu
nta

ry 
se
cto

r to
 ge

ne
rat
e 

eff
icie

nc
ies
. T
his
 is
 al
rea

dy
 be

ing
 do

ne
 th
rou

gh
 

ini
tia
tiv
es
 su

ch
 as

 th
e W

orc
es
ter
sh
ire
 H
ub
. 

 •  
Th
e C

ou
nc
il n
ee
ds
 to
 m
on
ito
r V
alu
e f
or 
Mo

ne
y 

pro
po
sa
ls 
to 
en
su
re 
the

y a
re 
ful
ly 
im
ple
me

nte
d a

nd
 

the
 be

ne
fits
 re
ali
se
d. 
Th
e C

ou
nc
il c
an
 us

e i
ts 
pro

jec
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
fra
me

wo
rk 
for
 th
is 
an
d t
he
 Fi
na
nc
e 

Te
am

 ca
n r
ec
ord

 ef
fic
ien
cy
 ga

ins
 m
ad
e i
n t
he
 

An
nu
al 
Eff
icie

nc
y S

tat
em

en
t.  

 
•  

Th
e p

ort
fol
io 
ho
lde
r fo

r F
ina
nc
ial
 Se

rvi
ce
s w

ill 
su
pp
ort
 th
e a

wa
ren

es
s a
nd
 ow

ne
rsh

ip 
of 
Va
lue
 fo
r 

Mo
ne
y a
t th

e M
em

be
r le

ve
l. 

Page 231



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

74
 

 11
.  C

ou
nc

il’s
 Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
 Co

rp
or
ate

 Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ram
ew

or
k 

 Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t F
ram

ew
ork

 se
ek
s t
o c

rea
te 
ex
pli
cit
 lin
ks
 be

tw
ee
n t
he
 Su

sta
ina
ble
 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y, 
Co
un
cil 
Pla

n, 
Se
rvi
ce
 Bu

sin
es
s P

lan
s a
nd
 Te

am
/Pe

rso
na
l D
ev
elo
pm

en
t P
lan
s 

                         

  

Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 

an
d M

TF
P 

Se
rvi

ce
 B

us
ine

ss
 Pl

an
s 

Te
am

 Pl
an

s a
nd

 Pe
rso

na
l 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Pla

ns
 (P

DR
s) 

Su
sta

ina
ble

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 St

rat
eg

y 

At 
the

 to
p o

f th
e f

ram
ew

ork
 is
 th

e S
us

tai
na

ble
 C
om

mu
nit

y S
tra

teg
y. 

It i
s a

 te
n y

ea
r p

lan
 th

at 
ha
s b

ee
n d

ev
elo

pe
d b

y t
he
 Br

om
sg
rov

e 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
, c
om

pri
sin

g p
ub

lic,
 pr

iva
te,

 vo
lun

tar
y a

nd
 co

mm
un
ity
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
s, 
wh

ich
 ha

ve
 be

en
 co

ns
ult
ed

 w
ith
 lo
ca
lly 

to 
ide

nti
fy 
the

 pr
ior
itie

s f
or 

the
 

are
a. 
Th

e S
us
tai
na

ble
 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y r
ep

res
en
ts 
an
 ‘u
mb

rel
la’
 pl
an
 fro

m 
wh

ich
 ea

ch
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
 pr

ep
are

s i
ts 
ow

n s
tra

teg
y t
o d

eli
ve
r a

sp
ec
ts 
of 

the
 

Su
sta

ina
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y f
or 

wh
ich

 it 
is 
res

po
ns
ibl
e. 

 

Th
e 

Co
un

cil
 P

lan
. T

he
 P

lan
 is

 b
as
ed

 o
n 

co
ns
ult
ati
on

 a
nd
 s
ets

 o
ut 

the
 C

ou
nc
il’s

 c
orp

ora
te 

ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d p
rio
riti
es
 fo

r t
he

 ne
xt 

thr
ee

 ye
ars

 in
 

sp
ec
ific

 an
d m

ea
su
rab

le 
ter

ms
. T

he
 P
lan

 al
so
 se

ts 
ou
t 

ho
w 

the
 
Co

un
cil 

wil
l 

co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
the

 
Su

sta
ina

ble
 C

om
mu

nit
y 

Str
ate

gy
 a

nd
 d

riv
es
 th

e 
Co

un
cil’

s M
ed

ium
 Te

rm
 Fi

na
nc
ial
 Pl

an
 (M

TF
P)
 

Se
rvi

ce
 B
us

ine
ss
 Pl

an
s i

de
nti
fy 
at 

a d
ep

art
me

nta
l le

ve
l th

e a
cti
on
s w

e p
lan

 
to 
un

de
rta

ke
 in
 or

de
r to

 de
live

r th
e 

Co
un
cil 

Pla
n a

nd
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n. 
 

Th
es
e a

re 
the

n t
ran

sla
ted

 in
to 
tea

m 
pla

ns
 an

d i
nd

ivid
ua

l P
DR

s, 
en
su
rin

g a
ll 

sta
ff u

nd
ers

tan
d t
he

ir r
ole

 in
 de

live
rin

g 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 pr
ior

itie
s. 
 Th

e p
rog

res
s 

ag
ain

st 
ou

r S
erv

ice
 Bu

sin
es
s P

lan
s i
s 

mo
nit
ore

d q
ua

rte
rly
 at

 C
orp

ora
te 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Te

am
 w
hil
e s

taf
f re

ce
ive

 a 
for

ma
l re

vie
w 
of 

the
ir P

DR
 ev

ery
 si
x 

mo
nth

s. 

Im
pr
ov

em
en

t P
lan

. T
he
 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n p
rov

ide
s a

 lin
k 

be
tw
ee

n t
he
 th

ree
 ye

ar 
Co

un
cil 

Pla
n 

an
d t

he
 on

e y
ea

r S
erv

ice
 Bu

sin
es
s 

Pla
ns
.  I
t e

xtr
ac
ts 
ke
y a

cti
on

s f
or 

the
 

ye
ar 

ah
ea

d i
n a

 pr
oje

ct 
ch
art

 fo
rm

at,
 

ag
ain

st 
wh

ich
 pr

og
res

s i
s r

ep
ort

ed
 

ea
ch
 m

on
th,
 us

ing
 a 

tra
ffic

 lig
ht 

sy
ste

m.
 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pr
og
res

s a
ga

ins
t o
ur 

pla
ns
 ar

e m
on
ito
red

 
an
d m

an
ag
ed

 at
 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
lev

els
 (s

ee
 al
so
 

ov
erl

ea
f):-

 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Pla
n 

1. 
Ca

bin
et 

rec
eiv

es
 a
 q
ua

rte
rly
 in

teg
rat

ed
 fi
na

nc
ial
 a
nd

 p
erf

orm
an
ce
 re

po
rt 
an

d 
an
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n u
pd
ate

 ea
ch
 m

on
th.
 

2. 
Th

e n
on
-ex

ec
uti
ve
 Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 M

an
ag

em
en
t B

oa
rd 

rec
eiv

es
 m

on
thl
y u

pd
ate

s o
n t
he

 co
rpo

rat
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 in
dic

ato
rs 

an
d t

he
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n. 
 An

y i
ss
ue
s i
de

nti
fie
d a

re 
rep

ort
ed
 to

 C
ab

ine
t.  
 

3. 
All

 th
e a

bo
ve
 in

for
ma

tio
n g

oe
s t

o t
he
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 C
orp

ora
te 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Te

am
 ea

ch
 m

on
th 

an
d i

t 
als

o r
ec
eiv

es
 qu

art
erl

y u
pd

ate
s a

ga
ins

t th
e s

erv
ice

 bu
sin

es
s p

lan
s. 

Page 232



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

75
 

 
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
Ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 F
in

an
ci

al
 a

nd
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

6 
M

on
th

ly
 a

t L
SP

 B
oa

rd
, C

ab
in

et
 a

nd
 

PM
B 

 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

 
(1

0 
ye

ar
s)

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Q
ua

rte
rly

  a
t C

ab
in

et
, P

M
B 

an
d 

CM
T 

 
Co

un
ci

l P
la

n 
/ M

TF
S 

(3
 y

ea
rs

) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

on
th

ly
 a

t C
ab

in
et

, P
M

B 
an

d 
CM

T 
 

Co
un

ci
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

/ A
nn

ua
l 

Bu
dg

et
 

(1
 y

ea
r) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
on

th
ly

 a
t D

M
Ts

 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 P
la

ns
 / 

An
nu

al
 

Bu
dg

et
 

(1
 y

ea
r p

la
n 

 w
ith

 3
 y

ea
r s

tra
te

gy
) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

on
th

ly
 a

t T
ea

m
 M

ee
tin

gs
 

 
 

Te
am

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

s 
/  

Co
st

 C
en

tre
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

(1
 y

ea
r) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

An
nu

al
 w

ith
 6

 m
on

th
 re

vi
ew

 
 

Pe
rs

on
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t R
ev

ie
w

s 
(1

 y
ea

r) 

 
 

 

Page 233



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

76
 

12
.  G

los
sa

ry 
of 

Te
rm

s 
 

Te
rm

 
De

fin
itio

n 
Au
dit
 C
om

mi
ss
ion
 

Th
e r
eg
ula
tor
y b
od
y t
ha
t h
as
 re
sp
on
sib
ility

 fo
r e
xa
mi
nin
g t
he
 w
ork

 of
 lo
ca
l a
uth

ori
tie
s. 

Be
st 
Va
lue
 

A 
leg
al 
du
ty 
(Lo

ca
l G

ov
ern

me
nt 
Ac
t 1
99
9) 
de
sig
ne
d t
o m

ak
e s

ure
 th
at 
loc
al 
au
tho

riti
es
 co

nti
nu
all
y 

im
pro

ve
d t
he
ir v
alu
e f
or 
mo

ne
y. 

Bu
ild
ing
 Pr
ide
  

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 tra

ns
for
ma

tio
n p

rog
ram

me
 de

sig
ne
d t
o m

ak
e B

rom
sg
rov

e D
ist
ric
t C
ou
nc
il a
n e

xc
ell
en
t 

loc
al 
au
tho

rity
. 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Te
am

 
(C
MT

) 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 of
fic
er 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
tea

m 
ma

de
 up

 of
 th
e C

hie
f E
xe
cu
tiv
e, 
Ex
ec
uti
ve
 D
ire
cto

r 
Se
rvi
ce
s, 
Ex
ec
uti
ve
 D
ire
cto

r P
art
ne
rsh

ips
 an

d P
roj
ec
ts,
 As

sis
tan

t C
hie
f E
xe
cu
tiv
e a

nd
 th
e s
ev
en
 

He
ad
s o
f S
erv

ice
 an

d o
ne
 de

pu
ty 
He
ad
 of
 Se

rvi
ce
. 

Co
mp

reh
en
siv
e 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
(C
PA

) 
An
 ex
ter
na
l a
ss
es
sm
en
t b
y t
he
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
ss
ion
 w
hic
h m

ad
e a

 ju
dg
em

en
t o
n t
he
 w
ho
le 
of 
a 

Co
un
cil’
s p

erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d p
rov

ide
d a

 si
ng
le 
rat
ing
 of
 Ex

ce
lle
nt,
 G
oo
d, 
Fa
ir, 
W
ea
k o
r P
oo
r. 

Co
mp

reh
en
siv
e 

Ar
ea
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
(C
AA

) 

A n
ew
 ex
ter
na
l a
ss
es
sm
en
t th

at 
wil
l re

pla
ce
 C
PA

 fro
m 
Ap
ril 
20
09
.  T

his
 w
ill l
oo
k a

cro
ss
 co
un
cils

, 
he
alt
h b

od
ies
, p
oli
ce
 fo
rce

s, 
fire

 an
d r
es
cu
e s
erv

ice
s a

nd
 ot
he
rs 
res

po
ns
ibl
e f
or 
loc
al 
pu
bli
c s
erv

ice
s 

an
d a

ss
es
s a
nd
 re
po
rt h

ow
 w
ell
 pu

bli
c m

on
ey
 is
 sp

en
t to

 pr
ov
ide
 an

 in
de
pe
nd
en
t a
ss
es
sm
en
t o
f th

e 
pro

sp
ec
ts 
for
 lo
ca
l a
rea

s a
nd
 th
e q

ua
lity
 of
 lif
e f
or 
pe
op
le 
livi
ng
 th
ere

. 

Su
sta

ina
ble
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 St
rat
eg
y 

A l
on
g-t
erm

 vi
sio
n f
or 
the

 D
ist
ric
t a
s a
 w
ho
le.
  T
he
 St
rat
eg
y c
o-o

rdi
na
tes

 th
e a

cti
on
s o
f p
ub
lic,
 pr
iva
te 

an
d c
om

mu
nit
y o
rga

nis
ati
on
s i
n m

ee
tin
g t
he
 ne

ed
s a

nd
 pr
ior
itie
s o
f lo
ca
l c
om

mu
nit
ies
. 

Un
de
r th

e L
oc
al 
Go
ve
rnm

en
t A
ct 
20
00
, a
ll lo

ca
l a
uth

ori
tie
s a
re 
req

uir
ed
 to
 w
ork

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 

the
 co
mm

un
ity
, b
us
ine
ss
, v
olu
nta

ry 
se
cto

r a
nd
 ot
he
r p
ub
lic 
se
cto
r p
art
ne
rs 
to 
de
ve
lop
 a 
lon
g-t
erm

 
str
ate

gy
 to
 pr
om

ote
 th
e s

oc
ial
, e
co
no
mi
c a

nd
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l w
ell
-be

ing
 of
 th
eir
 lo
ca
l c
om

mu
nit
ies
. 

Lo
ca
l A
rea

 
Ag
ree

me
nt 
(LA

A)
 

A 
for
m 
of 
co
ntr
ac
t b
etw

ee
n C

en
tra
l G
ov
ern

me
nt 
an
d t
he
 W
orc

es
ter
sh
ire
 Lo

ca
l S
tra
teg

ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

for
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 
35
 ou

tco
me

s s
up
po
rte
d b

y a
pp
rox

im
ate

ly 
90
 ta
rge

ts.
  T

he
 LA

A 
inc
lud
es
 a 
pu
mp

 
pri
mi
ng
 gr
an
t fr
om

 C
en
tra
l G
ov
ern

me
nt 
an
d t
he
 pa

ym
en
t o
f a
 re
wa
rd 
gra

nt 
for
 su

cc
es
sfu
l d
eli
ve
ry 
of 

so
me

 of
 th
e t
arg

ets
. 

 
 

Page 234



Co
un

cil
 Pl

an
 20

09
/20

12
 

77
 

Te
rm

 
De

fin
itio

n 
Lo
ca
l S
tra
teg

ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 (L
SP

) 
A 
fam

ily 
of 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
s a

nd
 or
ga
nis
ati
on
s t
ha
t is
 w
ork

ing
 to
 a 
co
mm

on
 ai
m 
- to

 im
pro

ve
 th
e q

ua
lity
 

of 
life
 in
 th
e D

ist
ric
t a
nd
 de

live
r th

e S
us
tai
na
ble
 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y. 
Me

diu
m 
Te
rm
 

Fin
an
cia
l P
lan
 

A 
thr
ee
 ye

ar 
bu
dg
et 
for
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 ex

pe
nd
itu
re 
an
d i
nc
om

e, 
lin
ke
d t
o t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 an

d 
pri
ori
tie
s. 

Ob
jec
tiv
es
 

Th
e b

roa
d g

oa
ls 
for
 th
e C

ou
nc
il, 
wit
hin
 w
hic
h p

rio
riti
es
 ar
e s
et.
 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

De
ve
lop
me

nt 
Re
vie
w 

A f
orm

al 
me

eti
ng
 be

tw
ee
n a

 m
em

be
r o
f s
taf
f a
nd
 th
eir
 lin
e m

an
ag
er 
to 
rev

iew
 pa

st 
wo
rk 
an
d a

gre
e 

fut
ure

 w
ork

, s
ett
ing
 st
an
da
rds

 an
d t
arg

ets
. 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

ind
ica
tor
s 

Ya
rds

tic
ks
 us

ed
 to
 as

se
ss
 ou

r a
ch
iev
em

en
ts.
 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Fra

me
wo
rk 

Se
ts 
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
se
s b
y w

hic
h E

lec
ted

 M
em

be
rs,
 O
ffic
ers

 an
d r
es
ide
nts

 ca
n m

on
ito
r h
ow
 th
e 

Co
un
cil 
is 
pe
rfo
rm
ing
. 

Pr
ior
itie
s  

Th
e f
ou
r a
rea

s i
de
nti
fie
d b

y E
lec
ted

 M
em

be
rs 
an
d O

ffic
ers

 w
he
re 
we
 w
ish
 to
 m
ak
e s
ign
ific
an
t 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
in 
ho
w 
we
 pe

rfo
rm
. 

Se
rvi
ce
 Bu

sin
es
s 

Pla
ns
 

On
e y
ea
r p
lan
s t
ha
t s
et 
ou
t w
ha
t e
ac
h d

ep
art
me

nt 
int
en
ds
 to
 de

live
r o
ve
r th

e c
om

ing
 ye
ar.
 

Sp
ati
al 
Bu
sin
es
s 

Pr
oje
ct 

A l
arg

e I
CT
 pr
oje
ct 
de
sig
ne
d t
o i
mp

rov
e c

us
tom

er 
se
rvi
ce
 th
rou

gh
 da

ta 
int
eg
rat
ion
.  

Ta
rge

t(s
) 

A f
ixe
d g

oa
l o
r o
bje
cti
ve
 w
hic
h r
es
ult
s i
n i
mp

rov
em

en
ts.
 

Va
lue
s 

Th
e f
un
da
me

nta
l p
rin
cip
les
 th
at 
gu
ide
 th
e w

ay
 w
e w

ork
.  

Vis
ion
 

Th
e i
de
al 
of 
ho
w 
we
 w
ou
ld 
like

 th
e D

ist
ric
t a
nd
 th
e C

ou
nc
il t
o b

e i
n t
he
 fu
tur
e. 

 

Page 235



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

17 MARCH 2009 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD PROPOSED PROGRAMME 
2009/10 

 
Responsible Member 
 

Councillor -  James Duddy, Performance 
Management Board Chairman  

Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett  -Assistant Chief Executive 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out the proposed work programme for 2009/10 (March 

only as background). 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that: 
 

i. The Board considers the programme. 
ii. Notes that invariably the programme will be updated during the year 

as the Board identifies something it wishes to focus on. 
iii. The Board identifies topics or areas of focus it would like to see in the 

programme for the year ahead. 
 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Board now has an established programme for work, which links to the 

integrated financial/performance management cycle operated by the 
Council.  This cycle will produce the usual run of reports, but the Board 
has an opportunity to consider including additional reports on areas it 
wishes to focus on. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The proposed new timetable links to the financial planning cycle. 
  
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 No legal implications to the report. 
 
6. CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1 The Board’s programme applies to all the Council’s objectives. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 237



7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1 The Board has previously expressed an interest in risk management.  This 

falls under the remit of the Audit Board; however, PMB can make 
recommendations to this Board or Cabinet on issues around risk 
management identified through its work. 

 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The Board will receive customer complaints data during 2009/10 as part of 

the quarterly integrated financial and performance reports. 
 
9. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Procurement Issues N/A 
 
Personnel Implications  N/A 
Governance/Performance Management N/A 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 N/A 
Policy N/A 
Environmental N/A 
Equalities and Diversity N/A 

 
10. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holders 
 

Via E-Mail and at 
PMB. 

Chief Executive 
 

Via e-mail. 
Corporate Director (Services)  
 

Via e-mail. 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 
Head of Service 
 

Via e-mail. 
Head of Financial Services 
 

Via e-mail. 
Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

Via e-mail. 
Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

Via e-mail. 
Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 – PMB Work Programme 2009/10  
 
12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

2008/09 PMB Work Programme. 

Page 238



 
CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
Name:   Hugh Bennett  
E Mail:  h.bennett@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881430 
 

Page 239



Appendix 1 
 

Proposed Performance Management Board Work Programme 2009/10 
 

Date Agenda Item 
 

17 Mar 09 Period 10 09/10 Performance Report. 
 
Period 10 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 2 progress report. 
 
Housing Strategy Update 
 
Housing Inspection Action Plan 
 
BDHT Performance 
 
Employee Survey Results 
 
Council Plan 2009/2012 
 
PMB Work Programme 2009/2010. 
 

21 Apr 09 TRAINING SESSION 
 
Period 11 09/10 Performance Report (distributed only, no 
meeting) 
 
Period 11 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 2 progress report 
(distributed only, no meeting). 
 

18 May 09 Period 12 09/10 Integrated Finance & Performance report 
 
Period 12 09/10 Improvement  Plan Mark 2 progress report 
 
VFM Licensing Review. 
 
Customer Access Strategy. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker. 
 

15 Jun 09 Period 1 09/10 Performance Report 
 
Period 1 Improvement Plan 2009/2010 Mark 4 
 
CPA Report and Direction of Travel 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

20 Jul 09 Period 2 09/010 Performance Report 
 
Period 2 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4  

Page 240



 
Annual Financial and Performance Report 2008/2009. 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker. 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

21 Sep 09 Quarter 1 09/10 Integrated Finance and Performance report. 
 
Period 4 09/10 Performance report 
 
Period 3 and 4 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress 
 report 
 
Data Quality Strategy 6 month Update 
 
Housing Inspection Report and Updated Inspection Action 
Plan. 
 
Council Plan 2010/2013 Part 1 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

19 Oct 09 Period 5 09/10 Performance Report. 
 
Period 5 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 

16 Nov 09 Quarter 2 09/10 Integrated Finance & Performance report. 
 
Period 6 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Community Strategy Annual Report 2008/09. 
 
Community Strategy 2010/2013. 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker  
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

21 Dec 09 Period 7 09/10 Performance Report. 
 
Period 7 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 3 progress report. 
 
Annual Artrix Performance Report  
 
2008/2009 Predicted Outturn for Corporate Indicators. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 
 

18 Jan 10 Period 8 09/10 Performance Report 
 
Period 8 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 

Page 241



 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

15 Feb 10 Quarter 3 09/10 Integrated Finance & Performance report. 
 
Period 9 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Performance Management Strategy Annual Update 
 
6 Month Review of Data Quality Strategy. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

15 Mar 10 Period 10 07/08 Performance Report. 
 
Period 10 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Staff Survey Results (if undertaken) 
 
Housing Strategy Action Plan Update and Housing Inspection 
Action Plan. 
 
Council Plan 2010-2013. 
 
PMB Work Programme 20010/2011. 
 

 
 
 

Page 242


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 17th February 2009
	4 Performance Reporting (January 2009) (Period 10)
	Performance January 09 Appendix 1
	Performance January 09 Appendix 2
	Performance January 09 Appendix 3
	Performance January 09 Appendix 4

	5 Employee Survey 2008
	6 Housing Strategy 2006/2011 - Progress Report, Mid Term Review and New Action Plan
	Housing Strategy Review Appendix-reduced

	7 Audit Commission Re-Inspection of Strategic Housing Services - Action Plan Update on Progress
	Re-Inspection Action Plan Appendix

	8 BDHT Annual Monitoring Report 2008
	9 Improvement Plan Exception Report (January 2009)
	10 Council Plan 2009/2012 Part 2
	Council Plan part 2 2009-12 Appendix

	11 Work Programme 2009/2010

